PROSPECTUS

FUCINO RMBS S.R.L.
(incorporated with limited liability under the laws of the Republic of Italy)
Euro 118,000,000 Class Al Residential Mortgage Backed Floating Rate Notes due December 2063
Issue Price: 100% per cent

This prospectus (the “Prospectus” or the “Offering Circular ”) contains information relating to the issue
by Fucino RMBS S.r.l., a limited liability company organised under the laws of the Republic of Italy (the
“Issuer”) on 16 June 2022 (the “Subsequent Issue Date”) of Euro 118,000,000 Class Al Residential
Mortgage Backed Floating Rate Notes due December 2063 (the “Class Al Notes” and, together with the
Class B Notes (as defined below, the “Rated Notes”).

On 15 April 2019 (the “Initial Issue Date”) the Issuer issued Euro 128,915,000.00 Class A Residential
Mortgage Backed Floating Rate Notes due December 2060 (the “Class A Notes” or the “Senior Notes”),
Euro 5,997,000.00 Class B Residential Mortgage Backed Floating Rate Notes due December 2060 (the
“Class B Notes” or the “Mezzanine Notes” and, together with the Class A Notes, the “Original Rated
Notes ”). In connection with the issuance of the Original Rated Notes, the Issuer issued Euro 14,990,000.00
Class J Residential Mortgage Backed Floating Rate and Additional Return Notes due December 2060 (the
“Class J Notes” or the “Junior Notes ) and, together with the Senior Notes and the Mezzanine Notes, the
“Notes”, provided that, starting from the Subsequent Issue Date, “Notes” will mean, collectively, the Class
Al Notes, the Class B Notes and the Class J Notes). In the context of the restructuring of the securitisation
transaction (the “Transaction”) occurred on June 2022, the Final Maturity Date (as defined in the
Conditions) has been postponed, in respect of the Class B Notes and the Class J Notes to the Payment Date
falling in December 2063 (being the Final Maturity Date, as defined below).

The net proceeds of the offering of the Class A1 Notes will be mainly applied by the Issuer to (i) fund the
early redemption of the Class A Notes, the partial redemption of the Class B Notes and the Class J Notes,
and the partial reimboursement of the Subordinated Loan and (ii) to purchase an additional portfolio of
monetary claims (the “Subsequent Portfolio” and the “Subsequent Claims”, respectively) arising under
residential mortgage loans originated by Banca del Fucino S.p.A. (“Banca del Fucino” or the
“Originator ”). The Subsequent Portfolio has been purchased by the Issuer under the terms of an additional
transfer agreement between the Issuer and the Originator pursuant to the Securitisation Law executed on
30 May 2022 (the “Subsequent Transfer Agreement”).

Therefore, on the Subsequent Issue Date, the Principal Amount Outstanding of the Notes will be:
- Euro 118,000,000 with reference to the Class Al Notes;

- Euro 5,000,000 with reference to the Class B Notes;

- Euro 12,480,000 with reference to the Class J Notes.

This Prospectus is a prospectus for the Class A1 Notes for the purposes of article 6.3 of Regulation (EU)
2017/1129 (the “Prospectus Regulation”) including any implementing measure in Ireland as well as a
Prospetto Informativo for the Class A1 Notes for the purposes of article 2, paragraph 3, of Italian Law
number 130 of 30 April 1999 (“Law 130" or also the “Securitisation Law ”). The Class B Notes and the
Class J Notes are not being offered pursuant to this Prospectus and any information contained herein in
relation to the Class B Notes and the Class J Notes has been included purely to assist potential Noteholders
when assessing a potential investment in the Class Al Notes.
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This Prospectus has been approved by the Central Bank of Ireland (the “Central Bank”), as competent
authority under the Prospectus Regulation. The Central Bank only approves this Prospectus as meeting the
standards of completeness, comprehensibility and consistency imposed by the Prospectus Regulation. Such
approval should not be considered as an endorsement of the Issuer or of the quality of the Class A1 Notes
that are the subject of this Prospectus. Investors should make their own assessment as to the suitability of
investing in the Class Al Notes. By approving this Prospectus, the Central Bank assumes no responsibility
as to the economic and financial soundness of the transaction and the quality and solvency of the Issuer.
Such approval relates only to the Class A1 Notes which are to be admitted to trading on a regulated market
for the purposes of Directive 2014/65/EC and/or which are to be offered to the public in any Member State
of the European Economic Area. Application has also been made to the Irish Stock Exchange plc, trading
as Euronext Dublin (“Euronext Dublin”) for the Class A1 Notes to be admitted to its official list (the
“Official List”) and to be admitted to its trading regulated market. References in this Prospectus to the
Class Al Notes being “listed” (and all related references) shall mean that the Class A1 Notes have been
admitted to the Official List and admitted to trading on Euronext Dublin’s regulated market. Euronext
Dublin’s regulated market is a regulated market for the purposes of Directive 2014/65/EU of the European
Parliament and of the Council on markets in financial instruments. The Class B Notes have been listed on
the Initial Issue Date on the Official List and no application has been made to list the Junior Notes on any
stock exchange. The Class B Notes and the Junior Notes are not being offered pursuant to this Prospectus,
nor this Prospectus will be approved by the Central Bank in relation to the Class B Notes and the Junior
Notes.

This Prospectus is valid for 12 (twelve) months from its date. The obligation to supplement this Prospectus
in the event of a significant new factor, material mistake or material inaccuracy does not apply when this
Prospectus is no longer valid. For the avoidance of doubt, the Issuer shall have no obligation to supplement
this Prospectus after the Class Al Notes have been admitted to the Official List and to trading on its
regulated market.

The principal source of payment of interest and repayment of principal on the Notes will be collections and
recoveries made from or in respect of the Subsequent Portfolio and from or in respect of the portfolio of
monetary claims (the “Initial Portfolio” and the “Initial Claims”, respectively, and, together with the
Subsequent Portfolio, the “Portfolio” and the “Claims”) arising under residential mortgage loans
originated by the Originator and purchased by the Issuer under the terms of the transfer agreement entered
into on 25 March 2019 (as subsequently amended on or prior to the Initial Issue Date) between the Issuer
and the Originator pursuant to the Securitisation Law (the “Initial Transfer Agreement”).

By virtue of the operation of article 3 of the Securitisation Law and the Transaction Documents, the
Issuer’s right, title and interest in and to the Subsequent Portfolio and the other Segregated Assets (as
defined below) will be segregated from all other assets of the Issuer (including any other portfolios of
receivables purchased by the Issuer pursuant to the Securitisation Law) and any cash- flow deriving
therefrom (to the extent identifiable) will be available, both prior to and following a winding up of the
Issuer, to satisfy the obligations of the Issuer to the Noteholders and to the Other Issuer Creditors or to any
other creditors of the Issuer in respect of any costs, fees and expenses in relation to the Transaction, in
priority to the Issuer’s obligations to any other creditors.

If the Class Al Notes cannot be redeemed in full on the Final Maturity Date following the application of all
funds available, as a result of the Issuer having insufficient funds available to it in accordance with the
Conditions for application in or towards such redemption, the Issuer will have no other funds available to it
to be paid to the Noteholders. If any amounts remain outstanding in respect of the Class A1 Notes upon
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expiry of the Final Maturity Date (as defined below), such amounts (and the obligations to make payments
in their respect) will be deemed to be released by the Noteholders and the Class A1 Notes will be cancelled.

The Class Al Notes will be subject to mandatory redemption in whole or in part on each Payment Date.
Unless previously redeemed in accordance with their applicable terms and conditions (the “Conditions”),
the Notes will be redeemed on the Payment Date falling in December 2063 (the “Final Maturity Date ).
The Notes of each Class will be redeemed in the manner specified in Condition 6 (Redemption, Purchase
and Cancellation). Before the Final Maturity Date, the Notes may be redeemed at the option of the Issuer at
their Principal Amount Outstanding together with accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption under
Condition 6.2 (Redemption for Taxation) and Condition 6.4 (Optional Redemption).

Interest on the Class Al Notes will accrue from the Subsequent Issue Date and will be payable on the
Payment Date falling in September 2022 (the “First Class A1 Notes Payment Date”) and thereafter
guarterly in arrear on the last calendar day of March, June, September and December in each year (each a
“Payment Date”) or if any such day is not a Business Day (as defined in the Condition), the following
Business Day (as defined in the Condition). The Class A1 Notes will bear interest from (and including) a
Payment Date to (but excluding) the next following Payment Date (each an “Interest Period”) provided
that the first Interest Period (the “Initial Interest Period”) shall begin on (and include) the Subsequent
Issue Date and end on (but exclude) the First Class A1 Notes Payment Date. The Class A1 Notes shall bear
interest at an annual rate equal to the Euro-Zone Inter-bank offered rate for three months deposits in Euro
(the “Three Month Euribor ”) (or, in the case of the Initial Interest Period, the rate per annum obtained by
linear interpolation of the Euribor for three months and six months deposits in Euro), as determined and
defined in accordance with Condition 5 (Interest), plus a margin of: 0.75% per annum. In any case the
Interest Rate (being the Three Month Euribor plus the relevant margin) applicable to the Class A1 Notes
shall not be negative.

All payments of principal and interest on the Class A1 Notes will be made free and clear of any withholding
or deduction for Italian withholding taxes, subject to the requirements of Italian Legislative Decree number
239 of 1 April 1996, as amended and supplemented, unless the Issuer is required by any applicable law to
make such a withholding or deduction. If any withholding tax is applicable to the Class A1 Notes, payments
of interest on, and principal of the Class A1 Notes will be made subject to such withholding tax, without the
Issuer or any other Person being obliged to pay any additional amounts to any holder of Class Al Notes as
a consequence. For further details see the section entitled “Taxation in the Republic of Italy”.

Both before and after a winding-up of the Issuer, the Issuer’s rights, title and interest in and to the
Portfolio, to all amounts deriving therefrom and to the other Segregated Assets will be available exclusively
for the purposes of satisfying the Issuer’s obligations to the Noteholders, the Other Issuer Creditors and
any other third party creditors in respect of any taxes, costs, fees or expenses incurred by the Issuer in
relation to the securitisation of the Portfolio (the “Transaction”) and to the corporate existence and good
standing of the Issuer.The Noteholders will agree that the Issuer Available Funds (as defined below in the
Conditions) will be applied by the Issuer in accordance with the Order of Priority of application of the
Issuer Available Funds set forth in the Intercreditor Agreement and the Conditions.

The Notes will be held in dematerialized form on behalf of the Noteholders as of the Subsequent Issue Date
until redemption or cancellation thereof by Monte Titoli S.p.A. (“Monte Titoli "), for the account of the
relevant Monte Titoli Account Holders. The expression “Monte Titoli Account Holders” means any
authorised financial intermediary institution entitled to hold accounts on behalf of its customers with Monte
Titoli and includes any depository banks appointed by Clearstream Banking S.A. (“Clearstream”) and
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Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V., as operator of the Euroclear System (“Euroclear”). Monte Titoli shall act as
depository for Clearstream and Euroclear. The Class Al Notes will at all times be evidenced by
book-entries in accordance with the provisions of article 83-bis of Italian Legislative Decree number 58 of
24 February 1998 and with the Regulation jointly issued by Commissione Nazionale per le Societa e la
Borsa (“CONSOB ") and the Bank of Italy on 13 August 2018, as amended from time to time.

Calculations as to the expected average life of the Class A1 Notes can be made based on certain
assumptions as set out in the section “Weighted Average Life of the Class Al Notes”, including, but not
limited to, the level of the prepayment of the Claims. However, there is no certainty either that the
assumptions made will materialise or that the Class A1 Notes will receive their full principal outstanding
and all the interest accrued thereon and ultimately the obligations of the Issuer to pay principal and interest
on the Class A1 Notes could be reduced as a result of losses incurred in respect of the Portfolio.

The Class Al Notes are expected, on issue, to be rated “AA(low)(sf)” by DBRS (as defined below),
“Aa3(sf)” by Moody'’s (as defined below) and “AA-(Sf)” by ARC Ratings (as defined below).

A credit rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to suspension,
revision or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating organisation. As of the date hereof, DBRS,
Moody’s and ARC Ratings are established in the European Union and are registered under Regulation
(EC) No. 1060/2009, as amended by Regulation (EC) No. 513/2011 and Regulation (EC) number 462/2013
(the “EU CRA Regulation”), as it appears from the most updated list published by the European Securities
and Markets Authority on the webpage
http://www.esma.europa.eu/page/List-registered-and-certified-CRAs. In general, UK regulated investors
are restricted from using a rating for regulatory purposes if such rating is not issued by a credit rating
agency established in the UK and registered under Regulation (EC) no. 1060/2009 on credit rating
agencies, as it forms part of domestic law of the UK by virtue of the EUWA (the “UK CRA Regulation”),
unless such rating is provided by a credit rating agency not established in the UK but is endorsed by a
credit rating agency established in the UK and registered under the UK CRA Regulation or such rating is
provided by a credit rating agency not established in the UK which is certified under the UK CRA
Regulation.

The Issuer will be relying on an exclusion or exemption from the definition of “investment company” under
the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the “Investment Company Act”) contained in Section
3(c)(5)(C) of the Investment Company Act, although there may be additional exclusions or exemptions
available to the Issuer. The Issuer is being structured so as not to constitute a “covered fund” for purposes
of the Volcker Rule under the Dodd-Frank Act (both as defined in this Prospectus). No assurance can be
given as to the availability of the exclusion or exemption under the Volcker Rule and investors should
consult their own legal and regulatory advisors with respect to such matters and assess for themselves the
availability of this or other exemptions or exclusions and the legality of their investment in the Notes.

The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as
amended (the “Securities Act”) or the securities laws of any other jurisdiction. Accordingly, the Notes are
being offered and/or sold only outside the United States in accordance with Regulation S under the
Securities Act and may not be offered or sold within the United States, or to, or for the account or benefit of,
U.S. persons (as defined in Regulation S under the Securities Act), except pursuant to an exemption from, or
in a transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of the Securities Act. See the section headed
“Subscription, Sale and Selling Restrictions”.
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U.S. RISK RETENTION - The transaction is not intended to involve the retention by a sponsor for
purposes of compliance with the final rules promulgated under Section 15G of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended (the “U.S. Risk Retention Rules”), in reliance on an exemption provided for in Rule
20 of the U.S. Risk Retention Rules regarding non U.S. transactions. Accordingly, and notwithstanding the
foregoing, the Notes may not be purchased by, or for the account or benefit of, any Risk Retention U.S.
Person. See the section entitled “Risk Factors - U.S. Risk Retention Requirements”. No assurance can be
given as to the availability of the foreign “safe harbor” under the U.S. Risk Retention Rules and investors
should consult their own legal and regulatory advisors with respect to such matters.

MiIFID Il PRODUCT GOVERNANCE/PROFESSIONAL INVESTORS AND ECPs ONLY TARGET
MARKET - Solely for the purposes of each manufacturer’s product approval process, the target market
assessment in respect of the Class A1 Notes has led to the conclusion that: (i) the target market for the Class
Al Notes is eligible counterparties and professional clients only, each as defined in Directive 2014/65/EU
(as amended or superseded, the “MIFID 11 ”); and (ii) all channels for distribution of the Class A1 Notes to
eligible counterparties and professional clients are appropriate. Any person subsequently offering, selling
or recommending the Class A1 Notes (a “distributor”) should take into consideration the manufacturer’s
target market assessment; however, a distributor subject to MiFID Il is responsible for undertaking its own
target market assessment in respect of the Class Al Notes (by either adopting or refining the
manufacturers’ target market assessment) and determining appropriate distribution channels.

PROHIBITION OF SALES TO EUROPEAN ECONOMIC AREA (“EEA”) RETAIL INVESTORS -
The Class Al Notes are not intended to be offered, sold or otherwise made available to and should not be
offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail investor in the European Economic Area ("EEA").
For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is one (or more) of: (i) a retail client as defined in
point (11) of article 4(1) of Directive 2014/65/EU ("MiFID I1'); or (ii) a customer within the meaning of
Directive 2016/97, as amended, (the "IDD"), where that customer would not qualify as a professional client
as defined in point (10) of article 4(1) of MiFID II; or (iii) not a qualified investor as defined in the
Prospectus Regulation. Consequently no key information document required by Regulation (EU) No
1286/2014 (the "PRIIPs Regulation™) for offering or selling the Class A1Notes or otherwise making them
available to retail investors in the EEA has been prepared and therefore offering or selling the Class Al
Notes or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in the EEA may be unlawful under the
PRIIPS Regulation.

PROHIBITION OF SALES TO UK RETAIL INVESTORS - The Class A1 Notes must not be offered or
sold and this Prospectus and any other document in connection with the offering and issuance of the Class
Al Notes must not be communicated or caused to be communicated in the United Kingdom ("UK") except
to persons who have professional experience in matters relating to investments and qualify as investment
professionals under Article 19 (Investment Professionals) of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000
(Financial Promotion) Order 2005, (as amended) (the "Order") or are persons falling within Article
49(2)(a)-(d) (high net worth companies, unincorporated associations, etc.) of the Order or who otherwise
fall within an exemption set forth in such Order such that Section 21(1) of the Financial Services and
Markets Act 2000 (as amended) ("FSMA™) does not apply to the Issuer or are persons to whom this
Prospectus or any other such document may otherwise lawfully be communicated or caused to be
communicated (all such persons together being referred to as "relevant persons™). Any investment or
investment activity to which this Prospectus relates is available only to relevant persons and will be
engaged in only with relevant persons. Neither this Prospectys nor the Class A1 Notes are or will be
available to persons who are not relevant persons and this Prospectus must not be acted on or relied on by
persons who are not relevant persons. The communication of this Prospectus to any person in the UK who
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is not a relevant person is unauthorised and may contravene the FSMA.

The Class Al Notes are not intended to be offered, sold or otherwise made available to and should not be
offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail investor in the UK. For these purposes, a retail
investor means a person who is one (or more) of the following: (i) a retail client, as defined in point (8) of
Article 2 of Regulation (EU) No. 2017/565 as it forms part of UK domestic law by virtue of the EUWA; or
(ii) a customer within the meaning of the provisions of the FSMA and any rules or regulations made under
the FSMA to implement Directive (EU) 2016/97, where that customer would not qualify as a professional
client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2(1) of Regulation (EU) No. 600/2014 as it forms part of UK
domestic law by virtue of the EUWA and as amended, or (iii) not a Qualified Investor (“UK Qualified
Investor ”) as defined in Article 2 of Regulation (EU) 2017/1129, as it forms part of UK domestic law by
virtue of the EUWA (the “UK Prospectus Regulation”). Consequently, no key information document
required by Regulation (EU) No. 1286/2014 as it forms part of UK domestic law by virtue of the EUWA,
and as amended (the "UK PRIIPs Regulation™) for offering or selling the Class A1 Notes or otherwise
making them available to retail investors in the UK has been prepared and therefore offering or selling the
Class Al Notes or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in the UK may be unlawful under
the UK PRIIPs Regulation.

BENCHMARK REGULATION - Amounts payable under the Class A1 Notes are calculated by reference
to the EURIBOR which is provided by European Money Markets Institute with its office in Brussels,
Belgium (the "Administrator™). As at the date of this Prospectus, the Administrator of Euribor is included
in the register of administrators and benchmarks established and maintained by the European Securities
and Markets Authority ("ESMA") pursuant to article 36 of the Benchmarks Regulation (Regulation (EU)
2016/1011).

STS SECURITISATION — The Transaction is intended to qualify as a simple, transparent and
standardised securitisation ("STS-securitisation™) within the meaning of article 18 (Use of the designation
‘simple, transparent and standardised securitisation’) of Regulation (EU) 2017/2402 of the European
Parliament and of the Council of 12 December 2017 laying down a general framework for securitization
and creating a specific framework for simple, transparent and standardised securitization, and amending
Directives 2009/65/EC, 2009/138/EC and 2011/61/EU and Regulations (EC) No 1060/2009 and (EU) No
648/2012 (together with any relevant Regulatory Technical Standards and/or any relevant implementing
measures or official guidance in relation thereto, in each case, as amended varied or substituted from time
to time, the “EU Securitisation Regulation ”). Consequently, the Transaction is intended to meet, as at the
date of this Prospectus, the requirements of articles 19 to 22 of the EU Securitisation Regulation and the
Originator intends to submit on or about the Subsequent Issue Date a notification to the ESMA for the
Securitisation to be included in the list published by ESMA as referred to in article 27(5) of the EU
Securitisation Regulation (the "STS Notification"). Pursuant to article 27, paragraph 2, of the EU
Securitisation Regulation, the STS Notification will include an explanation by the Originator of how each of
the STS criteria set out in articles 19 to 22 has been complied with in the Securitisation. The STS
Notification ~ will  be available for download on the ESMA’s  website at
https://www.esma.europa.eu/policy-activities/securitisation/simple-transparent-and-standardised-sts-secu
ritisation.

Compliance with the STS Requirements is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities. It is not
investment advice whether generally or as defined under Markets in Financial Instruments Directive
(2014/65/EU) and it is not a credit rating whether generally or as defined under the Credit Rating Agency
Regulation (1060/2009/EC).
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The Originator and the Issuer have used the service of Prime Collateralised Securities (PCS) EU SAS
(“PCS?”), a third party authorised pursuant to article 28 (Third party verifying STS compliance) of the EU
Securitisation Regulation, to verify whether the Transaction complies with the requirements of articles 19
to 22 of the EU Securitisation Regulation (the “STS Verification”) and to verify compliance of the Notes
with the relevant provisions of article 243 of the Regulation (EU) No. 575 of 26 June 2013, as amended
from time to time (the “CRR” and the “CRR Assessment”) and the compliance with such requirements is
expected to be verified by PCS on the Subsequent Issue Date. When performing a CRR Assessment, PCS is
not confirming or indicating that the securitisation subject to such assessment will be allowed to have lower
capital allocated to it under the CRR. PCS is merely addressing the specific CRR criteria and determining
whether, in PCS’ opinion, these criteria have been met; therefore, no investor should rely on such CRR
Assessment in determining the status of any securitisation in relation to capital requirements and must
make its own determination. It is expected that the STS Verification and the CRR Assessment prepared by
PCS will be available on the PCS website (https://pcsmarket.org/sts-verification-transactions/) together
with a detailed explanation of its scope at https://pcsmarket.org/disclaimer/. For the avoidance of doubt,
these PCS websites and the contents thereof do not form part of this Prospectus.

The STS status of a transaction is not static and, under the EU Securitisation Regulation, ESMA is entitled
to update the list should the Securitisation be no longer considered to be STS-compliant following a
decision of the competent authority or a notification by the Originator. The investors should verify the
current status of the Securitisation on ESMA’s website from time to time. As at the date of this Prospectus,
no assurance can however be provided that the Securitisation (i) does or continues to comply with the EU
Securitisation Regulation and/or the CRR, (ii) does or will at any point in time qualify as an
STS-securitisation under the EU Securitisation Regulation or that, if it qualifies as a STS-securitisation
under the EU Securitisation Regulation, it will at all times continue to so qualify and remain an
STS-securitisation under the EU Securitisation Regulation in the future and (iii) will actually be, and will
remain at all times in the future, included in the list published by ESMA as referred to in Article 27(5) of the
EU Securitisation Regulation. None of the Issuer, the Originator, the Arranger, the Placement Agent or any
other party to the Transaction Documents makes any representation or accepts any liability in that respect.
Please refer to the section entitled “Compliance with STS Requirements” for further information.

Each prospective investor is required to independently assess and determine the sufficiency of the
information described in this Prospectus for the purposes of complying with article 5 of the EU
Securitisation Regulation, and none of the Issuer, the Originator, the Arranger or the Placement Agent,
makes any representation that the information described in this Prospectus is sufficient in all circumstances
for such purposes. In addition, each prospective investor should ensure that it complies with any
implementing provisions in respect of article 5 of the EU Securitisation Regulation. Investors who are
uncertain as to the requirements which apply to them in respect of their relevant jurisdiction should seek
guidance from their regulator. Please refer to the sections entitled “Compliance with STS Requirements
and Regulatory Capital Requirements” for further information.

Under the Intercreditor Agreement and the Class A1 Notes Subscription Agreement, the Originator has
undertaken that it will retain at the origination and maintain on an ongoing basis a material net economic
interest of not less than 5% in the securitisation in accordance with paragraph(d) of article 6(3) of (i) the
EU Securitisation Regulation and (ii) Regulation (EU) 2017/2402 of the European Parliament and of the
Council of 12 December 2017 as it forms part of UK domestic law by virtue of the EUWA as amended by
the Securitisation (Amendment) (EU Exit) Regulations 2019 (as in force as at the Subsequent Issue Date)
together with any supplementary Regulatory Technical Standards, implementing technical standards, any
official guidance supplementing such Regulation published in relation thereto by the Prudential Regulation
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Authority and/or the Financial Conduct Authority and any implementing measures in respect of such
Regulation in the UK including any transitional, saving or other provision introduced by virtue of the
EUWA, in each case, as in force as at the Subsequent Issue Date (the “UK Securitisation Regulation” and,
together with the EU Securitisation Regulation, the "Securitisation Regulations™). As at the Subsequent
Issue Date, such interest comprised a retention of the first loss tranche (being the Junior Notes), which in
total is not less than 5% of the nominal value of the securitised exposures.

NEITHER THE ARRANGER NOR THE PLACEMENT AGENT ACCEPT ANY RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE COMPLIANCE OF THE ISSUER, THE ORIGINATOR OR ANY OTHER PARTY OF THE
TRANSACTION WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITISATION REGULATIONS.

The content of any website or webpage mentioned in this Prospectus does not form part of this Prospectus.

For a discussion of certain risks and other factors that should be considered in connection with this
Prospectus and an investment in the Class A1 Notes, see the section headed “Risk Factors”.

This Prospectus is made available in an electronic form. You are reminded that documents made available
via this medium may be altered or changed during the process of electronic transmission or access and
consequently none of the Issuer, the Arranger, the Placement Agent nor the parties to the Transaction or
any person who controls any such person or any director, officer, employee or agent of any such person (or
affiliate of any such person) accepts any liability or responsibility whatsoever in respect of any difference
between the Prospectus distributed to you in electronic format and any hard copy version available to you
on request from the Issuer and J.P. Morgan SE.

Dated 16 June 2022

Arranger
J.P. Morgan
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RESPONSIBILITY FOR INFORMATION
Responsibility statement

None of the Issuer, the Representative of the Noteholders, J.P. Morgan SE as Arranger, the Placement
Agent or any other party to any of the Transaction Documents (as defined below) or any other person, other
than the Originator, has undertaken or will undertake any investigations, searches or other actions to
verify details of the Claims sold by the Originator to the Issuer, nor have the Issuer, the Representative of
the Noteholders or any other party to any of the Transaction Documents or any other person, other than the
Originator, undertaken, nor will they undertake, any investigations, searches or other actions to establish
the existence of any of the monetary claims in the Portfolio or the creditworthiness of any debtor in respect
of the Claims.

The Issuer

The Issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in this Prospectus. To the best of the
knowledge of the Issuer, such information contained in this Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and
does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Issuer, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirms that this Prospectus contains all information which is material in the
context of the issuance of the Class A1 Notes and offering of such Class A1l Notes, that the information
contained in this Prospectus is true and accurate in all material respects and is not misleading, that the
opinions and intentions expressed in this Prospectus are honestly held and that there are no other facts the
omission of which would make this Prospectus or any of such information or the expression of any such
opinions or intentions misleading.

The Originator, the Administrative Services Provider, the Subordinated Loan Provider, the Subsequent
Subordinated Loan Provider the Collection Account Bank and the Servicer

Banca del Fucino has provided the information under the sections headed “The Portfolio”, “The
Originator, the Administrative Services Provider, the Subordinated Loan Provider, the Subsequent
Subordinated Loan Provider, the Collection Account Bank and the Servicer” and “Collection Policy and
Recovery Procedures” and, together with the Issuer, any other information contained in this Prospectus
relating to itself and the Portfolio and accepts responsibility for the information contained in those
sections. To the best of the knowledge of Banca del Fucino (which has taken all reasonable care to ensure
that such is the case), the information and data in relation to which it is responsible as described above are
true and accurate in all material respects, are not misleading, are in accordance with the facts and does not
omit anything likely to affect the import of such information and data.

The Representative of the Noteholders and the Security Trustee

130 Finance S.r.l. has provided the information under the section headed “The Representative of the
Noteholders and the Security Trustee” and, together with the Issuer, accepts responsibility for the
information contained in that section. To the best of the knowledge of 130 Finance S.r.l. (which has taken
all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case), such information is true and accurate in all material
respects, is not misleading, is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the
import of such information. Save as for aforesaid, 130 Finance S.r.1. has not, however, been involved in the
preparation of, and does not accept responsibility for, this Prospectus or any part hereof.
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The Corporate Services Provider, the Computation Agent and the Back-Up Servicer

Centrotrenta Servicing S.p.A. has provided the information under the section headed “The Corporate
Services Provider, the Computation Agent and the Back-Up Servicer” and, together with the Issuer,
accepts responsibility for the information contained in that section. To the best of the knowledge of
Centotrenta Servicing S.p.A. (which has taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case), such
information is true and accurate in all material respects, is not misleading, is in accordance with the facts
and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. Save as for aforesaid,
Centotrenta Servicing S.p.A. has not, however, been involved in the preparation of, and does not accept
responsibility for, this Prospectus or any part hereof.

The Transaction Bank, the Principal Paying Agent, the Cash Manager and the Listing Agent

BNP Paribas Securities Services, has provided the information under the section headed “The Transaction
Bank, the Principal Paying Agent, the Cash Manager and the Listing Agent” and, together with the Issuer,
accepts responsibility for the information contained in that section. To the best of the knowledge of BNP
Paribas Securities Services (which has taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case), such
information is true and accurate in all material respects, is not misleading, is in accordance with the facts
and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. Save as for aforesaid, BNP
Paribas Securities Services has not, however, been involved in the preparation of, and does not accept
responsibility for, this Prospectus or any part hereof.

The Swap Counterparty and the EMIR Reporting Agent

J.P. Morgan SE has provided the information under the section headed “The Swap Counterparty and the
EMIR Reporting Agent” and, together with the Issuer, accepts responsibility for the information contained
in that section related to itself. To the best knowledge of J.P. Morgan SE (which has taken all reasonable
care to ensure that such is the case), such information is in accordance with the facts and does not omit
anything likely to affect the import of such information. Save as for aforesaid, J.P. Morgan SE has not,
however, been involved in the preparation of, and does not accept responsibility for, this Prospectus or any
part hereof.

General Responsibility Statement

No Person has been authorised to give any information or to make any representation not contained in this
Prospectus and, if given or made, such information or representation must not be relied upon as having
been authorised by or on behalf of the Issuer, Banca del Fucino (in any capacity) or any other party to the
Transaction Documents or any other person. Neither the delivery of this Prospectus nor the offering, sale
or delivery of any Notes shall, under any circumstances, constitute a representation or create any
implication that there has been no change, or any event reasonably likely to involve any change, in the
condition (financial or otherwise) of the Issuer or the Originator or the information contained herein since
the date of this Prospectus or that the information contained herein is correct as at any time subsequent to
the date of this Prospectus.

The Class A1 Notes will be direct, secured, limited recourse obligations solely of the Issuer. By operation of
Italian law, the Issuer’s rights, title and interest in and to the Portfolio, to all amounts deriving therefrom
and the other Segregated Assets (as defined below) will be segregated from all other assets of the Issuer.
The Class Al Notes will not be obligations or responsibilities of, or guaranteed by the Originator (in any
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capacity), the quotaholder of the Issuer and any Other Issuer Creditor (as defined below). Furthermore, no
Person and none of such parties (other than the Issuer) accepts any liability whatsoever in respect of any
failure by the Issuer to make payment of any amount due on the Class Al Notes.

The Issuer’s rights, title and interest in and to the Portfolio, to all amounts deriving therefrom and the other
Segregated Assets may not be seized or attached in any form by the creditors of the Issuer other than the
Noteholders, the Other Issuer Creditors in accordance with the Transaction Documents and any other third
party creditors in respect of any taxes, costs, fees or expenses incurred by the Issuer in relation to the
Transaction and to the corporate existence and good standing of the Issuer, until full redemption or
cancellation of the Notes and full discharge by the Issuer of its obligations vis-a-vis the Noteholders, the
Other Issuer Creditors and any such third party. The distribution of this Prospectus and the offering of the
Notes in certain jurisdictions may be restricted by law. Persons into whose possession this Prospectus (or
any part of it) comes are required by the Issuer to inform themselves about, and to observe, any such
restrictions. Neither this Prospectus nor any part of it constitutes an offer, and may not be used for the
purpose of an offer, to sell any of the Notes, or a solicitation of an offer to buy any of the Notes, by anyone
in any jurisdiction or in any circumstances in which such offer or solicitation is not authorised or is
unlawful. This Prospectus can only be used for the purposes for which it has been issued.

The Class A1 Notes may not be offered or sold directly or indirectly, and neither this Prospectus nor any
other offering circular or any prospectus, form of application, advertisement, other offering material or
other information relating to the Issuer or the Class A1 Notes may be issued, distributed or published in any
country or jurisdiction (including the Republic of Italy, the United Kingdom and the United States), except
under circumstances that will result in compliance with all applicable laws, orders, rules and regulations.
No action has or will be taken which would allow an offering (nor an “offerta al pubblico di prodotti
finanziari”) of the Class Al Notes to the public in the Republic of Italy. Accordingly, the Class Al Notes
may not be offered, sold or delivered, and neither this Prospectus nor any other offering material relating
to the Class A1 Notes may be distributed, or made available, to the public in the Republic of Italy.
Individual sales of the Class Al Notes to any persons in the Republic of Italy may only be made in
accordance with Italian securities, tax and other applicable laws and regulations. For a further description
of certain restrictions on offers and sales of the Notes and the distribution of this Prospectus see
“Subscription, Sale and Selling Restrictions ”.

The Class Al Notes have not been and will not be registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933,
as amended (the ““Securities Act”) or the securities laws of any other jurisdiction. Accordingly, the Class
Al Notes are being offered and sold only outside the United States in accordance with Regulation S under
the Securities Act and may not be offered or sold or delivered directly or indirectly within the United States
or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons (as defined in Regulation S under the Securities Act),
except pursuant to an exemption from, or in a transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of
the Securities Act and applicable state securities laws. See the section entitled “Subscription, Sale and
Selling Restrictions” (below).

THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE REGISTERED WITH, OR
APPROVED BY, ANY UNITED STATES FEDERAL OR STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION OR
REGULATORY AUTHORITY. FURTHERMORE, THE FOREGOING AUTHORITIES HAVE NOT
PASSED UPON OR ENDORSED THE MERITS OF THIS PROSPECTUS OR THE ACCURACY OR
ADEQUACY OF THIS PROSPECTUS. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL
OFFENCE.

Neither this document nor any other information supplied in connection with the issue of the Class A1 Notes
11
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should be considered as a recommendation or constituting an invitation or offer by the Issuer that any
recipient of this Prospectus, or of any other information supplied in connection with the issue of the Class
Al Notes, should purchase any of the Class A1 Notes. Each investor contemplating purchasing any of the
Notes must make its own independent investigation and appraisal of the financial condition and affairs of
the Issuer.

Words and expressions in this Prospectus shall, except so far as the context otherwise requires, have the
same meanings as those set out in the section headed “Terms and Conditions of the Notes”. These and
other terms used in this Prospectus are subject to the definitions of such terms set out in the Transaction
Documents, as they may be amended from time to time.

Certain monetary amounts included in this Prospectus may have been subject to rounding adjustments;
accordingly, figures shown as totals in certain tables may not be an arithmetic aggregation of the figures
preceding them.

The language of this Prospectus is English. Certain legislative references and technical terms have been
cited in their original language in order that the correct technical meaning may be ascribed to them under
applicable law.

In this Prospectus references to “Euro”, “EUR”, “€” and “‘cents” are to the single currency introduced in
the member states of the European Community which adopted the single currency in accordance with the
Treaty of Rome of 25 March 1957, as amended by, inter alia, the Single European Act 1986 and the Treaty
of European Union of 7 February 1992 establishing the European Union and the European Council of
Madrid of 16 December 1995.
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RISK FACTORS

Investing in the Class A1 Notes involves certain risks. The Issuer believes that the following factors may
affect its ability to fulfil its obligations under the Class A1 Notes. All of these factors are contingencies
which may or may not occur and the Issuer is not in a position to express a view on the likelihood of any
such contingency occurring. Factors which the Issuer believes may be material for the purpose of assessing
the market risks associated with the Class A1 Notes are also described below.

The Issuer believes that the factors described herein represent the principal risks inherent in investing in
the Class Al Notes, but the inability of the Issuer to pay interest, principal or other amounts on or in
connection with the Class A1 Notes may, exclusively or concurrently, occur for other unknown reasons.
Prospective investors should also read the detailed information set out elsewhere in this Prospectus and
reach their own views prior to making any investment decision. While the various structural elements
described in this Prospectus are intended to lessen some of these risks for holders of the Class A1 Notes,
there can be no assurance that these measures will be sufficient or effective to ensure payment to the
holders of the Class Al Notes of interest or principal on the Class A1 Notes on a timely basis or at all.
Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to the Issuer or that it currently believes to be
immaterial could also have a material impact on its business operations. Words and expressions defined in
the Conditions or elsewhere in this Prospectus have the same meanings in this section.

Prospective investors should also read the detailed information set out elsewhere in this Prospectus and
reach their own views prior to making any investment decision.

1) RISKS RELATING TO THE AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS TO PAY THE NOTES

Issuer’s ability to meet its obligations under the Class A1 Notes

The Class Al Notes constitute direct, secured, limited recourse obligations solely of the Issuer. In
particular, the Class A1 Notes will not be obligations or responsibilities of or guaranteed by any of the
Representative of the Noteholders, the Quotaholder, the Collection Account Bank, the Cash Manager, the
Computation Agent, the Principal Paying Agent, the Listing Agent, the Transaction Bank, the Back-Up
Servicer, the Swap Counterparty, the EMIR Reporting Agent, the Corporate Services Provider, the
Subordinated Loan Providers, the Administrative Services Provider, the Servicer, the Originator, the
Placement Agent and the Security Trustee. None of the aforementioned parties, other than the Issuer,
accepts any liability whatsoever in respect of any failure by the Issuer to make any payment of any amount
due on the Notes.

The Issuer does not, as of the Subsequent Issue Date, have any significant assets other than the Portfolio and
the other Issuer’s Rights. In addition, for so long as any amounts remain outstanding in respect of the Notes,
the Issuer has undertaken to carry out further securitisation transactions only in accordance with Condition
3 (Covenants). The assets relating to each further securitisation transaction carried out by the Issuer in
accordance with Condition 3 (Covenants) will, by operation of law and of the Transaction Documents, be
segregated for all purposes from the Portfolio and the Issuer’s rights under the Transaction Documents (see
also the risk factor entitled “Further Securitisations” above).

There is no assurance that, over the life of the Class Al Notes or at the redemption date of the Class Al
15
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Notes (whether on the Final Maturity Date, upon redemption by acceleration of maturity following the
service of a Trigger Notice, or otherwise), there will be sufficient funds to enable the Issuer to pay interest
on the Class Al Notes, or to repay the Class A1 Notes in full.

If there are not sufficient funds available to the Issuer to pay in full all principal and interest and any other
amounts due in respect of the Class Al Notes, then the Noteholders will have no further claims against the
Issuer in respect of any such unpaid amounts. After the Class A1l Notes have become due and payable
following the delivery of a Trigger Notice, the only remedy available to the Noteholders and the Other
Issuer Creditors is the exercise by the Representative of Noteholders of the Issuer’s rights under the
Transaction Documents. In this respect, the net proceeds of the realisation of the Issuer’s rights under the
Transaction Documents and the Deed of Charge may be insufficient to pay all amounts due to the
Noteholders after making payments to other creditors of the Issuer ranking prior thereto. In the event of a
shortfall in such proceeds, the Issuer will not be obliged to pay, and the other assets of the Issuer will not be
available for payment of, such shortfall, all claims in respect of which shall be extinguished.

The ability of the Issuer to meet its obligations in respect of the Class A1 Notes will be dependent upon the
Issuer’s receipt of collections and recovery made on its behalf by the Servicer with respect to the Portfolio,
any payments made by the Swap Counterparty under the Swap Agreement and any other amounts received
by the Issuer pursuant to the provisions of the other Transaction Documents to which it is a party.

In this regard it shall be considered that each of the Noteholders, the Representative of the Noteholders and
the Other Issuer Creditors under the Intercreditor Agreement undertake not to (directly or by means of any
other person acting on behalf of them) institute against the Issuer, or join in any institution against the Issuer
of, any bankruptcy, winding up, re-organisation, arrangement, insolvency or liquidation proceedings or
other proceedings under any applicable bankruptcy or similar law in connection with any obligations
relating to the Notes or the other documents relating to the issue of the Notes for one year and one day (or
two years and one day in case of early redemption of the Notes) after the repayment in full or cancellation of
all the Notes.

Liquidity and credit risk

The Issuer is subject to the risk of delay arising between the scheduled payment dates and the date of receipt
of payments due from the Borrowers. The Issuer is also subject to the risk of, among other things, default in
payments by the Borrowers and the failure by the Servicer to collect or recover (as the case may be)
sufficient funds in respect of the Portfolio in order to enable the Issuer to discharge all amounts payable
under the Notes. With respect to the Class Al Notes, these risks are mitigated by the liquidity and credit
support provided by the establishment of the Cash Reserve, the excess spread and the credit support
provided through the subordination of the Junior Notes.

The amounts standing to the credit of the Cash Reserve Account after replenishment in accordance with the
Pre-Acceleration Order of Priority may not be sufficient to make up any shortfalls in the amounts required
to pay interest on the Senior Notes in accordance with the relevant Order of Priority.

However in each case, there can be no assurance that the levels of collections and the recoveries received
with respect to the Portfolio, together with the credit support and the liquidity support provided by
respectively the subordination of the Junior Notes and the Cash Reserve (in the case of the interest of the
Senior Notes) will be adequate to ensure punctual and full receipt of amounts due under the Class A1 Notes.
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The ability of the Issuer to make payments in respect of the Class Al Notes will depend to a significant
extent upon the due performance by each of Banca del Fucino and the other parties to the Transaction
Documents of its respective obligations under the Transaction Documents to which it is a party. In
particular, among other things, the timely payment of amounts due on the Class A1 Notes will depend upon
the Servicer’s ability to service the Portfolio and to recover the amounts due in respect of the defaulted
claims (if any), as well as the continued availability of hedging under the Swap Agreement. It is not certain
that the Servicer will duly perform at all times its obligations under the Servicing Agreement and that a
suitable alternative Servicer could be available to service the Portfolio if Banca del Fucino becomes
insolvent or their appointment under the Servicing Agreement is otherwise terminated. In order to mitigate
the servicing risk in respect of the Portfolio, the Issuer has appointed the Back-Up Servicer. In addition, the
Issuer is subject to the risk that, in the event of insolvency of the Servicer, the collections then held by the
Servicer are lost or temporarily unavailable to the Issuer. However, such risk has been mitigated by the
recent amendments made to the Securitisation Law in respect to the segregation of the accounts opened in
the context of securitisation transactions (please see paragraph “Claims of unsecured creditors of the
Issuer” below).

In order to reduce such risk, under the Servicing Agreement the Servicer has undertaken to transfer to the
Collection Account the Collections related to the Claims comprised in the Portfolio on a daily basis in
accordance with the Servicing Agreement. Prospective Noteholders should further note that, following the
insolvency of the Servicer, the Issuer (or the substitute servicer on behalf of the Issuer) will have to issue
new payment instructions to the Borrowers to pay directly to the Issuer. The Issuer is subject to the risk that
monies paid by the Borrowers to the insolvent Servicer prior to the new instructions being issued are lost or
temporarily unavailable to the Issuer. In order to reduce such risk, the Issuer has appointed the Back-Up
Servicer (so that the risk of delay in the replacement of the initial Servicer should be minimised). It should
be noted however that such risk has been mitigated by the recent amendments made to the Securitisation
Law in respect to the segregation of the accounts opened in the context of securitisation transactions (please
see paragraph “Claims of unsecured creditors of the Issuer” below).

In addition, the Issuer’s ability to make payments in respect of the Class A1 Notes may depend to an extent
upon the Originator’s performance of its obligations under the Warranty and Indemnity Agreements. In
particular, in the event that the Originator becomes subject to insolvency or similar proceedings, it would no
longer be in a position to meet its indemnification obligations to the Issuer under the Warranty and
Indemnity Agreements. In addition, in such case, any payments made by such Originator as indemnity
under the Warranty and Indemnity Agreements, or as indemnity for renegotiation of the Claims under the
Servicing Agreement or as repurchase price of the Claims under the Transfer Agreements, may be subject
to ordinary claw back regime under Italian Law (other than the shorter claw back period that applies to the
transfer of the Claims to the Issuer - see “Selected Aspects of Italian Law”).

In each case the performance by the Issuer of its obligations thereunder is dependent on the solvency of the
Servicer and the Swap Counterparty (or any permitted successors or assignees appointed under the
Servicing Agreement and the Swap Agreement) and the other parties to the Transaction Documents as well
as the timely receipt of any amount required to be paid to the Issuer by the various agents and counterparts
of the Issuer pursuant to the terms of the Transaction Documents.

In some circumstances (including after service of a Trigger Notice), the Issuer could attempt to sell the
Portfolio, but there is no assurance that the amount received on such a sale would be sufficient to repay in
full all amounts due to the Class A1 Noteholders.

Claims of unsecured creditors of the Issuer
17
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By operation of Securitisation Law and of the Transaction Documents, the right, title and interest of the
Issuer in and to the Portfolio and the other Issuer’s Rights will be segregated from all other assets of the
Issuer (including, for the avoidance of doubt, from assets relating to other securitisations carried out by the
Issuer pursuant to the Securitisation Law) and amounts deriving therefrom (for so long as such amounts are
credited to one of the Issuer’s accounts under the Transaction and not commingled with other sums) will be
available on a winding up of the Issuer (whether in the context of an insolvency proceeding or otherwise)
only to satisfy the Issuer’s obligations to the Noteholders, to make payments to the Swap Counterparty
under the Swap Agreement and to pay other costs of the Securitisation. Amounts deriving from the
Portfolio and the other Issuer’s Rights (for so long as such amounts are credited to one of the Issuer’s
accounts under the Transaction and not commingled with other sums) will not be available to any other
creditors of the Issuer. However, under Italian law, any other creditor of the Issuer would be able to
commence insolvency or winding up proceedings against the Issuer in respect of any unpaid debt.

In order to ensure such segregation: (i) the Issuer is obliged pursuant to the Bank of Italy regulations to open
and to keep separate accounts in relation to each securitisation transaction; and (ii) the Servicer shall be able
to identify at any time, pursuant to the Bank of Italy regulations, specific funds and transactions relating to
each securitisation and shall keep appropriate information and accounting systems to this purpose; (iii) the
parties to the Transaction have undertaken not to credit to the Accounts amounts other than those set out in
Cash Administration and Agency Agreement.

Moreover, the provisions of article 3 of the Securitisation Law concerning the patrimonio separato are not
likely to apply in circumstances where the cash-flow referred to above is commingled with the assets of a
party other than the Issuer (such as, for example, the Servicer — see in this respect the section entitled
“Liquidity and credit risk”). Thus, if any such party becomes insolvent, any such cash-flow held by it could
not be included in the patrimonio separato.

In addition, no guarantee can be given on the fact that the parties to the Transaction will comply with the
law and contractual provisions which have been inserted in the relevant Transaction Documents in order to
ensure the segregation of assets. Furthermore, under Italian law, any other creditor of the Issuer would be
able to commence insolvency or winding up proceedings against the Issuer in respect of any unpaid debt.

In any case, the corporate purpose of the Issuer as contained in its by-laws is limited and the Issuer has also
agreed to certain covenants in the Intercreditor Agreement and the Conditions restricting the activities that
may be carried out by the Issuer and has furthermore covenanted not to enter into any transaction that is not
contemplated in the Transaction Documents. To the extent that the Issuer has creditors not being party to
the Transaction Documents, the Issuer has established the Expenses Account and the funds therein may be
used for the purposes of paying the ongoing fees, costs, expenses and taxes of the Issuer to third parties,
excluding the Other Issuer Creditors, in respect of the Transaction, to the extent that payment of such fees,
costs, expenses and taxes is not deferrable to the immediately succeeding Payment Date.

Sharing with other creditors

The proceeds of enforcement and collection of the security created by the Issuer under the Deed of Charge
in favour of the Security Trustee (for its own account and as a trustee for the Other Issuer Creditors) will be
used in accordance with the Acceleration Order of Priority to satisfy claims of all the Noteholders and the
Other Issuer Creditors thereunder.

Pursuant to the Acceleration Order of Priority the claims of certain Other Issuer Creditors will rank senior
to the claims of the Noteholders. To this extent, payments by the Issuer of amounts due to the Noteholders
18
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under the Transaction Documents will be paid in accordance with such Acceleration Order of Priority.
Termination of the Swap Agreement

The benefits of the Swap Agreement may not be achieved in the event of the early termination of one or
more of the Swap Transactions pursuant to the terms of the Swap Agreement, including termination upon
the failure of the Swap Counterparty to perform its obligations thereunder.

The Swap Agreement contains certain limited termination events and events of default which will entitle
either party to terminate the Swap Transactions (see for further details “Description of the Transaction
Documents™). In case of an early termination of the Swap Agreement, unless one or more comparable
interest rate swaps are entered into, the Issuer may have insufficient funds to make payment under the Notes
and/or this may result in a downgrading of the rating of the Rated Notes.

Any collateral transferred to the Issuer by the Swap Counterparty pursuant to the Swap Agreement and any
Replacement Swap Premium received by the Issuer from a replacement swap counterparty will not
generally be available to the Issuer to make payments to the Noteholders and the Other Issuer Creditors and
shall only be paid or transferred (as applicable) in accordance with the Collateral Account Priority of
Payments.

In the event of the insolvency of the Swap Counterparty, the Issuer will be treated as a general and
unsecured creditor of the Swap Counterparty in respect of any claim it has for a termination amount due
from the Swap Counterparty under the Swap Agreement. Consequently, the Issuer will be subject to the
credit risk of the Swap Counterparty in addition to the risk of the debtors of the Claims.

An early termination of the Swap Agreement could result in the Issuer being obliged to make a termination
payment to the Swap Counterparty. Except where the Swap Counterparty has caused the Swap Agreement
to terminate by its own default, any termination payment due to the Swap Counterparty will rank ahead of
payments of interest and/or principal on the Notes and may substantially reduce the funds available for
payments to the Noteholders. Where the Swap Counterparty has caused the Swap Agreement to terminate
by its own default, any termination payment due to the Swap Counterparty will rank junior to payments of
interest and/or principal on the Notes to the extent the amount of such termination payment exceeds the
Swap Fixed Termination Amounts.

The Swap Counterparty is required to have certain ratings. Although contractual remedies are provided in
the event of a downgrading of the Swap Counterparty, any replacement arrangement with a third party may
not be as favourable as the current Swap Agreement and the Noteholders may be adversely affected.

See for further details “Description of the Transaction Documents - The Swap Agreement”.
Further securitisations

The Issuer may purchase and securitise further portfolios of monetary claims in addition to the Portfolio.
Pursuant to article 3 of the Securitisation Law, the assets relating to each individual securitisation
transaction will, by operation of law, be segregated from all other assets of the Issuer. On a winding up of
such company, such assets will only be available to holders of notes issued to finance the acquisition of the
relevant receivables and to certain creditors claiming payment of debts incurred by such company in
connection with the securitisation of the relevant assets.
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The implementation by the Issuer of any such further securitisation is subject to the conditions specified
under Condition 3.11 (Covenants - Further Securitisation). According to such condition, it is a condition
precedent, inter alia, to any such securitisation that (i) the Rating Agencies have been notified in writing of
the Issuer’s intention to carry out a Further Securitisation; and (ii) the Issuer shall not affect the
qualification of the Class Al as eligible collateral (if applicable), within the meaning of the Guideline (EU)
2015/510 of the European Central Bank of 19 December 2014 on the implementation of the Eurosystem
monetary policy framework (ECB/2014/60), as subsequently amended and supplemented, and Guideline
ECB/2014/31 of the European Central Bank of 9 July 2014 on additional temporary measures relating to
Eurosystem refinancing operations and eligibility of collateral and amending Guideline ECB/2007/9, as
subsequently amended and supplemented). See Condition 3 (Covenants).

Interest rate risk

The Claims have or may have interest payments calculated on a fixed rate basis or a floating rate basis
(which may be different from the Euribor applicable under the Class Al Notes, have a different fixing
mechanism than the Euribor applicable under the Class A1 Notes and may be capped or floored at a certain
maximum level), whilst the Class A1 Notes will bear interest at a rate based on Three Month Euribor
determined on each Interest Determination Date, subject to and in accordance with the Conditions. As a
result, there could be a rate mismatch between interest accruing on the Class A1 Notes and on the Portfolio
and an increase in the level of Three Month Euribor could adversely impact the ability of the Issuer to make
payments on the Class Al Notes.

To reduce the effect of such interest rate mismatch, the Issuer has entered into three Swap Transactions
pursuant to the Swap Agreement, namely a fixed-floating interest rate swap transaction, a Three Month
Euribor basis swap transaction and a Six Month Euribor basis swap transaction, pursuant to which the
Issuer will, inter alia, pay the Swap Counterparty an Initial Exchange Amount (as defined therein).

The notional amount with respect to each Swap Transaction will be calculated by reference to the Principal
Instalments of the relevant Claims (other than the amount of any Principal Instalments due but unpaid, or
that have been prepaid or repurchased, at the relevant Collection Date and any Principal Instalments
relating to Defaulted Claims) as of the Collection Date immediately preceding the beginning of each
Calculation Period (as such term is defined in the Swap Agreement). For each Calculation Period, the
notional amount in respect of each Swap Transaction will be the lower of the amount of such Principal
Instalments and the Scheduled Maximum Notional Amount set forth in that Swap Transaction (or, in case
no Quarterly Servicer Report is delivered with respect to a Calculation Period, the lower of the scheduled
maximum notional amount and the notional amount for the immediately preceding Calculation Period). In
addition, under each of the Swap Transactions on each Payment Date, the Swap Fixed Amount will be due
by the Issuer to the Swap Counterparty. Netting will apply to all payments under the Swap Transactions,
including the Swap Fixed Amount.

The notional amount with respect to the fixed-floating interest rate Swap Transaction will be calculated by
reference to the Principal Instalments of the Claims accruing interest at a fixed rate. The notional amount
with respect to the Three Month Euribor basis Swap Transaction will be calculated with reference to the
Principal Instalments of the Claims accruing interest at a floating rate linked to three month euribor. The
notional amount with respect to the Six Month Euribor basis Swap Transaction will be calculated with
reference to the Principal Instalments of the Claims accruing interest at a floating rate linked to six month
euribor.

The notional amount of the Swap Transactions under which the Claims accruing interest at a fixed rate are
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hedged shall not take into account any Claims for which the applicable interest rate has been renegotiated
from a fixed rate to a floating rate (with or without a cap or a floor), by the Originator (in its capacity as
Servicer) in accordance with the Servicing Agreement but shall take into account Claims arising under
Loans which have been renegotiated from a floating rate (with or without a cap or without a floor) to a fixed
rate.

The notional amount of the basis Swap Transaction under which the Claims accruing interest at a floating
rate are hedged shall not take into account any Claims where the interest rate has been renegotiated from a
floating rate without a cap to a fixed rate.

Accordingly, the notional amount of each Swap Transaction will be adjusted to include and exclude (as
applicable) any renegotiated Claims but subject always to the Scheduled Maximum Notional Amount
applicable to such Swap Transaction.

Under the Servicing Agreement, the Servicer, among other things
(i)  has the ability to renegotiate the interest rate on the Claims:

(@) from fixed rate, or variable interest rate with cap, to a variable interest rate or to a variable
interest rate with a floor; or

(b) from variable interest rate or variable interest rate with cap or variable interest rate with a floor
to a fixed rate; or

(c) by means of reduction of the interest rate or the spread applicable (in case no variation of the
nature of the interest rate applicable to the relevant Loan Agreement has been carried out); or

(d) with specific regard to Loan Agreements with a variable interest rate with a floor, by
modifying the applicable floor;

but do not have the ability to renegotiate the interest rate applicable to the Claims to an optional interest rate
or to a variable rate with cap,

(i) may enter into renegotiations providing the reduction of the interest rate or the spread applicable to
the relevant Loan Agreements (in case no variation of the nature of the interest rate applicable to the
relevant Loan Agreement has been carried out);

(iii) may enter into renegotiations providing for any modification of the amortisation plan of the Loan
Agreements permitted by the Servicing Agreement, provided that such modification shall not result
in a switch to an amortisation plan different from the so called “French amortisation plan”.

In addition, clause 9 of the Servicing Agreement sets out certain limits for the power of renegotiations of the
Servicer and in particular such clause provides that, in case the Servicer intends to enter into the
renegotiations under paragraph (i)(b) above:

(i)  the Servicer shall verify that, for each Collection Period, the sum of the principal amount outstanding
of the Loan Agreements subject of such renegotiation does not exceed, in relation to the Swap

Transaction pursuant to which the relevant Loan Agreement will be hedged after such renegotiation,
an amount equal to the difference between:
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1. the Scheduled Maximum Notional Amount in such Swap Transaction as applicable to the
following Interest Period; and

2. the Swap Outstanding Principal Amount in such Swap Transaction as calculated at the
beginning of the Collection Period in which such renegotiation is made;

(i)  the Swap Agreement and a swap agreement hedging the same risks hedged by means of the Swap
Agreement between Banca del Fucino and the Swap Counterparty are in full force and effect.

The Swap Agreement does not completely eliminate the interest rate risk related to the Class A1 Notes as,
inter alia, Claims may become unhedged following a variation of the relevant interest rate or renegotiation
of any of the terms of the Loans.

Commingling Risk

Traditionally, the special purpose vehicles incorporated under the Securitisation Law are subject to the risk
that, in case of insolvency of the servicers, the collections held by the servicers are lost or frozen. Such risk
is usually mitigated through the transfer of the collections held by the servicers, within a very limited period
of time, into bank accounts opened in the name of the issuers with Eligible Institutions. Furthermore, in case
of insolvency of the servicers, the debtors are usually instructed to pay any amount due in respect to the
receivables directly into bank accounts opened in the name of the issuers with Eligible Institutions.

On 24 December 2013, Italian Law Decree 145 came into force introducing certain amendments to the
Securitisation Law. In particular, Decree 145 has provided, inter alia, that the special purpose vehicles
incorporated under the Securitisation Law may open segregated accounts with the servicers for the deposit
of the collections received from the debtors and the other amounts paid to the special purpose vehicles
under the securitisation transactions; the sums deposited into such accounts will be segregated from the
assets of the servicers with which the accounts are held, as well as from those of any other person holding
deposits with the servicers, and will be available only to satisfy the obligations of the special purpose
vehicles vis-a-vis the noteholders and the other creditors in relation to the securitisation transactions. In the
event that the servicers become subject to any insolvency proceeding or restructuring agreement, the sums
deposited into such accounts will remain outside the servicers’ estate and will not be subject to suspension
of payments.

The “anti-deprivation” principle

The validity of contractual priorities of payments (such as the Order of Priorities contemplated in this
Prospectus) has been challenged in the English and U.S. courts. The hearings arose due to the insolvency of
a secured creditor (in that case a hedging counterparty) and considered whether such priorities of payments
breach the “anti-deprivation” principle under English and U.S. insolvency law. This principle prevents a
party from agreeing to a provision that deprive its creditors of an asset upon its insolvency. It was argued
that, where a secured creditor subordinates itself to noteholders in the event of its insolvency, that secured
creditor effectively deprives its own creditors. The Court of Appeal in Perpetual Trustee Co Ltd v BNY
Corporate Trustee Services Ltd 2009 EWCA Civ 1160 dismissed this argument and upheld the validity of
similar priorities of payments, stating that the anti-deprivation principle was not breached by such
provisions. In Belmont Park Investments PTY Limited v BNY Corporate Trustee Services Ltd and Lehman
Brothers Special Financing Inc (2011) UKSC 38, the Supreme Court of the United Kingdom unanimously
upheld the decision of the Court of Appeal in Perpetual and stated that, provided that such priority
provisions were part of a complex commercial transaction entered into in good faith without any intention
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to evade insolvency law in which the changing priority of payments by the parties thereto was an essential
part of the transaction understood by the parties, these provisions did not contravene the anti-deprivation
principle.

In parallel proceedings, the U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York has granted
Lehman Brothers Special Financing Inc’s (“LBSF”’) motion for summary judgement to the effect that the
provisions do infringe the anti-deprivation principle in a U.S. insolvency. The Court acknowledged that this
has resulted in the U.S. courts coming to a decision “directly at odds with the judgement of the English
Courts”. BNY Mellon Corporate Trustee Services Ltd was granted leave to appeal but the case
subsequently settled out of court. The decision of the U.S. Bankruptcy Court remains inconsistent with the
decision reached by the Supreme Court of the United Kingdom in the Belmont case as referred to above and
there is uncertainty as to how a conflict of the type referred to above would be resolved by the courts. In
February 2012, Belmont Park Investments PTY Limited and others commenced proceedings in the U.S.
Bankruptcy Court in relation to LBSF seeking an order recognising and enforcing the English judgment on
noteholder priority and seeking the withdrawal of the reference from the U.S. Bankruptcy Court, requesting
that the complaint be heard instead by the U.S. District Court. However, bankruptcy proceedings in relation
to LBSF were closed by the U.S. Bankruptcy Court in June 2013 and there has been no further action in
relation to the district court proceedings. Given the current state of U.S. and English law, this is likely to be
an area of continued judicial focus particularly in respect of multi-jurisdictional insolvencies.

Additionally, there can be no assurance as to how such subordination provisions would be viewed in other
jurisdictions such as the Republic of Italy or whether they would be upheld under the insolvency laws of
any such relevant jurisdiction. If a subordination provision included in the Transaction Documents was
successfully challenged under the insolvency laws of any relevant jurisdiction and any relevant foreign
judgement or order was recognised by the Italian courts, there can be no assurance that these actions would
not adversely affect the rights of the Noteholders, the rating of the Class Al Notes, the market value of the
Class Al Notes and/or the ability of the Issuer to satisfy all or any of its obligations under the Class Al
Notes.

2) RISKS RELATING TO THE UNDERLYING ASSETS
Yield and payment considerations

The yield to maturity, the amortisation plan and the weighted average life of the Class A1 Notes will depend
upon, inter alia, the amount and timing of repayment of principal (including prepayments) on the Loans and
on the actual date of exercise (if any) of the optional redemption rights of the Issuer pursuant to Condition
6.4 (Optional Redemption) or Condition 6.2 (Redemption for Taxation). Such yield, amortisation plan and
weighted average life of the Class Al Notes may be adversely affected by a number of factors including,
without limitation, a higher or lower rate of prepayment, delinquency and default on the Loans, the exercise
by the Originator of its faculty to partially repurchase the Claims and/or by the Servicer to renegotiate the
terms and conditions of the Loan Agreements and/or to grant the suspension of payments of the relevant
instalments in accordance with the provisions of the Servicing Agreement. See further section headed
“Description of the Transaction Documents — The Transfer Agreements - The Servicing Agreement”.

The level of prepayment, delinquency and default on payment of the relevant instalments or request for
suspension or renegotiation under the Loans cannot be predicted and is influenced by a wide variety of
economic, market industry, social and other factors, including prevailing mortgage market interest rates and
margin offered by the banking system, the availability of alternative financing, local and regional economic
conditions as well as special legislation that may affect refinancing terms. Prepayments may also arise in
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connection with refinancing, repurchases, sales of properties by Borrowers voluntarily or as a result of
enforcement proceedings under the relevant Loans, as well as the receipt of proceeds from the insurance
policies assisting the Claims.

The impact of the above on the yield at maturity and weighted average life of the Notes cannot be predicted.
Based, inter alia, on assumed rates of prepayment, the approximate average lives of the Class A1 Notes are
set out in the section entitled “Weighted Average Life of the Class A1 Notes and relevant assumptions”.
However, the actual characteristics and performance of the Loans will differ from such assumptions and
any difference will affect the percentages of the initial amount outstanding of the Class A1 Notes which are
outstanding over time and the weighted average lives of the Class Al Notes.

Claw-back of the sale of the Portfolio

A transfer pursuant to the Securitisation Law may be subject to a claw-back action by a judicial liquidator of
the transferor: (i) if the sale is not undervalued, within three months following the transfer if: (a) the
transferor was insolvent at the time of the transfer; and (b) the liquidator can prove that the transferee was,
or ought to have been, aware of such insolvency; or (ii) if the sale is undervalued, within six months
following the transfer if: (a) the transferor was insolvent at the time of the transfer; and (b) the transferee
cannot prove that it was not, or ought not to have been, aware of such insolvency.

Accordingly, if the Originator was insolvent at the date of the execution of the relevant Transfer
Agreement, and the Issuer was, or ought to have been, aware of such insolvency, the transfer may, in certain
circumstances, be subject to claw-back by a liquidator of the Originator.

Under each Warranty and Indemnity Agreement, the Originator has represented that it was solvent as of the
date of the transfer, and that such representations shall deemed to be repeated as of the relevant Issue Date
by the Originator, and that the appropriate solvency certificate has been obtained as of the date of the
transfer of the Portfolio (for other risks relating to the Originator, please see the paragraphs entitled
“Counterparty risk”, “Commingling Risk” and “Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive” and section
entitled “The Originator, The Administrative Services Provider, The Collection Bank and the Servicer”).

No independent investigation in relation to the Portfolio

None of the Issuer or any other party to the Transaction Documents (other than the Originator) has
undertaken or will undertake any investigation, search or other action to verify the details of the Portfolio
(including the Loan Agreements, the Mortgages and the origination procedures of the Claims) sold by the
Originator to the Issuer or to establish the creditworthiness of any Borrower.

None of the Issuer or any other party to the Transaction Documents (other than the Originator) has carried
out any due diligence in respect of the Loan Agreements in order to, without limitation, ascertain whether or
not the Loan Agreements contain provisions limiting the transferability of the Claims.

The Issuer will rely instead on the representations and warranties given by the Originator in each Warranty
and Indemnity Agreement and in the Transfer Agreements. The Originator has, pursuant to the Warranty
and Indemnity Agreements, made certain representations and warranties, and undertaken related
indemnification obligations, in respect, inter alia, of: (i) the validity and existence of the Claims; (ii) the
validity, effectiveness and proper execution of the Loan Agreements; (iii) the perfection of the Mortgages;
and (iv) the validity of the assignment to the Issuer by the Originator of their rights under the insurance
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policies entered into in connection with the Loan Agreements. Please see the section headed “Description
of the Transaction Documents”.

The indemnification obligations undertaken by the Originator under each Warranty and Indemnity
Agreement are unsecured claims of the Issuer and no assurance can be given that Banca del Fucino can or
will pay the relevant amounts if and when due.

Mutui Fondiari

The Portfolio comprises certain Loans that are mutui fondiari, in relation to which special enforcement and
foreclosure provisions apply. Pursuant to article 40, paragraph 2 of the Consolidated Banking Act, a
mortgage lender is entitled to terminate a loan agreement and accelerate the mortgage loan (diritto di
risoluzione contrattuale) if the debtor has delayed an instalment payment at least seven times whether
consecutively or otherwise.

For this purpose, a payment is considered delayed if it is made between 30 and 180 days after the payment
due date. Accordingly, the commencement of enforcement proceedings in relation to mutui fondiari may
take longer than usual. See the section headed “Selected Aspects of Italian Law”.

Loans’ Performance

The Portfolio is comprised of performing residential mortgage loans governed by Italian law. The Portfolio
has, as at the date of the approval of the Prospectus, characteristics that show the capacity to produce funds
to service payments due on the Notes. However, there can be no guarantee that the Borrowers will not
default under the Loans and that they will continue to perform their relevant payment obligations.
Borrowers may default on their obligations due under the Loans for a variety of reasons. Various factors
influence delinquency rates, prepayment rates, repossession frequency and the ultimate payment of interest
and principal, such as changes in the national or international economic climate, regional economic
conditions, changes in tax laws, interest rates, inflation, the availability of financing, yields on alternative
investments, political developments and government policies. Certain factors (including general economic
conditions and other similar factors) may lead to an increase in default by and bankruptcies of the
Borrowers, and could ultimately have an adverse impact on their ability to repay the Loans. Overall
economic recession and a further decline in the national and international economic outlook, or a general
deterioration of economic conditions in any industry in which the Borrowers operate may negatively impact
the solvency of the borrowers and therefore the recovery of mortgage loans.

Should any of the Claims in the Portfolio become non-performing, the recovery of amounts due in relation
thereto would be subject to effectiveness of enforcement proceedings in respect of the Portfolio which, in
the Republic of Italy, can take a considerable time depending on the type of action required and where such
action is taken and upon several other factors.

These factors which can have a significant effect on the length of the proceedings include, inter alia, the
following: (i) certain courts may take longer than the national average to enforce the Loans and the
Mortgages; (ii) obtaining title deeds from land registries which are in the process of digitising their records
can take up to 2 (two) or 3 (three) years; and (iii) further time is required if it is necessary to obtain an
injunction decree (decreto ingiuntivo) and if the Borrower raises a defence or counterclaim to the
proceedings. In the Republic of Italy it takes an average of 6 (six) to 8 (eight) years from the time lawyers
commence enforcement proceedings to the time an auction date is set for the forced sale of any Real Estate
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Asset. In this respect, it is to be taken into account that Italian Law No. 302 of 3 August 1998 (“Norme in
tema di espropriazione forzata e di atti affidabili ai notai”) (the “Law No. 302”) has allowed notaries to
conduct certain stages of the foreclosure procedures in place of the courts and that by means of Law No. 80
of 14 May 2005 (“Conversione in legge, con modificazioni, del decreto-legge 14 marzo 2005, n. 35, recante
disposizioni urgenti nell’ambito del Piano di azione per lo sviluppo economico, sociale e territoriale.
Deleghe al Governo per la modifica del codice di procedura civile in materia di processo di cassazione e di
arbitrato nonché per la riforma organica della disciplina delle procedure concorsuali) extends such
activity to lawyers, certified accountants and fiscal experts enrolled in a special register. The reforms are
expected to reduce the length of foreclosure proceedings by between two (2) and three (3) years, although at
the date of this Prospectus, the impact which the mentioned laws will have on the Loans comprised in the
Portfolio cannot be fully assessed. See the sections headed “Selected Aspects of Italian Law” and “The
Portfolio”.

Risk of Losses associated with declining property values

The security for the Notes consists of, inter alia, the Issuer’s interest in the Loans and the relevant collateral
guarantees. The value of this security may be affected by, among other things, a decline in property values.
Property values may in turn be affected by changes in general and regional economic conditions as well as
the strength (or weakness) of the Italian national economy, relevant local economy and the real estate
market. No assurance can be given that the values of the Real Estate Assets have remained or will remain at
the level at which they were on the origination dates of the related Loans. Therefore, no assurances can be
given that the values of the Real Estate Assets will not decrease at a rate higher than anticipated on the
origination (or acquisition by the Issuer) of the Claims. Should this happen, it could have an adverse effect
on the level of recoveries and ultimately, may result in losses to the Noteholders if the security is required to
be enforced.

Risk of losses associated with Borrowers

General economic conditions and other factors have an impact on the ability of the Borrowers to repay the
Loans. Loss of earnings, illness, decrease in turnover, increase in operating or in financial costs and other
similar factors may lead to an increase in delinquencies and bankruptcy filings by Borrowers, which may
lead to a reduction in Loans payments by such Borrowers and could reduce the Issuer’s ability to service
payments on the Notes.

In the event of insolvency of a Borrower (to the extent the same is subject to the lItalian Bankruptcy Law),
the relevant payments or prepayments under a Loan Agreement may be declared ineffective pursuant to
articles 65 or 67 of the Italian Bankruptcy Law.

In this respect, it should be noted that the Securitisation Law, as recently amended, provides that (i) the
claw-back provisions set forth in article 67 of the Italian Bankruptcy Law do not apply to payments made by
Borrowers to the Issuer in respect of the securitised Claims and (ii) prepayments made by Borrowers under
securitised Claims are not subject to the declaration of ineffectiveness pursuant to article 65 of the Italian
Bankruptcy Law. For further details, please see the section headed “Selected aspects of Italian Law — The
Securitisation Law”.

Restructuring arrangements in accordance with law No. 3 of 27 January 2012

According to the provision of law No. 3 of 27 January 2012 (the “Law 3/2012”), a debtor in a state of over
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indebtedness (“stato di sovraindebitamento”) is entitled to submit to its creditors, with the assistance of a
competent body (“Occ-Organismi per la Composizione della Crisi”’), or an expert, a debt restructuring
arrangement (the “Restructuring Agreement”) which shall in any case ensure the full payment of the
creditors whose claims towards the relevant debtor are not subject to be attached (“pignorati”) in
accordance with article 545 of the Italian code of civil procedure.

The Law 3/2012, as amended, applies, inter alios, to (i) debtors who are not eligible to be adjudicated
bankrupt under the Italian Bankruptcy Law; and (ii) to debtors which have not benefited of any procedure
set out by Law 3/2012 in the past five years. In any case the debtors must comply with article 7 of Law
3/2012 in order to benefit from the procedure provided by Law 3/2012.

In addition a specific procedure is provided by Law 3/2012 in relation to debtors who qualify as consumers
(“‘consumatori”).

The Restructuring Agreement shall provide the revised terms of payment of all of the debtor’s obligations,
including — at certain conditions — the secured creditors (“creditori privilegiati’). The Restructuring
Agreement becomes effective, upon approval (“omologazione”) by the competent Court (which shall be
given in any case within 6 months from the date on which the proposal of Restructuring Agreement is
submitted by the relevant debtor). In any case a favorable vote of creditors representing at least 60% of the
debtor’s claims is required for the approval of the Restructuring Agreement.

Under the approved Restructuring Agreement, which shall be binding for all of the creditors of the relevant
debtor, the latter may obtain: (a) up to a one-year period moratorium for secured creditors (“creditori
privilegiati”) if the proposal has a going concern basis; (b) the suspension of all foreclosure procedures and
seizures (“‘sequestri conservativi’’) against it; (c) that creditors will be prevented from creating pre-emption
rights (“diritti di prelazione”) on the debtor’s assets; and (d) that legal interests will stop to accrue.

As a consequence of the entering into force of the Restructuring Agreement, the debtor’s assets will be
considered as attached, and could not be further attached by upcoming creditors.

The Restructuring Agreement ceases to be effective if the relevant debtor does not pay the obligations set
out therein within 90 days from the established deadlines, or if the debtor attempts to fraud its creditors. The
Restructuring Agreement does not prejudice rights of the creditor against debtor’s guarantors and
co-obligors.

As an alternative to the procedure described hereabove, the debtors (i) in a state of over indebtedness (“stato
di sovraindebitamento™) and (ii) which have not benefited of any procedure set out by Law 3/2012 in the
past five years, may request the voluntary winding up of all its assets.

In particular, under such procedure the competent judge, upon request of the relevant debtor, is entitled to
issue a decree by means of which they will appoint a liquidator, and order the relevant debtor to transfer its
assets to such liquidator. The appointed liquidator will then pay creditors proportionally to their claims
(save for claims with pre- emption causes (“diritti di prelazione™)). Upon such decree being issued by the
competent Court, all the foreclosure procedures and seizures (“sequestri conservativi’) on the debtor’s
assets will be suspended. Such procedure cannot have duration lower than four years. Consequently, should
the debtor acquire further assets within four years from the date on which the filing has been made by the
relevant debtor, such new assets will form part of the liquidator’s assets and will be applied by the latter to
pay the creditors of the relevant debtor.
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Should any Borrower enter into a proceeding set out by Law 3/2012, the Issuer could be subject to the risk
of having the payments due by the relevant Borrower suspended for up to one year (in case of the entering
into of Restructuring Agreement) or part of its debts released.

However, the impact thereof on the cashflows deriving from the Portfolio and, as a consequence, on the
amortisation of the Class A1 Notes may not be predicted as at the date of this Prospectus.

Rights of set-off and other rights of Borrowers

Under general principles of Italian law, a borrower of a mortgage loan is entitled to exercise rights of set-off
in respect of amounts due under such mortgage loan against any amounts payable by the relevant originator
to such borrower if and to the extent that such counterclaims have arisen before the publication of the notice
of the assignment of the Claims in the Official Gazette pursuant to article 58, second paragraph, of the
Consolidated Banking Act and the registration of such sale with the companies’ register where the Issuer is
enrolled have been made. Consequently, after (i) publication in the Official Gazette of the notices of
transfer of the Portfolio to the Issuer pursuant to the Transfer Agreements and (ii) registration of the
assignments in the register of companies where the Issuer is enrolled, the Borrowers will not be entitled to
exercise any set-off right against their claims against the Originator which arises after the date of such
publication and registration.

3) OTHER RISKS RELATING TO THE CLASS A1 NOTES AND THE STRUCTURE
Suitability

Prospective investors should determine whether an investment in the Class A1 Notes is appropriate in their
particular circumstances and should consult with their legal, business and tax advisers to determine the
consequences of an investment in the Class A1 Notes and to arrive at their own evaluation of the
investment.

Investment in the Class Al Notes is only suitable for investors who:

1. have the requisite knowledge and experience in financial and business matters to evaluate such
merits and risks of an investment in the Class Al Notes;

2. have access to, and knowledge of, appropriate analytical tools to evaluate such merits and risks in the
context of their financial situation;

are capable of bearing the economic risk of an investment in the Class A1 Notes; and

4. recognise that it may not be possible to dispose of the Class A1 Notes for a substantial period of time,
if at all.

Prospective investors in the Class A1 Notes should make their own independent decision whether to invest
in the Notes and whether an investment in the Class A1 Notes is appropriate or proper for them, based upon
their own judgement and upon advice from such advisers as they may deem necessary.

Prospective investors in the Class Al Notes should not rely on or construe any communication (written or
oral) of the Issuer, the Originator or any other party to the Transaction Documents as investment advice or
as a recommendation to invest in the Notes, it being understood that information and explanations related to
the Conditions shall not be considered to be investment advice or a recommendation to invest in the Class
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Al Notes.

No communication (written or oral) received from the Issuer, the Servicer, the Originator, any other party to
the Transaction Documents or from any other person shall be deemed to be an assurance or guarantee as to
the expected results of an investment in the Class A1 Notes.

Limited Recourse nature of the Class A1 Notes

The Class Al Notes will be limited recourse obligations solely of the Issuer. The Noteholders will receive
payment in respect of principal and interest on the Class A1 Notes only if and to the extent that the Issuer
has sufficient Issuer Available Funds to make such payments in accordance with the applicable Order of
Priority. If, upon the delivery of a Trigger Notice or, if no Trigger Notice has been delivered, on the Final
Maturity Date, the Issuer Available Funds are not sufficient to pay such obligations in full, the relevant
Class of Noteholders shall be entitled to receive payments in respect of such obligations to the extent of the
available funds (if any) and any shortfall (including, without limitation, in such case, any shortfall in respect
of interest or principal on the Class A1 Notes) will not be due and payable, will be deemed to be released by
the relevant Noteholders and will be cancelled.

Limited nature of credit ratings assigned to the Class A1 Notes

The credit rating assigned to the Class A1 Notes reflects the Rating Agencies’ assessment only of the
likelihood of (i) payment of interest in a timely manner (pursuant to the Transaction Documents) with
respect to the Class Al Notes, (ii) ultimate repayment of principal on or before the Final Maturity Date with
respect to the Class Al Notes, not that such repayment of principal will be paid when expected or
scheduled. These ratings are based, among other things, on the Rating Agencies’ determination of the value
of the Portfolio, the reliability of the payments on the Portfolio and the availability of credit enhancement.

The ratings do not address the following:

(@) the likelihood that the principal will be redeemed on the Class Al Notes, as expected, on the
scheduled redemption dates;

(b) possibility of the imposition of Italian or European withholding taxes;
(c) the marketability of the Class Al Notes, or any market price for the Class A1 Notes; or

(d)  whether an investment in the Class A1 Notes is a suitable investment for a Noteholder.

A rating is not a recommendation to purchase, hold or sell the Class Al Notes. There is no assurance that
any such ratings will continue for any period of time or that they will not be reviewed, revised, suspended or
withdrawn entirely by any of the Rating Agencies as a result of changes in or unavailability of information
or if, in the sole judgement of the Rating Agencies, the credit quality of the Class A1 Notes has declined or
is in question. A qualification, downgrade or withdrawal of any of the ratings mentioned above may impact
upon the value of the Class A1 Notes.

The Issuer has not requested a rating of the Class Al Notes by any rating agency other than the Rating
Agencies. However, credit rating agencies other than the Rating Agencies could seek to rate the Notes and,
if such unsolicited ratings are lower than the comparable ratings assigned to the Class Al Notes by the
Rating Agencies, those shadow ratings could have an adverse effect on the value of the Notes. For the
avoidance of doubt and unless the context otherwise requires, any references to “ratings” or “rating” in this
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Prospectus are to ratings assigned by the specified Rating Agencies only.
Limited Enforcement Rights

The protection and exercise of the Noteholders’ rights against the Issuer and the security under the Notes is
one of the duties of the Representative of the Noteholders.

The Conditions and the Rules of the Organisation of the Noteholders (attached as Exhibit 1 to the
Conditions) limit the ability of individual Noteholders to commence proceedings against the Issuer by
conferring on the Meeting of Noteholders the power to resolve on the ability of any Noteholder to
commence any such individual action. Accordingly, individual Noteholders may not, without breaching the
Conditions, be able to commence proceedings or take other individual remedies against the Issuer unless
the Meeting has approved such action in accordance with the provisions of the Rules of the Organisation of
the Noteholders.

Eligible Investments

Funds on deposit in the Accounts may be invested in Eligible Investments by the Cash Manager (as directed
by the Servicer) through the Investment Accounts. The investments must have appropriate ratings
depending on the term of the investment and the term of the investment instrument, as provided by the
Eligible Investment definition. However, it may be that, irrespective of any such rating, such investments
will be irrecoverable due to the insolvency of the debtor under the investment.

None of the Servicer and/or any other party will be responsible for any loss or shortfall deriving therefrom.

However such risk is mitigated by the provisions that in case of downgrade of an Eligible Institution below
the rating allowed with respect to DBRS or Moody’s, as the case may be, the Issuer shall (i) in case of
Eligible Investments being securities, sell the securities, if it could be achieved without a loss, otherwise the
relevant security shall be allowed to mature, and (ii) in case of Eligible Investments being deposits, transfer
within 30 days the deposits to another account opened with an Eligible Institution in Italy, England or
Wales (and in case such account will be held in England or Wales, subject to the Issuer having created
thereon a valid, binding and enforceable security and obtained a legal opinion in this respect in accordance
with applicable law and jurisdiction).

Perfection of the sale of the Portfolio

The sale of the Portfolio by the Originator to the Issuer has been made in accordance with the Securitisation
Law. Pursuant to article 4 of the Securitisation Law, the publication in the Official Gazette of two different
notices respectively for the sale of the Initial Portfolio and the sale of the Subsequent Portfolio by the
Originator to the Issuer and the registration of such sales with the competent Register of Enterprises of
Milan, Monza, Brianza, Lodi (such publication and registration were made before the Initial Issue Date and
the Subsequent Issue Date) has rendered the relevant assignment of, respectively, the Initial Portfolio and
the Subsequent Portfolio and the proceeds deriving therefrom immune from any attachment or other action
under Italian law (other than a claw-back action: see “Claw-Back of the Sale of the Portfolio” below),
except to the extent that any such attachment or action is intended to protect the rights of the Noteholders
and the Other Issuer Creditors.

In addition, the publication of such notices means that the sale of the Portfolio cannot be challenged or
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disregarded by: (i) any third party to whom the Originator may previously have assigned the Portfolio or
any part thereof but who has not perfected the assignment prior to the date of publication; (ii) a creditor of
the Originator who has a right to enforce its claim on the Originator’s assets; or (iii) a receiver or
administrative receiver or a liquidator of any assigned Borrower in the case of the Borrower’s bankruptcy.

Euro System Eligibility

The Class A1 Notes are intended to be issued in a manner which will allow for participation in the
Eurosystem liquidity scheme. However, there is no guarantee and neither the Issuer nor the Originator nor
any other person takes responsibility for the Class A1l Notes being recognised as eligible collateral for
Eurosystem monetary policy and intra-day credit operations by the Eurosystem either upon issue or at any
or all times during their life. Such recognition will depend upon the Class Al Notes satisfying the
Eurosystem eligibility criteria (as amended from time to time).

In this respect, it should be noted that in accordance with their policies, neither the ECB nor the central
banks of the Eurozone will confirm the eligibility of the Class Al Notes for the above purpose prior to their
issuance or to their rating and listing and if the Class A1 Notes are accepted for such purpose, the relevant
central bank may amend or withdraw any such approval in relation to the Class A1 Notes at any time. The
assessment and/or decision as to whether the Class A1 Notes qualify as eligible collateral for Eurosystem
monetary policy and intra-day credit operations rests with the relevant central bank.

None of the Issuer, the Originator or any other party to the Transaction Documents gives any representation
or warranty as to the eligibility of the Class A1 Notes for such purpose, nor do they accept any obligation or
liability in relation to such eligibility or lack of it of the Class Al Notes at any time.

Historical Information

The historical financial and other information set forth in the sections headed “The Originator, the
Collection Account Bank, the Administrative Services Provider and the Servicer”, “The Portfolio” and
“The Collection Policy and Recovery Procedures”, including recovery rates, represents the historical
experience of the Originator. There can be no assurance that the Originator’s future experience and
performance as Servicer of the Portfolio will remain constant.

4) RISKS RELATED TO CHANGES TO THE STRUCTURE AND DOCUMENTS
Resolutions of Noteholders

Resolutions properly adopted in accordance with the Rules of Organisation of the Noteholders are binding
on all Noteholders, therefore certain rights of each Noteholder against the Issuer under the Conditions may
be amended or reduced or even cancelled pursuant to any such resolution.

Prospective investors should note that, for the purposes of the right to vote at any Meeting of Noteholders
convened to transact certain Business in relation to which a conflict of interest may exist between, on one
side, the holders of the Class A1 Notes (in such capacity) and, on the other side, the Originator in any other
role under the Transaction, those Class A1 Notes which at that time are held by the Originator shall (unless
and until ceasing to be so held) be deemed not to remain “outstanding”, subject to and in accordance with
the rules and the procedures set out for the Meeting of each Class of Notes under the “Rules of the
Organisation of the Noteholders” attached to the Conditions. It remains, furthermore, understood that the
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above restriction on voting rights does not apply (i) in case all the then outstanding Rated Notes are entirely
held by the Originator; and (ii) to the Originator as holder of the Junior Notes. For further details, see
section entitled “Rules of the Organisation of the Noteholders” (in particular, see Article 4 — “General”).

5) COUNTERPARTY RISKS
Counterparty risk

The ability of the Issuer to make payments in respect of the Class A1 Notes will depend to a significant
extent upon the due performance by the Originator and the Servicer, the other parties to the Transaction
Documents and the Insurance Companies of their respective obligations under the Transaction Documents
to which they are parties or the Insurance Policies. Whereas all of the above-mentioned counterparties may
be affected by the general economic conditions which, in turn, will affect their ability to provide the
services, the timely payment of amounts due on the Class A1 Notes will depend, in particular, on the ability
of the Servicer to service the Portfolio and to recover the amounts relating to Defaulted Claims (if any). The
performance of such parties and the Insurance Companies of their respective obligations respectively under
the relevant Transaction Documents or the Insurance Policies is dependent on the solvency of each relevant

party.

The Issuer’s ability to make payments in respect of the Class A1 Notes may depend to an extent upon the
Originator’s performance under the Transaction Documents. In particular, in the event that the Originator
becomes subject to insolvency or similar proceedings, it would no longer be in a position to meet its
obligations under the Transaction Documents including inter alia the relevant obligations (i) as Servicer,
(ii) to indemnify the Issuer under the Warranty and Indemnity Agreements and the Notes Subscription
Agreements, and (iii) the relevant obligations to make the payments due to the Issuer in order to adjust the
Claims purchase price (i.e. to take into account the additional payment or the reimbursement to be made for
any such Claim) in the event that, following the entering into of the Transfer Agreements, it appears that
one or more Claims listed under the schedule A thereto do not meet the Criteria as at the relevant Valuation
Date (or the specific date referred to in the relevant criterion) and therefore do not fall within the scope of
the assignment under the relevant Transfer Agreement. In addition, any payment made by the Originator as
an indemnity under the Warranty and Indemnity Agreements and the Notes Subscription Agreements, or as
an indemnity for the renegotiation of the Claims under the Servicing Agreement or as repurchase price of
the Claims, may be subject to the ordinary claw back regime under Italian law (other than the shorter claw
back period that applies to the transfer of the Claims to the Issuer).

In addition to the above, it is not certain that, if Banca del Fucino becomes insolvent or its appointment as
Servicer under the Servicing Agreement is otherwise terminated, a suitable alternative servicer could be
found to service the Portfolio. If such an alternative servicer were to be found it is not certain whether it
would service the Portfolio on the same terms as those provided for in the Servicing Agreement.

In order to mitigate the servicing risk in respect of the Portfolio, on or about the Initial Issue Date, the
Issuer, Banca del Fucino and the Back-up Servicer entered into the Back-up Servicing Agreement pursuant
to which the Back-up Servicer has agreed, upon termination of the appointment of Banca del Fucino as
Servicer, to replace the Servicer under the Servicing Agreement. However, prospective Noteholders should
bear in mind that there can be no assurance in the Back-up Servicer being able to service the Portfolio at the
same level as the Servicer. This in turn could result in the failure of, or a delay to, the processing of
payments on the Claims and, ultimately, could adversely affect payments of interest and principal being
made on the Class A1 Notes.
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In addition, given the recent conversion of Decree 145 into law and in the absence of official interpretations
and/or implementing rules, it is not possible to assess precisely whether the Issuer would be exempted from
any risk that, in the event of insolvency of the Servicer, any Collections held by the Servicer is lost or frozen
(see the risk factor entitled “Commingling Risk™). In order to mitigate any possible risk of commingling,
under the Servicing Agreement the Servicer has undertaken to transfer, within 1 (one) Business Day from
the relevant receipt the Collections in the Collection Account held by the Collection Bank. Furthermore, in
case of termination of its appointment pursuant to the Servicing Agreement, the Servicer has undertaken to
notify the Borrowers to pay any amount due in respect of the Claims directly into the replacement collection
account opened with an Eligible Institution. However, there is no assurance that the Servicer will timely
issue the new payment instructions and the Collections paid by the Borrowers may be lost or temporarily
unavailable to the Issuer. (For other risks relating to the Originator, please see the paragraphs entitled
“Servicing of the Portfolio”, “Claw back of the sale of the Portfolio”, “Commingling Risk” and “Bank
Recovery and Resolution Directive” and section entitled “The Originator, The Administrative Services
Provider, the Collection Account Bank and the Servicer”).

However it is to be noted that according to each Transfer Agreement, the Originator has provided the Issuer
in respect of the relevant Portfolio with a (i) a solvency certificate in the form attached to the Transfer
Agreement, (ii) a certificate of the competent companies’ register, stating that no insolvency proceeding is
pending against the Originator.

Furthermore, in some circumstances (including following the delivery of a Trigger Notice), the Issuer could
attempt to sell the Portfolio to third parties. However, there is no assurance that a purchaser could be found
nor that the net proceeds of the sale of the Portfolio would be sufficient to pay in full all amounts due to the
Noteholders.

More generally, the inability of any of the above-mentioned third parties to provide their services to the
Issuer may ultimately affect the Issuer’s ability to make payments on the Class A1 Notes.

Certain material interests

Certain parties to the Transaction may perform multiple roles. In particular: (i) Banca del Fucino is, in
addition to being the Originator, also the Servicer, the Arranger, the Subordinated Loan Provider, the
Subsequent Subordinated Loan Provider, the Collection Account Bank, the Administrative Serivices
Provider and the initial subscriber of the Notes; (ii) BNP Paribas Securities Services is, in addition to being
the Principal Paying Agent, also the Transaction Bank, and the Cash Manager; (iii) Centotrenta Servicing
S.p.A. is, in addition to being the Corporate Services Provider also the Computation Agent and the Back-Up
Servicer; (iv) 130 Finance S.r.l. is, in addition to being the Representative of the Noteholders also the
Security Trustee; (v) J.P. Morgan SE is the Arranger, the Placement Agent, the Swap Counterparty and
EMIR Reporting Agent and is an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of JPMorgan Chase & Co.; J.P. Morgan
SE is a global financial institution that provides a wide range of financial services to a diversified global
client base. As such, it may be involved in a broad range of transactions both for its own account and that of
other persons which may result in actual or potential conflicts of interest arising in the ordinary course of
business.

These parties will have only those duties and responsibilities expressly agreed to by them in the relevant
agreement and will not, by virtue of their or any of their affiliates acting in any other capacity, be deemed to
have any other duties or responsibilities or be deemed to be held to a standard of care other than as expressly
provided with respect to each agreement to which they are a party.
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Accordingly, conflicts of interest may exist or may arise as a result of parties to this transaction: (a) having
previously engaged or in the future engaging in transactions with other parties to the transaction; (b) having
multiple roles in this transaction; and/or (c) carrying out other transactions for third parties.

The Originator in particular may hold and/or service claims against the Borrowers other than the Claims.
The interests or obligations of the aforementioned parties, in their respective capacities with respect to such
other roles may in certain aspects conflict with the interests of the Noteholders. The aforementioned parties
may engage in commercial relationships, in particular, be lender, and provide general banking, investment
and other financial services to the Borrowers and other parties. In such relationships the aforementioned
parties are not obliged to take into account the interests of the Noteholders. In addition, Banca del Fucino in
its capacity as, present or future, holders of any Notes, may exercise the relevant voting rights in respect of
the Notes held by it also in a manner that may be prejudicial to other Noteholders. Prospective investors
should note that, for the purposes of the right to vote at any Meeting of Noteholders convened to transact
certain Business in relation to which may exist a conflict of interest between, in particular, the holders of the
Class Al Notes (in such capacity) and the Originator in any other role under the Transaction, those Class
Al Notes which are for the time being held by the Originator shall (unless and until ceasing to be so held) be
deemed not to remain “outstanding”, subject to and in accordance with the rules and the procedures set out
for the Meeting of each Class of Notes under the “Rules of the Organisation of the Noteholders” attached to
the Conditions. It remains, furthermore, understood that the above restriction on voting rights does not
apply in case the then outstanding Class A1 Notes are entirely held by the Originator. For further details, see
section entitled “Rules of the Organisation of the Noteholders” (in particular, see Article 4— “General”).

Servicing of the Portfolio

Pursuant to the Servicing Agreement, the Portfolio is serviced by Banca del Fucino. The Servicer will carry
out the administration, collection and enforcement of the Portfolio in accordance with the Servicing
Agreement and the Collection Policies. Such Collection Policies may change over time and no assurance
can be given that such changes will not have an adverse effect on the Issuer’s ability to make payments on
the Notes. In any case, it shall be considered that, under the Servicing Agreement, any material change to
the Collection Policies proposed by the Servicer is subject to the prior consent of the Issuer and the prior
notice to the Representative of the Noteholders and the Rating Agencies.

The net cash flows from the Portfolio may be affected by decisions made and actions taken and the
collection procedures adopted by the Servicer pursuant to the Servicing Agreement (or any permitted
successors or assignees appointed under the Servicing Agreement). In addition, no assurance can be given
that the Servicer will promptly forward all amounts collected from Borrowers in respect of the Claims to the
Issuer in respect of a particular Collection Period in accordance with the Servicing Agreement (however, it
should be noted that the Issuer may in such case terminate the Servicer’s appointment — see for further
details “Description of the Transaction Documents - The Servicing Agreement”).

Following the occurrence of a termination event of Banca del Fucino as Servicer, the performance of Banca
del Fucino’s obligations under the Servicing Agreement will be undertaken by the Back-Up Servicer in
accordance with the terms of the Back-Up Servicing Agreement. There can be no assurance that the
Back-Up Servicer will be able to provide the servicing of the Portfolio at the same level as the Servicer.The
failure to appoint a replacement servicer in the event that the Servicer can no longer perform its agreed
function (in the event a replacement back-up servicer has not been appointed upon termination of the
Back-Up Servicer or failing the Back-Up Servicer to assume performance of the services provided under
the Servicing Agreement) may result in a shortfall in funds available to make payments on the Class Al
Notes. In addition, the substitute servicer may be entitled to receipt a servicing fee greater than that charged
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by the Servicer.

If the appointment of the Back-Up Servicer under the Back-Up Servicing Agreement is terminated, there
can be no assurance that a replacement back-up servicer would be found or, if found, it would be willing
and able to service the Claims. The ability of any entity acting as replacement back-up servicer to fully
perform the required services would depend, among other things, on the information, software and records
available to them at the time of the appointment. Any delay or inability to appoint a replacement back-up
servicer may affect payments being made on the Class Al Notes. The failure of the Back-Up Servicer to
assume performance of the services provided under the Servicing Agreement following the termination of
the appointment of the Servicer in accordance with the terms of the Servicing Agreement and the Back-Up
Servicing Agreement could result in the failure of or delay in the processing of payments on the Claims and
ultimately could adversely affect payments of interest and principal on the Class Al Notes.

6) MACRO-ECONOMIC AND MARKET RISKS
Risks arising from the difficult market and economic conditions
The timing and payment of the Loans may be influenced by the economic situation generally, the Eurozone

and Italy, as well as by the dynamics of financial markets. The current macroeconomic situation is
characterised by significant uncertainties that relate to:

(@) the consequences of the Russian invasion of Ukraine, the impact of sanctions and the risk of the
conflict spreading elsewhere;

(b) the impact of Covid-19 on global growth and individual countries;

(c) trends of the real economy as regard to the prospects of recovery, dynamics of national economic
growth and the stability of the economies in those countries (United States and China), which have
shown a substantial growth in recent years;

(d) future developments in the monetary policy of the ECB in the Eurozone and of the FED area in the
dollar area, and in the policies implemented by various countries aimed at encouraging competitive
devaluations of their currencies;

(e) recent turmoil on the main Asian financial markets, including, in particular, the Chinese market.

It should also be noted that, as at the date of this Prospectus, the Eurozone is experiencing rapid increases in
inflation and the cost of living which could lead to further economic stress as consumers reduce their
household expenditure leading to a negative impact on businesses (in particular those in the retail and
service sectors). Potential rises in interest rates are likely to be passed on to consumers leading to an
increase in their cost of debt as well as further discouraging expenditure. Rises in a Borrowers’ cost of debt

and cost of living could lead to increased strain on their ability to service their Loans.

Negative developments in all or some only of the above factors may have an adverse effect on the ability of
the Issuer to satisfy its obligations under the Class Al Notes.

Impact of Russia-Ukraine war
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The ongoing Russian invasion of Ukraine, which was launched on 24 February 2022, together with the
imposition of sanctions and export controls against Russia and Russian interests by a number of countries
including the European Union, has already had a significant impact on the European and global economy,
with greater market volatility and significant increases in the prices of energy and natural gas. As at the date
of this Prospectus, it is not possible to predict the broader consequences of the invasion, which could
include further sanctions, export controls and embargoes, greater regional instability, geopolitical shifts and
other adverse effects on macroeconomic conditions, currency exchange rates, supply chains (including the
supply of fuel and gas from Russia) and financial markets, all of which could, either directly or indirectly,
have an adverse impact on the ability of the Issuer to satisfy its obligations under the Class A1 Notes.

Limited secondary market and liquidity risk

Although an application has been made to list the Class A1 Notes on the Euronext Dublin and to admit such
Class Al Notes to trading on the Regulated Market, there can be no assurance that a secondary market for
any of the Class A1 Notes will develop, or, if a secondary market does develop in respect of any of the
Class Al Notes, that it will provide the holders of such Class Al Notes with liquidity of investments or that
it will continue until the final redemption or cancellation of such Class A1 Notes. Consequently, any
purchaser of Class A1 Notes may be unable to sell such Class Al Notes to any third party and it may
therefore have to hold such Class Al Notes until the final redemption or cancellation thereof. The Class Al
Notes have not been, and will not be, registered under the Securities Act or with any securities regulatory
authority of any state or other jurisdiction of the United States and will be subject to significant restrictions
on resale in the United States. The offering of the Class A1 Notes will be made pursuant to the exemption
from registration provided under Regulation S of the Securities Act. No Person is obliged or intends to
register the Class Al Notes under the Securities Act or any state securities laws. Accordingly, offers and
sales of the Class A1 Notes are subject to the restrictions described under the section headed “Subscription
and Sale”.

Limited liquidity in the secondary market may continue to have an adverse effect on the market value of the
asset backed securities, especially those securities that are more sensitive to prepayment, credit or interest
rate risk and those securities that have been structured to meet the requirements of limited categories of
investors. Consequently, whilst these market conditions persist, an investor in the Class A1 Notes may not
be able to sell or acquire credit protection on its Class A1 Notes readily and market values of the Class Al
Notes are likely to fluctuate. Any of these fluctuations may be significant and could result in significant
losses to an investor.

Changes or uncertainty in respect of EURIBOR and/or other interest rate benchmarks may affect
the value or payment of interest under the Class A1 Notes

Financial market reference rates and their calculation and determination procedures have come under close
public scrutiny in recent years. Starting in 2009, authorities in jurisdictions such as the European Union, the
United States, Japan and others investigated cases of alleged misconduct around the rate-setting of LIBOR,
Euribor and other reference rates. A number of initiatives to reform reference rate setting have been
launched as a consequence by the regulatory and supervisory communities as well as the financial markets.
These include the Final Report of ESMA-EBA on Principles for Benchmark-Setting Processes in the
European Union published in June 2013 and the Regulation (EU) 2016/1011 of the European Parliament
and of the Council of 8 June 2016 on indices used as benchmarks in financial instruments and financial
contracts or to measure the performance of investment funds and amending Directives 2008/48/EC and
2014/17/EU and Regulation (EU) No 596/2014 (the “Benchmark Regulation”), which entered into force
on 30 June 2016 and became applicable from 1 January 2018.
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Under the Benchmark Regulation, new requirements apply with respect to the provision of a wide range of
benchmarks (including Euribor), the contribution of input data to a benchmark and the use of a benchmark
within the European Union.

9 ¢

The Benchmark Regulation applies to “contributors”, “administrators” and “users of”” benchmarks (such as
Euribor and Libor) in the EU and, among other things, (i) requires benchmark administrators to be
authorised or registered (or, if non-EU-based, to be subject to an equivalent regulatory regime) and to
comply with extensive requirements in relation to the administration of “benchmarks” and (ii) ban the use
of benchmarks of unauthorised administrators.

Additionally, in March 2017, the European Money Markets Institute (formerly Euribor-EBF) (the
“EMMI”) published a position paper referring to certain proposed reforms to Euribor, which reforms aim
to clarify the Euribor specification, to develop a transaction-based methodology for Euribor and to align the
relevant methodology with the Benchmark Regulation, the IOSCO’s proposed Principles for Financial
Market Benchmarks (July 2013) (the “lOSCO Principles”) and other regulatory recommendations. The
EMMI has since indicated that there has been a “change in market activity as a result of the current
regulatory requirements and a negative interest rate environment” and “under the current market conditions
it will not be feasible to evolve the current Euribor methodology to a fully transaction-based methodology
following a seamless transition path”. On 17 October 2018 the EMMI announced the publication of the
second consultation paper on the hybrid methodology for Euribor (the “Second Consultation Paper”).
This Second Consultation is part of EMMI’s commitment to deliver a reformed and robust methodology for
Euribor, which aims to meet regulatory and stakeholder expectations in a timely manner. The Second
Consultation Paper presents a summary of EMMI’s findings during the hybrid Euribor testing phase, and
provides details on EMMI’s proposals for the different methodological parameters. EMMI’s summary of
feedback on the Second Consultation has been published by EMMI on 12 February 2019. Subsequently,
EMMI has started transitioning panel banks from the current Euribor methodology to the hybrid
methodology, with a view of finishing the process before the end of 2019. On 2 February 2021, EMMI has
published the outcome of the first annual review of the hybrid methodology for EURIBOR, which has been
implemented on 19 April 2021.

Furthermore, in order to address systemic risk, on 2 February 2021 the Council of the European Union
approved the final text of the Regulation (EU) 2021/168 amending the Benchmarks Regulation as regards
the exemption of certain third-country spot foreign exchange benchmarks and the designation of
replacements for certain benchmarks in cessation and amending Regulation (EU) No 648/2012. The new
framework delegates the Commission to designate a replacement for benchmarks qualified as critical under
the Benchmarks Regulation, where the cessation or wind-down of such a benchmark might significantly
disrupt the functioning of financial markets within the European Union. In particular, the designation of a
replacement for a benchmark should apply to any contract and any financial instrument as defined in
Directive 2014/65/EU that is subject to the law of a Member State. In addition, with respect to supervised
entities, Regulation (EU) 2021/168 extends the transitional period for the use of third-country benchmarks
until 2023 and the Commission may further extend this period until 2025 by a delegated act to be passed
before 15 July 2023. On 10 February 2021 the Council of the European Union adopted the Regulation (EU)
2021/168 that was published in the Official Journal on 12 February 2021 and entered into force on the
following day.

These reforms and other pressures may cause one or more interest rate benchmarks to disappear entirely, to
perform differently than in the past (as a result of a change in methodology or otherwise), create
disincentives for market participants to continue to administer or participate in certain benchmarks or have
other consequences which cannot be predicted.

Based on the foregoing, prospective investors should in particular be aware that:
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() any of these reforms or pressures described above or any other changes to a relevant interest rate
benchmark (including EURIBOR) could affect the level of the published rate, including to cause it to be
lower and/or more volatile than it would otherwise be;

(b) if EURIBOR or any other relevant interest rate benchmark is discontinued or is otherwise unavailable,
then the rate of interest on the Notes will be determined for a period by the relevant fallback provisions,
although such provisions, being dependent in part upon the provision by reference banks of offered
quotations for leading banks (in the Euro-zone interbank market in the case of EURIBOR), may not operate
as intended (depending on market circumstances and the availability of rates information at the relevant
time); and

(c) if EURIBOR or any other relevant interest rate benchmark is discontinued, there can be no assurance
that the applicable fall-back provisions under the Swap Agreement would operate to allow the transactions
under the Swap Agreement to effectively mitigate interest rate risk in respect of the Notes.

The Swap Agreement contains provisions whereby the Calculation Agent (as defined in the Swap
Agreement) shall make required adjustments as are necessary to ensure the legal and commercial efficacy
of the Swap Agreement. Such adjustments may include changing the Floating Rate Option (as defined in
the Swap Agreement). There can be no assurance that any such adjustments will result in the Floating Rate
Option (as defined in the Swap Agreement) under the Swap Agreement being the same as the modified
reference rate for the Notes. In addition, the Calculation Agent shall make a running adjustment to the
Spread (as defined in the Swap Agreement) that the Calculation Agent determines is required in order to
reduce or eliminate, to the extent reasonably practicable, any transfer of economic value from one party to
the other as a result of any adjustments made to the Swap Agreement in these circumstances. When making
any such adjustments, the Calculation Agent shall act in good faith and in a commercially reasonable
manner.

If at any time the benchmark rate used to calculate the interest on the Notes is different from the Floating
Rate (as defined in the Swap Agreement) then the Issuer is permitted to terminate the Swap Agreement.

Any amendments deemed necessary to change the Screen Rate applicable to the Notes (and any related or
consequential amendments thereto) as a direct or indirect result of the Benchmark Regulation will need to
be made in accordance with the provisions regarding amendments to the Transaction Documents contained
in the Conditions and the Rules of the Organisation of the Noteholders. There can be no assurance however,
that any such amendment (if made) would mitigate the interest rate risk or result in an effective replacement
methodology for determining the reference rate on the Notes.

These reforms and other pressures may cause such benchmarks to disappear entirely or to perform
differently than in the past (as a result of a change in methodology or otherwise), create disincentives for
market participants to continue to administer or participate in certain benchmarks or have other
consequences which cannot be predicted. Generally, any such modification or potential consequence of the
discontinuation of Euribor could have a material adverse effect on the value of and return on any of the
Notes.

Based on the foregoing, prospective investors should in particular be aware that any of the reforms or
pressures described above or any other changes to a relevant interest rate benchmark (including Euribor)
could affect the level of the published rate, including to cause it to be lower and/or more volatile than it
would otherwise be.
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Under Condition 5.2 (Interest Rate), if the Screen Rate is unavailable at the relevant time, then the fall-back
rate for the relevant Interest Period will be the arithmetic mean of the rates provided by each of the
Reference Banks (as defined below) to the Principal Paying Agent as the rate at which three month Euro
deposits in a representative amount are offered by that Reference Bank to leading banks in the Euro-zone
inter-bank market at the relevant time on that date. In certain circumstances, where none of the Reference
Banks (or any reference banks which have been selected in accordance with Condition 5.2) provides the
Principal Paying Agent with an offered quotation, the Interest Rate (as defined below) for the relevant
Interest Period will be the rate in effect for the immediately preceding Interest Period when the Screen Rate
(as defined below) was available.

In the event that any such fallback positions become applicable, any of the above described matters or any
other significant change to the setting or existence of Euribor could affect the ability of the Issuer to meet its
obligations under the Rated Notes and/or could have a material adverse effect on the value or liquidity of,
and the amount payable under, the Rated Notes. Changes in the manner of administration of Euribor could
result in adjustment to the Conditions, early redemption, delisting or other consequences in relation to the
Rated Notes. No assurance may be provided that relevant changes will not occur with respect to Euribor
and/or that such benchmark will continue to exist. Investors should consider these matters when making
their investment decision with respect to the Rated Notes.

Risks connected with the United Kingdom leaving the European Union and political and economic
decisions of EU and Euro-zone countries may affect the performance of the Securitisation

The UK left the EU as of 31 January 2020 (“Brexit”), and the Treaty on the European Union and the Treaty
on the Functioning of the European Union have ceased to apply to the UK.

The exit of the UK from the European Union, and the possibility that other European Union countries could
hold similar referendums to the one held in the UK and/or call into question their membership of the
European Union or prolonged periods of uncertainty connected to these eventualities could have significant
negative impacts on global economic conditions and the stability of international financial markets. These
could include further falls in equity markets, a further fall in the value of the pound and, more in general,
increase in financial markets volatility, reduction of global markets liquidities. Any of these effects of
Brexit, and others which cannot be anticipated, could adversely affect the Issuer's business, results of
operations, financial condition and cash flows, and could negatively impact the value of the Class Al
Notes.

Projections, Forecasts and Estimates

Forward-looking statements, including estimates, any other projections, forecasts and estimates in this
Prospectus are, necessarily, speculative and subjective in nature and some or all of the assumptions
underlying the projections may not materialise or may vary significantly from actual results. Such
statements are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause the actual results to differ materially from
those expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Prospective investors should not rely on
these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this Prospectus and are based on
assumptions that may prove to be inaccurate.

None of the Issuer, the Originator, or any other party to the Transaction Documents has or will have any
obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements contained herein to reflect events or
circumstances occurring after the date of this Prospectus. The Originator has not verified these statements
nor are giving any representations on these statements.
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7) LEGAL AND REGULATORY RISKS

Regulatory initiatives may result in increased regulatory capital requirements and/or decreased
liquidity in respect of the Notes

In Europe, the U.S. and elsewhere there is increased political and regulatory scrutiny of the asset-backed
securities industry. This has resulted in a raft of measures for increased regulation which are currently at
various stages of implementation and which may have an adverse impact on the regulatory capital charge to
certain investors in securitisation exposures and/or the incentives for certain investors to hold asset-backed
securities, and may thereby affect the liquidity of such securities.

Investors in the Class Al Notes are responsible for analysing their own regulatory position and none of the
Issuer, the Originator, the Arranger, the Placement Agent nor any other party to the Transaction Documents
makes any representation to any prospective investor or purchaser of the Class Al Notes regarding the
regulatory capital treatment of their investment in the Class A1 Notes on the Subsequent Issue Date or at
any time in the future.

Investors should note in particular that the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (“BCBS”) has
approved a series of significant changes to the Basel framework for prudential regulation (such changes
being referred to by the BCBS as Basel 11, and referred to, colloquially, as Basel 111 in respect of reforms
finalised prior to 7 December 2017 and Basel 1V in respect of reforms finalised on or following that date).
The Basel HI/IV reforms, which include revisions to the credit risk framework in general and the
securitisation framework in particular, may result in increased regulatory capital and/or other prudential
requirements in respect of securitisation positions. The BCBS continues to work on new policy initiatives.
National implementation of the Basel I11/1V reforms may vary those reforms and/or their timing. It should
also be noted that changes to prudential requirements have been made for insurance and reinsurance
undertakings through participating jurisdiction initiatives, such as the Solvency Il framework in Europe.
These changes may affect the regulatory treatment applicable to the Class Al Notes. Investors in the Class
Al Notes are responsible for analysing their own regulatory position and prudential regulation treatment
applicable to the Class Al Notes and should consult their own advisers in this respect.

Risks relating to qualifying as an STS-securitisation under the EU Securitisation Regulation

The EU Securitisation Regulation was published on 28 December 2017 in the Official Journal of the
European Union and applies to new note issuances since 1% January 2019. The EU Securitisation
Regulation lays down “a general framework for securitisation. It defines securitisation and establishes
due- diligence, risk-retention and transparency requirements for parties involved in securitisations,
criteria for credit granting, requirements for selling securitisations to retail clients, a ban on
re-securitisation, requirements for SSPEs as well as conditions and procedures for securitisation
repositories. It also creates a specific framework for simple, transparent and standardised (“STS”)
securitisation”. Tt applies to “institutional investors and to originators, sponsors, original lenders and
securitisation special purpose entities”.

The Securitisation is intended to qualify as a STS-securitisation within the meaning of article 18 (Use of the
designation ‘simple, transparent and standardised securitisation’) of the EU Securitisation Regulation (an
“STS-securitisation”). Consequently, the Securitisation is intended to meet, as at the date of this
Prospectus, the requirements of articles 19 to 22 of the EU Securitisation Regulation and the Originator, as
“originator” within the meaning set out in the EU Securitisation Regulation, intends to submit on or about
the Subsequent Issue Date a notification to ESMA for the securitisation transaction described in this
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Prospectus to be included in the list published by ESMA as referred to in Article 27(5) of the EU
Securitisation Regulation (the “STS Notification”). Pursuant to Article 27, paragraph 2, of the EU
Securitisation Regulation, the STS Notification will include an explanation by the Originator of how each
of the STS criteria set out in articles 19 to 22 is intended to be complied with. The STS Notification will be
available for download on the ESMA’s website at
https://www.esma.europa.eu/policy-activities/securitisation/simple-transparent-and-standardised-sts-secur
itisation.

As at the date of this Prospectus, no assurance can however be provided that the Securitisation (i) does or
continues to comply with the EU Securitisation Regulation and/or the CRR, (ii) does or will at any point in
time qualify as an STS-securitisation under the EU Securitisation Regulation or that, if it qualifies as a
STS-securitisation under the EU Securitisation Regulation, it will at all times continue to so qualify and
remain an STS-securitisation under the EU Securitisation Regulation in the future and (iii) will actually be,
and will remain at all times in the future, included in the list published by ESMA as referred to in Article
27(5) of the EU Securitisation Regulation. None of the Issuer, the Originator, the Arranger, the Placement
Agent or any other party to the Transaction Documents makes any representation or accepts any liability in
that respect.

The designation of the Securitisation as an STS-securitisation is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold
securities. It is not investment advice whether generally or as defined under MiFID Il and it is not a credit
rating whether generally or as defined under the CRA Regulation or Section 3(a) of the United States
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (as amended).

By designating the Securitisation as an STS-securitisation, no views are expressed about the
creditworthiness of the Class A1l Notes or their suitability for any existing or potential investor or as to
whether there will be a ready, liquid market for the Class Al Notes.

Institutional investors that are subject to the due diligence requirements of the EU Securitisation Regulation
need to make their own independent assessment and may not solely rely on the STS Notification or other
disclosed information.

Non-compliance with the status of an STS-securitisation may result in various administrative sanctions
and/or remedial measures being imposed on the Issuer or the Originator. Any of such administrative
sanctions and/or remedial measures may affect the ability of the Issuer to fulfil its payment obligations
under the Class A1 Notes.

Reliance on verification by PCS

The Originator, as “originator” within the meaning set out in the EU Securitisation Regulation, and the
Issuer, as “SSPE” within the meaning set out in the EU Securitisation Regulation, have used the services of
Prime Collateralised Securities (PCS) EU SAS (“PCS”), a third party authorised pursuant to Article 28
(Third party verifying STS compliance) of the EU Securitisation Regulation, to verify whether the
Securitisation complies with articles 19 to 22 of the EU Securitisation Regulation and the compliance with
such requirements is expected to be verified by PCS on the date of this Prospectus.

The verification by PCS does not affect the liability of the Originator, as originator, and the Issuer, as SSPE,
in respect of their legal obligations under the EU Securitisation Regulation. Furthermore, such verification
does not remove the obligation placed on investors to assess whether a securitisation labelled as 'STS' or
'simple, transparent and standardised' has actually satisfied the criteria as set out in article 5 (Due-diligence
requirements for institutional investors) of the EU Securitisation Regulation. Notwithstanding PCS’
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verification of compliance of a securitisation with articles 19 to 22 of the EU Securitisation Regulation,
such verification by PCS does not ensure the compliance of a securitisation with the general requirements
of the EU Securitisation Regulation. Investors must not solely or mechanistically rely on any STS
notification or PCS’ verification to this extent.

European Market Infrastructure Regulation

Regulation (EU) no. 648/2012, as amended, varied or substituted from time to time, known as the European
Market Infrastructure Regulation (“EMIR”) entered into force on 16 August 2012. Certain changes to
EMIR were introduced pursuant to Regulation (EU2019/834 and references to “EMIR” below shall be
construed accordingly.

Among other things, EMIR imposes on “financial counterparties” a general obligation (the “Clearing
Obligation”) to clear through a duly authorised or recognised central counterparty all “eligible” OTC
derivative contracts entered into with other counterparties subject to the Clearing Obligation. They must
also report the details of all derivative contracts to a trade repository (the “Reporting Obligation”) and
undertake certain risk-mitigation techniques in respect of OTC derivative contracts which are not cleared
by a central counterparty such as timely confirmation of terms, portfolio reconciliation and compression
and the implementation of dispute resolution procedures (the “Risk Mitigation Obligations™).
Non-cleared OTC derivatives entered into by financial counterparties must also be marked to market and
collateral must be exchanged.

Non-financial counterparties are excluded from the Clearing Obligation and certain Risk Mitigation
Obligations provided that the gross notional value of all derivative contracts entered into by the
non-financial counterparty and other non-financial counterparties within its “group” (as defined in EMIR),
excluding eligible hedging transactions, do not exceed certain thresholds. If the Issuer is considered to be a
member of such a “group” (as defined in EMIR) and if the notional value of derivative contracts entered
into by the Issuer or other non-financial counterparties within any such group exceeds the applicable
threshold, the Issuer would be subject to the clearing obligation. Whilst the Swap Agreement entered into
by the Issuer is expected to be treated as a hedging transaction and deducted from the total in assessing
whether the notional value of derivative contracts entered by the Issuer or its “group”, the regulator may
take a different view.

If the Issuer exceeds the applicable clearing thresholds, it would also be subject to the relevant risk
mitigation obligations and would be required to post collateral in respect of non-cleared OTC derivative
contracts. The Issuer may be unable to comply with such requirements, which could result in the
termination of the Swap Agreement. Any termination of the Swap Agreement as a result of non-compliance
with such requirements or as a result of the Issuer becoming a financial counterparty as described above or
otherwise could expose the Issuer to costs and increased interest rate risk.

Securitisation Law

As at the date of this Prospectus, limited interpretation of the application of the Securitisation Law has been
issued by any Italian governmental or regulatory authority. Consequently, it is possible that such authorities
may issue further regulations relating to the Securitisation Law or the interpretation thereof, the impact of
which cannot be predicted by the Issuer or any other party as at the date of this Prospectus.

Failure to comply with the Securitisation Regulations may adversely affect the ability of the
Noteholders to sell and/or the price they receive for the Notes in the secondary market
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EU Securitisation Regulation

Regulation (EU) 2017/2402 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 12 December 2017 laying
down a general framework for securitisation and creating a specific framework for simple, transparent and
standardised securitisation and amending certain other European Union directives and regulations (the “EU
Securitisation Regulation”) is directly applicable in member states of the European Union (the “EU”) and
will be applicable in any non-EU states of the EEA in which it has been implemented. The EU
Securitisation Regulation, together with all relevant implementing regulations in relation thereto, all
regulatory and/or implementing technical standards in relation thereto or applicable in relation thereto
pursuant to any transitional arrangements made pursuant to the EU Securitisation Regulation and, in each
case, any relevant guidance and directions published in relation thereto by the European Banking Authority
(the “EBA”)), the European Securities and Markets Authority and the European Insurance and
Occupational Pensions Authority (or, in each case, any predecessor or any other applicable regulatory
authority) or by the European Commission, in each case as amended and in effect from time to time, are
referred to in this Prospectus as the “EU Securitisation Regulation Rules”.

Acrticle 5 of the EU Securitisation Regulation places certain conditions on investments in a "securitisation"
(as defined in the EU Securitisation Regulation) (the “EU Due Diligence Requirements”) by "institutional
investors", defined to include (a) a credit institution or an investment firm as defined in and for purposes of
Regulation (EU) No 575/2013, as amended, known as the Capital Requirements Regulation (the “CRR”),
(b) an insurance undertaking or a reinsurance undertaking as defined in Directive 2009/138/EC, as
amended, known as Solvency II, (c) an alternative investment fund manager as defined in Directive
2011/61/EU that manages and/or markets alternative investment funds in the EU, (d) an undertaking for the
collective investment in transferable securities (“UCITS”) management company, as defined in Directive
2009/65/EC, as amended, known as the UCITS Directive, or an internally managed UCITS, which is an
investment company that is authorised in accordance with that Directive and has not designated such a
management company for its management, and (e) with certain exceptions, an institution for occupational
retirement provision falling within the scope of Directive (EU) 2016/2341, or an investment manager or an
authorised entity appointed by such an institution for occupational retirement provision as provided in that
Directive. Pursuant to Article 14 of the CRR, the EU Due Diligence Requirements also apply to
investments by certain consolidated affiliates, wherever established or located, of institutions regulated
under the CRR (such affiliates, together with all such institutional investors, the “EU Affected Investors”).

Prior to investing in (or otherwise holding an exposure to) a "securitisation position" (as defined in the EU
Securitisation Regulation), an EU Affected Investor, other than the originator, sponsor or original lender
(each as defined in the EU Securitisation Regulation) must, among other things:(i) verify that, where the
originator, sponsor or original lender (each as defined in the EU Securitisation Regulation) is established in
the EU, the originator, sponsor or original lender will retain, on an ongoing basis, a material net economic
interest of not less than 5% in the securitisation determined in accordance with Article 6 of the EU
Securitisation Regulation and such risk retention is disclosed to institutional investors in accordance with
Acrticle 7 of the EU Securitisation Regulation; (ii) verify that the originator, sponsor or SSPE (as defined in
the EU Securitisation Regulation) has, where applicable, made available the information required by
Article 7 of the EU Securitisation Regulation in accordance with the frequency and modalities provided for
in that Article; and (iii) carry out a due -diligence assessment which enables the EU Affected Investor to
assess the risks involved, considering at least (A) the risk characteristics of the securitisation position and
the underlying exposures, and (B) all the structural features of the securitisation that can materially impact
the performance of the securitisation position.

While holding a securitisation, an EU Affected Investor must also (a) establish appropriate written
procedures in order to monitor, on an ongoing basis, its compliance with the foregoing requirements and the
performance of the securitisation position and of the underlying exposures, (b) regularly perform stress tests
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on the cash flows and collateral values supporting the underlying exposures, (c) ensure internal reporting to
its management body to enable adequate management of material risks and (d) be able to demonstrate to its
regulatory authorities that it has a comprehensive and thorough understanding of the securitisation position
and its underlying exposures and has implemented written policies and procedures for managing risks of
the securitisation position and maintaining records of the foregoing verifications and due diligence and
other relevant information.

The EU Securitisation Regulation imposes a direct obligation on the originator, sponsor or original lender
of a securitisation to retain a material net economic interest in the securitisation of not less than 5% (the
“EU Risk Retention Requirements”). Certain aspects of the EU Risk Retention Requirements are to be
further specified in Regulatory Technical Standards to be adopted by the European Commission as a
delegated regulation. The EBA published a final draft of those Regulatory Technical Standards on 1 April
2022 (the “Final Draft RTS”), but they have not yet been adopted by the European Commission or
published in final form. Pursuant to Article 43(7) of the EU Securitisation Regulation, until these
Regulatory Technical Standards apply, certain provisions of Delegated Regulation (EU) No. 625/2014 shall
continue to apply.

The Originator, in its capacity as retention holder (the “Retention Holder”), has undertaken, under the
Intercreditor Agreement and the Class Al Notes Subscription Agreement, to retain at the origination and
maintain on an ongoing basis a material net economic interest of at least 5% in the securitisation in
accordance with paragraph (d) of Article 6(3) of the EU Securitisation Regulation (the “EU Retained
Interest”), as further described in "Securitisation Regulations Requirements" below. The EU Retained
Interest must not be subject to any credit risk mitigation or hedging, except to the extent permitted under the
applicable provisions of the EU Securitisation Regulation.

Without limitation to the foregoing, no assurance can be given that the EU Securitisation Regulation or the
interpretation or application thereof will not change, and if any such change is implemented, as to whether
and to what extent the transactions described herein will be affected by such changes or any other changes
in law or regulation relating to the EU Securitisation Regulation generally or the EU Risk Retention
Requirements in particular.

UK Securitisation Regulation

The United Kingdom (the “UK”) left the EU as of 31 January 2020 and the transition period (the
“Transition Period”) referred to in the withdrawal agreement between the UK and the EU ended on 31
December 2020. Since 1 January 2021, with respect to the UK, relevant UK-established or UK-regulated
persons are subject to the restrictions and obligations of the EU Securitisation Regulation as it forms part of
UK domestic law by virtue of the EUWA, and as amended by Securitisation (Amendment) (EU EXxit)
Regulations 2019 (and as in force as at the Subsequent Issue Date) (the “UK Securitisation Regulation™).
The UK Securitisation Regulation, together with (a) all applicable binding technical standards made under
the UK Securitisation Regulation (including, without limitation, any regulatory or implementing technical
standards of the European Union that form part of UK domestic law by virtue of the EUWA); (b) relevant
guidance, policy statements or directions relating to the application of the UK Securitisation Regulation (or
any binding technical standards) published by the UK Prudential Regulation Authority (the “PRA”) and/or
the Financial Conduct Authority (the “FCA”) (or their successors); (c) any other relevant transitional,
saving or other provision relevant to the UK Securitisation Regulation by virtue of the EUWA,; and (d) any
other applicable laws, acts, statutory instruments, rules, guidance or policy statements published or enacted
relating to the UK Securitisation Regulation, in each case, as in force as at the Subsequent Issue Date, are
referred to in this Prospectus as the “UK Securitisation Regulation Rules”, and together with the EU
Securitisation Regulation Rules, the “Securitisation Regulations Rules”).
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Article 5 of the UK Securitisation Regulation places certain conditions on investments in a "securitisation"
(as defined in the UK Securitisation Regulation) (the “UK Due Diligence Requirements” and, together
with the EU Due Diligence Requirements, the “Due Diligence Requirements™) (and references in this
Prospectus to “the applicable Due Diligence Requirements” shall mean such Due Diligence Requirements
to which a particular Affected Investor is subject)) by an "institutional investor", defined to include (a) an
insurance undertaking as defined in section 417(1) of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (the
“FSMA”); (b) a reinsurance undertaking as defined in section 417(1) of the FSMA; (c) an occupational
pension scheme as defined in section 1(1) of the Pension Schemes Act 1993 that has its main administration
in the UK, or a fund manager of such a scheme appointed under section 34(2) of the Pensions Act 1995 that,
in respect of activity undertaken pursuant to that appointment is authorised for the purposes of section 31 of
the FSMA; (d) an AIFM as defined in regulation 4(1) of the Alternative Investment Fund Managers
Regulation 2013 which markets or manages AlFs (as defined in regulation 3 of those Regulations) in the
UK; (e) a management company as defined in section 237(2) of the FSMA, (f) a UCITS as defined by
section 236A of the FSMA, which is an authorised open ended investment company as defined in section
237(3) of the FSMA; and (g) a CRR firm as defined by Article 4(1)(2A) of the EU CRR as it forms part of
UK domestic law by virtue of the EUWA and as amended (the “UK CRR”) and (h) an FCA investment
firm as defined by Article 4(1)(2AB) of the UK CRR. The UK Due Diligence Requirements may also apply
to investments by certain consolidated affiliates, wherever established or located (such affiliates, together
with all such institutional investors, “UK Affected Investors” and, together with EU Affected Investors,
the “Affected Investors™).

Prior to investing in (or otherwise holding an exposure to) a "securitisation position" (as defined in the UK
Securitisation Regulation), a UK Affected Investor, other than the originator, sponsor or original lender
(each as defined in the UK Securitisation Regulation) must, among other things: (a) verify that, where the
originator or original lender is established in a third country (i.e. not the UK), the originator or original
lender grants all the credits giving rise to the underlying exposures on the basis of sound and well-defined
criteria and clearly established processes for approving, amending, renewing and financing those credits
and has effective systems in place to apply those criteria and processes to ensure that credit-granting is
based on a thorough assessment of the obligor's creditworthiness, (b) verify that, if established in a third
country (i.e. not the UK), the originator, sponsor or original lender retains on an ongoing basis a material net
economic interest which, in any event, shall not be less than 5 %, determined in accordance with Article 6 of
the UK Securitisation Regulation, and discloses the risk retention to UK Affected Investors, (c) verify that
if established in a third country (i.e. not the UK), the originator, sponsor or the SSPE has, where applicable,
made available information which is substantially the same as that which an originator, sponsor or SSPE
would have made available as required by Article 7 of the UK Securitisation Regulation if it had been
established in the UK and has done so with such frequency and modalities as are substantially the same as
those with which it would have made information available as required by Article 7 of the UK
Securitisation Regulation if it had been established in the UK, and (d) carry out a due-diligence assessment
which enables the UK Affected Investor to assess the risks involved, considering at least (i) the risk
characteristics of the securitisation position and the underlying exposures, and (ii) all the structural features
of the securitisation that can materially impact the performance of the securitisation position.

While holding a securitisation position, a UK Affected Investor must also (a) establish appropriate written
procedures in order to monitor, on an ongoing basis, its compliance with the foregoing requirements and the
performance of the securitisation position and of the underlying exposures, (b) regularly perform stress tests
on the cash flows and collateral values supporting the underlying exposures, (c) ensure internal reporting to
its management body to enable adequate management of material risks and (d) be able to demonstrate to its
regulatory authorities that it has a comprehensive and thorough understanding of the securitisation position
and its underlying exposures and has implemented written policies and procedures for managing risks of
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the securitisation position and maintaining records of the foregoing verifications and due diligence and
other relevant information.

The UK Securitisation Regulation imposes a direct obligation on the originator, sponsor or original lender
of a securitisation to retain a material net economic interest in the securitisation of not less than 5% (the
“UK Risk Retention Requirements” and together with the EU Risk Retention Requirements, the “Risk
Retention Requirements”). Certain aspects of the UK Risk Retention Requirements are to be further
specified in Regulatory Technical Standards to be adopted by the UK as a delegated regulation. Until these
Regulatory Technical Standards apply, certain provisions of Delegated Regulation (EU) No. 625/2014 as it
forms part of UK domestic law by virtue of the EUWA shall apply.

The UK Securitisation Regulation is silent as to the jurisdictional scope of the UK Risk Retention
Requirements. Notwithstanding the above, the Retention Holder has undertaken, under the Intercreditor
Agreement and the Class A1 Notes Subscription Agreement, to retain at origination and maintain on an
ongoing basis a material net economic interest of at least 5% of the Securitisation in accordance with
paragraph (d) of Article 6(3) of the UK Securitisation Regulation (the “UK Retained Interest” and
together with the EU Retained Interest, the “Retained Interest”), as further described in "Securitisation
Regulations Requirements" below. The Retained Interest must not be subject to any credit risk mitigation or
hedging, except to the extent permitted under the applicable provisions of the UK Securitisation
Regulation.

The secondary legislation relating to the EU Securitisation Regulation which was in force as at the end of
the Transition Period has also been enacted with certain amendments in the UK. However, this was not the
case in respect of interpretive guidance issued by the EU regulatory authorities or any secondary legislation
(such as the Final Draft RTS) which was not in force at the end of the Transition Period. There remains
uncertainty as to whether key interpretive guidance issued by EU Regulatory authorities in connection with
the EU Securitisation Regulation will also be replicated by UK regulators in respect of the UK
Securitisation Regulation. However, the Bank of England (the “BOE”) and the PRA Statement of Policy of
December 2020 stated that the BOE and PRA expect UK regulated firms and institutions operating, or
intending to operate, in the UK to make every effort to comply with existing EU guidelines and
recommendations that are applicable as at the end of the Transition Period, giving certain indication as to
their general approach.

Without limitation to the foregoing, no assurance can be given that the UK Securitisation Regulation or the
interpretation or application thereof will not change, and if any such change is implemented, as to whether
and to what extent the transactions described herein will be affected by such changes or any other changes
in law or regulation relating to the UK Securitisation Regulation generally or the UK Risk Retention
Requirements in particular.

Securitisation Regulations — General

Except as described herein and as provided in the Transaction Documents, no party to the transaction
described in this Prospectus intends to take or refrain from taking any action with regard to such transaction
in a manner prescribed or contemplated by the Securitisation Regulations Rules, or to take any action for
purposes of, or in connection with, facilitating or enabling the compliance by any investor with the Due
Diligence Requirements.

If, at any time, any Noteholder or potential Noteholder requires any action to be taken for purposes of its
compliance with the Securitisation Regulations, no party to the transaction described in this Prospectus will
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be obliged to take any such action, except to the extent that it is otherwise obliged to do so, as described in
this Prospectus or pursuant to the Transaction Documents. No such party gives any assurance as to any
person’s ability to comply, at any time, with any requirement of the Securitisation Regulations, or shall
have any liability to any person in respect of any non-compliance, or inability to comply, with any
requirement of the Securitisation Regulations.

It remains unclear what will be required for Affected Investors to demonstrate compliance with the Due
Diligence Requirements. Each prospective investor in the Notes that is an Affected Investor is required to
independently assess and determine whether the undertaking by the Retention Holder to retain the Retained
Interest as described above and in this Prospectus generally, the other information in this Prospectus and the
information to be provided in any reports provided to investors in relation to the Transaction and otherwise
is sufficient to comply with the Due Diligence Requirements or any corresponding national measures which
may be relevant. Neither the Issuer nor any other party makes any representation, warranty or guarantee that
any such information is sufficient for such purposes or any other purpose or that the structure of the Notes,
the Retention Holder (including their holding of the Retained Interest) and the transactions described herein
are compliant with the Securitisation Regulations Rules or any other applicable legal or regulatory or other
requirements and no such person shall have any liability to any prospective investor or any other person
with respect to the insufficiency of such information or any failure of the transaction or structure
contemplated hereby to comply with or otherwise satisfy such requirements, any subsequent change in law,
rule or regulation or any other applicable legal, regulatory or other requirements or any failure by any
investor that is an Affected Investor to satisfy the Due Diligence Requirements.

Failure by an Affected Investor to comply with the applicable Due Diligence Requirements with respect to
an investment in the Notes may result in the imposition of a penalty regulatory capital charge on that
investment or of other regulatory sanctions by the competent authority of such Affected Investor. The
Securitisation Regulations and any other changes to the regulation or regulatory treatment of the Notes for
some or all investors may negatively impact the regulatory position of Affected Investors and have an
adverse impact on the value and liquidity of the Notes in the secondary market. Prospective investors
should analyse their own regulatory position and should consult with their own investment and legal
advisors regarding application of, and compliance with, the applicable Due Diligence Requirements or
other applicable regulations and the suitability of the Notes for investment.

In addition, under the Intercreditor Agreement, the Issuer and the Originator (as “originator” of the
Securitisation under the Securitisation Regulations) have designated among themselves the Originator as
the reporting entity pursuant to Article 7(2), first sub-paragraph, of the Securitisation Regulations as the
entity which will fulfil the information requirements referred to therein (the “Reporting Entity”). For
further details, pleasa see section “Compliance with STS requirements and Regulatory Capital
Requirements”.

U.S. risk retention requirements

The Credit Risk Retention regulations implemented by U.S. Federal regulatory agencies including the SEC
pursuant to Section 15G of the Exchange Act of 1934 (as amended), as added by section 941 of the
Dodd-Frank Act (the "U.S. Risk Retention Rules") came into effect with respect to residential mortgage
backed securities on 24 December 2015 and other classes of asset backed securities on 24 December 2016
and generally require the "sponsor" of a "securitization transaction" to retain at least 5 per cent. of the
"credit risk" of "securitised assets”, as such terms are defined for purposes of that statute, and generally
prohibit a sponsor from directly or indirectly eliminating or reducing its credit exposure by hedging or
otherwise transferring the credit risk that the sponsor is required to retain. The U.S. Risk Retention Rules
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also provide for certain exemptions from the risk retention obligation that they generally impose.

The Originator, as sponsor, does not intend to retain at least 5 per cent. of the credit risk of the Issuer for the
purposes of the U.S. Risk Retention Rules, but rather intends to rely on an exemption provided for in
Section 20 of the U.S. Risk Retention Rules regarding non-U.S. transactions. Such non-U.S. transactions
must meet certain requirements, including that (1) the securitisation transaction is not required to be and is
not registered under the Securities Act; (2) no more than 10 per cent. of the dollar value (or equivalent
amount in the currency in which the securities are issued) of all classes of securities issued in the
securitisation transaction are sold or transferred to U.S. persons (in each case, as defined in the U.S. Risk
Retention Rules) or for the account or benefit of U.S. persons (as defined in the U.S. Risk Retention Rules
and referred to herein as “Risk Retention U.S. Persons”); (3) neither the sponsor nor the issuer is
organised under U.S. law, is a branch organised under U.S. law, or is a branch located in the United States
of a non-U.S. entity; and (4) no more than 25 per cent. of the underlying collateral was acquired from a
majority-owned affiliate or branch of the sponsor or issuer that is organised or located in the United States.

The Issuer and the Originator have made representations and warranties as to satisfaction of the
requirements of the exemptions set forth in Section 20 of the U.S. Risk Retention Rules.

Prospective investors should note that the definition of “U.S. person” in the U.S. Risk Retention Rules is
different from the definition of “U.S. person” under Regulation S. The definition of U.S. person in the U.S.
Risk Retention Rules is excerpted below. Particular attention should be paid to clauses (b) and (h), which
are different than comparable provisions from Regulation S.

Under the U.S. Risk Retention Rules, and subject to limited exceptions, “U.S. person” (and “Risk Retention
U.S. Person” as used in this Prospectus) means any of the following:

@ any natural person resident in the United States;

(b) any partnership, corporation, limited liability company, or other organisation or entity organised or
incorporated under the laws of any State or of the United States;*

(c) any estate of which any executor or administrator is a U.S. person (as defined under any other
clause of this definition);

(d) any trust of which any trustee is a U.S. person (as defined under any other clause of this definition);

(e) any agency or branch of a foreign entity located in the United States;

0] any non-discretionary account or similar account (other than an estate or trust) held by a dealer or
other fiduciary for the benefit or account of a U.S. person (as defined under any other clause of this

definition);

(9) any discretionary account or similar account (other than an estate or trust) held by a dealer or other

' The comparable provision from Regulation S is "(ii) any partnership or corporation organised or incorporated under the laws of
the United States.".
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fiduciary organised, incorporated, or (if an individual) resident in the United States; and
(h) any partnership, corporation, limited liability company, or other organisation or entity if:
0] organised or incorporated under the laws of any foreign jurisdiction; and

(i) formed by a U.S. person (as defined under any other clause of this definition) principally
for the purpose of investing in securities not registered under the Securities Act.?

Consequently, the Notes may not be purchased by any person except for persons that are not Risk Retention
U.S. Persons. Each holder of a Senior Note or a beneficial interest therein, by its acquisition of a Senior
Note or a beneficial interest in a Senior Note, will be deemed to represent to the Issuer and the Originator
that it (1) is not a Risk Retention U.S. Person, (2) is acquiring such Note or a beneficial interest therein for
its own account and not the account or benefit of a Risk Retention U.S. Person and (3) is not acquiring such
Note or a beneficial interest therein as part of a scheme to evade the requirements of the U.S. Risk Retention
Rules.

The Originator and the Issuer are relying on the deemed representations made by purchasers of the Notes
and may not be able to determine the proper characterisation of potential investors for such restriction or for
determining the availability of the exemption provided for in Section 20 of the U.S. Risk Retention Rules,
and neither the Originator nor the Issuer nor any director, officer, employee, agent or affiliate of them
accepts any liability or responsibility whatsoever for any such determination or characterisation.

There can be no assurance that the exemption provided for in Section 20 of the U.S. Risk Retention Rules
regarding non-U.S. transactions will be available. Failure on the part of the Originator to comply with the
U.S. Risk Retention Rules (regardless of the reason for such failure to comply) could give rise to regulatory
action against the Originator which may adversely affect the Notes and the ability of the Seller to perform
its obligations under the Transaction Documents. Furthermore, a failure by the Originator to comply with
the U.S. Risk Retention Rules could negatively affect the value and secondary market liquidity of the
Notes.

None of the Issuer nor the Arranger, nor the Placement Agent nor any of the other transaction parties or any
of their respective affiliates makes any representation to any prospective investor or purchaser of the Notes
as to whether the transaction described in this Prospectus complies with the U.S. Risk Retention Rules on
the Subsequent Issue Date or at any time in the future. Investors should consult their own advisers as to the
U.S. Risk Retention Rules. No predictions can be made as to the precise effects of such matters on any
investor or otherwise.

Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive
Directive 2014/59/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 15 May 2014 (collectively with

secondary and implementing EU rules, and national implementing legislation, the “Bank Recovery and
Resolution Directive” or “BRRD”) established a framework for the recovery and resolution of credit

2 The comparable provision from Regulation S “(vii)(B) formed by a U.S. person principally for the purpose of investing in
securities not registered under the Securities Act, unless it is organised or incorporated, and owned, by accredited investors (as
defined in 17 CFR 230.501(a)) who are not natural persons, estates or trusts.”.
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institutions and investment firms. The aim of the BRRD is to provide national authorities in EU Member
States (the “Resolution Authorities”) with common tools and powers for preparatory and preventive
measures, early supervisory intervention and resolution of credit institutions and significant investment
firms to address banking crises pre-emptively in order to safeguard financial stability and minimise
taxpayers’ exposure to losses. The BRRD applies, inter alia, to credit institutions, investments firms and
financial institutions that are established in the European Union (when the financial institution is a
subsidiary of a credit institution or investment firm and is covered by the supervision of the parent
undertaking on a consolidated basis) (collectively, the “relevant institutions”). The BRRD entered into
force on 2 July 2014 and had to be transposed by the Member States of the European Union into national
law by 31 December 2014. The Republic of Italy has implemented the BRRD by Legislative Decrees no.
180 and no. 181 of 16 November 2015.

If a relevant institution enters into an arrangement with the Issuer and is deemed likely to fail in the
circumstances identified in the BRRD, the relevant Resolution Authority may employ such tools and
powers in order to intervene in the relevant institution’s failure (including in the case of derivatives
transactions, powers to close-out such transactions or suspend any rights to close-out such transactions). In
particular, liabilities of relevant institutions arising out of the Transaction Documents to which such
institutions are party not otherwise subject to an exception, could be subject to the exercise of “bail-in”
powers of the relevant Resolution Authorities. It should be noted that certain secured liabilities of relevant
institutions are excepted. If the relevant Resolution Authority decides to “bail-in” the liabilities of a relevant
institution, then subject to certain exceptions set out in the BRRD, the liabilities of such relevant institution
could, among other things, be reduced, converted or extinguished in full. As a result, the Issuer and
ultimately, the Noteholders may not be able to recover any liabilities owed by such an entity to the Issuer. In
addition, a relevant Resolution Authority may exercise its discretions in a manner that produces different
outcomes amongst institutions resolved in different EU Member States. It should also be noted that similar
powers and provisions are being considered in the context of financial institutions of other jurisdictions.

In addition to the above, it should be noted that due to the fact that Banca del Fucino is a credit institution
established in the European Union, it is subject to the BRRD. Therefore, in case of failure by Banca del
Fucino to comply with the prudential requirements applicable to it, or upon occurrence of certain other
circumstances set forth in the BRRD, it may be subject to the BRRD resolution procedure. In such
circumstances, Banca del Fucino may not be in a position to meet its obligations under the Transaction
Documents, including its obligations as Servicer and as indemnity provider under the Warranty and
Indemnity Agreement.

Mortgage borrower protection

Certain legislations enacted in Italy, have given new rights and certain benefits to mortgage debtors and/or
reinforced existing rights, including, inter alia:

. the right of prepayment of the principal amount of the mortgage loan, without incurring a penalty
or, in respect of mortgage loan agreements entered into before 2 February 2007, at a reduced
penalty rate (article 120-ter of the Consolidated Banking Act, introduced by Legislative Decree no.
141 of 13 August 2010 as amended by Legislative Decree no. 218 of 14 December 2010);

. right to the substitution (portabilita) of a mortgage loan with another mortgage loan and/or the right
to request subrogation by an assignee bank into the rights of their creditors in accordance with
article 1202 (surrogazione per volonta del debitore) of the Civil Code, by eliminating the limits and
costs previously borne by the borrowers for the exercise of such right (article 120-quater of the
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Consolidated Banking Act, introduced by Legislative Decree no. 141 of 13 August 2010 as
amended by Legislative Decree no. 218 of 14 December 2010);

° the right of first home-owners to suspend instalment payments under mortgage loans up to a
maximum of two times and for a maximum aggregate period of 18 months (ltalian Law no. 244 of
24 December 2007 through the intervention of the “Solidarity Fund for first home-owners” (Fondo
di sospensione mutui per ’acquisto della prima casa) (the “Solidarity Fund”). In addition, Law
Decree No. 18 of 17 March 2020 extended for a 9-month period starting from 17 March 2020 the
provisions relating to the Solidarity Fund - which initially applied exclusively to employees - to the
selfemployed and self-employed professionals. Eligibility is subject to completing a
selfcertification that in any quarterly period following 21 February 2020 — or, if shorter, the period
between the date of the application and 21 February 2020 — the relevant individual has suffered a
decrease in turnover of more than 33% in the last quarter of 2019 as a result of the closure or
restriction of its activity due to Covid-19;

° the right to suspend the payment of principal instalments relating to mortgage loans for a 12 month
period, where requested by the relevant borrower during the period from 1 June 2015 to 31
December 2017 (Convention between ABI and the consumers’ associations stipulated on 31 March
2015) (the 2015 Credit Agreement). On 27 November 2017, ABI and the consumers’ associations,
in order to provide continuity to the abovementioned measures, have agreed to extend the
agreement until 31 July 2018. On 15 November 2018 the Italian Banking Association
(Associazione Bancaria Italiana - ABI) and the Associations representing companies signed a new
Credit Agreement (Accordo per il Credito 2019) providing for the introduction of some
adjustments to the measures addressed to “Enterprises in Recovery”, relating to the suspension and
extension of loans to small and medium-sized enterprises, provided for in the 2015 Credit
Agreement (the 2019 Italian Credit Agreement). Additional measures in connection with the
Covid-19 outbreak were introduced on 6 March 2020, 22 May 2020 and 17 December 2020
through an addendum to the 2019 Italian Credit Agreement in order to extend the 16 provisions
contained therein to facilities outstanding as of 31 March 2021 granted in favour of otherwise
sound companies negatively impacted by a temporary interruption/reduction of activity as a
consequence of Covid-19.

These legislations may have an adverse effect on the Portfolio and, in particular, on any cash flow
projections concerning the Portfolio and may affect the ability of the Issuer to fulfil its payment obligations
under the Class A1 Notes.

For further details, please see section “Selected Aspects of Italian Law”.

Mortgage Credit Directive

Directive 2014/17/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 4 February 2014 on credit
agreements for consumers relating to residential immovable property and amending Directives 2008/48/EC
and 2013/36/EU and Regulation (EU) No 1093/2010 (the “Mortgage Credit Directive™) sets out a
common framework for certain aspects of the laws, regulations and administrative provisions of the
Member States concerning agreements covering credit for consumers secured by a mortgage or otherwise
relating to residential immovable property. The Mortgage Credit Directive provides for, amongst other
things:

(i)  standard information in advertising, and standard pre-contractual information;
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(i)  adequate explanations to the borrower on the proposed credit agreement and any ancillary service;
(iii)  calculation of the annual percentage rate of charge in accordance with a prescribed formula;

(iv) assessment of creditworthiness of the borrower;

(v)  aright of the borrower to make early repayment of the credit agreement; and

(vi) prudential and supervisory requirements for credit intermediaries and non-bank lenders.

The Mortgage Credit Directive came into effect on 20 March 2014 and was required to be implemented in
Member States by 21 March 2016.

On 1 June 2015, in accordance with Article 18, Article 20(1) and Article 28 of the Mortgage Credit
Directive, EBA published its final Guidelines on creditworthiness assessment, as well as its final
Guidelines on arrears and foreclosure, that support the national implementation by Member States of the
Mortgage Credit Directive.

In Italy the Government approved the Legislative Decree No. 72 of 21 April 2016, implementing the
Mortgage Credit Directive and published it on the Official Gazette of the Republic of Italy on 20 May 2016
(the “Mortgage Legislative Decree”). The Mortgage Legislative Decree clarifies that the new legal
framework shall apply, inter alia, to (i) residential mortgage loans and (ii) loans relating to the purchase or
preservation of the property rights on a residential immovable. Moreover such decree sets forth certain rules
of correctness, diligence and transparency and information undertakings applicable to the lenders and
intermediaries which offer loans to the consumers and provides that the parties may agree under the loan
agreements that in case of breach of the borrower’s payment obligations under the agreement (i.e.,
non-payment of at least eighteen loan instalments due and payable by the debtor) the transfer or the sale of
the mortgaged assets has as a consequence that the entire debt is settled even if the value of the assets or the
proceeds deriving from the sale of the assets is lower than the remaining amount due by the debtor in
relation to the loan. Otherwise if the estimated value of the assets or the proceeds deriving from the sale of
the assets is higher than the remaining amount due by the debtor, the excess amount shall be returned to the
consumer. According to the Mortgage Legislative Decree, the Bank of Italy and the Ministry of Economy
and Finance will enact implementing provisions of such decree.

Given the novelty of this new legislation and the absence of any jurisprudential interpretation, the impact of
such new legislation may not be predicted as at the date of this Prospectus. No assurance can be given that
the implementation of the Mortgage Legislative Decree will not adversely affect the ability of the Issuer to
make payments under the Class Al Notes.

Volcker Rule

Under the Notes Subscription Agreement, the Issuer has represented that (i) it is not, and after giving effect
to the offer and sale of the Notes and the application of the proceeds thereof as described in the Prospectus,
will not be an “investment company” as such term is defined in the Investment Company Act of 1940, as
amended (the “Investment Company Act”), as a result of its reliance on the exemption from the definition
of “investment company” set forth in Section 3(c)(5)(C) of the Investment Company Act. As a result, it is
not, and after giving effect to the offer and sale of the Notes and the application of the proceeds thereof as
described in the Prospectus, will not be a “covered fund” within the meaning of the regulations adopted to
implement Section 619 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (such
statutory provision together with such implementing regulations, the “Volcker Rule”). The Volcker Rule
generally prohibits “banking entities” (which is broadly defined to include U.S. banks and bank holding
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companies and many non-U.S. banking entities, together with their respective subsidiaries and other
affiliates) from (i) engaging in proprietary trading, (ii) acquiring or retaining an ownership interest in or
sponsoring a “covered fund” and (iii) entering into certain relationships with such funds. The Volcker Rule
became effective on 21 July 2012, and final regulations implementing the VVolcker Rule were adopted on 10
December 2013 and became effective on 1 April 2014. Conformance with the Volcker Rule and its
implementing regulations is required by 21 July 2015 (or by 21 July 2017 in respects of investments in and
relationships with covered funds that were in place prior to 31 December 2013). Under the Volcker Rule,
unless otherwise jointly determined by specified federal regulators, a “covered fund” does not include an
issuer that may rely on an exclusion or exemption from the definition of “investment company” under the
Investment Company Act other than the exclusions contained in Section 3(c)(1) and Section 3(c)(7) of the
Investment Company Act. Any prospective investor, including a U.S. or foreign bank or a subsidiary or
other affiliate thereof, should consult its own legal advisors regarding such matters and other effects of the
Volcker Rule.

No assurance can be given as to the availability of the relevant exemption under the Volcker Rule and
investors should consult their own legal and regulatory advisors with respect to such matters and assess for
themselves the availability of this or other exemptions or exclusions and the legality of their investment in
the Class Al Notes.

Swap Regulations under Dodd-Frank

Pursuant to the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the “Dodd-Frank Act”),
the Commodity Futures Trading Commission and certain other regulators have promulgated a range of new
regulatory requirements (the “Dodd-Frank Regulations”) relating to swaps. Under the regulations and
guidance currently in effect, the Dodd-Frank Regulations generally should not apply to the Swap
Agreement. However, because the Dodd-Frank Regulations remain, in certain respects, new, untested, and
in the process of implementation, the Swap Agreement could become subject to such requirements in the
future. Such requirements may have unforeseen legal consequences on the Issuer or have other material
adverse effects on the Issuer or the Noteholders.

Change of Law

The structure of the Transaction and, inter alia, the issue of the Class Al Notes and rating assigned to the
Class Al Notes are based on Italian law (or English law, in the case of the Swap Agreement, the EMIR
Reporting Agreement and the Deed of Charge), tax and administrative practice in effect at the date hereof,
and having due regard to the expected tax treatment of all relevant entities under such law and practice. No
assurance can be given that Italian law (or English law, as applicable), tax or administrative practice will
not change after the date of this Prospectus or that such change will not adversely impact the structure of the
transaction and the treatment of the Class A1 Notes.

8) TAX RISKS
Substitute tax under the Class Al Notes

Payments of interest and other proceeds under the Class A1 Notes may in certain circumstances, described
in the section headed “Taxation in the Republic of Italy” of this Prospectus, be subject to a Law 239
Deduction. In such circumstance, any beneficial owner of an interest payment relating to the Class Al
Notes of any Class will receive amounts of interest payable on the Class A1 Notes net of a Law 239
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Deduction. Law 239 Deduction, if applicable, is levied at the rate of 26 per cent., or such lower rate as may
be applicable under the relevant double taxation treaty.

In the event that any Law 239 Deduction or any other deduction or withholding for or on account of tax is
imposed in respect of payments to Noteholders of amounts due pursuant to the Class Al Notes, neither the
Issuer nor any other person will be obliged to gross-up or otherwise compensate Noteholders for the lesser
amounts that the Noteholders will receive as a result of the imposition of any such deduction or
withholding, or otherwise to pay any additional amounts to any of the Noteholders.

For further details see the section headed “Taxation in the Republic of Italy”.
Tax treatment of the Issuer

Taxable income of the Issuer is determined in accordance with Italian Presidential Decree No. 917 of 22
December 1986. Based on the general rules applicable to the calculation of the net taxable income of a
company, such taxable income should be calculated on the basis of accounting, i.e. on-balance sheet,
earnings, subject to such adjustments as are specifically provided for by applicable income tax rules and
regulations. On this basis, no taxable income should accrue to the Issuer in the context of the transfer to the
Issuer of the Subsequent Portfolio. This opinion has been expressed by scholars and tax specialists and has
been confirmed by the tax authority (Circular No. 8/E issued by Agenzia delle Entrate on 6 February 2003)
on the grounds that the net proceeds generated by the securitised assets may not be considered as legally
available to an issuer insofar as any and all amounts deriving from the underlying assets are specifically
destined to satisfy the obligations of such issuer to the noteholders, the originator and any other creditors of
the issuer in respect of the securitisation of the underlying assets in compliance with applicable laws.

Pursuant to Legislative Decree No. 141/2010 which modified article 3, paragraph 3, of Securitisation Law,
the Issuer is not any longer required to be registered as financial intermediary under article 106 of the
Consolidated Banking Act while it is enrolled in the register for securitisation vehicles held by the Bank of
Italy pursuant to the Bank of Italy’s regulation dated 7 June 2017. The Italian tax authority (Agenzia delle
Entrate) has not changed its tax guidelines.

Itis, however, possible that the Ministry of Economy and Finance or another competent authority may issue
further regulations, letters or rulings relating to Securitisation Law which might alter or affect the tax
position of the Issuer as described above.

Indirect taxation on the transfer of the Claims

A transfer of claims falls within the scope of VAT if it can be characterised as a supply of services rendered
by the purchaser. In this respect, a transfer of claims entails a supply of services in the event and to the
extent that (i) it has a “financial purpose” pursuant to article 3, paragraph 2, item 3) of Presidential Decree
of 26 October 1972, No. 633 and (ii) it is effected for consideration pursuant to article 3, paragraph 1 of the
above mentioned Presidential Decree. In such a case, the transfer of the claims is subject to VAT at the zero
per cent. rate (VAT exempt transaction) provided that it could not be qualified as credit recovery (attivita di
recupero crediti) subject to VAT rate of 22 per cent. In general terms, as far as the “financial purpose” is
concerned, it must be pointed out that the transfer of the claims related to a securitisation transaction takes
place in the context of a “financial transaction” because (a) the originator transfers the claims to the issuer
in order to enable the latter to raise funds (through the issuance of notes collateralised by the claims) to be
advanced to the originator as transfer price of the claims; (b) the issuer will effectively be entitled to retain
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for itself all collection and recoveries proceeds of the claims to the extent necessary to repay the principal
amount of the notes and to pay interest thereon and all costs borne by the issuer in the context of the
transaction. In this respect, the transfer of claims in the context of a securitisation transaction should not be
deemed as credit recovery (attivita di recupero crediti) subject to a VAT rate of 22 per cent., based on the
clarification given by the Italian Tax Authority in Resolution No. 32/E of 11 March 2011. As far as the
transfer of claims for a consideration is concerned, it must be pointed out that this matter has been analysed
by the EU Court of Justice and by Agenzia delle Entrate in cases dealing with the VAT analysis of the
transfer of claims within the context of a factoring transaction and without specifically considering a
securitisation transaction (among others EU Court of Justice judgment of 26 June 2003 on case C-305/01
and Resolution No. 32/E of 11 March 2011 issued by Agenzia delle Entrate). However, it is also to be
mentioned that since both factoring and securitisation transaction share similar “financial purposes”, the
general consensus in the tax doctrine is that the transfer of claims must be treated similarly within the
context of both transactions. According to the above mentioned judgments and resolutions, the
remuneration of the “financial transaction” executed through the assignment of claims would be
represented by any existing positive difference between the face value of the claims and the purchase price
paid by the purchaser for the purchase of the same claims (i.e. the so-called “Discount”) as well as by any
commission paid by the transferor with the purpose to remunerate the transferee for the payment in advance
made before the expiration of the claim, which in substance constitutes a financing. In such a case, the
transfer of the claims is subject to VAT at the zero per cent. rate (VAT exempt transaction). In the absence
of a remuneration for the financing granted through the transfer of claims, such transfer cannot result in the
supply of a “financial transaction” for VAT purposes. In a judgment (Judgment of 27 October 2011 on case
C-93/10), the EU Court of Justice took an even more restrictive view on this matter, by stating, with specific
reference to non-performing claims, as follows “an operator who, at its own risk, purchases defaulted debts
at a price below their face value does not effect a supply of services for consideration and does not carry
out an economic activity falling within the scope of that directive when the difference between the face
value of those debts and their purchase price reflects the actual economic value of the debts at the time of
their assignment”. Finally, it should be pointed out that the Agenzia delle Entrate commented on the VAT
regime applicable to the transfer of non-performing claims (crediti deteriorati) in Resolution No. 79/E of
31 December 2021. In this respect, the Agenzia delle Entrate clarified, inter alia, that “to determine the
taxable basis of non-performing claims, ..., reference should be made to the difference between the
“economic value” at the time of transfer and the purchase price. ... As the “economic value” of the
non-performing claims is not expressly provided for in the sale and transfer agreement, the evaluation must
be documented and filed in the purchaser’s books so that it can be audited by the tax authorities”. On the
basis of a cross interpretation of principles embodied in Resolution No. 32/E of 2011, EU Court of Justice
C-93/10 and Resolution No. 79/E of 2021, it can be summarised that, with specific reference to
non-performing claims, whenever the amount paid by a purchaser in exchange for the acquisition of the
claims reflects the actual economic value of the claims, no “financial service” for VAT purposes would be
rendered by the purchaser. According to the above in a context of a securitisation transaction if (i) a
portfolio of performing claims is not transferred either for a consideration due by the transferor to the
transferee or for a discount below the face value of the claims or (ii) a portfolio of non-performing claims is
transferred for a price not below the actual economic value of the claims at the time of their assignment, the
relevant transfer could be treated not as a “financial transaction” rendered by the Issuer and therefore the
transaction could not qualify for VAT purposes as “operazione esente” (VAT exempt subject to VAT at the
zero per cent. rate) and could qualify instead as “operazione fuori campo” (out of the scope of VAT and not
subject to VAT). In this respect, if a transaction does not fall within the scope of VAT, VAT is not due and
proportional registration tax will be applicable. In this latter case, should for any reason the Transfer
Agreements be subject, either voluntarily or in case of use or enunciation, to registration, 0.5% registration
tax will be payable by the relevant parties thereto on the nominal value of the transferred claims.

Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (FATCA)
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Sections 1471 through 1474 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (commonly known as
“FATCA”), provides that various information reporting requirements must be satisfied with respect to (i)
certain payments from sources within the United States, (ii) “foreign pass-through payments” made to
certain non-U.S. financial institutions that do not comply with this new reporting regime, and (iii) payments
to certain investors that do not provide identification information with respect to interests issued by a
participating non-U.S. financial institution. Failure to comply with such information reporting requirements
may trigger a U.S. withholding tax, currently at 30 per cent rate on such payments.

The United States and a number of other jurisdictions have negotiated intergovernmental agreements to
facilitate the implementation of FATCA (the “1GAS”). Pursuant to FATCA and the “Model 1” and “Model
2” IGAs released by the United States, an FFI in an IGA signatory country could be treated as a Reporting
FI not subject to withholding under FATCA on any payments it receives. Further, an FFI in a Model 1 IGA
jurisdiction would generally not be required to withhold under FATCA or an IGA (or any law
implementing an IGA) (any such withholding being FATCA Withholding) from payments it makes. The
Model 2 IGA leaves open the possibility that a Reporting FI might in the future be required to withhold as a
Participating FFI on foreign pass-through payments and payments that it makes to Recalcitrant Holders.
Under each Model IGA, a Reporting FI would still be required to report certain information in respect of its
account holders and investors to its home government or to the IRS. The United States and the Republic of
Italy have entered into an agreement (the “US-Italy IGA”) based largely on the Model 1 IGA, which has
been ratified in Italy by Law number 95 of 18 June 2015, published in the Official Gazette number 155 of 7
July 2015.

Since the FATCA regulations are complex and uncertain in some respects, in particular with respect to the
definition of so-called “pass-thru payments” the application of FATCA to payments between financial
intermediaries is not entirely certain. Indeed, FATCA may affect payments made to custodians or
intermediaries in the subsequent payment chain leading to the ultimate investor if any such custodian or
intermediary generally is unable to receive payments free of FATCA withholding. It also may affect
payment to any ultimate investor that is a financial institution that is not entitled to receive payments free of
withholding under FATCA, or an ultimate investor that fails to provide its broker (or other custodian or
intermediary from which it receives payment) with any information, forms, other documentation or
consents that may be necessary for the payments to be made free of FATCA withholding.

Holders of Class A1 Notes should consult their own tax advisors about the application of FATCA and on
how the above rules may apply to, or affect payments to be received under the Class A1 Notes or any other
payments to be made by the parties to this Transaction.

The Issuer believes that the risks described above are the principal risks inherent in the Transaction for
holders of the Class A1 Notes but the inability of the Issuer to pay interest or repay principal on the Class
Al Notes may occur for other reasons and the Issuer does not represent that the above statements of the
risks of holding the Class Al Notes are exhaustive. While the various structural elements described in
this Prospectus are intended to lessen some of these risks for holders of the Class A1 Notes, there can be
no assurance that these measures will be sufficient or effective to ensure payment to the holders of the
Class Al Notes of interest or principal on such Class A1 Notes on a timely basis or at all. Additional risks
and uncertainties not presently known to the Issuer or that it currently believes to be immaterial could
also have a material impact on its business operations.
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TRANSACTION DIAGRAM

The following is a diagram showing the structure of the Transaction as at the Subsequent Issue Date. It is
intended to illustrate to prospective noteholders a scheme of the principal transactions contemplated in the
context of the Transaction on the Subsequent Issue Date. It is not intended to be exhaustive and prospective
noteholders should also read the detailed information set out elsewhere in this document.
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TRANSACTION OVERVIEW

The following information is an overview of the transactions and assets underlying the Notes and is
qualified in its entirety by reference to the more detailed information presented elsewhere in this
Prospectus and in the Transaction Documents. It is not intended to be exhaustive and prospective
noteholders should also read the detailed information set out elsewhere in this document.

1. THE PRINCIPAL PARTIES

Issuer Fucino RMBS S.r.l., a limited liability company (societa a
responsabilita limitata) incorporated in the Republic of Italy under
Acrticle 3 of the Securitisation Law, with a paid-in share capital of
Euro 10,000, whose registered office is located at via San Prospero
4, 20121 Milan, Italy, enrolled in the Register of Enterprises of
Milan, Monza, Brianza, Lodi under No. 10621230969 and in the
register of the securitisation companies (elenco societa di
cartolarizzazione) held by the Bank of Italy pursuant regulation
issued by the Bank of Italy on 7 June 2017, under No. 35563.6,
having as its sole corporate object the performance of securitisation
transactions under the Securitisation Law (the “Issuer”).

Originator Banca del Fucino S.p.A., a joint stock company (societa per
azioni) incorporated in the Republic of Italy, with a paid-in share
capital of Euro 157,476,329.50 whose registered office is located at
Via Tomacelli 107, 00186 Rome, Italy, enrolled in the Register of
Enterprises of Rome under No. 04256050875, Fiscal Code and
VAT number 04256050875 and in the register of banks held by the
Bank of Italy pursuant to Article 13 of the Consolidated Banking
Act under No. 5640 (“Banca del Fucino”), acting in its capacity as
originator of the Portfolio (the “Originator”).

Collection Account Bank Banca del Fucino, acting as collection account bank pursuant to the
Cash Administration and Agency Agreement or any person from
time to time acting as collection account bank (the “Collection
Bank Account”).

Transaction Bank BNP Paribas Securities Services, a company incorporated under
the laws of the Republic of France as a société en commandite par
actions, having its registered office at 3, Rue d'Antin, 75002 Paris,
France, acting through its Milan branch, with offices at Piazza Lina
Bo Bardi, 3 20124, Milan, Italy (“BNP Paribas Securities
Services”) acting as transaction bank pursuant to the Cash
Administration and Agency Agreement or any person from time to
time acting as transaction bank (the “Transaction Bank”).

Principal Paying Agent BNP Paribas Securities Services, acting as principal paying agent
pursuant to the Cash Administration and Agency Agreement or any
person from time to time acting as principal paying agent (the
“Principal Paying Agent”).
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130 Finance S.r.l., a limited liability company (societa a
responsabilita limitata) incorporated in the Republic of Italy,
registered in the Register of Enterprises of Milan under number
1603211, Fiscal Code and VAT number 12975990156, whose
registered office is located at Via Dante, 4 — 20121 Milan, with
paid-in share capital of Euro 100,000 (“130 Finance”), acting as
representative of the noteholders pursuant to the Notes Subscription
Agreements and the Intercreditor Agreement or any person from
time to time acting as representative of the noteholders (the
“Representative of the Noteholders™).

Banca del Fucino, acting as servicer pursuant to the Servicing
Agreement or any person from time to time acting as servicer (the
“Servicer”).

Banca del Fucino, acting as administrative services provider
pursuant to the Administrative Services Agreement or any person
from time to time acting as administrative services provider (the
“Administrative Services Provider”).

Centotrenta Servicing S.p.A., a joint stock company (societa per
azioni) incorporated under the laws of Republic of Italy, with
registered office in Milan, Via San Prospero, 4, fiscal code and
enrolment with the companies register of Milan — Monza — Brianza
— Lodi number 07524870966 (“Centotrenta Servicing”), acting as
the corporate services provider pursuant to the Corporate Services
Agreement or any person from time to time acting as corporate
services provider (the “Corporate Services Provider”).

Fenice Trust Company S.r.l., a limited liability company (societa
a responsabilita limitata) incorporated under the laws of in the
Republic of Italy with a paid-in share capital of Euro 10,000, Fiscal
Code 08431730962 whose registered office is located at via Dante
4, 20121, Milan, ltaly, enrolled in the Register of Enterprises of
Milan, Monza, Brianza, Lodi (the “Quotaholder”).

BNP Paribas Securities Services, acting as the cash manager
pursuant to the Cash Administration and Agency Agreement or any
person from time to time acting as cash manager (the “Cash
Manager”).

Centotrenta Servicing, acting as the computation agent pursuant
to the Cash Administration and Agency Agreement or any person
from time to time acting as computation agent (the “Computation
Agent”).

Centotrenta Servicing, acting as back-up servicer pursuant to the

Back-up Servicing Agreement or any person from time to time
acting as back-up servicer (the “Back-up Servicer”).
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Listing Agent BNP Paribas Securities Services, Luxembourg Branch, a bank
incorporated under the laws of the Republic of France as a société
en commandite par actions, having its registered office at 3, Rue
d’Antin, 75002 Paris, France, acting through its Luxembourg
Branch, with offices at 60 avenue J.F. Kennedy, L-1855
Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg (the “Listing Agent™).
BNP Paribas Securities Services Luxembourg Branch, being part of
a financial group providing client services with a worldwide
network covering different time zones, may entrust parts of its
operational processes to other BNP Paribas Group entities and/or
third parties, whilst keeping ultimate accountability and
responsibility in Luxembourg.

Subordinated Loan Provider Banca del Fucino (formerly Igea Banca S.p.A.), acting in its
capacity as subordinated loan provider or any other person from
time to time acting as subordinated loan provider (the
“Subordinated Loan Provider”™).

Subsequent Subordinated Loan Banca del Fucino (formerly Igea Banca S.p.A.), acting in its

Provider capacity as subsequent subordinated loan provider or any other
person from time to time acting as subsequent subordinated loan
provider (the “Subsequent Subordinated Loan Provider”).

Reporting Entity Banca del Fucino, acting as reporting entity to the Intercreditor
Agreement or any person from time to time acting as reporting
entity (the “Reporting Entity”).

Swap Counterparty J.P. Morgan SE, having its registered office at TaunusTurm,
Taunustor 1, 60310 Frankfurt am Main, Germany (the “Swap
Counterparty™).

EMIR Reporting Agent J.P. Morgan SE, or any other person from time to time acting as
EMIR reporting agent under the EMIR Reporting Agreement (the
“EMIR Reporting Agent”™).

Arranger J.P. Morgan SE, having its registered office at TaunusTurm,
Taunustor 1, 60310 Frankfurt am Main, Germany, acting as an
arranger (the “Arranger”).

Security Trustee 130 Finance, acting as security trustee pursuant to the Deed of
Charge (the “Security Trustee”).

Placement Agent J.P. Morgan SE (the “Placement Agent”).

Notes Subscriber Banca del Fucino.

2. THE PRINCIPAL FEATURES OF THE CLASS ALNOTES

The Notes On 15 April 2019 (the “Initial Issue Date”), the Issuer issued:

(i) Euro 128,915,000.00 Class A Residential Mortgage Backed
Floating Rate Notes due December 2060 (the “Class A Notes” or the
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“Senior Notes”);

(ii) Euro 5,997,000.00 Class B Residential Mortgage Backed Floating
Rate Notes due December 2060 (the “Class B Notes” or the
“Mezzanine Notes” and, together with the Senior Notes, the
“Original Rated Notes”); and

(iii) Euro 14,990,000.00 Class J Residential Mortgage Backed
Floating Rate and Additional Return Notes due December 2060 (the
“Class J Notes” or the “Junior Notes”).

In the context of the restructuring of the Transaction occurred on June
2022, the Final Maturity Date (as defined in the Conditions) has been
postponed, also in respect of the Class B Notes and the Class J Notes
to the Payment Date falling in December 2063.

On 16 June 2022 (the “Subsequent Issue Date”) the Issuer will issue:
Euro 118,000,000 Class Al Residential Mortgage Backed Floating
Rate Notes due December 2063.

The net proceeds of the offering of the Class A1 Notes will be mainly
applied by the Issuer to fund (i) the early redemption of the Class A
Notes, (ii) the partial redemption of the Class B Notes and the Class J
Notes, (iii) the partial reimboursement of the Subordinated Loan and
(iv) to purchase an additional portfolio of monetary claims (the
“Subsequent Portfolio” and the “Subsequent Claims”, respectively)
arising under residential mortgage loans originated by Banca del
Fucino S.p.A. (“Banca del Fucino” or the “Originator”). The
Subsequent Portfolio has been purchased by the Issuer under the terms
of an additional transfer agreement between the Issuer and the
Originator pursuant to the Securitisation Law executed on 30 May
2022 (the “Subsequent Transfer Agreement”).

Therefore, on the Subsequent Issue Date, the Principal Amount
Outstanding of the Notes will be:

- Euro 118,000,000 with reference to the Class A1 Notes;
- Euro 5,000,000 with reference to the Class B Notes;

- Euro 12,480,000 with reference to the Class J Notes.

The Class Al Notes, the Class B Notes and the Class J Notes, together
the “Notes”.
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The Class Al Notes will be issued at the following percentage of
their principal amount:
Class Issue Price

Class Al Notes 100 per cent

The rate of interest applicable from time to time in respect of the Class
Al Notes will be Euribor for 3 month deposits in Euro (the “Three
Month Euribor”) (or, in the case of the Initial Interest Period
applicable to the Class Al Notes, the rate per annum obtained by linear
interpolation of the Euribor for three months and six months deposits
in Euro), as determined and defined in accordance with Condition 5
(Interest) plus 0.75% per annum,

provided that, in any case, the Interest Rate (being the Three Month
Euribor plus the relevant margin) applicable to the Class Al Notes shall
not be negative.

The Euribor applicable to the Class A1 Notes for each Interest Period
will be determined on the date falling two Business Days prior to the
Payment Date at the beginning of such Interest Period (except in respect
of the Initial Interest Period, where the applicable Euribor will be
determined two Business Days prior to the Subsequent Issue Date).

Interest on the Notes will accrue on a daily basis and will be payable
quarterly in arrear in Euro, in accordance with the applicable Order of
Priority, on the last calendar day of March, June, September and
December in each year or, if such date is not a Business Day, on the
following Business Day (each such date a “Payment Date”), being
understood that (i) the first Payment Date with reference to the Class
Al Notes will occur on the Payment Date falling in September 2022
and (ii) on the Payment Date falling in June 2022 no payments in
accordance to the applicable Order of Priority will be made and any
amounts which would have been due and payable on the Payment Date
falling in June 2022 shall be aggregated with the amounts to be paid on
the immediately following Payment Date (i.e. the Payment Date
falling in September 2022).
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Unpaid interest

Withholding on the Notes

Form and denomination of
the Notes

Without prejudice to Condition 9(i)(a) (Non-payment), in the event
that the Issuer Available Funds available to the Issuer on any Payment
Date (in accordance with the Pre-Acceleration Order of Priority or the
Acceleration Order of Priority, as applicable), for the payment of
interest on the Notes on such Payment Date are not sufficient to pay in
full the relevant Interest Amount, the amount by which the aggregate
amount of interest paid on such Payment Date falls short of the Interest
Amount which would otherwise be due, shall be aggregated with the
amount of, and treated for the purposes of the Conditions as if it were,
Interest Amount payable on the Notes on the immediately following
Payment Date. Any such unpaid amount shall not accrue additional
interest.

As at the date of this Prospectus, payments of interest and other
proceeds under the Notes may be subject to withholding or deduction
for or on account of Italian tax, in accordance with Italian Legislative
Decree number 239 of 1 April 1996. Upon the occurrence of any
withholding or deduction for or on account of tax from any payments
under the Notes, neither the Issuer nor any other person shall have any
obligation to pay any additional amount(s) to any holder of the Notes.

The denomination of the Class Al Notes will be € 100,000 and
multiples of € 1,000. The Class Al Notes will be held in
dematerialised form on behalf of the beneficial owners, until
redemption or cancellation thereof, by Monte Titoli for the account of
the relevant Monte Titoli Account Holders. The Class Al Notes will
be accepted for clearance by Monte Titoli with effect from the
Subsequent Issue Date. The Class A1 Notes will at all times be in
book entry form and title to the Class Al Notes will be evidenced by
book entries in accordance with the provision of article 83-bis of the
Consolidated Financial Act and regulation of 13 August 2018 jointly
issued by the Bank of Italy and CONSOB, as subsequently amended
and supplemented from time to time. No physical document of title
will be issued in respect of the Class A1 Notes.

3. ACCOUNTS AND DESCRIPTION OF CASH FLOWS

ACCOUNT HELD WITH
BANCA DEL FUCINO

Quota Capital Account
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Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Cash Administration
and Agency Agreement, the Issuer has directed Banca del Fucino to
establish, maintain and operate the following accounts as separate
accounts in the name of the Issuer:

A Euro denominated account (the “Quota Capital Account”)
(Conto Capitale Sociale) into which all sums contributed by the
Quotaholder as quota capital of the Issuer and any interest thereon
shall be credited.
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Collection Account A Euro denominated account (the “Collection Account”):

a) into which: (i) all amounts received or recovered by the
Issuer or by the Servicer on behalf of the Issuer in respect
of the Portfolio shall be credited by 18:00 (Italian time) on
the Business Day following the day on which the Issuer or
the Servicer has received or recovered the relevant
amounts (except for (i) the amounts received or recovered
by the Servicer in respect of the Portfolio from the relevant
Effective Date (included) until two Business Days
preceding the Initial Issue Date or the Subsequent Issue
Date (as the case may be) which shall be credited not later
than the Business Day preceding the Initial Issue Date or
the Subsequent Issue Date, respectively); (ii) any amount
due by the Servicer in respect of the Portfolio to the Issuer
as indemnity for the renegotiation of the Claims pursuant
to the Servicing Agreement shall be credited; (iii) all
amounts due by the Originator to the Issuer under the terms
of the Warranty and Indemnity Agreement shall be
credited and (iv) on the Subsequent Issue Date, an amount
equal to Euro 675,000.00 will be transferred from the
Investment Account for the payment (on or after the
Subsequent Issue Date) of any upfront fees, costs and
expenses to be paid pursuant to clause 13 of the Class
AlNotes Subscription Agreement; and

b)  out of which: (i) any amount standing to the credit of the
Collection Account (except for the amounts credited into
the Collection Account under item (iv) of letter (a) above)
will be transferred, by close of business on the same
Business Day, into the Investment Account; (ii) on the
Initial Issue Date (A) an amount equal to Euro 21,920 has
been transferred into the Cash Reserve Account and (B)
any residual amount standing to credit of the Collection
Account has been transferred into the Investment Account
and (iii) on or after the Subsequent Issue Date, an amount
up to Euro 675,000.00 will be applied for the payment (on
or after the Subsequent Issue Date) of any upfront fees,
costs and expenses to be paid pursuant to clause 13 of the
Class A1lNotes Subscription Agreement.

Expenses Account A Euro denominated account (the “Expenses Account”) (Conto
Spese):

a) into which: (i) on the Initial Issue Date the Retention
Amount has been credited from the Investment Account;
and (ii) on each Payment Date an amount shall be paid from
the Payments Account in accordance with the applicable
Order of Priority so that the balance standing to the credit of
the Expenses Account on such Payment Date is equal to the
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ACCOUNTS HELD WITH
TRANSACTION BANK

Payments Account
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Retention Amount; and

b) out of which: (i) any taxes due and payable on behalf of the
Issuer and any fees, costs and expenses required to be paid
in order to preserve the corporate existence of the Issuer or
to maintain it in good standing and comply with applicable
legislation and regulations or to fulfil payment obligations
of the Issuer to third parties (other than the Noteholders and
the Other Issuer Creditors) incurred in relation to the
Transaction will be paid on any Business Day; and (ii) on
the Business Day immediately preceding the earlier of (a)
the Payment Date on which the Notes will be redeemed in
full or cancelled and (b) the Final Maturity Date, any
amount standing to the credit of the Expenses Account shall
be transferred to the Payments Account.

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Cash Administration
and Agency Agreement, the Issuer has directed the Transaction
Bank to establish, maintain and operate the following accounts as
separate accounts in the name of the Issuer:

A Euro denominated account (the “Payments Account”):

a) into which: (i) all amounts standing to the credit of the
Investment Account and in general any sums arising from
the liquidation, disposal or maturity of the Eligible
Investments (including any profit generated thereby or
interest matured thereon) shall be credited 2 (two) Business
Days prior to each Payment Date; (ii) all amounts received
from the sale of all or part of the Portfolio (other than
amounts due by the Originator to the Issuer under the terms
of the Warranty and Indemnity Agreements), should such
sale occur, shall be credited; (iii) on the Business Day
immediately preceding the earlier of (a) the Payment Date
on which the Notes will be redeemed in full or cancelled
and (b) the Final Maturity Date, the residual amount
standing to the credit of the Expenses Account shall be
transferred; (iv) (A) on the Initial Issue Date the
subscription price of the Class A Notes, the Class B Notes
and the Class J Notes (net of any set off agreed in the
Original Notes Subscription Agreement) have been
credited and (B) on the Subsequent Issue Date the
subscription price of the Class Al Notes (net of any set off
agreed in the Class Al Notes Subscription Agreement)
shall be credited; (v) any net amount due from the Swap
Counterparty under the Swap Agreement will be paid two
Business Days before each Payment Date, but which shall,
for the avoidance of doubt, exclude any collateral
transferred under the Swap Agreement with respect to
which reference is made in the description of the Collateral
Account below; (vi) any Swap Collateral Account Surplus
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Cash Reserve Account

Investment Account

4155-1253-8422.3

b)

shall be credited in accordance with the Collateral Account
Priority of Payments; (vii) on the second Business Day
preceding each Payment Date, the Swap Fixed Amount
will be credited from the Swap Reserve Account; and (Viii)
on the date on which the Swap Agreement terminates all
amounts standing to the credit of the Swap Reserve
Account will be credited; and

out of which: (i) on each Payment Date all payments of
interest and principal on the Notes and any payments to the
Other Issuer Creditors and any third party creditors of the
Transaction and any other payment or transfer set forth
under the relevant Order of Priority shall be made in
accordance with the Intercreditor Agreement, the
applicable Order of Priority and the relevant Payments
Report; (ii) any amount standing to the credit thereof will
be transferred to the Investment Account 1 (one) Business
Day after each Payment Date (other than the Payment Date
on which the Notes will be redeemed in full or cancelled
and the Final Maturity Date); (iii) on each Payment Date an
amount shall be credited to the Expenses Account so that
the balance standing to the credit of such Account is equal
to the Retention Amount.

A Euro denominated account (the “Cash Reserve Account™):

a)

b)

into which: (i) on each Payment Date prior to the delivery of
a Trigger Notice, all sums payable under item Sixth of the
Pre-Acceleration Order of Priority shall be credited; (ii) on
the Initial Issue Date (A) an amount equal to Euro 21,920
has been transferred from the Collection Account and (B) an
amount equal to Euro 4,700,000 has been credited by the
Subordinated Loan Provider pursuant to the Subordinated
Loan Agreement and (iii) on the Subsequent Issue Date an
amount equal to Euro 1,879,446.73 will be transferred from
the Investment Account; and

out of which: on the Business Day following the Initial Issue
Date, the Subsequent Issue Date and each Payment Date the
amount standing to the credit of the Cash Reserve Account
will be transferred into the Investment Account.

A Euro denominated account (the “Investment Account™):

a)

into which: (i) any amounts standing to the credit of the
Collection Account on each Business Day will be
transferred by close of business on the same Business Day;
(it) all sums arising from the Portfolio and all other sums
which are not directly attributable to the Portfolio,
collected or received by the Issuer under any Transaction
Documents to which the Issuer is a party shall be credited
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b)

promptly upon receipt, if not credited to other accounts
pursuant to the Transaction Documents; (iii) any amount
credited into the Cash Reserve Account on the Initial Issue
Date and on each Payment Date in accordance with the
Pre-Acceleration Order of Priority will be transferred on
the Business Day following each of such dates; (iv) any
amounts standing to the credit of the Payments Account on
the Business Day immediately following each Payment
Date (other than the Payment Date on which the Notes are
redeemed in full or cancelled and the Final Maturity Date)
shall be credited on such Business Day; (v) on the Initial
Issue Date the amount standing to the credit of the
Collection Account less an amount equal to Euro 21,920
(which has been credited from the Collection Account to
the Cash Reserve Account) has been transferred from the
Collection Account; (vi) any proceeds upon maturity or
any sums deriving from the disposal of the Eligible
Investments purchased through the funds standing to the
credit of such account (other than the amounts set forth
under item (v) of the paragraph “out of which” of this
Account) and any profit generated thereby or interest
accrued thereon, shall be credited; and (vii) upon written
instruction of Banca del Fucino as Servicer, the amounts
standing to the credit of the Swap Reserve Account will be
transferred to the Investment Account to be applied for the
settlement of Eligible Investments, provided that, in any
case, Banca del Fucino as Servicer shall not be allowed to
give any instruction to transfer money out of the Swap
Reserve Account during the period beginning on (and
including) the fourth Business Day immediately
succeeding each Collection Date and ending on (and
including) the second Business Day preceding each
Payment Date; and

out of which: (i) any amounts standing to the credit thereof
(other than the amounts set forth under item (v) below) 2
(two) Business Days before each Payment Date shall be
credited on such date to the Payments Account; (ii) any
amounts standing to the credit thereof (other than the
amounts set forth under item (v) below) will be applied by
the Cash Manager upon specific written instructions of
Banca del Fucino as Servicer or the Issuer, for the
settlement of Eligible Investments, provided that in no case
shall Eligible Investments be purchased in the 2 (two)
preceding Business Days prior to each Calculation Date;
(iii) on the fourth Business Day succeeding each Collection
Date, all amounts deriving from the liquidation of any
Eligible Investment purchased by way of the sums deriving
from the Swap Reserve Account will be transferred
(together with any interest and profit accrued thereon) on
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b)

the Swap Reserve Account; (iv) on the Initial Issue Date an
amount equal to the Retention Amount has been
transferred into the Expenses Account; (v) on any Business
Day following the Initial Issue Date, any upfront fees, costs
and expenses to be paid pursuant to clause 11 of the Notes
Subscription Agreements; (vi) on the Subsequent Issue
Date (A) an amount equal to Euro 1,879,446.73 will be
transferred to the Cash Reserve Account; (B) an amount
equal to Euro 458,700.00 (being a portion of the Swap
Reserve Top-up Amount) will be transferred into the Swap
Reserve Account and (iii) an amount equal to Euro
675,000.00 will be transferred to the Collection Account
for the payment (on or after the Subsequent Issue Date) of
any upfront fees, costs and expenses to be paid pursuant to
clause 13 of the Class A1 Notes Subscription Agreement.

into which: (i) on the Subsequent Issue Date, (A) an
amount equal to Euro 168,989.00 (being a portion of the
Swap Reserve Top-up Amount) will be credited by the
Subsequent Subordinated Loan Provider in accordance
with the the Subsequent Subordinated Loan Agreement
and (B) an amount equal to Euro 458,700.00 (being a
portion of the Swap Reserve Top-up Amount) will be
transferred from the Investment Account (ii) on the fourth
Business Day succeeding each Collection Date, the
amounts deriving from the liquidation of any Eligible
Investment (including any interest and profit accrued
thereon) purchased by way of the sums deriving from the
Swap Reserve Account will be credited; and

out of which: (i) on the second Business Day preceding
each Payment Date, an amount equal to the Swap Fixed
Amount will be transferred to the Payments Account; (ii)
upon written instruction of Banca del Fucino as Servicer,
the amounts standing to the credit thereof will be
transferred to the Investment Account to be applied for the
settlement of Eligible Investments, provided that, in any
case, Banca del Fucino as Servicer shall not be allowed to
give any transfer instruction during the period beginning
on (and including) the fourth Business Day immediately
succeeding each Collection Date and ending on (and
including) the second Business Day preceding each
Payment Date; and (iii) on the date on which the Swap
Agreement terminates all amounts standing to the credit of
the Swap Reserve Account will be credited to the
Payments Account.
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Securities Account

Collateral Account

Under the Cash Administration and Agency Agreement, the
Representative of the Noteholders acknowledged and agreed that
the Issuer may open a securities custody account (the “Securities
Account”) in order for the Issuer to deposit to the credit thereto
investments which qualify as Eligible Investments.

A Euro denominated cash account (the “Collateral Account”), into
which shall be credited:

a)  any collateral received from the Swap Counterparty pursuant
to the Swap Agreement;

b)  any interest or distributions on, and any liquidation or other
proceeds of, such collateral,

c) any Replacement Swap Premium received by the Issuer
from a replacement swap counterparty; and

d) any termination payment received by the Issuer from the
outgoing Swap Counterparty pursuant to the Swap
Agreement and out of which amounts shall be paid in
accordance with the Collateral Account Priority of
Payments.

“Accounts” means collectively the Expenses Account, the Quota
Capital Account, the Payments Account, the Collection Account,
the Investment Account, the Securities Account (if any), the
Collateral Account, the Swap Reserve Account and the Cash
Reserve Account; and “Account” means any of them.

“Claims” means the monetary receivables and connected rights
arising under the Loans and the relevant Insurance Policies, as
assigned by Banca del Fucino to the Issuer pursuant to the Transfer
Agreements.

“Portfolio” means, collectively, the Initial Portfolio and the
Subsequent Portfolio.

“Replacement Swap Premium” means the amount payable by the
Issuer to a replacement swap counterparty or by a replacement
swap counterparty to the Issuer (as the case may be) in order to
enter into a replacement swap agreement on substantially the same
terms as the Swap Agreement to replace or novate the Swap
Agreement.

4. ISSUER AVAILABLE FUNDS

Issuer Available Funds

4155-1253-8422.3

On each Calculation Date and in respect of the immediately
following Payment Date, the aggregate of (without duplication):
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b)

d)

f)

9)

h)

all the sums received or recovered by the Issuer from or
in respect of the Claims during the Collection Period
immediately preceding such Payment Date;

all amounts (other than the amounts already allocated
under other items of the Issuer Available Funds)
received by the Issuer in respect of the Portfolio pursuant
to the Transfer Agreements, the Warranty and Indemnity
Agreements and any other Transaction Documents
during the Collection Period immediately preceding
such Payment Date;

any profit generated by, or interest accrued and paid on,
the Eligible Investments (net of any withholding or
deduction on account of tax) made out of the Investment
Account in respect of the Collection Period immediately
preceding such Payment Date;

all the amounts standing to the credit of the Cash
Reserve Account on the immediately preceding
Payment Date, after application of the Pre-Acceleration
Order of Priority on such Payment Date (or (i) in respect
of the First Payment Date, the Cash Reserve Initial
Amount and (ii) in respect of the First Class A1 Notes
Payment Date, the Cash Reserve Subsequent Amount);

interest (if any) accrued on and credited (net of any
withholding or deduction on account of tax) to the
Accounts (except for the Expenses Account, the
Collateral Account and the Quota Capital Account) in
the Collection Period immediately preceding such
Payment Date;

all amounts received from the sale of the Portfolio or
individual Claims, should such sale occur, during the
Collection Period immediately preceding such Payment
Date;

on the Final Maturity Date or, if earlier, the Payment
Date on which the Notes will be redeemed in full or
cancelled, the residual amount standing to the credit of
the Accounts (except for the Quota Capital Account and
the Collateral Account);

any other amount, not included in the foregoing items,
received by the Issuer and standing to the credit of the
Accounts (except for the Quota Capital Account) on the
Collection Date immediately preceding such Payment
Date;

without duplication of the above, all amounts due and
payable to the Issuer in respect of such Payment Date
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under the terms of the Swap Agreement (if and to the
extent paid) other than (1) any Collateral Amounts
(which will not be available to the Issuer to make
payments to its creditors generally, but may only be
applied in accordance with the Collateral Account
Priority of Payments) and (2) any Swap Tax Credit
Amounts (which amounts shall be paid directly to the
Swap Counterparty when due in accordance with the
Swap Agreement, without regard to the Collateral
Account Priority of Payments or the Orders of Priority);

) without duplication of the above, any Swap Collateral
Account Surplus paid into the Payments Account in
accordance with the Collateral Account Priority of
Payments;

k)  on each Payment Date, an amount equal to the Swap
Fixed Amounts due on such date under the Swap
Agreement which will be transferred from the Swap
Reserve Account to the Payments Account; and

) on the date on which the Swap Agreement terminates,
the balance of the Swap Reserve Account will be
transferred from the Swap Reserve Account to the
Payments Account.

“Collateral Amount” means any amounts standing to the credit
of the Collateral Account, being amounts paid into such account
by the Swap Counterparty in accordance with the Credit Support
Annex, together with interest and other amounts accrued
thereon.

“Senior Swap Counterparty Termination Payment” means
any termination payment, other than a Subordinated Swap
Counterparty Termination Payment, required to be made by the
Issuer to the Swap Counterparty upon a termination of the Swap
Transactions pursuant to the Swap Agreement.

“Subordinated Swap Counterparty Termination Payment”
means any termination payment required to be made by the
Issuer to the Swap Counterparty pursuant to the Swap
Agreement upon a termination of the Swap Transactions in
respect of which the Swap Counterparty is the sole Affected
Party (as defined in the Swap Agreement) following the
occurrence of a Swap Counterparty Rating Event or is the
Defaulting Party (as defined in the Swap Agreement) to the
extent not already paid pursuant to item Fourth of the Orders of
Priority.

“Swap Tax Credit Amount” means any amount received by the
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Prior to (i) the service of a Trigger Notice, (ii) a Redemption for Taxation pursuant to
Condition 6.2 (Redemption for Taxation) or (iii) an Optional Redemption pursuant to
Condition 6.4 (Optional Redemption) or (iv) the Final Maturity Date, the Issuer
Available Funds shall be applied on each Payment Date in making or providing for the
following payments, in the following order of priority (the “Pre-Acceleration Order
of Priority”) (in each case, only if and to the extent that payments of a higher priority
have been made in full):

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

First, to pay (pari passu and pro rata to the extent of the respective amounts
thereof) (i) all costs, taxes and expenses required to be paid in order to preserve
the corporate existence of the Issuer or to maintain it in good standing or to
comply with applicable legislation and regulations or to fulfil due and payable
payment obligations of the Issuer towards third parties (not expressly included in
any following item of this Order of Priority) incurred in relation to the
Transaction, to the extent that such costs, taxes, expenses and payments are not
met by using the amount standing to the credit of the Expenses Account, (ii) all
costs and taxes required to be paid to maintain the ratings of the Rated Notes, or
any notice to be given to the Noteholders or the other parties to the Transaction
Documents;

Second, to pay in the following order (i) the fees, expenses and all other amounts
due to the Representative of the Noteholders and the Security Trustee, (ii) into the
Expenses Account the amount (if any) necessary to ensure that the balance
standing to the credit of the Expenses Account as at such Payment Date is equal
to the Retention Amount;

Third, to pay (pari passu and pro rata to the extent of the respective amounts
thereof) (i) the fees, expenses and all other amounts due and payable to the Cash
Manager, the Computation Agent, the Collection Account Bank, the Transaction
Bank, the Principal Paying Agent, the EMIR Reporting Agent, the Corporate
Services Provider, the Administrative Services Provider and the Back-Up
Servicer; (ii) the Servicing Fees due to the Servicer and any reimbursement due
to the Servicer pursuant to the Servicing Agreement; and (iii) the fees and costs
due to the Back-up Servicer as successor of the Servicer pursuant to clause
3.2(ii)(a) of the Back-Up Servicing Agreement;

Fourth, to pay all amounts due and payable to the Swap Counterparty under the
terms of the Swap Agreement (which, with respect to periodic payments and
payments of premia, shall include amounts due and payable in respect of the
relevant Swap Transactions) other than (1) any Swap Tax Credit Amounts (which
amounts shall be paid when due in accordance with the Swap Agreement, without
regard to the Collateral Account Priority of Payments or the Orders of Priority),
(2) any amounts payable pursuant to the Collateral Account Priority of Payments,
and (3) any Subordinated Swap Counterparty Termination Payment provided that
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v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

any Senior Swap Counterparty Termination Payment due to the Swap
Counterparty shall be payable pursuant to this item only to the extent that the
amounts paid pursuant to the Collateral Account Priority of Payments are
insufficient to pay in full the Senior Swap Counterparty Termination Payment due
to the Swap Counterparty;

Fifth, to pay (pari passu and pro rata) interest due and payable on the Principal
Amount Outstanding of the Class A1 Notes;

Sixth, to credit the Cash Reserve Account with the Cash Reserve Amount due on
such Payment Date;

Seventh, to pay the Initial Subordinated Loan Senior Interest that is due and
payable;

Eight, prior to the occurrence of a Class B Notes Interest Subordination Event, to
pay, pari passu and pro rata, interest due and payable on the Principal Amount
Outstanding of the Class B Notes;

Ninth, towards payment (pari passu and pro rata) of the Principal Amount
Outstanding of the Class Al Notes;

Tenth, following the occurrence of a Class B Notes Interest Subordination Event,
to pay, pari passu and pro rata, interest due and payable on the Class B Notes;

Eleventh, to repay, pari passu and pro rata, the Principal Amount Outstanding of
the Class B Notes;

Twelfth, to pay (pari passu and pro rata) the relevant Subordinated Loan Junior
Interest and repay principal, in each case, that is due and payable under,
respectively, the Subordinated Loan and the Subsequent Subordinated Loan;

Thirteenth, only to the extent the amounts paid pursuant to the Collateral
Account Priority of Payments are insufficient to pay in full any Subordinated
Swap Counterparty Termination Payment due to the Swap Counterparty, to pay
any due but unpaid Subordinated Swap Counterparty Termination Payment due
to the Swap Counterparty;

Fourteenth, to pay (pari passu and pro rata according to the respective amounts
thereof), any other amount due and payable to the Originator, pursuant to the
Transfer Agreements (including costs and expenses and the insurance premia
advanced under the Insurance Policies) and the Warranty and Indemnity
Agreements; to the Servicer pursuant to the Servicing Agreement, to the extent
not already paid under other items of this Order of Priority; and to the Back-up
Servicer as successor of the Servicer, as agreed between the Back-up Servicer
and the Issuer pursuant to clause 3.2(ii)(b) of the Back-Up Servicing Agreement;

Fifteenth, to pay (pari passu and pro rata) interest due and payable on the Class
J Notes (other than the Class J Notes Additional Return);

Sixteenth, following redemption in full or cancellation of the Class B Notes, to
pay (pari passu and pro rata) the Principal Amount Outstanding of the Class J
Notes, until — on each Payment Date other than the Payment Date on which the
Notes are redeemed in full or cancelled or the Final Maturity Date — such
Principal Amount Outstanding is equal to Euro 1,000;
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(xvii) Seventeenth, to pay (pari passu and pro rata) the Class J Notes Additional
Return,

provided, however, that should the Computation Agent not receive the Quarterly
Servicing Report within 2 (two) Business Days prior to the Calculation Date,

() it shall prepare the Payments Report by applying the Issuer Available Funds in
an amount not higher than:

(@) the amounts standing to the credit of the Cash Reserve Account on the
immediately preceding Payment Date (after application of the
Pre-Acceleration Order of Priority on such Payment Date); plus

(b) the aggregate amount transferred from the Collection Account to the
Investment Account in the immediately preceding Collection Period (as
promptly indicated by the Transaction Bank upon request of the
Computation Agent); plus

(c) all amounts due and payable to the Issuer on the immediately following
Payment Date under the terms of the Swap Agreement, other than any
Collateral Amount, any termination payment required to be made under the
Swap Agreement and any collateral payable or transferable (as the case
may be) under the Credit Support Annex,

towards payment only of items from First to Sixth (but excluding the Servicing Fees to
the Servicer under item Third) of the Pre-Acceleration Order of Priority; and

(i) any amount that would otherwise have been payable under items from Seventh to
Seventeenth of the Pre-Acceleration Order of Priority will not be included in the
relevant Payments Report and shall not be payable on the relevant Payment Date
and shall be payable in accordance with the applicable Order of Priority on the
first following Payment Date on which there are enough Issuer Available Funds
and on which details for the relevant calculations will be timely provided to the
Computation Agent.

“Initial Subordinated Loan Senior Interest” means in respect of each Payment Date
the Initial Subordinated Loan Interest calculated on the positive difference between (i)
Euro 4,700,000.00 (up to the Payment Date falling in March 2022) or Euro 2,840,112.73
(starting from the Payment Date falling in September 2022 (included)) and (ii) the
principal amount of the Subordinated Loan repaid under item Twelfth of the
Pre-Acceleration Order of Priority and item Tenth of the Acceleration Order of Priority
(as applicable) up to the immediately preceding Payment Date.

“Initial Subordinated Loan Junior Interest” means in respect of each Payment Date
the Initial Subordinated Loan Interest calculated on the lower of (i) Euro 1,380,000.00
and (ii) the principal amount outstanding of the Subordinated Loan on the immediately
preceding Payment Date.

“Initial Subordinated Loan Interest” means the aggregate of:
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(i) Three Months Euribor applicable to the relevant Interest Period as determined by the
Computation Agent; and

(ii) a margin of 0.50% per annum;

multiplied by the actual number of days in such Interest Period and divided by 360 and
rounding the resulting figure to the nearest cent (half a Euro cent being rounded up)
provided that the rate of interest applicable to the Subordinated Loan (i.e., the Three
Months Euribor under (i) above plus the margin under (ii) above) shall not be negative
nor higher than 1% in any case.

“Subordinated Loan” means the subordinated loan granted by the Subordinated Loan
Provider pursuant to the Subordinated Loan Agreement.

“Subordianted Loan Junior Interest” means, jointly, the Initial Subordinated Loan
Junior Interest and the Subsequent Subordinated Loan Junior Interest.

“Subordinated Loan Interest” means, jointly, the Initial Subordinated Loan Interest
and the Subsequent Subordinated Loan Interest.

“Subsequent Subordinated Loan” means the subordinated loan granted by the
Subsequent Subordinated Loan Provider pursuant to the Subsequent Subordinated Loan
Agreement.

“Subsequent Subordinated Loan Junior Interest” means in respect of each Payment
Date the Subsequent Subordinated Loan Interest calculated on the lower of (i) Euro
168,989.00 and (ii) the principal amount outstanding of the Subsequent Subordinated
Loan on the immediately preceding Payment Date.

“Subsequent Subordinated Loan Interest” means the aggregate of:

(i) Three Months Euribor applicable to the relevant Interest Period as determined by the
Computation Agent; and

(ii) a margin of 0.50% per annum;

multiplied by the actual number of days in such Interest Period and divided by 360 and
rounding the resulting figure to the nearest cent (half a Euro cent being rounded up)
provided that the rate of interest applicable to the Subsequent Subordinated Loan (i.e.,
the Three Months Euribor under (i) above plus the margin under (ii) above) shall not be
negative nor higher than 1% in any case.

(@ Following the delivery of a Trigger Notice pursuant to Condition 9 (Trigger
Events), or (b) in the event that the Issuer opts for the Redemption for Taxation
pursuant to Condition 6.2 (Redemption for Taxation), or for the Optional
Redemption pursuant to Condition 6.4 (Optional Redemption) or (c) on the Final
Maturity Date, the Issuer Available Funds shall be applied on each Payment Date
in making the following payments in the following order of priority (in each case,
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only if and to the extent that payments of a higher priority have been made in full):

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(V)
(vi)
(vii)
(viii)
(iX)
(x)

First, to pay (pari passu and pro rata to the extent of the respective amounts
thereof), (i) all costs, taxes and expenses required to be paid in order to
preserve the corporate existence of the Issuer or to maintain it in good
standing or to comply with applicable legislation and regulations or to fulfil
due and payable payment obligations of the Issuer towards third parties (not
expressly included in any following item of this Order of Priority) incurred
in relation to the Transaction, to the extent that such costs, taxes, expenses
and payments are not met by utilising the amount standing to the credit of
the Expenses Account, (ii) all costs and taxes required to be paid in
connection with any notice to be given to the Noteholders or the other
parties to the Transaction Documents;

Second, to pay in the following order (i) the fees, expenses and all other
amounts due to the Representative of the Noteholders and the Security
Trustee, (ii) into the Expenses Account the amount (if any) necessary to
ensure that the balance standing to the credit of the Expenses Account as at
such Payment Date is equal to the Retention Amount;

Third, to pay (pari passu and pro rata to the extent of the respective amounts
thereof) fees, expenses and all other amounts due and payable to the Servicer
(including any reimbursement amount pursuant to the Servicing
Agreement), the Cash Manager, the Computation Agent, the Collection
Account Bank, the Transaction Bank, the Principal Paying Agent, the EMIR
Reporting Agent, the Corporate Services Provider, the Administrative
Services Provider and the Back-Up Servicer;

Fourth, to pay all amounts due and payable to the Swap Counterparty under
the terms of the Swap Agreement, other than (1) any Swap Tax Credit
Amounts (which amounts shall be paid when due in accordance with the
Swap Agreement, without regard to the Collateral Account Priority of
Payments or the Orders of Priority), (2) any amounts payable pursuant to the
Collateral Account Priority of Payments and (3) any Subordinated Swap
Counterparty Termination Payment, provided that only to the extent that the
amounts paid pursuant to the Collateral Account Priority of Payments are
insufficient to pay any Senior Swap Counterparty Termination Payment in
full, any due but unpaid Senior Swap Counterparty Termination Payment
shall be payable pursuant to this item;

Fifth, to pay interest due and payable on the Class Al Notes;
Sixth, to pay the Principal Amount Outstanding of the Class A1 Notes;

Seventh, to pay the Initial Subordinated Loan Senior Interest that is due and
payable;

Eight, to pay interest due and payable on the Class B Notes;
Ninth, to pay the Principal Amount Outstanding of the Class B Notes;

Tenth, to pay (pari passu and pro rata) the relevant Subordinated Loan
Junior Interest and to repay principal, in each case, that is due and payable
under, respectively, the Subordinated Loan and the Subsequent
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Subordinated Loan;

(xi) Eleventh, only to the extent the amounts paid pursuant to the Collateral
Account Priority of Payments are insufficient to pay any Subordinated Swap
Counterparty Termination Payment in full, to pay any due but unpaid
Subordinated Swap Counterparty Termination Payment;

(xii) Twelfth, to pay (pari passu and pro rata according to the respective amounts
thereof) any amount due and payable to the Originator pursuant to the
Transfer Agreements (including costs and expenses and the insurance
premia advanced under the Insurance Policies) and the Warranty and
Indemnity Agreements;

(xiii) Thirteenth, to pay (pari passu and pro rata) interest due and payable on the
Class J Notes (other than the Class J Notes Additional Return);

(xiv) Fourteenth, to pay (pari passu and pro rata) the Principal Amount
Outstanding of the Class J Notes, until — on each Payment Date other than
the Payment Date on which the Notes are redeemed in full or cancelled or
the Final Maturity Date — such Principal Amount Outstanding is equal to
Euro 1,000;

(xv) Fifteenth, to pay the Class J Notes Additional Return (pari passu and pro
rata to the Principal Amount Outstanding of each relevant Class as at the
immediately preceding Payment Date).

Amounts standing to the credit of the Collateral Account will not be available for the
Issuer to make payments to the Noteholders and the Other Issuer Creditors generally, but
may be applied only in accordance with the following provisions (the “Collateral
Account Priority of Payments”):

(i)

(ii)

prior to the occurrence or designation of an Early Termination Date in respect of
the Swap Agreement, solely in or towards payment or transfer of:

(@ any Return Amounts (as defined in the Credit Support Annex);

(b) any Interest Amounts and Distributions (each as defined in the Credit
Support Annex); and

(c) any return of collateral to the Swap Counterparty upon a novation of such
Swap Counterparty’s obligations under the Swap Agreement to a
replacement swap counterparty,

on any day (whether or not such day is a Payment Date), directly to the Swap
Counterparty in accordance with the terms of the Credit Support Annex;

upon or immediately following the occurrence or designation of an Early
Termination Date (as defined in the Swap Agreement) in respect of the Swap
Agreement where (A) such Early Termination Date (as defined in the Swap
Agreement) has been designated following an Event of Default (as defined in the
Swap Agreement) in respect of which the Swap Counterparty is the Defaulting
Party (as defined in the Swap Agreement) or an Additional Termination Event
(as defined in the Swap Agreement) resulting from a Swap Counterparty Rating
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(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Event and in respect of which the Swap Counterparty is the Affected Party (as
defined in the Swap Agreement) and (B) the Issuer enters into a replacement
swap agreement in respect of such Swap Agreement on or around the Early
Termination Date of such Swap Agreement, on the later of the day on which
such replacement swap agreement is entered into and the day on which the
Replacement Swap Premium (if any) payable to the Issuer has been received (in
each case, whether or not such day is a Payment Date), in the following order of
priority:

A. first, in or towards payment of any Replacement Swap Premium (if any)
payable by the Issuer to a replacement swap counterparty in order to enter
into a replacement swap agreement with the Issuer with respect to the
Swap Agreement being novated or terminated;

B. second, in or towards payment of any termination payment due to the
outgoing Swap Counterparty pursuant to the Swap Agreement; and

C. third, the surplus (if any) (a “Swap Collateral Account Surplus”) on
such day to be transferred to the Payments Account for an amount equal to
the relevant Outstanding Notes Ratio of the Swap Collateral Account
Surplus and deemed to form Issuer Available Funds;

following the occurrence or designation of an Early Termination Date in
respect of the Swap Agreement where (A) such Early Termination Date has
been designated following an Event of Default (as defined in the Swap
Agreement) in respect of which the Swap Counterparty is the Defaulting Party
(as defined in the Swap Agreement) or an Additional Termination Event (as
defined in the Swap Agreement) resulting from a Swap Counterparty Rating
Event and in respect of which the Swap Counterparty is the Affected Party (as
defined in the Swap Agreement) and (B) the Issuer is unable to or elects not to
enter into a replacement swap agreement on or around the Early Termination
Date of such Swap Agreement, on any day (whether or not such day is a
Payment Date) in or towards payment of any termination payment due to the
outgoing Swap Counterparty pursuant to the Swap Agreement;

following the occurrence or designation of an Early Termination Date in respect
of the Swap Agreement where such Early Termination Date has been
designated otherwise than as a result of one of the events specified at items (ii)
and (iii) above, on any day (whether or not such day is a Payment Date) in or
towards payment of any termination payment due to the outgoing Swap
Counterparty pursuant to the Swap Agreement; and

following payment of any amounts due pursuant to (iii) and (iv) above, if
amounts remain standing to the credit of the Collateral Account, such amounts
may be applied on any day (whether or not such day is a Payment Date) only in
accordance with the following provisions:

A.  first, in or towards payment of any Replacement Swap Premium (if any)
payable by the Issuer to a replacement swap counterparty in order to enter
into a replacement swap agreement with the Issuer with respect to the
Swap Agreement being terminated; and
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B.  second, the surplus (if any) (a “Swap Collateral Account Surplus”)
remaining after payment of such Replacement Swap Premium to be
transferred to the Payments Account for an amount equal to the relevant
Outstanding Notes Ratio of the Swap Collateral Account Surplus and
deemed to form Issuer Available Funds,

provided that if the Issuer has not entered into a replacement swap agreement
with respect to the Swap Agreement on or prior to the earlier of:

A. the day that is 10 (ten) Business Days prior to the date on which the
Principal Amount Outstanding of all Classes of Notes is reduced to zero
(other than following the occurrence of a Trigger Event pursuant to
Condition 9 (Trigger Events)); or

B. the day on which a Trigger Notice is given pursuant to Condition 9
(Trigger Events),

then the Collateral Amount on such day shall be transferred to the Payments
Account for an amount equal to the relevant Outstanding Notes Ratio of the
Swap Collateral Account Surplus and deemed to form Issuer Available Funds.

Means, in respect of a Note, on any date, the principal amount of that Note upon issue
less the aggregate amount of all principal payments in respect of that Note that have
been paid prior to such date.

If any of the following events (each a “Trigger Event”) occurs:

(i)

(i)

Non-payment

(@) the Interest Amount on the Class A1 Notes (and only after the repayment
in full of the Rated Notes, on the Class J Notes) on a Payment Date is not
paid in full on the due date or within a period of three Business Days; or

(b) the Class Al Notes or the Class B Notes or the Junior Notes are not
redeemed in full on the Final Maturity Date; or

(c) the Interest Amount (plus any Interest Amount in respect of previous
Interest Periods which has remained unpaid) on the Class B Notes is not
paid in full on the Final Maturity Date;

Breach of other obligations

The Issuer defaults in the performance or observance of any of its obligations
under or in respect of the Notes (other than any obligation under paragraph (i)
above) or any of the Transaction Documents to which it is a party and (except
where, in the sole and absolute opinion of the Representative of the
Noteholders, such default is incapable of remedy, in which case no notice
requiring remedy will be required) such default remains unremedied for 30
(thirty) days after the Representative of the Noteholders has given written
notice thereof to the Issuer, certifying that such default is, in the sole and
absolute opinion of the Representative of the Noteholders, materially
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(iii)

(iv)

detrimental to the interests of the Noteholders and requiring the same to be
remedied; or

Breach of representation and warranties

any of the representations and warranties given by the Issuer under any of
the Transaction Documents to which it is a party is or proves to have been
incorrect or misleading in any material respect, in the sole and absolute
opinion of the Representative of the Noteholders, when made or deemed to
be made; or

Insolvency

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

the Issuer becomes subject to any applicable bankruptcy, liquidation,
administration,  receivership, insolvency, composition or
reorganisation (among which, without limitation, “fallimento”,
“liquidazione coatta amministrativa”, “concordato preventivo”,
“piani di risanamento”, ‘“accordi di ristrutturazione” and
“liquidazione giudiziale”, each such expression bearing the meaning
ascribed to it by the laws of the Republic of Italy, and including also
any equivalent or analogous proceedings under the law of the
jurisdiction in which the lIssuer is deemed to carry on business
including the seeking of liquidation, winding-up, reorganisation,
dissolution, administration, receivership, arrangement, adjustment,
protection or relief of debtors) or similar proceedings or the whole or
any substantial part of the undertaking or assets of the Issuer are
subject to a “pignoramento” or similar procedure having a similar
effect (other than any portfolio of assets purchased by the Issuer for
the purposes of further securitisation transactions), unless in the
opinion of the Representative of the Noteholders, such proceedings
are being not disputed in good faith with a reasonable prospect of
success; or

an application for the commencement of any of the proceedings
under point (a) above is made in respect of or by the Issuer or the
same proceedings are otherwise initiated against the Issuer and, in
the opinion of the Representative of the Noteholders, the
commencement of such proceedings are not being disputed in good
faith with a reasonable prospect of success; or

an application for the commencement of any of the proceedings
under point (a) above is made in respect of or by the Issuer or the
same proceedings are otherwise initiated against the Issuer and, in
the opinion of the Representative of the Noteholders, the
commencement of such proceedings are not being disputed in good
faith with a reasonable prospect of success; or

the Issuer takes any action for a re-adjustment or deferment of any of its
obligations or makes a general assignment or an arrangement or
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composition with or for the benefit of its creditors (other than the
Noteholders and the Other Issuer Creditors) or is granted by a
competent court a moratorium in respect of any of its indebtedness or
any guarantee of any indebtedness given by it or applies for suspension
of payments; or

(v)  Winding up etc.

an order is made or an effective resolution is passed for the winding-up,
liquidation or dissolution in any form of the Issuer (expect a winding-up for
the purposes of or pursuant to a solvent amalgamation or reconstruction, the
terms of which have been previously approved in writing by the
Representative of the Noteholders) or any of the events under article 2484 of
the Italian civil code occurs with respect to the Issuer; or

(vi) Unlawfulness

it is or will become unlawful (in any respect deemed by the Representative of
the Noteholders to be material in its sole discretion) for the Issuer to perform
or comply with any of its obligations under or in respect of the Notes or any of
the Transaction Documents to which it is a party,

then the Representative of the Noteholders:

(i)  shall, in the case of the Trigger Event set out under point (i) above;

(it)  shall, if so directed by an Extraordinary Resolution of the holders of the Most
Senior Class of Notes, in the case of the Trigger Events set out under points (ii)
and (iii) above;

(iti)) may at its sole and absolute discretion but shall, if so directed by an
Extraordinary Resolution of the holders of the Most Senior Class of Notes in
case of any other Trigger Event,

give a written notice (a “Trigger Notice”) to the Issuer and the Noteholders (with copy to
the Servicer, the Rating Agencies and the Swap Counterparty) declaring that the Notes
have immediately become due and payable at their Principal Amount Outstanding,
together with interest accrued and unpaid thereon and that thereafter the Acceleration
Order of Priority shall apply; it being understood that any Trigger Notice will be made
available through the Securitisation Repository.

“Most Senior Class of Notes” means the Class A1 Notes or, upon redemption in full or
cancellation of the Class Al Notes, the Class B Notes or, upon redemption in full or
cancellation of the Class B Notes, the Class J Notes.

In the following circumstances:

0] in the case of Redemption for Taxation pursuant to Condition 6.2 (Redemption for
Taxation); or
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(i) in the case of Optional Redemption pursuant to Condition 6.4 (Optional
Redemption); or

(iii)  if, after a Trigger Notice has been served on the Issuer, an Extraordinary
Resolution of the holders of the Most Senior Class of Notes resolve to request the
Issuer to sell all (or part only) of the Portfolio to one or more third parties,

the Issuer will be authorised to search for potential purchasers of all (or part only) of the
Portfolio.

In addition, following the delivery of a Trigger Notice (a) without any further action or
formality, all payments of principal, interest and any other amounts due with respect to
the Notes, the Other Issuer Creditors and any other creditor of the Issuer under the
Transaction shall be made in accordance with the Acceleration Order of Priority and (b)
provided that any bankruptcy or similar proceeding has not been commenced towards the
Issuer (including, without limitation, “fallimento”, “concordato preventivo”, “piani di
risanamento”, “liquidazione coatta amministrativa” and “liquidazione giudiziale, in
accordance with the meaning ascribed to those expressions by Italian law) and in any
case if not prevented by, and in compliance with, any applicable law, the Representative
of the Noteholders shall be entitled, in the name and on behalf of the Issuer, to sell the
Portfolio.

The terms of the appointment of the Representative of the Noteholders (which are set out
in the Intercreditor Agreement, the Notes Subscription Agreements and the Rules of the
Organisation of the Noteholders) contain provisions governing the responsibility (and
relief from responsibility) of the Representative of the Noteholders (including provisions
relieving it from taking proceedings unless indemnified to its satisfaction and providing
for the Representative of the Noteholders to be indemnified in certain other
circumstances) and provisions which govern the termination of the appointment of the
Representative of the Noteholders and amendments to the terms of such appointment.

On the Initial Issue Date, part of the Cash Reserve Initial Amount (equal to Euro
4,700,000.00) has been funded through the proceeds of the Subordinated Loan and the
remainder (equal to Euro 21,920.00) has been funded through part of the amounts
received or recovered by the Servicer in respect of the Initial Portfolio from the relevant
Effective Date (included) until two Business Days preceding the Initial Issue Date.

On the Subsequent Issue Date, an amount equal to Euro 1,879,446.73 being the
difference between the Cash Reserve Subsequent Amount and the Cash Reserve Amount
as at the Payment Date falling in March 2022 has been funded through a portion of the
proceeds deriving from the transfer to Banca del Fucino of the Repurchased Claims.

On each Payment Date, the amounts standing to the credit of the Cash Reserve Account
on the immediately preceding Payment Date, after application of the Pre-Acceleration
Order of Priority on such Payment Date (or, in respect of the First Payment Date, an
amount equal to the Cash Reserve Initial Amount) will form part of the Issuer Available
Funds and will be available to the Issuer, together with the other Issuer Available Funds,
to pay amounts due under the applicable Order of Priority.

The Issuer will, on each Payment Date on which the Pre-Acceleration Order of Priority
applies and in accordance thereto, credit into the Cash Reserve Account an amount equal
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to the Cash Reserve Amount due and payable in respect of such Payment Date.
“Cash Reserve Initial Amount” means an amount equal to Euro 4,721,920.00.

“Cash Reserve Subsequent Amount” means an amount equal to Euro 4,305,000 being
the sum between the Cash Reserve Amount as at the Payment Date falling in March 2022
and Euro 1,879,446.73 (funded on the Subsequent Issue Date through a portion of the
proceeds deriving from the transfer to Banca del Fucino of the Repurchased Claims).

“Cash Reserve Amount” means (A) on the Initial Issue Date, the Cash Reserve Initial
Amount; (B) on the Subsequent Issue Date an amount equal to the Cash Reserve
Subsequent Amount; (C) on each Payment Date (in which the Pre-Acceleration Order of
Priority is applied) falling before (and excluding) the earlier of (i) the Payment Date on
which the Principal Amount Outstanding of the Senior Notes is lower than the Issuer
Available Funds that would be available on such Payment Date following payments of
amount due and payable under items First to Fifth of the Pre-Acceleration Order of
Priority having been made, (ii) the Payment Date falling immediately after the Final
Redemption Date and (iii) the Final Maturity Date, an amount equal to the higher of (a)
3.5% of the Principal Amount Outstanding of the Rated Notes on the immediately
preceding Payment Date after making payments due under the Pre-Acceleration Order of
Priority on that date (or, in respect of the First Payment Date, on the Initial Issue Date)
and (b) 1% of the Principal Amount Outstanding of the Rated Notes as of the Subsequent
Issue Date, and (D) on each Payment Date thereafter, zero.

On each Payment Date, the amounts standing to the credit of the Cash Reserve Account
on the immediately preceding Payment Date, after application of the Pre-Acceleration
Order of Priority on such Payment Date (or, in respect of the First Payment Date, an
amount equal to the Cash Reserve Amount on the Initial Issue Date) will be made
available to meet payments under items First to Fifth of the Pre-Acceleration Order of
Priority. In addition the Cash Reserve Amount available following payment in full of
items from First to Fifth of the Pre-Acceleration Order of Priority shall be used in full
towards redemption of the Class A1 Notes, on the Payment Date on which, by doing so,
the Class Al Notes can be redeemed in full.

On the Subsequent Issue Date, the Swap Reserve Account shall be credited with an
aggregate amount equal to the Swap Reserve Top-up Amount as follows:

i) an amount equal to Euro 168,989.00, out of the proceeds of the Subsequent
Subordinated Loan, and
i) anamount equal to Euro 458,700.00, from the Investment Account.

On the second Business Day preceding each Payment Date, an amount equal to the Swap
Fixed Amount will be transferred from the Swap Reserve Account to the Payments Account.

On the date on which the Swap Agreement terminates, the balance of the Swap Reserve
Account will be transferred from the Swap Reserve Account to the Payments Account.
Thereafter the Issuer shall close the Swap Reserve Account and the Transaction Bank will be
deemed released from its obligations in this respect.
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As from the closure of the Swap Reserve Account, any reference to the Swap Reserve
Account, the Swap Reserve Top-up Amount and the definitions connected thereto under the
Prospectus and any Transaction Document shall be deemed not to be in effect anymore.

“Swap Reserve Top-up Amount” means Euro 626,689, being as at the Subsequent Issue
Date, the amount required to increase the balance of the Swap Reserve Account on such date
up to the target amount.

“Swap Fixed Amount” means, on a Calculation Date the aggregate amount due by the
Issuer on the immediately following Payment Date (disregarding the netting mechanism
under the Swap Agreement) as Fixed Amounts A, Fixed Amounts B and Party B Fixed
Termination Amount (each such term as defined in the relevant Swap Agreement) under
each of the Swap Transactions, as communicated to the Computation Agent and the Issuer
by the Swap Counterparty on or prior to such Calculation Date.

Unless previously redeemed in full or cancelled, the Notes will be redeemed in full at their
Principal Amount Outstanding on the Payment Date falling in December 2063 (the “Final
Maturity Date”).

“Final Redemption Date” means the earlier of: (i) the date when any amount payable on the
Claims of the Portfolio will have been paid and the Servicer has confirmed that no further
recoveries and amounts shall be realised thereunder, and (ii) the date when all the Claims of
the Portfolio then outstanding will have been entirely written off or sold by the Issuer.

The Notes will be subject to mandatory redemption in full or in part:

A. on each Payment Date, in a maximum amount equal to the relevant Principal
Amount Outstanding with respect to such Payment Date in accordance with the
Pre-Acceleration Order of Priority;

B. (i) on any date following the delivery of a Trigger Notice pursuant to Condition 9
(Trigger Events); and (ii) on the relevant Payment Date in case of Redemption for
Taxation pursuant to Condition 6.2 (Redemption for Taxation) or in case of Optional
Redemption pursuant to Condition 6.4 (Optional Redemption), at their Principal
Amount Outstanding and in accordance with the Acceleration Order of Priority,

if, on each immediately preceding Calculation Date, it is determined that there will be
sufficient Issuer Available Funds which may be applied for this purpose in accordance with
the Pre-Acceleration Order of Priority or the Acceleration Order of Priority, as applicable.

The Issuer may at its option, on any Payment Date falling on or after the Initial Clean Up
Option Date (prior to the delivery of a Trigger Notice) (each an “Optional Redemption
Date”), redeem:

(i) the Notes in whole (but not in part) at their Principal Amount Outstanding
together with all accrued but unpaid interest thereon up to and including the
relevant Payment Date; or

(if)  with the prior consent of the Junior Noteholders, the Rated Notes only (or the Rated
Notes in whole and the Junior Notes in part) at their Principal Amount Outstanding
together with all accrued but unpaid interest thereon up to and including the relevant
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Payment Date.

Such optional redemption shall be effected by the Issuer giving not more than 45 (forty-five)
nor fewer than 15 (fifteen) days’ prior written notice that shall be deemed irrevocable to the
Representative of the Noteholders, the Swap Counterparty, the holders of the Senior Notes in
accordance with Condition 12 (Notices) and to the Rating Agencies and provided that the
Issuer, prior to giving such notice to the Representative of the Noteholders and to the Rating
Agencies, has produced evidence acceptable to the Representative of the Noteholders that it
will have the necessary funds, not subject to interests of any other Person, to discharge all its
outstanding liabilities in respect of the relevant Notes (to be redeemed) and any amounts
required under the Acceleration Order of Priority to be paid in priority to or pari passu with
such Notes and any amount due to the Swap Counterparty (including any termination
payment) subordinated to the Rated Notes. In order to finance the redemption of the relevant
Notes in the circumstances described above, the Issuer (or the Representative of the
Noteholders, acting in the name and on behalf of the Issuer), is entitled to dispose of the
Portfolio.

“Initial Clean Up Option Date” means the first Payment Date immediately succeeding the
earlier of (i) 31 March 2032, and (ii) the Collection Date on which the principal outstanding
amount of the Portfolio is equal to or less than 10% (ten per cent.) of the Principal Portfolio.

“Initial Principal Portfolio” means the aggregate principal outstanding amount of the Initial
Portfolio as of the relevant Effective Date, being Euro 149,608,040.11.

“Subsequent Principal Portfolio” means the aggregate principal outstanding amount of the
Subsequent Portfolio as of the relevant Effective Date, being Euro 52,883,006.08.

“Principal Portfolio” means, in aggregate, the Initial Principal Portfolio and the Subsequent
Principal Portfolio.

If the Issuer:

1. has provided the Representative of the Noteholders with: (i) a legal opinion in form
and substance satisfactory to the Representative of the Noteholders from a firm of
lawyers (approved in writing by the Representative of the Noteholders); and (ii) a
certificate from the legal representative of the Issuer; and

2. has given not more than 45 (forty-five) nor less than 15 (fifteen) calendar days’ prior
written notice to the Representative of the Noteholders, the Swap Counterparty and
the Noteholders, in accordance with Condition 12 (Notices),

to the effect that, following the occurrence of certain legislative or regulatory changes, or
official interpretations thereof by competent authorities, the Issuer (or the Issuer’s Agent):

(a) would be required on the next Payment Date to deduct or withhold (other than in
respect of a Law 239 Deduction) from any payment of principal or interest on
the Notes, any amount for or on account of any present or future taxes, duties,
assessments or governmental charges of whatever nature imposed, levied,
collected, withheld or assessed by the Republic of Italy or any political or
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administrative sub-division thereof or any authority thereof or therein or by any
applicable authority having jurisdiction; or

(b) would incur increased costs or charges of a fiscal nature (including taxes, duties,
assessment or withholdings or deductions) in respect of the Noteholders or the
Issuer’s assets in respect of the Transaction;

3. in each case the Issuer shall have produced evidence reasonably acceptable to
the Representative of the Noteholders that it has the necessary funds (not subject
to the interests of any other Person) to discharge all of its outstanding liabilities
with respect to the Rated Notes and any amounts required under the Intercreditor
Agreement to be paid in priority to, or pari passu with the Rated Notes,

the Issuer may (i) on the first Payment Date on which such necessary funds become
available to it, redeem the Rated Notes in whole (but not in part) at their Principal
Amount Outstanding (together with any interest accrued and unpaid thereon until the
date on which such redemption occurs) and pay any amounts required under the
Conditions to be paid in priority to or pari passu with the Rated Notes and amounts
ranking prior thereto or pari passu therewith pursuant to the Pre-Acceleration Order of
Priority; and (ii) on the first Payment Date on which sufficient funds become available to
it, redeem the Class J Notes in whole or in part (together with any interest accrued and
unpaid thereon until the date on which such redemption occurs) and pay any amounts
required under the Conditions to be paid in priority to or pari passu with the Class J
Notes.

Application has been made to the Irish Stock Exchange plc, trading as Euronext Dublin
for the Class Al Notes to be listed on the Official List of Euronext Dublin and to be
admitted to trading on the Regulated Market of Euronext Dublin, in accordance with
Directive 2014/65/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 15 May 2014.

Application may be made for the Class Al Notes to be admitted to trading on the
professional segment ExtraMOT PRO of the multilateral trading facility “ExtraMOT”,
which is a multilateral trading system for the purposes of the Market in Financial
Instruments Directive 2014/65/EC managed by Borsa Italiana S.p.A.

The Issuer will elect Ireland as its Home Member State for the purpose of the
Transparency Directive.

The Class A1 Notes are expected, on issue, to be rated:

AA(low)(sf) by DBRS;

Aa3(sf) by Moody's; and

AA-(sf) by ARC Ratings.

As of the date of this Prospectus, each of DBRS, Moody's and ARC Ratings is
established in the European Union and are registered under the CRA Regulation and is

included in the list of credit rating agencies registered in accordance with the CRA
Regulation published on the ESMA Website (for the avoidance of doubt, such website
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does not constitute part of this Prospectus).

A credit rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be
subject to revision or withdrawal by the assigning rating organisation.

The Notes have the benefit of the provisions of article 3 of the Securitisation Law,
pursuant to which the Portfolio, any monetary claim of the Issuer under the Transaction
Documents, all cash-flows deriving from both of them and any Eligible Investments
purchased therewith (together, the “Segregated Assets”) are segregated by operation of
law from the Issuer’s other assets. Both before and after a winding up of the Issuer,
amounts deriving from the Portfolio and the other Segregated Assets will be exclusively
available for the purpose of satisfying the obligations of the Issuer to the Noteholders and
to the Other Issuer Creditors or to any other creditors of the Issuer in respect of any costs,
fees and expenses in relation to the Transaction.

The Portfolio and the other Segregated Assets may not be seized or attached in any form
by creditors of the Issuer other than the Noteholders, until full discharge by the Issuer of
its payment obligations under the Notes or cancellation thereof.

The Organisation of the Noteholders shall be established upon and by virtue of the
issuance of the Notes and shall remain in force and in effect until repayment in full or
cancellation of the Notes.

Pursuant to the Rules of the Organisation of the Noteholders (attached to the Conditions
as an Exhibit), for as long as any Note is outstanding, there shall at all times be a
Representative of the Noteholders. The appointment of the Representative of the
Noteholders, as legal representative of the Organisation of the Noteholders, is made by
the Noteholders subject to and in accordance with the Rules of the Organisation of the
Noteholders, except for the initial Representative of the Noteholders appointed at the
time of issue of the Notes, who is appointed in the Notes Subscription Agreements. Each
Noteholder is deemed to accept such appointment.

There are restrictions on the sale of the Class A1 Notes and on the distribution of
information relating thereto. The Class A1 Notes have not been and will not be registered
under the Securities Act and may not be offered, sold or delivered except pursuant to an
exemption from, or in a transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of the
Securities Act.

The Transaction is intended to qualify as a simple, transparent and standardised
securitisation ("STS-securitisation™) within the meaning of article 18 (Use of the
designation ‘simple, transparent and standardised securitisation’) of the EU
Securitisation Regulation. Consequently, the Transaction is intended to meet, as at the
date of this Prospectus, the requirements of articles 19 to 22 of the EU Securitisation
Regulation and the Originator intends to submit on or about the Subsequent Issue Date a
notification to the ESMA for the Securitisation to be included in the list published by
ESMA as referred to in article 27(5) of the EU Securitisation Regulation (the "STS
Notification™). Pursuant to article 27, paragraph 2, of the EU Securitisation Regulation,
the STS Notification will include an explanation by the Originator of how each of the
STS criteria set out in articles 19 to 22 has been complied with in the Securitisation. The
STS Notification will be available for download on the ESMA’s website at
https://www.esma.europa.eu/policy-activities/securitisation/simple-transparent-and-stan
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dardised-sts-securitisation.

The Originator and the Issuer have used the service of Prime Collateralised Securities
(PCS) EU SAS (“PCS”), a third party authorised pursuant to article 28 (Third party
verifying STS compliance) of the EU Securitisation Regulation, to verify whether the
Transaction complies with the requirements of articles 19 to 22 of the EU Securitisation
Regulation (the “STS Verification”) and to verify compliance of the Notes with the
relevant provisions of article 243 of the Regulation (EU) No. 575 of 26 June 2013, as
amended from time to time (the “CRR” and the “CRR Assessment”) and the
compliance with such requirements is expected to be verified by PCS on the Subsequent
Issue Date. When performing a CRR Assessment, PCS is not confirming or indicating
that the securitisation subject to such assessment will be allowed to have lower capital
allocated to it under the CRR. PCS is merely addressing the specific CRR criteria and
determining whether, in PCS’ opinion, these criteria have been met; therefore, no
investor should rely on such CRR Assessment in determining the status of any
securitisation in relation to capital requirements and must make its own determination. It
is expected that the STS Verification and the CRR Assessment prepared by PCS will be
available on the PCS website (https:// pcsmarket.org/sts-verification-transactions/#disc)
together with a detailed explanation of its scope at https://pcsmarket.org/disclaimer/. For
the avoidance of doubt, these PCS websites and the contents thereof do not form part of
this Prospectus.

The STS status of a transaction is not static and under the EU Securitisation Regulation
ESMA is entitled to update the list should the Securitisation be no longer considered to
be STS-compliant following a decision of the competent Authority or a notification by
the relevant originators. The investors should verify the current status of the
Securitisation on ESMA’s website from time to time.

As at the date of this Prospectus, no assurance can however be provided that the
Securitisation (i) does or continues to comply with the EU Securitisation Regulation
and/or the CRR, (ii) does or will at any point in time qualify as an STS-securitisation
under the EU Securitisation Regulation or that, if it qualifies as a STS-securitisation
under the EU Securitisation Regulation, it will at all times continue to so qualify and
remain an STS-securitisation under the EU Securitisation Regulation in the future and
(iii) will actually be, and will remain at all times in the future, included in the list
published by ESMA as referred to in Article 27(5) of the EU Securitisation Regulation.

None of the Issuer, the Originator, the Arranger, the Placement Agent or any other party
to the Transaction Documents makes any representation or accepts any liability in that
respect.

The Originator will retain for the life of the transaction a material net economic interest
of not less than 5 per cent. in the securitisation as required by article 6(1) of the
Securitisation Regulations. As at the Subsequent Issue Date, the Originator will meet this
obligation by retaining an interest in the first loss tranche (being the Junior Notes) in
accordance with paragraph (d) of Article 6(3) of the Securitisation Regulations.
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See the section entitled "Regulatory Capital Requirements" for more information.
“Subsequent Issue Date” means on or about 16 June 2022.

Under the Intercreditor Agreement and the Class A1 Notes Subscription Agreement, the
Originator has undertaken that — in the event that the information made available to
investors by the Reporting Entity in accordance with article 7 of the EU Securitisation
Regulation and the applicable Regulatory Technical Standards is no longer sufficient to
allow UK investors to comply with the UK due diligence requirements under article 5 of
the UK Securitisation Regulation — it will, upon reasonable request, use commercially
reasonable endeavours to provide such further information to assist compliance by such
UK investors with such UK due diligence requirements.

The Class Al Notes are governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with, Italian

law. Any dispute which may arise in relation to the Class A1 Notes shall be subject to the
exclusive jurisdiction of the court of Milan.
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Compliance with STS Requirements

Pursuant to article 18 (Use of the designation ‘simple, transparent and standardised securitisation’) of the
EU Securitisation Regulation, a number of requirements must be met if the Originator and the Issuer wish to
use the designation “STS” or “simple, transparent and standardised” for securitisation transactions initiated
by them.

The Transaction is intended to qualify as a simple, transparent and standardised securitisation
("STS-securitisation") within the meaning of article 18 (Use of the designation ‘simple, transparent and
standardised securitisation’) of the EU Securitisation Regulation. Consequently, the Transaction is intended
to meet, as at the date of this Prospectus, the requirements of articles 19 to 22 of the EU Securitisation
Regulation and the Originator intends to submit on or about the Subsequent Issue Date a notification to
ESMA for the Securitisation to be included in the list published by ESMA as referred to in article 27(5) of
the EU Securitisation Regulation (the "STS Notification"). Pursuant to article 27, paragraph 2, of the EU
Securitisation Regulation, the STS Notification will include an explanation by the Originator of how each
of the STS criteria set out in articles 19 to 22 has been complied with in the Securitisation. The STS
Notification will be available for download on ESMA’s website at
https://www.esma.europa.eu/policy-activities/securitisation/simple-transparent-and-standardised-sts-secur
itisation.

The Originator and the Issuer have used the service of Prime Collateralised Securities (PCS) EU SAS
(“PCS”), a third party authorised pursuant to article 28 (Third party verifying STS compliance) of the EU
Securitisation Regulation, to verify whether the Transaction complies with the requirements of articles 19
to 22 of the EU Securitisation Regulation (the “STS Verification”) and to verify compliance of the Notes
with the relevant provisions of article 243 of the Regulation (EU) No. 575 of 26 June 2013, as amended
from time to time (the “CRR” and the “CRR Assessment”) and the compliance with such requirements is
expected to be verified by PCS on the Subsequent Issue Date. When performing a CRR Assessment, PCS is
not confirming or indicating that the securitisation subject to such assessment will be allowed to have lower
capital allocated to it under the CRR. PCS is merely addressing the specific CRR criteria and determining
whether, in PCS’ opinion, these criteria have been met; therefore, no investor should rely on such CRR
Assessment in determining the status of any securitisation in relation to capital requirements and must make
its own determination. It is expected that the STS Verification and the CRR Assessment prepared by PCS
will be available on the PCS website (https://www.pcsmarket.org/sts-verification-transactions/) together
with a detailed explanation of its scope at https://pcsmarket.org/disclaimer/. For the avoidance of doubt,
these PCS websites and the contents thereof do not form part of this Prospectus.

The STS status of a transaction is not static and under the EU Securitisation Regulation ESMA is entitled to
update the list should the Securitisation be no longer considered to be STS-compliant following a decision
of the competent Authority or a notification by the Originator. The investors should verify the current status
of the Securitisation on ESMA’s website from time to time.

As at the date of this Prospectus, no assurance can however be provided that the Securitisation (i) does or
continues to comply with the EU Securitisation Regulation and/or the CRR, (ii) does or will at any point in
time qualify as an STS-securitisation under the EU Securitisation Regulation or that, if it qualifies as a
STS-securitisation under the EU Securitisation Regulation, it will at all times continue to so qualify and
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remain an STS-securitisation under the EU Securitisation Regulation in the future and (iii) will actually be,
and will remain at all times in the future, included in the list published by ESMA as referred to in Article
27(5) of the EU Securitisation Regulation.

None of the Issuer, the Originator, the Arranger, the Placement Agent or any other party to the Transaction
Documents makes any representation or accepts any liability in that respect.

Without prejudice to the above, the below set out elements of information in relation to each criteria set out
in articles 19 to 22 of the EU Securitisation Regulation, on the basis of the information available with
respect to the EU Securitisation Regulation and related regulations and interpretations (including, without
limitation, the EBA Guidelines on STS Criteria) and regulations and interpretations in draft form at the time
of this Prospectus (including, without limitation, with regard to the risk retention requirements under article
6 of the EU Securitisation Regulation and the transparency obligations imposed under article 7 of the EU
Securitisation Regulation), and are subject to any changes made therein after the date of this Prospectus.
Prospective investors should conduct their own due diligence and analysis to determine whether the
elements set out below are sufficient to satisfy the criteria of Articles 20 to 22 of the EU Securitisation
Regulation. The purpose of this section is not to assert or confirm the compliance of the Securitisation with
the STS criteria, but only to facilitate the own reading and analysis by such prospective investors:

1. Article 20 (Requirements relating to simplicity) of the EU Securitisation Regulation

@) for the purpose of compliance with article 20(1) of the EU Securitisation Regulation, pursuant to
the Transfer Agreements the Originator has assigned and transferred without recourse (pro soluto)
to the Issuer, which has purchased, in accordance with articles 1 and 4 of the Securitisation Law, all
of its right, title and interest in and to the Portfolio. The transfer of the Claims has been rendered
enforceable against the Debtors and any third party creditors of the Originator (including any
insolvency receiver of the same) through (i) with reference to the Initial Portfolio, (A) the
publication of a notice of transfer in the Official Gazette No. 43 Part Il of 11 April 2019, and (B) the
registration of the transfer in the companies’ register of Milan Monza Brianza Lodi on 5 April 2019
and (i) with reference to the Subsequent Portfolio, (A) the publication of a notice of transfer in the
Official Gazette No. 64 Part Il of 4 June 2022, and (B) the registration of the transfer in the
companies’ register of Milan Monza Brianza Lodi on 7 June 2022 (for further details, see the
section headed “Description of the Transfer Agreements”). The true sale nature of the transfer of
the Claims and the validity and enforceability of the same is covered by the legal opinion issued by
the legal counsel to the Arranger and the Placement Agent, which may be disclosed to any relevant
competent authority referred to in article 29 of the Securitisation Regulations. Furthermore, the
Italian insolvency laws do not contain severe clawback provisions within the meaning of articles
20(2) and 20(3) of the EU Securitisation Regulation and the EBA Guidelines on STS Criteria;

(b) for the purpose of compliance with articles 20(2) and 20(3) of the EU Securitisation Regulation,
under the Class A1 Notes Subscription Agreement and the Notes Subscription Agreement the
Originator has represented that, for the purposes of Directive 2001/24/EC of the European
Parliament and of the Council of 4 April 2001 on the reorganisation and winding up of credit
institutions, as implemented into Italian law by the Italian legislative decree dated 9 July 2004 No.
197 (in materia di risanamento e liquidazione degli enti creditizi), it is an EU credit institution
incorporated and regulated in the Republic of Italy; therefore, the Originator would be subject to
Italian insolvency laws that do not contain severe clawback provisions;

(c) with respect to article 20(4) of the EU Securitisation Regulation, the Claims arise from Loans
granted by (A) with reference the Initial Portfolio, the Originator as lender and (B) with reference
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to the Subsequent Portfolio, (1) the Originator as lender or (2) by Igea Banca S.p.A. which merged
by incorporation into Banca del Fucino following the granting of the relevant Loan or (3) by other
banks which do not belong to the Banca del Fucino group, whose Loans have been purchased by
Banca del Fucino by way of subrogation in accordance with Law No. 40 of 2 April 2007, as
subsequently amended. Consequently, the requirement provided for under article 20(4) of the EU
Securitisation Regulation is met; under the Subsequent Warranty and Indemnity Agreement the
Originator has represented and warranted that, with regard to the subrogation mechanism, it has
carried out in each case a credit assessment in respect of the relevant borrower, in accordance with
its credit and underwriting policies;

with respect to article 20(5) of the EU Securitisation Regulation, the transfer of the Claims has been
rendered enforceable against the Debtors and any third party creditors of the Originator (including
any insolvency receiver of the same) through (i) with reference to the Initial Portfolio, (A) the
publication of a notice of transfer in the Official Gazette No. 43 Part 1l of 11 April 2019, and (B) the
registration of the transfer in the companies’ register of Milano Monza Brianza Lodi on 5 April
2019 and (ii) with reference to the Subsequent Portfolio, (A) the publication of a notice of transfer
in the Official Gazette No. 64 Part 11 of 4 June 2022, and (B) the registration of the transfer in the
companies’ register of Milan Monza Brianza Lodi on 7 June 2022 (for further details, see the
section headed “Description of the Transfer Agreement”); therefore, the requirements of article
20(5) of the EU Securitisation Regulation are not applicable;

with respect to article 20(6) of the EU Securitisation Regulation, under the Warranty and Indemnity
Agreements the Originator has represented and warranted that, as at, inter alia, the relevant Legal
Effective Date, each Receivable is fully and unconditionally legally owned by the Originator and
the Originator is the full and unconditional owner of each Receivable and each Receivable is not
subject to, inter alia, any lien (pignoramento), seizure (sequestro) or other charge in favour of any
third party or otherwise, to the knowledge of the Originator, in a condition that can be foreseen to
adversely affect the enforceability of the transfer of the Claims under the relevant Transfer
Agreement and, therefore, is freely transferable to the Issuer (for further details, see the section
headed “The Portfolio™);

for the purpose of compliance with article 20(7) of the EU Securitisation Regulation, the disposal
of Claims from the Issuer is permitted solely in the following circumstances: (A) from the Issuer to
the Originator (in accordance with the provisions of the Intercreditor Agreement (please make
reference to the “Description of the Transaction Documents — Intercreditor Agreement — Call
Option” and the Conditions) in case of Redemption for Taxation pursuant to Condition 6.2
(Redemption for Taxation) or in the case of Optional Redemption pursuant to Condition 6.5 (Sale of
the Portfolio), and (B) following the delivery of a Trigger Notice, in accordance with Condition 9
(Trigger Events) and Condition 6.5 (Sale of the Portfolio) and with the relevant provisions of the
Intercreditor Agreement, provided that, in any case, the Originator under (i) the Warranty and
Indemnity Agreements may re-purchase the Claims from the Issuer in respect of which the
representations and warranties are false, incorrect or misleading to the terms and conditions
provided under the relevant Warranty and Indemnity Agreement and (ii) the Transaction
Documents (in particular the Transfer Agreements) has certain option rights connected with the
purchase of single Claims or, as the case may be, the Portfolio which in any case can not be
exercised for speculative purposes aiming at achieving a better performance of the Securitisation.
Therefore, none of the Transaction Documents provide for (i) a portfolio management which
makes the performance of the Securitisation dependent both on the performance of the Claims and
on the performance of the portfolio management of the Transaction, thereby preventing any
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(9)

(h)

investor in the Notes from modelling the credit risk of the Claims without considering the portfolio
management strategy of the Servicer; or (ii) a portfolio management which is performed for
speculative purposes aiming to achieve better performance, increased yield, overall financial
returns or other purely financial or economic benefit. In addition, (i) there are no exposures that can
be sold to the Issuer after the Subsequent Issue Date, (ii) the Claims included in the Initial Portfolio
have been been selected on the basis of objective Criteria as at the relevant Valuation Date (or the
different date specified in respect of the relevant criterion), in order to ensure that the Initial Claims
have the same legal and financial characteristics and (iii) the Claims included in the Subsequent
Portfolio have been selected on the basis of objective Criteria as at the relevant Valuation Date (or
the different date specified in respect of the relevant criterion), in order to ensure that the
Subsequent Claims have the same legal and financial characteristics (for further details, see the
sections headed “Description of the Transaction Documents ”, “The Portfolio — The Criteria” and
the “Terms and Conditions of the Notes "),

for the purpose of compliance with article 20(8) of the EU Securitisation Regulation, pursuant to
the Warranty and Indemnity Agreements the Originator has represented and warranted that, as at,
inter alia, the relevant Legal Effective Date, the Claims are homogeneous in terms of asset type,
taking into account the specific characteristics to the cash flows of the asset type including their
contractual, credit-risk and prepayment characteristics, given that: (i) the Claims have been
originated by the Originator (or (with reference to the Subsequent Portfolio), as the case may be,
Igea Banca S.p.A. which merged by incorporation into Banca del Fucino following the granting of
the relevant Loan), as lender, in accordance with loan disbursement policies which apply similar
approaches to the assessment of credit risk associated with the Claims; (ii) the Claims have been
serviced by the Originator according to similar servicing procedures; (iii) the Claims arise from
Loans secured by mortgages on residential real estate assets and therefore fall in the asset type
named “residential loans that are either secured by one or more mortgages on residential
immovable property or that are fully guaranteed by an eligible protection provider among those
referred to in Article 201(1) of Regulation (EU) No 575/2013 of the European Parliament and of
the Council ( 3 )and qualifying for the credit quality step 2 or above as set out in Part Three, Title |1,
Chapter 2 of that Regulation” provided under article 1(a)(i) of the Commission Delegated
Regulation (EU) 2019/1851 (the “Commission Delegated Regulation on Homogeneity””) and
meet the homogeneity factors set out under article 2(1)(a)(i), 2(1)(b)(ii) and 2(1)(c) of the
Commission Delegated Regulation on Homogeneity (given that (i) the Loans are secured by first
ranking security rights on a residential immovable property, (ii) the Real Estate Assets are
non-income producing properties and (iii) the Real Estate Assets are located in the Italian territory).
Furthemore, the Loans provides for a repayment (A) according to a French amortisation plan or (B)
through constant instalments (with variable duration) as determined in the relevant Loan
Agreement (for further details, see the sections headed “The Portfolio — The Criteria”). In addition,
under the Warranty and Indemnity Agreements the Originator has represented and warranted that,
as at, inter alia, the relevant Legal Effective Date, the Claims, the Loan Agreement, the Insurance
Policies, the Mortgages and the Ancillary Guarantees comprised in the Portfolio are valid,
effective, contractually binding and enforceable to third parties and compliant with the applicable
laws and (ii) as at, inter alia, the relevant Legal Effective Date, the Portfolio does not comprise any
transferable securities, as defined in point (44) of article 4(1) of Directive 2014/65/EU (for further
details, see the sections headed “The Portfolio”);

for the purpose of compliance with article 20(9) of the EU Securitisation Regulation, under the
Warranty and Indemnity Agreements the Originator has represented and warranted that, as at, inter
alia, the relevant Legal Effective Date, the Portfolio does not comprise any securitisation positions
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(i)

()

(k)

(1

(for further details, see the sections headed “The Portfolio”);

for the purpose of compliance with article 20(10) of the EU Securitisation Regulation, under the
Warranty and Indemnity Agreement the Originator has represented and warranted that: (i) the
Claims have been originated by the Originator (or (with reference to the Subsequent Portfolio), as
the case may be, lgea Banca S.p.A. which merged by incorporation into Banca del Fucino
following the granting of the relevant Loan) in the ordinary course of its business; (ii) as at, inter
alia, the relevant Legal Effective Date, the Claims comprised in the Portfolio have been originated
by the Originator (or (with reference to the Subsequent Portfolio), as the case may be, Igea Banca
S.p.A. which merged by incorporation into Banca del Fucino following the granting of the relevant
Loan) in accordance with credit policies that are not less stringent than the credit policies applied
by the Originator (or (with reference to the Subsequent Portfolio), as the case may be, Igea Banca
S.p.A. which merged by incorporation into Banca del Fucino following the granting of the relevant
Loan) at the time of origination to similar exposures that are not assigned under the Securitisation;
(iii) the Originator (or (with reference to the Subsequent Portfolio), as the case may be, Igea Banca
S.p.A. which merged by incorporation into Banca del Fucino following the granting of the relevant
Loan) has assessed the Debtors’ creditworthiness in compliance with the requirements set out in
article 8 of Directive 2008/48/EC or in article 18, paragraphs from 1 to 4 , paragraph 5, letter (),
and paragraph 6 of Directive 2014/17/UE and point 33 of the EBA Guidelines on the STS Criteria,
to the extent applicable taking into consideration the nature of the Loans; (iv) the Originator has a
more than 5 (five) year-expertise in originating exposures of a similar nature to the Claims. In
addition, since no exposure will be sold to the Issuer after the Subsequent Issue Date, the Originator
shall not be held to disclose without undue delay any material changes from prior underwriting
standards (for further details, see the sections headed “The Portfolio”);

for the purpose of compliance with article 20(11) of the EU Securitisation Regulation, the Portfolio
has been selected on the relevant Valuation Date and transferred to the Issuer on the relevant Legal
Effective Date. Under the Warranty and Indemnity Agreements the Originator has represented and
warranted that, as at, inter alia, the relevant Legal Effective Date, the Portfolio does not include
Claims qualified as exposures in default within the meaning of article 178, paragraph 1, of
Regulation (EU) No. 575/2013 or as exposures to a credit-impaired debtor or guarantor, who, to the
the Originator’s knowledge: (i) has been declared insolvent or in respect of which its creditors were
granted a final non-appealable right of enforcement or material damages as a result of a missed
payment within three years prior to the date of origination or has undergone a debt-restructuring
process with regard to his non-performing exposures within three years prior to the relevant Legal
Effective Date; or (ii) was, at the time of origination, where applicable, on a public credit registry of
persons with adverse credit history available to the Originator (or (with reference to the Subsequent
Portfolio) as the case may be, the other bank which has originated the Loan); or (iii) has a credit
assessment or a credit score indicating that the risk of contractually agreed payments not being
made is significantly higher than the ones of comparable exposures held by the Originator which
have not been assigned under the Transaction (for further details, see the sections headed “The
Portfolio”);

for the purpose of compliance with article 20(12) of the EU Securitisation Regulation, under the
Warranty and Indemnity Agreements, the Originator has represented and warranted that, as at the

relevant Legal Effective Date, the Claims arise from Loans in respect of which at least one
Instalment (including repayment of principal) has been paid by the relevant Borrower;

for the purpose of compliance with article 20(13) of the EU Securitisation Regulation, under the
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Warranty and Indemnity Agreements, the Originator has represented and warranted as at, inter
alia, the relevant Legal Effective Date that, in order to determine the creditworthiness of the
relevant Debtor, the Originator (or, as the case may be, Igea Banca S.p.A. which merged by
incorporation into Banca del Fucino following the granting of the relevant Loan) has not based its
assessment predominantly on the possible sale of the relevant Real Estate Asset following the
enforcement of the relevant Mortgage; therefore, the repayment of the Notes has not been
structured to depend predominantly on the sale of the Real Estate Assets. Please consider in this
regard that: (1) 100% of the Outstanding Principal of the Portfolio is composed by secured
receivables; (2) all the Loans comprised in the Portfolio are amortising, so that the relevant
Outstanding Principal as at the Final Maturity Date it is expected to be equal to 0. The Portfolio
does not comprise Loans with bullet payment of principal or payment of a large final instalment so
called “maxi rata finale”; and (3) the pool of exposures has a high granularity (for further details,
see the section the “The Portfolio™);

2. Article 21 (Requirements relating to standardisation) of the EU Securitisation Regulation

@ for the purpose of compliance with article 21(1) of the EU Securitisation Regulation, under the
Intercreditor Agreement (as amended by the General Amendment Agreement) the Originator has
undertaken to retain at the origination and maintain, on an on-going basis, a material net economic
interest of not less than 5 (five) per cent in the Securitisation, in accordance with paragraph (d) of
article 6(3) of the Securitisation Regulations and the applicable Regulatory Technical Standards
(for further details, see the paragraph below headed “Regulatory Disclosure and Retention
Undertaking™);

(b) for the purpose of compliance with article 21(2) of the EU Securitisation Regulation, in order to
mitigate any interest rate risk connected with the Rated Notes, the Issuer has entered into the Swap
Agreement (for further details, see the sections headed “Description of the Transaction Documents
- Cash Administration and Agency Agreement” and "Description of the Transaction Documents -
the Swap Agreement”). The Swap Transactions are entered into in order to hedge against the
potential interest rate exposure of the Issuer in relation to its floating rate interest obligations under
the Senior Notes and Mezzanine Notes. In addition, (i) under the Warranty and Indemnity
Agreement, the Originator has represented and warranted that, as at, inter alia, the relevant Legal
Effective Date, the Portfolio does not comprise any derivatives, and (ii) under the Conditions, the
Issuer has undertaken that, for so long as any amount remains outstanding in respect of the Notes of
any Class, it shall not enter into derivative contracts save as expressly permitted by article 21(2) of
the EU Securitisation Regulation (for further details, see Condition 3 (Covenants)). Finally, there is
no currency risk since (i) in accordance with the Criteria, the Claims arise from Loan Agreements
which are denominated in Euro, and (ii) pursuant to the Conditions, the Notes are denominated in
Euro (for further details, see the sections headed “Transaction Overview” and “Terms and
Conditions of the Notes™);

(c) for the purpose of compliance with article 21(3) of the EU Securitisation Regulation, (i) under the
Warranty and Indemnity Agreements, the Originator has represented and warranted that pursuant
to the Loan Agreements, the interest calculation methodologies related to the Loans are based on or
generally used sectoral rates reflective of the cost of funds, and do not refer to complex formulae or
derivatives; and (ii) the Rate of Interest applicable to the Notes is calculated by reference to
EURIBOR (for further details, see Condition 5.2 (Interest - Rate of Interest)); therefore, any
referenced interest payments under the Claims and the Notes are based on generally used market
interest rates and do not reference complex formulae or derivatives;
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(d) for the purpose of compliance with article 21(4) of the EU Securitisation Regulation (A) following
the service of a Trigger Notice, (i) no amount of cash shall be trapped in the Issuer beyond what is
necessary to ensure the operational functioning of the Issuer or the orderly payments of the amounts
due under the Notes in accordance with the Post-Enforcement Priority of Payments and pursuant to
the terms of the Transaction Documents; (ii) as to repayment of principal, the Class A1 Notes will
rank pari passu without preference or priority amongst themselves and in priority to the payment of
interest and the repayment of principal on the Class B Notes, the payment of interest and the
repayment of principal on the Class J Notes and the payment of the Class J Notes Additional Return
(if any) but subordinated to the payment of interest on the Class A1 Notes (for further details, see
Condition 2 (Status, Priority, Ranking and Segregation) and Condition 4 (Priority of Payments));
(iii) an Extraordinary Resolution of the holders of the Most Senior Class of Notes can resolve to
request the Issuer to sell all (or part only) of the Portfolio to one or more third parties and (iv) in
addition to point (iii) above, the Representative of the Noteholders shall (provided that any
bankruptcy or similar proceeding has not been commenced towards the Issuer (including, without
limitation, “fallimento™, “concordato preventivo”, “liquidazione coatta amministrativa”, “accordi
di ristrutturazione”, “piani di risanamento” and “liquidazione giudiziale” in accordance with the
meaning ascribed to those expressions by Italian law) and in any case if not prevented by, and in
compliance with, any applicable law) subject to it being indemnified to its satisfaction, be entitled
to sell the Portfolio in the name and on behalf of the Issuer , it being understood that no provisions
shall require the automatic liquidation of the Portfolio (for further details, see Condition 4.2,
Condition 9 (Trigger Events)), Condition 6.5 (Sale of the Portfolio) and the section headed
“Description of the Transaction Documents - Intercreditor Agreement™);

(e) as to repayment of principal, (i) before the delivery of a Trigger Notice, the Class A1l Notes will
rank pari passu without preference or priority amongst themselves and in priority to the repayment
of principal on the Class B Notes, the payment of interest and repayment of principal on the Class J
Notes and the payment of the Class J Notes Additional Return (if any) but subordinated to the
payment of interest on the Class Al Notes and the payment of interest on the Class B Notes
provided that, upon the occurrence of a Class B Notes Interest Subordination Event payment of
interest on the Class B Notes will become subordinated to the repayment of principal on the Class
Al Notes on the immediately following Payment Date and on any Payment Date thereafter until the
Class Al Notes are redeemed in full and (ii) following the delivery of a Trigger Notice, the Class
Al Notes will rank pari passu without preference or priority amongst themselves and in priority to
the payment of interest and the repayment of principal on the Class B Notes, the payment of interest
and the repayment of principal on the Class J Notes and the payment of the Class J Notes
Additional Return (if any) but subordinated to the payment of interest on the Class Al Notes (for
further details, see Condition 2 (Status, Priority, Ranking and Segregation) and Condition 4
(Priority of Payments)); for the purpose of compliance with article 21(5) of the EU Securitisation
Regulation, the Securitisation provides for a non-sequential priority of payments and includes
triggers relating to the performance of the underlying exposures resulting in the priority of
payments reverting to sequential payments in order of seniority. Such performance-related triggers
includes the deterioration in the credit quality of the underlying exposures below a pre-determined
threshold (for further details, see Condition 2 (Status, Priority, Ranking and Segregation) and
Condition 4 (Priority of Payments) and the definition of “Class B Notes Interest Subordination
Event”);

0] there are no exposures that can be sold to the Issuer after the Subsequent Issue Date (for further
details, see the section headed “Description of the Transaction Documents - Transfer
Agreements”); therefore, the requirements of article 21(6) of the EU Securitisation Regulation are
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not applicable;

(9) for the purpose of compliance with article 21(7) of the EU Securitisation Regulation, the
contractual obligations, duties and responsibilities of the Servicers, the Representative of the
Noteholders and the other service providers are set out in the relevant Transaction Documents (for
further details, see the sections headed “Description of the Transaction Documents - Servicing
Agreement”, “Description of the Transaction Documents - Cash Administration and Agency
Agreement”, “Description of the Transaction Documents - Corporate Services Agreement” and
“Terms and Conditions of the Notes”). In addition, the Servicing Agreement contains provisions
aimed at ensuring that a default by or an insolvency of any of the Servicer does not result in a
termination of the servicing activities, including provisions regulating the replacement of the
defaulted or insolvent Servicer with any successor Servicer. In addition, pursuant to the Back-up
Servicing Agreement, the Back-up Servicer has undertaken to act as substitute servicer of Banca
del Fucino in case of termination of the appointment of Banca del Fucino as Servicer, according to
the Servicing Agreement (for further details, see the sections headed “Description of the
Transaction Documents - Servicing Agreement” and “Description of the Transaction Documents —
The Back-up Servicing Agreement). Finally, (i) the Cash Administration and Agency Agreement
contains provisions aimed at ensuring the replacement of the Account Bank in case of its default,
insolvency or other specified events and (ii) the Swap Agreement provides for the replacement of
the Swap Counterparty if certain events of default arise, in the event of the Swap Counterparty’s
insolvency and other specified events. (for further details, see the sections headed “Description of
the Transaction Documents - Cash Administration and Agency Agreement” and "Description of the
Transaction Documents - the Swap Agreement");

(h) for the purpose of compliance with article 21(8) of the EU Securitisation Regulation, under the
Servicing Agreement, the Servicer has represented and warranted that it has experience in
managing exposures of similar nature to the Claims and has established well-documented and
adequate risk management policies, procedures and controls relating to the management of such
exposures pursuant to Article 21(8) of the EU Securitisation Regulation and in accordance with the
EBA Guidelines. In addition, (i) pursuant to the Servicing Agreement (as amended by the General
Amendment Agreement), any Substitute of the Servicer shall be, inter alia, an entity which has all
the requirements provided by, inter alia, the Law 130, the Securitisation Regulations (including the
requirements under article 21(8) of the EU Securitisation Regulation), the Regulatory Technical
Standards and the EBA Guidelines, for carrying out the servicer activity and which management
has at least 5 years of experience in managing exposure of similar nature to the Claims and (ii)
pursuant to the Back-up Servicing Agreement (as amended by the General Amendment
Agreement), the Back-up Servicer has represented and warranted that it is an entity which has all
the requirements provided by, inter alia, the Law 130, the EU Securitisation Regulation (including
the requirements under article 21(8) of the EU Securitisation Regulation), the Regulatory Technical
Standards and the EBA Guidelines, for carrying out the servicer activity and which management
has at least 5 years of experience in managing exposures of similar nature to the Claims (for further
details, see the sections headed “Description of the Transaction Documents - Servicing
Agreement”);

Q) for the purpose of compliance with article 21(9) of the EU Securitisation Regulation, the Servicing
Agreement and the Collection Policies attached thereto set out in clear and consistent terms
definitions, remedies and actions relating to delinquency and default of debtors, debt restructuring,
debt forgiveness, forbearance, payment holidays, losses, charge offs, recoveries and other asset
performance remedies (for further details, see the sections headed “Description of the Transaction
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Documents - Servicing Agreement” and “The Collection Policies™). In addition, the Transaction
Documents clearly specify the Priorities of Payments and the events which trigger changes in such
Priorities of Payments. Pursuant to the Cash Administration and Agency Agreement (as amended
by the General Amendment Agreement), for the purpose of compliance by the Banca del Fucino in
its capacity as Reporting Entity with the disclosure requirements pursuant to points (f) and (g) of
the first subparagraph of article 7(1) of the Securitisation Regulations, each of the Issuer, the
Servicer and the Originator have undertaken to the Representative of the Noteholder, the Reporting
Entity and the Computation Agent, in case any of the events under article 7, paragraph 1, letters (f)
and (g) of the EU Securitisation Regulation has occurred, to promptly provide the Computation
Agent (and, in the case of the Issuer, also the Reporting Entity) with the necessary information (of
which each of them is aware of) in order to allow the Computation Agent to prepare the Inside
Information and Significant Event Report in compliance with article 7 of the Securitisation
Regulations and the applicable Regulatory Technical Standards and in a timely manner in order for
the Reporting Entity to make available to the entities referred to under article 7(1) of the
Securitisation Regulations by means of the Data Repository, the Inside Information and Significant
Event Report (A) without undue delay after the occurrence of the relevant event or the Inside
Information is to be disclosed and (B) by no later than 1 (one) month after each Payment Date; (for
further details, see the section headed “Description of the Transaction Documents - Cash
Administration and Agency Agreement”). Furthermore, pursuant to the Cash Administration and
Agency Agreement (as amended by the General Amendment Agreement) and the Intercreditor
Agreement (as amended by the General Amendment Agreement), (i) the Computation Agent has
undertaken to prepare, on each Investor Report Date, the Investor Report which shall be prepared in
compliance with the provisions of the Securitisation Regulations and the applicable Regulatory
Technical Standards and including all the required information to be provided pursuant to point (e)
of the first subparagraph of article 7(1) of the Securitisation Regulations and shall be prepared in
compliance with the Securitisation Regulations and the templates set out under the applicable
Regulatory Technical Standards (including the Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2020/1224
and the Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) 2020/1225 of 29 October 2019), and (ii) the
Computation Agent has been authorized by the Originator in its capacity as Reporting Entity in
respect of the Transaction to make available each Investors Report to the Noteholders, the
competent authorities pursuant to Article 29 of the Securitisation Regulations and, upon request,
prospective Noteholders no later than one month after each Payment Date by uploading the
Investor Report on the Securitisation Repository, see the sections headed, “Description of the
Transaction Documents - Cash Administration and Agency Agreement” and “Description of the
Transaction Documents - Intercreditor Agreement”);

() for the purposes of compliance with article 21(10) of the EU Securitisation Regulation, the
Conditions (including the Rules of the Organisation of the Noteholders attached thereto) contain
clear provisions that facilitate the timely resolution of conflicts between Noteholders of different
Classes, clearly define and allocate voting rights to Noteholders and clearly identify the
responsibilities of the Representative of the Noteholders (for further details, see the section headed
“Terms and Conditions of the Notes”);

3. Article 22 (Requirements relating to transparency) of the EU Securitisation Regulation
@) for the purposes of compliance with article 22(1) of the EU Securitisation Regulation, under the
Intercreditor Agreement (as amended by the General Amendment Agreement) the Originator (i)
has confirmed that, as initial holder of the Notes, it has been in possession, before pricing, of data
on static and dynamic historical default and loss performance, such as delinquency and default
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data, for substantially similar exposures to those being securitised, and the sources of those data
and the basis for claiming similarity, provided that such data covers a period of at least 5 (five)
years, and (ii) in case of transfer of any Notes by such Originator to third party investors after the
Subsequent Issue Date, has undertaken to make available to such investors before pricing on the
Securitisation Repository, data on static and dynamic historical default and loss performance, such
as delinquency and default data, for substantially similar exposures to those being securitised, and
the sources of those data and the basis for claiming similarity, provided that such data shall cover a
period of at least 5 (five) years, pursuant to article 22(1) of the EU Securitisation Regulation and the
EBA Guidelines on STS Criteria (for further details, see the section headed “Description of the
Transaction Documents - Intercreditor Agreement”);

(b) for the purposes of compliance with article 22(2) of the Securitisation Regulations, an external
verification (including verification that the data disclosed in this Prospectus in respect of the
Claims is accurate) has been made in respect of the Portfolio prior to the Subsequent Issue Date by
an appropriate and independent party and no significant adverse findings have been found (for
further details, see the section headed “The Portfolio — Pool Audit Reports™);

(c) for the purposes of compliance with article 22(3) of the Securitisation Regulations, under the
Intercreditor Agreement (as amended by the General Amendment Agreement) the Originator (i)
has confirmed that, as initial holder of the Notes, it has been in possession, before pricing, of a
liability cash flow model which precisely represents the contractual relationship between the
Claims and the payments flowing between the Originator, the investors in the Notes, other third
parties and the Issuer, and (ii) in case of transfer of any Notes by such Originator to third party
investors after the Subsequent Issue Date, has undertaken to make available to such investors
before pricing through the Securitisation Repository, a liability cash flow model which precisely
represents the contractual relationship between the Claims and the payments flowing between the
Originator, the investors in the Notes, other third parties and the Issuer. In addition, under the
Intercreditor Agreement (as amended by the General Amendment Agreement), the Originator has
undertaken to: (1) make available to investors in the Notes on an ongoing basis and to potential
investors in the Notes, upon request, through the Securitisation Repository, a liability cash flow
model which precisely represents the contractual relationship between the Claims and the
payments flowing between the Originator, the investors in the Notes, other third parties and the
Issuer; and (2) update such cash flow model, in case there will be significant changes in the cash
flows;

(d) for the purposes of compliance with article 22(4) of the EU Securitisation Regulation, pursuant to
the Servicing Agreement and the Intercreditor Agreement (as amended by the General Amendment
Agreement), the Servicer has undertaken to prepare the Loan by Loan Report in accordance with
the EU Securitisation Regulation and the applicable Regulatory Technical Standards in order to
include all information requested in order to prepare the reports under article 7(1) of the
Securitisation Regulations and the application of the applicable Regulatory Technical Standards
(including Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2020/1224 and Commission Delegated
Regulation (EU) 2020/1225) (for further details, see the sections headed “Description of the
Transaction Documents - Servicing Agreement™);

(e) for the purposes of compliance with article 22(5) of the Securitisation Regulations, under the
Intercreditor Agreement (as amended by the General Amendment Agreement), the Originator and

the Issuer have designated among themselves the Originator as the reporting entity pursuant to
article 7(2) of the Securitisation Regulations (the “Reporting Entity”) and have agreed, and the
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other parties thereto have acknowledged, that the Reporting Entity shall be responsible for
compliance with article 7 of the Securitisation Regulations, pursuant to the Transaction
Documents. In that respect, the Originator, in its capacity as Reporting Entity, will fulfil the
information requirements pursuant to points (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), (f) and (g) of the first
subparagraph of article 7(1) of the Securitisation Regulations by making available the relevant
information through the Securitisation Repository.

Under the Intercreditor Agreement (as amended by the General Amendment Agreement), the
Reporting Entity has confirmed that it has appointed European DataWarehouse as Securitisation
Repository.

Under the Intercreditor Agreement (as amended by the General Amendment Agreement), the
Reporting Entity has undertaken to inform the potential investors in the Notes in accordance with
Condition 12 (Notices) in case of replacement of the Securitisation Repository.

()] As to pre-pricing disclosure requirements set out under articles 7 and 22 of the Securitisation
Regulations, under the Intercreditor Agreement (as amended by the General Amendment
Agreement):

(i the Originator, as initial holder of the Notes, has confirmed that it has been, before pricing,
in possession of (i) data relating to each Loan (and therefore it has not requested to receive
the information under point (a) of the first subparagraph of article 7(1) of the Securitisation
Regulations, including, to the extent required by any applicable law or regulation, data on
the environmental performance of the Real Estate Assets (where available)) and the
information under points (b), (c) and (d) of the first subparagraph of article 7(1) of the
Securitisation Regulations, (ii) data on static and dynamic historical default and loss
performance, such as delinquency and default data, for substantially similar exposures to
those being securitised, and the sources of those data and the basis for claiming similarity,
provided that such data covers a period of at least 5 (five) years, pursuant to article 22(1) of
the EU Securitisation Regulation and the EBA Guidelines on STS Criteria, and (iii) a
liability cash flow model which precisely represents the contractual relationship between
the Claims and the payments flowing between the Originator, the investors in the Notes,
other third parties and the Issuer pursuant to article 22(3) of the EU Securitisation
Regulation and the EBA Guidelines on STS Criteria;

(i) in case of transfer of any Notes by the Originator to third party investors after the
Subsequent Issue Date, the Originator has undertaken to make available to such investors
before pricing through the Securitisation Repository, (i) the information under point (a) of
the first subparagraph of article 7(1) (including, to the extent required by any applicable
law or regulation, data on the environmental performance of the Real Estate Assets (where
available)) upon request, as well as the information under points (b), (c) and (d) of the first
subparagraph of article 7(1) of the Securitisation Regulations; (ii) data on static and
dynamic historical default and loss performance, such as delinquency and default data, for
substantially similar exposures to those being securitised, and the sources of those data and
the basis for claiming similarity, provided that such data shall cover a period of at least 5
(five) years, pursuant to article 22(1) of the EU Securitisation Regulation and the EBA
Guidelines on STS Criteria, and (iii) a liability cash flow model which precisely represents
the contractual relationship between the Receivables and the payments flowing between
the Originator, the investors in the Notes, other third parties and the Issuer pursuant to
article 22(3) of the EU Securitisation Regulation and the EBA Guidelines on STS Criteria;
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(iii)

and

the Reporting Entity has made available to investors in the Notes a draft of the STS
Notification (as defined under the EU Securitisation Regulation).

(o) As to post-closing disclosure requirements set out under articles 7 and 22 of the EU Securitisation
Regulation, under the Intercreditor Agreement (as amended by the General Amendment
Agreement), the relevant parties have acknowledged and agreed as follows:

(i)

(i)

(i)

4155-1253-8422.3

pursuant to the Servicing Agreement, the Servicer will prepare the Loan by Loan Report
(which includes all information requested in order to prepare the reports under article 7(1)
of the Securitisation Regulations and the application of the applicable Regulatory
Technical Standards (including Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2020/1224 and
Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2020/1225 including the information under and
article 22(4) of the EU Securitisation Regulation) and deliver it to the Reporting Entity in a
timely manner in order for the Reporting Entity to make available to the entities referred to
under article 7(1) of the Securitisation Regulations by means of the Securitisation
Repository, as the case may be, the Loan by Loan Report (simultaneously with the Investor
Report) by no later than one month after the relevant Payment Date;

pursuant to the Cash Administration and Agency Agreement (as amended by the General
Amendment Agreement), the Computation Agent will prepare the Investor Report (which
includes all the information set out under point (e) of the first subparagraph of article 7(1)
of the Securitisation Regulations) and deliver it to the Reporting Entity in a timely manner
in order for the Reporting Entity to make available the Investor Report to the entities
referred to under article 7(1) of the Securitisation Regulations by means of the
Securitisation Repository the Investor Report (simultaneously with the Loan by Loan
Report) by no later than one month after the relevant Payment Date;

pursuant to the Cash Administration and Agency Agreement (as amended by the General
Amendment Agreement), the Computation Agent will prepare the Inside Information and
Significant Event Report (setting out all the required information to be provided pursuant
to point (f) of the first subparagraph of article 7(1) of the Securitisation Regulations that
has been provided by the Issuer, the Servicer and/or the Originator to the Computation
Agent for such purpose; and/orthe occurrence of any event set out under point (g) of the
first subparagraph of article 7(1) of the Securitisation Regulations that has been notified by
the Issuer, the Servicer and/or the Originator to the Computation Agent for such purpose)
and will deliver it to the Reporting Entity that will make available to the entities referred to
under article 7(1) of the Securitisation Regulations by means of the Securitisation
Repository (A) without delay, after the occurrence of the relevant event or the Inside
Information is to be disclosed and (B) by no later than one month after each Payment Date;
it being understood that, in accordance with the Cash Administration and Agency
Agreement (as amended by the General Amendment Agreement), each of the Issuer, the
Servicer and the Originator have undertaken to the Representative of the Noteholder, the
Reporting Entity and the Computation Agent, in case any of the events listed above has
occurred, to promptly provide the Computation Agent (and, in the case of the Issuer, also
the Reporting Entity) with the necessary information (of which each of them is aware of) in
order to allow the Computation Agent to prepare the Inside Information and Significant
Event Report in compliance with article 7 of the Securitisation Regulations and the
applicable Regulatory Technical Standards and in a timely manner in order for the
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Reporting Entity to make available to the entities referred to under article 7(1) of the
Securitisation Regulations by means of the Data Repository, the Inside Information and
Significant Event Report (A) without undue delay after the occurrence of the relevant event
or the Inside Information is to be disclosed and (B) by no later than 1 (one) month after
each Payment Date;

(iv) the Issuer will deliver to the Reporting Entity (i) a copy of the final Prospectus and the
other final Transaction Documents in a timely manner in order for the Reporting Entity to
make available such documents to the investors in the Notes by no later than 15 (fifteen)
days after the relevant Issue Date, and (ii) any other document or information that may be
required to be disclosed to the investors or potential investors in the Notes pursuant to the
Securitisation Regulations and the applicable Regulatory Technical Standards in a timely
manner (to the extent not already in its possession); and

(v) the Reporting Entity shall make available to the investors in the Notes the STS Notification
(as defined under the EU Securitisation Regulation) by not later than 15 (fifteen) days after
the Subsequent Issue Date,

in each case in accordance with the requirements provided by the Securitisation Regulations (or in
the case of paragraph (e) above, the EU Securitisation Regulation) and the applicable Regulatory
Technical Standards.

In addition, under the Intercreditor Agreement (as amended by the General Amendment
Agreement) the Originator has undertaken to: (1) make available to investors in the Notes on an
ongoing basis and to potential investors in the Notes upon request, through the Securitisation
Repository, a liability cash flow model which precisely represents the contractual relationship
between the Receivables and the payments flowing between the Originator, the investors in the
Notes, other third parties and the Issuer pursuant to article 22(3) of the EU Securitisation
Regulation and the EBA Guidelines on STS Criteria; and (2) to update such cash flow model, in
case there will be significant changes in the cash flows.

Under the Intercreditor Agreement (as amended by the General Amendment Agreement), the
Reporting Entity has undertaken to the Issuer and the Representative of the Noteholders:

(M to ensure that Noteholders, the Swap Counterparty and potential investors have readily
available access to (i) all information necessary to conduct comprehensive and well
informed stress tests and to fulfil their monitoring and due diligence duties under article 5
of the Securitisation Regulations, which does not form part of the Prospectus as at the
relevant Issue Date but may be of assistance to potential investors before investing; and (ii)
any other information which is required to be disclosed to Noteholders and to prospective
investors (if any) pursuant to the Securitisation Regulations and the applicable Regulatory
Technical Standards;

(i) to ensure that the competent supervisory authorities pursuant to article 29 of the
Securitisation Regulations have readily available access to any information which is
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Securitisation Regulations.

Under the Intercreditor Agreement (as amended by the General Amendment Agreement), each of
the relevant parties (in any capacity) has undertaken to notify promptly to the Reporting Entity and
the Computation Agent any information set out under point (f) of the first subparagraph of article
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7(1) of the EU Securitisation Regulation or the occurrence of any event set out under point (g) of
the first subparagraph of article 7(1) of the Securitisation Regulations (as the case may be) in order
to allow the Computation Agent to prepare and deliver to the Reporting Entity the Inside
Information and Significant Event Report in a timely manner in order for the Reporting Entity to
make it available (A) without undue delay after the occurrence of the relevant event or the Inside
Information is to be disclosed and (B) by no later than one month after the relevant Payment Date in
accordance with the provisions above and the Intercreditor Agreement (as amended by the General
Amendment Agreement) and the Cash Administration and Agency Agreement (as amended by the
General Amendment Agreement).

In addition, in order to ensure that the disclosure requirements set out under article 7 and 22 of the
Securitisation Regulations and article 22 of the EU Securitisation Regulation are fulfilled by the
Reporting Entity, under the Intercreditor Agreement (as amended by the General Amendment
Agreement) each party to such agreement has undertaken to provide the Reporting Entity with any
further information that is not covered under such Intercreditor Agreement (as amended by the
General Amendment Agreement) and which from time to time is required under the EU
Securitisation Regulation.

Under the Intercreditor Agreement (as amended by the General Amendment Agreement), the
relevant parties agreed that any costs, expenses and taxes deriving from compliance with the
provisions of the Securitisation Regulations and any applicable Regulatory Technical Standards in
relation to the transparency requirements shall be borne by the Originator.

Under the Intercreditor Agreement (as amended by the General Amendment Agreement) the
Originator (in its capacity as the Originator and the Reporting Entity) has undertaken to comply
with the obligations provided under article 6, 7 and 9 and all other obligations of the Securitisation
Regulations applicable to it.

4. Criteria for credit-granting

With reference to Article 9 of the EU Securitisation Regulation, under the Warranty and Indemnity
Agreement the Originator has represented and warranted that it (or (with reference to the Subsequent
Portfolio), as the case may be, Igea Banca S.p.A. which merged by incorporation into Banca del Fucino
following the granting of the relevant Loan) complies and has complied with, in respect of the Portfolio, the
credit-granting criteria and procedures and all other obligations and provisions set out under article 9 of the
EU Securitisation Regulation.

5. First contact point

Banca del Fucino will be the first contact point for investors in the Notes and competent authorities
pursuant to and for the purposes of third sub-paragraph of article 27(1) of the EU Securitisation Regulation.

The designation of the Securitisation as an STS-securitisation is not a recommendation to buy, sell or
hold securities. It is not investment advice whether generally or as defined under MiFID Il and UK
MIFIR and it is not a credit rating whether generally or as defined under the CRA Regulation or Section
3(a) of the United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (as amended).

By designating the Securitisation as an STS-securitisation, no views are expressed about the
creditworthiness of the Notes or their suitability for any existing or potential investor or as to whether
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there will be a ready, liquid market for the Notes. No assurance can be provided that the Securitisation
does or continues to qualify as an STS-securitisation under the EU Securitisation Regulation.

Regulatory Capital Requirements

In the Intercreditor Agreement (as amended by the General Amendment Agreement) and the Class Al
Notes Subscription Agreement, the Originator has undertaken, inter alios, to the Issuer and the
Representative of the Noteholders for the purposes of the Securitisation Regulations (including but not
limited to article 5 to 7 thereof) that it will:

a. retain at the origination and maintain (on an ongoing basis) a material net economic interest of not
less than 5% in the Securitisation in accordance with paragraph (d) of article 6(3) of the
Securitisation Regulations and the applicable Regulatory Technical Standards (the "Retained
Interest™). As at the Subsequent Issue Date, such interest will be comprised of an interest in the first
loss tranche (being the Junior Notes);

b.  ensure that the Retained Interest held by it in its capacity as "originator” (within the meaning of such
term pursuant to the Securitisation Regulations) is not and will not be subject to any credit risk
mitigation or any hedge, as and to extent required by article 6 of the Securitisation Regulations and
the applicable Regulatory Technical Standards;

C. comply with the disclosure obligations imposed on it as "originator” (as such term is defined in the
Securitisation Regulations) under article 7(1)(e)(iii) of the Securitisation Regulations and any
applicable Regulatory Technical Standards, subject always to any requirement of law.

In the Intercreditor Agreement (as amended by the General Amendment Agreement) and in the Class Al
Notes Subscription Agreement, the Originator has also undertaken to inter alios the Issuer and the
Representative of the Noteholders that Retained Interest held by it in its capacity as "originator" (within the
meaning of such term pursuant to the Securitisation Regulations) is not and will not be subject to any credit
risk mitigation or any hedge, as and to extent required by article 6 of the Securitisation Regulations and the
applicable Regulatory Technical Standards.

UK Securitisation Regulation

Pursuant to the Intercreditor Agreement (as amended by the General Amendment Agreement) and the Class
Al Notes Subscription Agreement, the Reporting Entity has undertaken that — in the event that the
information made available to investors by the Reporting Entity in accordance with article 7 of the EU
Securitisation Regulation and the applicable Regulatory Technical Standards is no longer sufficient to
allow UK investors to comply with the UK due diligence requirements under article 5 of the UK
Securitisation Regulation — it will, upon reasonable request, use commercially reasonable endeavours to
provide such further information to assist compliance by such UK investors with such UK due diligence
requirements.

For the purposes of this section:

“EU Securitisation Regulation” means the Regulation (EU) 2017/2402 of the European Parliament and of
the Council of 12 December 2017, together with any relevant delegated regulation and/or Regulatory
Technical Standards thereof, and/or implementing measures or official guidance in relation thereto
(including without limitation any opinion and/or Q&A document from time to time issued by the European
Securities Market Authority (ESMA) and/or the European Banking Authority (EBA), in each case, as
amended, varied and supplemented from time to time.
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“EUWA” means the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018, as amended.

“Regulatory Technical Standards” means any delegated regulatory technical standards in force
specifying the information and the details of a securitisation to be made available by a reporting entity
pursuant to the Securitisation Regulations.

“Securitisation Regulations” means the EU Securitisation Regulation and the UK Securitisation
Regulation.

“UK Securitisation Regulation” means the Regulation (EU) 2017/2402 of the European Parliament and of
the Council of 12 December 2017 as it forms part of UK domestic law by virtue of the EUWA as amended
by the Securitisation (Amendment) (EU Exit) Regulations 2019 (as in force as at the Subsequent Issue
Date) together with any supplementary Regulatory Technical Standards, implementing technical standards,
any official guidance supplementing such Regulation published in relation thereto by the Prudential
Regulation Authority and/or the Financial Conduct Authority and any implementing measures in respect of
such Regulation in the UK including any transitional, saving or other provision introduced by virtue of the
EUWA, in each case, as in force as at the Subsequent Issue Date.

Prospective Noteholders are required to independently assess and determine the sufficiency of the
information described above and in this Prospectus generally for the purposes of complying with
Chapter 2 of the Securitisation Regulations and any corresponding national measure which may be
relevant and none of the Issuer, the Originator, the Servicer or any other party to the Transaction
Documents or any other person makes any representation that the information described above or in this
Prospectus is sufficient in all circumstances for such purposes.

PCS Services

Application has been made to Prime Collateralised Securities (PCS) EU SAS (“PCS”) to assess compliance
of the Notes with the criteria set forth in the CRR regarding STS-securitisations (the “CRR Assessment”).
There can be no assurance that the Notes will receive the CRR Assessment (either before issuance or at any
time thereafter) and that CRR is complied with.

In addition, an application has been made to PCS for the Securitisation to receive a report from PCS
verifying compliance with the criteria stemming from Acrticle 18, 19, 20, 21 and 22 of the EU Securitisation
Regulation (the “STS Verification”). There can be no assurance that the Securitisation will receive the STS
Verification (either before issuance or at any time thereafter) and if the Securitisation does receive the STS
Verification, this shall not, under any circumstances, affect the liability of the Originator and the Issuer in
respect of their legal obligations under the EU Securitisation Regulation, nor shall it affect the obligations
imposed on institutional investors as set out in article 5 (Due-diligence requirements for institutional
investors) of the EU Securitisation Regulation.

The STS Verification and the CRR Assessments (the “PCS Services”) are provided by PCS. No PCS
Service is a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities. None are investment advice whether generally
or as defined under the Markets in Financial Instruments Directive (2004/39/EC) and none are a credit
rating whether generally or as defined under the Credit Rating Agency Regulation (1060/2009/EC) or
Section 3(a) of the United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (as amended). PCS is not an "expert" as
defined in the Securities Act.

PCS is not a law firm and nothing in any PCS Service constitutes legal advice in any jurisdiction. PCS is
authorised by the Autorité des Marchés Financiers as a third-party verification agent, pursuant to article 28
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(Third party verifying STS compliance) of the EU Securitisation Regulation, to act as a third party verifying
STS compliance. This authorisation covers STS Verifications in the European Union. Other than as
specifically set out above, none of the activities involved in providing the PCS Services are endorsed or
regulated by any regulatory and/or supervisory authority nor is PCS regulated by any other regulator.

By providing any PCS Service in respect of any securities PCS does not express any views about the
creditworthiness of these securities or their suitability for any existing or potential investor or as to whether
there will be a ready, liquid market for these securities or financings. Investors should conduct their own
research regarding the nature of the CRR Assessment and the STS Verification. It is expected that the PCS
Services prepared by PCS will be available on the PCS website
(https://www.pcsmarket.org/sts-verification-transactions/) together with detailed explanations of its scope
at https://pcsmarket.org/disclaimer/ on and from the Subsequent Issue Date. For the avoidance of doubt,
this PCS websites and the contents thereof do not form part of this Prospectus and the Noteholders and any
potentential investor must read the information set out in http://pcsmarket.org. In the provision of any PCS
Service, PCS has based its decision on information provided directly and indirectly by the Originator. PCS
does not undertake its own direct verification of the underlying facts stated in the prospectus, deal sheet,
documentation or certificates for the relevant instruments and the completion of any PCS Service is not a
confirmation or implication that the information provided by or on behalf of the Originator as part of the
relevant PCS Service is accurate or complete.

In completing an STS Verification, PCS bases its analysis on the STS criteria appearing in Articles 20 to 26
of the EU Securitisation Regulation together with, if relevant, the appropriate provisions of Article 43,
(together, the “STS criteria”). Unless specifically mentioned in the STS Verification, PCS relies on the
English version of the EU Securitisation Regulation. In addition, Article 19(2) of the EU Securitisation
Regulation requires the EBA, from time to time, to issue guidelines and recommendations interpreting the
STS criteria.

The EBA has issued the EBA Guidelines on STS Criteria. The task of interpreting individual STS criteria
rests with national competent authorities (“NCAS”). Any NCA may publish or otherwise publicly
disseminate from time to time interpretations of specific criteria (“NCA Interpretations”). The STS
criteria, as drafted in the EU Securitisation Regulation, are subject to a potentially wide variety of
interpretations. In compiling an STS Verification, PCS uses its discretion to interpret the STS criteria based
on (a) the text of the EU Securitisation Regulation, (b) any relevant guidelines issued by EBA and (c) any
relevant NCA Interpretation.

There can be no guarantees that any regulatory authority or any court of law interpreting the STS criteria
will agree with the interpretation of PCS. There can be no guarantees that any future guidelines issued by
the EBA or any NCA Interpretations may not differ in their approach from those used by PCS in
interpreting any STS criterion prior to the issuance of such new guideline or interpretation. In particular,
guidelines issued by EBA are not binding on any NCA. There can be no guarantees that any interpretation
by any NCA will be the same as that set out in the EBA Guidelines and therefore used, prior to the
publication of such NCA interpretation, by PCS in completing an STS Verification. Although PCS will use
all reasonable endeavours to ascertain the position of any relevant NCA as to STS criteria interpretation,
PCS cannot guarantee that it will have been made aware of any NCA interpretation in cases where such
interpretation has not been officially published by the relevant NCA.

Accordingly, the provision of an STS Verification is only an opinion by PCS and not a statement of fact. It
is not a guarantee or warranty that any national competent authority, court, investor or any other person will
accept the STS status of the relevant securitisation.
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The task of interpreting individual CRR criteria as well as the final determination of the capital required by
a bank to allocate for any investment rests with prudential authorities (PRAS) supervising any European
bank. The CRR criteria, as drafted in the CRR, are subject to a potentially wide variety of interpretations. In
compiling a CRR Assessment, PCS uses its discretion to interpret the CRR criteria based on the text of the
CRR, and any relevant and public interpretation by the European Banking Authority. Although PCS
believes its interpretations reflect a reasonable approach, there can be no guarantees that any prudential
authority or any court of law interpreting the CRR criteria will agree with the PCS interpretation. PCS also
draws attention to the fact that, in assessing capital requirements, prudential regulators possess wide
discretions.

Accordingly, when performing a CRR Assessment, PCS is not confirming or indicating that the
securitisation the subject of such assessment will be allowed to have lower capital allocated to it under the
CRR Regulation. PCS is merely addressing the specific CRR criteria and determining whether, in PCS’
opinion, these criteria have been met.

Therefore, no bank should rely on a CRR Assessment in determining the status of any securitisation in
relation to capital requirements and must make its own determination. All PCS Services speak only as of the
date on which they are issued. PCS has no obligation to monitor (nor any intention to monitor) any
securitisation the subject of any PCS Service. PCS has no obligation and does not undertake to update any
PCS Service to account for (a) any change of law or regulatory interpretation or (b) any act or failure to act
by any person relating to those STS criteria that speak to actions taking place following the close of any
transaction such as — without limitation — the obligation to continue to provide certain mandated
information.
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THE PORTFOLIO
THE INITIAL PORTFOLIO AND THE SUBSEQUENT PORTFOLIO

The Portfolio (composed of both the Initial Portfolio and the Subsequent Portfolio) purchased by the Issuer
comprises debt obligations arising out of mortgage loans classified as performing by the Originator. It is not
provided for in the Transaction Documents the possibility to assign further portfolios of loans to the Issuer.

All Claims comprised in the Initial Portfolio and in the Subsequent Portfolio purchased by the Issuer from
the Originator have been selected on the basis of the Criteria listed, respectively, in the Initial Transfer
Agreement and in the Subsequent Transfer Agreement and set forth below (see paragraph “The Criteria”,
below).

The Claims do not and may not consist, in whole or in part, actually or potentially, of credit-linked notes or
similar claims resulting from the transfer of credit risk by means of credit derivatives.

As at:

(i) the Initial Effective Date, the aggregate of the Outstanding Principal of all Claims comprised in the
Initial Portfolio amounted to Euro 149,608,040.11;

(ii) the Subsequent Effective Date, the aggregate of the Outstanding Principal of all Claims comprised in
the Subsequent Portfolio amounted to Euro 52,883,006.08.

On the Subsequent Issue Date, the Outstanding Principal of all Claims comprised in the Portfolio amounted
to Euro 135,470,511.01, being the sum of the Initial Claims and the Subsequent Claims net of all those
initial claims which:

(@) have been repurchased by the Originator according to the option rights under the Initial Transfer
Agreement; or

(b) have been repaid by the relevant Borrower; or

(c) in the context of the restructuring of the Transaction have been repurchased by the Originator
(according to a repurchase agreement entered into on 24 May 2022) since were not compliant for
gualifying the Transaction as an STS-securitisation (the “Repurchase Agreement” and the
“Repurchased Claims”).

Pursuant to the General Amendment Agreement, the Originator has represented and warranted to the Issuer
that:

i)  for the purposes of article 243 of CRR, at the time of inclusion in the Transaction, the aggregate
exposure value of all exposures to a single obligor in the Portfolio does not exceed 2 % of the exposure
values of the aggregate outstanding exposure values of the Portfolio;

i) at the time of their inclusion in the Transaction, the underlying exposures meet the conditions for
being assigned, under the Standardised Approach (as defined in the CRR) and taking into account any
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eligible credit risk mitigation, a risk weight equal to or smaller than: 40% on an exposure
value-weighted average basis for the Portfolio where the exposures are loans secured by residential
mortgages or fully guaranteed residential loans, as referred to in point (e) of article 129(1) of the CRR;

iii) no Loan in the Portfolio shall have a loan-to-value ratio higher than 100%, at the time of inclusion in
the Transaction, measured in accordance with point (d)(i) of article 129(1) and article 229(1) of the
CRR.

In addition, pursuant the General Amendment Agreement, the representation and warranties given under
the Initial Warranty and Indemnity Agreement will be also repeated on the Legal Effective Date of the
Subsequent Portfolio and on the Subsequent Issue Date.

The information relating to:

(i) the Initial Portfolio contained in this Prospectus is, unless otherwise specified, a description of the
Initial Portfolio as at the relevant Valuation Date; and

(if) the Subsequent Portfolio contained in this Prospectus is, unless otherwise specified, a description of
the Subsequent Portfolio as at the relevant Valuation Date.

The Criteria

The Claims included in the Initial Portfolio have been selected on the basis of the following objective
Criteria as at the relevant Valuation Date (or the different date specified in respect of the relevant criterion),
in order to ensure that the Initial Claims have the same legal and financial characteristics.

The Initial Claims included in the Initial Portfolio derived from Loan Agreements:

(i)  secured by a mortgage over residential real estate assets where the relevant borrower (or borrowers in
the event of joint and several liability (co-intestazione)) is (or are, as the case may be) resident in
Italy;

(if)  entered into by Banca del Fucino;

(iii) whose Assigned Debtors are classified by the Transferor as in bonis (within the meaning provided in
the instructions contained into the circular letter No. 272 of the Bank of Italy of 30 July 2008 (Matrice
dei Conti));

(iv) disbursed between 10 July 2002 (included) and the Initial Valuation Date;

(v) denominated in Euro;

(vi) in respect of which the loan amount has been fully disbursed and there is no obligation to advance or
disburse any further amounts;

(vii) in respect of which (i) as at the relevant Valuation Date no more than two instalments were due and
unpaid, and (ii) as at the date of 27 February 2019 no more than one instalment was due and unpaid;

(viii) in relation to which as at the relevant Valuation Date at least one instalment has been paid, also in
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(ix)

)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

respect to the preamortisation period;
where the relevant amortisation plan under the relevant Loan Agreement provides for the:

Q) so called “French amortisation plan”; or

(i)  payment of fixed pre-determined instalments with floating duration (rate di importo costante
e durata variabile);

in respect of which the original principal amount outstanding was not higher than Euro
2,000,000.00 (two million);

in respect of which pursuant to the amortisation plan provided under the relevant Loan Agreement,
the expiry date of the last instalment falls not before 31 March 2019;

where the relevant amortisation plan under the relevant Loan Agreement provides for monthly,
quarterly or semi annually instalments;

which are secured by a first economic priority mortgage meaning (i) a first legal priority mortgage;
(if) a mortgage having a priority ranking lower than first legal priority provided that all obligations
secured by mortgage/mortgages with prevailing priority have been fully satisfied, or (iii) a mortgage
having a priority ranking lower than the first legal priority provided that the mortgage/mortgages with
prevailing priority are constituted as security for other Initial Claims transferred pursuant to the Initial
Transfer Agreement or by a formal and substantial second ranking mortgage (i.e., economic) (it
remains understood, for the avoidance of any doubt, that this criterion is considered as fulfilled also if
the relevant Initial Claim is guaranteed by additional guaranties in addition to the first economic
priority mortgages or formal and substantial second ranking mortgages (i.e., economic) hereby
referred);

entered into with Assigned Debtors belonging to one of the following SAE categories (Settore
Attivita Economica), pursuant to the Bank of Italy's customers’ classification as defined into the
circular No. 140 of the 11 February 1991, as subsequently amended and supplemented (Istruzioni
relative alla classificazione della clientela per settori e gruppi di attivita economica): 600 (famiglie
consumatrici), 614 (famiglie produttrici/artigiani) or 615 (famiglie produttrici/altre famiglie
produttrici);

that, as at the relevant Valuation Date, had (i) in relation to mortgage loans with a floating interest
rate, a spread not lower than 0.25% per annum (with the exception of loans with the following codes
0601100018936, 0601700028381, 0600700019331, which are also transferred); and (ii) in relation to
mortgage loans with fixed interest rate, a minimum interest rate not lower than 0.65% per annum;

in relation to Loans with a floating interest rate, which as at the relevant Valuation Date were
indexed to Euribor or to ECB rate.

the following are expressly excluded:

(@)

loan agreements which have benefited from facilities or public (regional and/or state) or European
Union financial subsidies with respect to principal and/or interest or from any other subsidy
provided under any applicable state, regional and/or European Union law or regulation, without
prejudice to the faculties of renegotiation provided by the applicable legislation in favor of the
Assigned Debtors;
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(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

()

loan agreements with mixed or modular interest rate which provide for (i) the passage to a floating
interest rate once an initial period in which the interest rate is calculated with reference to a fixed
interest rate is elapsed, or (ii) the possibility for the borrower to opt for the application of a fixed or
floating interest rate once a period in which the interest rate is calculated with reference to a fixed
interest rate is elapsed;

loan agreements granted to (i) directors and/or employees of Banca del Fucino; (ii) public entities,
foundations, registered associations; (iii) non-registered associations; and (iv) religious institutions
(it being understood that in case of joint liability of the borrowers (co-intestazione) of the loan
agreement, the requirements of points (i), (ii), (iii) and (iv) above shall be referred to all the
borrowers of the loan);

loan agreements in relation to which, as at 1t March 2019, the relevant borrower benefits from a
suspension of payment of the instalments (in full or for the principal component only);

loan agreements deriving from loans identified by the following codes, as reported in the relevant
loan agreement:

0608100029166, 0607100027605, 0605500028887, 0605500027542, 0605000017452,
0605000009171, 0605000008618, 0605000008476, 0605000003550, 0604500015069,
0604500011585, 0604500010067, 0604500007652, 0604000020463, 0604000011676,
0604000011196, 0604000010200, 0604000009942, 0604000009218, 0604000007918
0604000006790, 0603500012670, 0602800017480, 0602800016572, 0602800009722,
0602800007280, 0602800005767, 0602600018511, 0602600017316, 0602600015370,
0602600013599, 0602600010771, 0602000022610, 0602000018570, 0602000015636,
0602000014992, 0602000014586, 0602000007513, 0602000005640, 0602000004992,
0602000004912, 0602000004321, 0601900013524, 0601700025775, 0601700017502,
0601700017227, 0601700017143, 0601700015029, 0601700015025, 0601700006717
0601600024097, 0601600020642, 0601600019127, 0601600018878, 0601600007029,
0601500001819, 0601400011904, 0601300018351, 0601200018769, 0601200015855,
0601200013573, 0601200012311, 0601000026624, 0601000018431, 0601000008477,
0601000007929, 0601000002330, 0600900012017, 0600200013726, 0600200005597,
0600400026248, 0600400026303, 0600400026351, 0601000028900, 0601500028837

loan agreements in relation to which the information provided by the Assigned Debtors cannot be
verified by the Transferor.

With reference to criterion (xiii) above, all Claims secured by a mortgage having a priority ranking lower
than the first legal priority or by a formal and substantial second ranking mortgage (i.e., economic) have
been repurchased before the Subsequent Issue Date, pursuant to a repurchase agreement entered into on 24
May 2022 by the Issuer and Banca del Fucino.

The Claims included in the Subsequent Portfolio have been selected on the basis of the following objective
Criteria as at the relevant Valuation Date (or the different date specified in respect of the relevant criterion),
in order to ensure that the Subsequent Claims have the same legal and financial characteristics.
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The Subsequent Claims included in the Subsequent Portfolio derived from Loan Agreements:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
(v)
(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

secured by a mortgage over residential real estate assets where the relevant borrower (or borrowers in
the event of joint and several liability (co-intestazione)) is (or are, as the case may be) resident in
Italy;

entered into by (1) Banca del Fucino or (2) by Igea Banca S.p.A. merged by incorporation into Banca
del Fucino or (3) by other banks which do not belong to the Banca del Fucino group, whose Loans
have been purchased by Banca del Fucino by way of subrogation in accordance with Law No. 40 of 2
April 2007, as subsequently amended;

whose Assigned Debtors are classified by the Transferor as in bonis (within the meaning provided in
the instructions contained into the circular letter No. 272 of the Bank of Italy of 30 July 2008
(Matrice dei Conti));

disbursed between 7 november 2003 (included) and the relevant Valuation Date;
denominated in Euro;

in respect of which the loan amount has been fully disbursed and there is no obligation to advance or
disburse any further amounts;

in respect of which (i) as at the relevant Valuation Date no more than two instalments were due and
unpaid, and (ii) as at the date of 5 May 2022 no more than one instalment was due and unpaid,;

in relation to which as at the relevant Valuation Date at least one instalment has been paid, also in
respect to the preamortisation period,;

where the relevant amortisation plan under the relevant Loan Agreement provides for the so called
“French amortisation plan”;

in respect of which the original principal amount outstanding was not higher than Euro 1,200,000.00
(one million and two hundred thousand);

in respect of which pursuant to the amortisation plan provided under the relevant Loan Agreement,
the expiry date of the last instalment falls not before 30 April 2022;

where the relevant amortisation plan under the relevant Loan Agreement provides for monthly or
semi annually instalments;

which are secured by a first economic priority mortgage meaning (i) a first legal priority mortgage;
(ii) or a mortgage having a priority ranking lower than first legal priority provided that all obligations
secured by mortgage/mortgages with prevailing priority have been fully satisfied,;

entered into with Assigned Debtors belonging to one of the following SAE categories (Settore
Attivita Economica), pursuant to the Bank of Italy's customers’ classification as defined into the
circular No. 140 of the 11 February 1991, as subsequently amended and supplemented (Istruzioni
relative alla classificazione della clientela per settori e gruppi di attivitd economica): 600 (famiglie
consumatrici), 614 (famiglie produttrici/artigiani) or 615 (famiglie produttrici/altre famiglie
produttrici);
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(xv) that, as at the relevant Valuation Date, had (i) in relation to mortgage loans with a floating interest
rate, a spread not lower than 0.25% per annum; and (ii) in relation to mortgage loans with fixed
interest rate, a minimum interest rate not lower than 0.65% per annum;

(xvi) inrelation to Loans with a floating interest rate, which as at the relevant Valuation Date were indexed
to Euribor or to ECB rate,

the following are expressly excluded:

@ loan agreements which have benefited from facilities or public (regional and/or state) or European
Union financial subsidies with respect to principal and/or interest or from any other subsidy
provided under any applicable state, regional and/or European Union law or regulation, without
prejudice to the faculties of renegotiation provided by the applicable legislation in favor of the
Assigned Debtors;

(b)  loan agreements with mixed or modular interest rate which provide for (i) the passage to a floating
interest rate once an initial period in which the interest rate is calculated with reference to a fixed
interest rate is elapsed, or (ii) the possibility for the borrower to opt for the application of a fixed or
floating interest rate once a period in which the interest rate is calculated with reference to a fixed
interest rate is elapsed;

) loan agreements granted to (i) directors and/or employees of Banca del Fucino; (ii) public entities,
foundations, registered associations; (iii) non-registered associations; and (iv) religious institutions
(it being understood that in case of joint liability of the borrowers (co-intestazione) of the loan
agreement, the requirements of points (i), (ii), (iii) and (iv) above shall be referred to all the
borrowers of the loan);

(d) loan agreements in relation to which, as at the Subsequent Effective Date, the relevant borrower
benefits from a suspension of payment of the instalments (in full or for the principal component

only).

Characteristics of the Portfolio

The Claims included in the Portfolio have the characteristics that demonstrate capacity to produce funds to
serve payments due and payable on the Notes. However, neither the Originator nor the Issuer warrant the
solvency (credit standing) of any or all of the Borrower(s).

The Claims deriving from the Loan Agreements included in the Portfolio have the characteristics illustrated
in the following tables. For the purpose of the following tables and by reference to the calculation of the
loan-to-value ratios set out therein, the valuation of the Real Estate Assets which has been taken into
account is the valuation as at the date of disbursement of the relevant Loan.

With regard to the subrogation mechanism, Banca del Fucino has carried out in each case a credit
assessment in respect of the relevant borrower, in accordance with its credit and underwriting policies.

Summary of the Portfolio
Stratification tables as of the Effective Date

In the following range breakdown tables, numbers might not add up to total shown due to rounding.
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Summary Statistics

Overall portfolio

Total Current Balance (€) 135,470,511.01
Total Original Balance (€) 224,126,356.94
Number of Loans (#) 1,511.00
Number of Borrowers (#) 1,426.00
Average Current Balance (€) 89,656.20
Maximum Current Loan Balance (€) 963,128.39
Minimum Current Loan Balance (€) 514.40
Average Original Balance (€) 148,329.82
Maximum Original Loan Balance (€) 1,780,000.00
Minimum Original Loan Balance (€) 10,000.00
WA Seasoning (years) 7.18
WA Residual Term (years) 15.66
WA Interest Rate (for fixed rate loans) (%) 2.55%
WA Margin (for floating rate loans) (%) 2.28%
WA CLTV (%) 43.42%
WA OLTV (%) 59.61%
Loans current (% current balance) (%) 95.85%
Top 1 borrower (%) 0.71%
Top 10 borrowers (%) 4.93%
Top 20 borrowers (%) 8.37%
By Current Current balance

Principal Balance © Current balance (%) No Loans (#) | No Loans (%0)
©

Ok - 25k 3,871,111.58 2.86% 265 17.54%
25k - 50k 13,104,723.85 9.67% 347 22.96%
50k - 75k 14,840,607.00 10.95% 243 16.08%
75k - 100k 17,693,691.35 13.06% 203 13.43%
100K - 150k 26,379,407.49 19.47% 216 14.30%
150k - 200k 16,969,743.27 12.53% 98 6.49%
200k - 300k 22,232,952.76 16.41% 92 6.09%
300k - 400k 7,983,028.63 5.89% 24 1.59%
400k - 500k 6,720,598.38 4.96% 15 0.99%
500k - 750k 3,041,913.91 2.25% 5 0.33%
750k — 1m 2,632,732.79 1.94% 3 0.20%
Total 135,470,511.01 100.00% 1511 100.00%
* Upper boundary of each bucket is intended as included, lower boundary of each bucket is intended as
excluded

By Original

Principal Balance Current balar}(é(; Current balance (%) No Loans (#) | No Loans (%o)
©

Ok - 25k 192,008.84 0.14% 18 1.19%
25k - 50k 3,246,540.51 2.40% 135 8.93%
50k - 75k 7,832,749.51 5.78% 223 14.76%
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75k - 100k 13,822,959.60 10.20% 274 18.13%
100k - 150k 29,419,523.69 21.72% 395 26.14%
150k - 200k 24,001,352.14 17.72% 216 14.30%
200k - 300k 26,564,088.80 19.61% 153 10.13%
300k - 400k 11,603,994.17 8.57% 48 3.18%
400k - 500k 7,951,444.59 5.87% 25 1.65%
500k - 750k 4,693,542.46 3.46% 13 0.86%
750K - Im 3,455,388.61 2.55% 6 0.40%
1m-2m 2,686,918.09 1.98% 5 0.33%
Total 135,470,511.01 100.00% 1511 100.00%

* Upper boundary of each bucket is intended as included, lower boundary of each bucket is intended as

excluded

By Origination

Current balance

Current balance (%)

No Loans (#)

No Loans (%)

Year €

<=2007 9,204,708.63 6.79% 190 12.57%
2008 3,407,511.06 2.52% 64 4.24%
2009 7,969,896.89 5.88% 117 7.74%
2010 12,483,455.74 9.21% 195 12.91%
2011 13,684,651.75 10.10% 175 11.58%
2012 5,461,660.37 4.03% 85 5.63%
2013 3,449,266.75 2.55% 44 2.91%
2014 5,245,510.89 3.87% 56 3.71%
2015 6,447,935.01 4.76% 64 4.24%
2016 9,699,131.43 7.16% 89 5.89%
2017 14,961,222.91 11.04% 117 7.74%
2018 7,442,097.22 5.49% 64 4.24%
2019 7,447,997.34 5.50% 59 3.90%
2020 13,655,189.60 10.08% 87 5.76%
2021 14,910,275.42 11.01% 105 6.95%
Total 135,470,511.01 100.00% 1511 100.00%

By Seasoning (in
years)

Current balance (€)

Current balance (%)

No Loans (#)

No Loans (%)

Oyrs - 1yrs
1yrs - 2yrs
2yrs - 3yrs
3yrs - 4yrs
4yrs - 5yrs
5yrs - 6yrs
6yrs - 7yrs
7yrs - 8yrs
8yrs - 9yrs
9yrs - 10yrs
10yrs - 11yrs
11yrs - 12yrs
12yrs - 13yrs

4155-1253-8422.3

10,042,572.90
16,046,236.68
7,096,657.72
7,680,969.22
15,334,368.99
8,317,145.01
8,558,698.38
5,439,672.78
3,509,283.68
3,866,608.79
10,550,571.63
15,276,508.55
9,785,492.82

7.41%
11.84%
5.24%
5.67%
11.32%
6.14%
6.32%
4.02%
2.59%
2.85%
7.79%
11.28%
7.22%
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59
53
122
79
82
53
41
63
146
219
138

4.70%
7.02%
3.90%
3.51%
8.07%
5.23%
5.43%
3.51%
2.71%
4.17%
9.66%
14.49%
9.13%




13yrs - 14yrs 4,015,598.63 2.96% 77 5.10%
14yrs - 15yrs 3,830,759.04 2.83% 56 3.71%
15yrs - 20yrs 6,119,366.19 4.52% 146 9.66%
Total 135,470,511.01 100.00% 1511 100.00%
* Upper boundary of each bucket is intended as included, lower boundary of each bucket is intended as
excluded

By Remaining Current balance (€) | Current balance (%) | No Loans (#) | No Loans (%)
Term (in years)

Oyrs - 5yrs 8,349,979.63 6.16% 322 21.31%
5yrs - 10yrs 31,434,534.53 23.20% 438 28.99%
10yrs - 15yrs 25,237,777.82 18.63% 251 16.61%
15yrs - 20yrs 30,756,918.05 22.70% 256 16.94%
20yrs - 25yrs 24,627,669.57 18.18% 163 10.79%
>25yrs 15,063,631.41 11.12% 81 5.36%
Grand Total 135,470,511.01 100.00% 1511 100.00%

* Upper boundary of each bucket is intended as included, lower boundary of each bucket is intended as

excluded

By Interest rate
type

Current balance (€)

Current balance (%)

No Loans (#)

No Loans (%)

Floating 90,967,472.89 67.15% 994 65.78%
Fixed 33,658,153.47 24.85% 396 26.21%
Floating with cap 10,844,884.65 8.01% 121 8.01%
Total 135,470,511.01 100.00% 1511 100.00%

By Reference rate

Current balance (€)

Current balance (%)

No Loans (#)

No Loans (%)

Euribor 6 month 76,750,899.95 75.38% 839 75.25%
Euribor 3 month 19,136,610.03 18.80% 175 15.70%
ECB rate 5,924,847.56 5.82% 101 9.06%
Total Floating 101,812,357.54 100.00% 1115 100.00%

By Interest Rate
Coupon (% only for

Current balance

Current balance (%)

No Loans (#)

No Loans (%)

currently fixed rate ©

loans)

0% - 1% 2,846,466.42 8.46% 19 4.80%
1% - 2% 12,956,118.81 38.49% 106 26.77%
2% - 3% 10,821,445.79 32.15% 110 27.78%
3% - 4% 1,923,094.03 5.71% 22 5.56%
4% - 5% 856,243.91 2.54% 24 6.06%
5% - 6% 3,165,839.83 9.41% 84 21.21%
6% - 7% 1,065,942.10 3.17% 30 7.58%
>7% 23,002.58 0.07% 1 0.25%
Total Fixed 33,658,153.47 100.00% 396 100.00%

4155-1253-8422.3

116




* Upper boundary of each bucket is intended as included, lower boundary of each bucket is intended as

excluded

By Margin (% only

for currently Current b alarg Current balance (%) | No Loans (#) No Lo(ao/n§
floating loans) 0
0% - 1% 3,564,006.14 3.50% 49 4.39%
1% - 2% 49,599,012.35 48.72% 549 49.24%
2% - 3% 33,301,603.13 32.71% 354 31.75%
3% - 4% 11,831,849.26 11.62% 112 10.04%
4% - 5% 2,985,456.29 2.93% 36 3.23%
5% - 6% 476,698.26 0.47% 13 1.17%
6% - 7% 53,732.11 0.05% 2 0.18%
Total Floating 101,812,357.54 100.00% 1115 100.00%

* Upper boundary of each bucket is intended as included, lower boundary of each bucket is intended as

excluded

E?’lez?érr?ci/m Current balan((ét; Current balance (%) | No Loans (#) | No Loans (%)
Monthly 133,492,401.26 98.54% 1480 97.95%
Semi annually 1,701,250.83 1.26% 27 1.79%
Quartely 276,858.92 0.20% 4 0.26%
Total 135,470,511.01 100.00% 1511 100.00%

By Amortisation

Current balance

Current balance (%)

No Loans (#)

No Loans (%)

Type (9]

French 135,470,511.01 100.00% 1511 100.00%
Total 135,470,511.01 100.00% 1511 100.00%
?éé m{;dts Current balance (€) Current bala(r;/cis No Loans (#) | No Loans (%0)
0 129,854,818.82 95.85% 1455 96.29%
1 5,615,692.19 4.15% 56 3.71%
Total 135,470,511.01 100.00% 1511 100.00%
FB{)égl?grzrower Current balar}(é(; Current bala(g/(:; No Loans (#) No Loans (%)
Lazio 102,062,409.17 75.34% 1040 68.83%
Abruzzo 17,077,593.60 12.61% 318 21.05%
Sicilia 10,372,279.23 7.66% 104 6.88%
Others regions 5,958,229.01 4.40% 49 3.24%
Total 135,470,511.01 100.00% 1,511 100.00%
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By Borrower

Current balance

Current balance

No Loans (#)

No Loans (%)

Geographic Area € (%)

Central Italy 104,601,699.08 77.21% 1060 70.15%
South and Islands 28,808,926.75 21.27% 435 28.79%
Northern Italy 1,971,288.45 1.46% 12 0.79%
Not Available 88,596.73 0.07% 4 0.26%
Total 135,470,511.01 100.00% 1,511 100.00%

By Mortgage

Current balance

Current balance

No Loans (#)

No Loans (%)

Economic Lien © (%0)
First 135,470,511.01 100.00% 1,511.00 100.00%
Total 135,470,511.01 100.00% 1511 100.00%

By Current Loan

Current balance

Current balance

No Loans (#)

No Loans (%)

to Value © (%0)

0% - 10% 5,255,605 3.88% 211 13.96%
10% - 20% 13,303,230 9.82% 257 17.01%
20% - 30% 21,871,795 16.15% 259 17.14%
30% - 40% 22,159,416 16.36% 240 15.88%
40% - 50% 21,641,933 15.98% 177 11.71%
50% - 60% 19,360,384 14.29% 160 10.59%
60% - 70% 16,146,281 11.92% 114 7.54%
70% - 80% 12,950,808 9.56% 73 4.83%
80% - 90% 1,224,809 0.90% 10 0.66%
90% - 100% 1,556,249 1.15% 10 0.66%
Total 135,470,511.01 100.00% 1511 100.00%

* Upper boundary of each bucket is intended as included, lower boundary of each bucket is intended as

excluded.

Current Loan to Value is computed by calculating the property value pro-rata if the property has a

mortgage on

more than one loan.

By Original Loan

Current balance

Current balance

No Loans (#)

No Loans (%)

to Value © (%)

0% - 10% 521,651 0.39% 17 1.13%
10% - 20% 3,362,891 2.48% 64 4.24%
20% - 30% 8,685,475 6.41% 145 9.60%
30% - 40% 11,354,910 8.38% 145 9.60%
40% - 50% 18,059,922 13.33% 207 13.70%
50% - 60% 20,540,065 15.16% 201 13.30%
60% - 70% 24,702,273 18.23% 253 16.74%
70% - 80% 37,990,902 28.04% 374 24.75%
80% - 90% 5,978,722 4.41% 62 4.10%
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90% - 100% 3,012,070 2.22% 29 1.92%
>100% 1,261,630 0.93% 14 0.93%
Total 135,470,511.01 100.00% 1511 100.00%

* Upper boundary of each bucket is intended as included, lower boundary of each bucket is intended as

excluded.

Current Loan to Value is computed by calculating the property value pro-rata if the property has a

mortgage on

Pool Audit Reports

more than one loan.

Pursuant to article 22(2) of the EU Securitisation Regulation and the EBA Guidelines on STS Criteria, the
Pool Audit Reports have been prepared in respect of the Portfolio prior to the Subsequent Issue Date and no

significant adverse findings have been found.
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THE ORIGINATOR, THE ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES PROVIDER, THE SUBORDINATED
LOAN PROVIDER, THE SUBSEQUENT SUBORDINATED LOAN PROVIDER, THE
COLLECTION ACCOUNT BANK AND THE SERVICER

Banca del Fucino S.p.A., a joint stock company (societa per azioni) incorporated in the Republic of Italy,
whose registered office is located at Via Tomacelli 107, 00186 Rome, Italy, enrolled in the Register of
Enterprises of Rome under No. 04256050875, Fiscal Code and VAT number 04256050875 and in the
register of banks held by the Bank of Italy pursuant to Article 13 of the Consolidated Banking Act under
No. 5640 (“Banca del Fucino” or the “Bank”).

The Bank is the oldest private and independent Roman bank. Founded in 1923 by Giovanni and Carlo
Torlonia, its name is linked to the realisation of reclamation works and reorganisation of the Fucino area in
Abruzzo (between the second half of the 19" century and the beginning of the 20" century, often referred to
as "the largest hydraulic work of the united Italy").

Over time, the Bank has developed a reputation for being a trusted point of reference for the management
and enhancement of large real estate portfolios, and has established itself as one of Italy’s most important
banks. It has done this by developing personal and exclusive relationships with its customers, and through a
progressive and balanced territorial expansion in Rome, Abruzzo, Lazio, Marche and Lombardy, where it is
present with a branch based in Milan.

The Bank currently has 32 branches, 20 of which are distributed in the Metropolitan City of Roma Capitale.
Its general management and registered office are based in via Tomacelli 107, 00186, in the center of Rome,
close to the Ara Pacis, Piazza del Popolo and Piazza di Spagna. Its private banking division, based in the
Palazzetto Baschenis Borghese, in the center of Rome, has more recently integrated its offer with new
financial products and services selected by highly professional private bankers.

Acting independently in the selection of qualified partners, the Bank stands out in terms of financial
services for the management of savings and the granting of credit to families and small enterprises.

Since 2001, the Bank has been utilising the IT system of the CEDACRI group, a leader in Italy in banking
outsourcing solutions. Since 2012, the Bank has been part of the shareholding structure, and is represented
at the board of directors, of CEDACRI S.p.A.

Banca del Fucino is the parent company of “Gruppo Bancario Igea Banca” as the result of the completion of
the Business Project between the Banks of the group, i.e. (former) Igea Banca S.p.A. and (former) Banca
del Fucino S.p.A.

In October 2019 (former) Igea Banca S.p.A. acquired the full control of the (former) Banca del Fucino
S.p.A. after having obtained all the required and relevant authorizations for the completion of the
acquisition; as a result, the newly formed Igea Banca Group was registered in the Banking Group on 13
December 20109.

The “merging” process between the two banks - the second step of the Business Project- was completed in
July 2020 (partial demerger by incorporation of the Subsidiary into the Parent Company, after the sale of
the "digital" business unit from the Parent Company to the Subsidiary), in the context of which the Parent
Company (formerly lIgea Banca SpA) took on the name of Banca del Fucino S.p.A. and the Subsidiary
(formerly Banca del Fucino S.p.A.) took on the name of Igea Digital Bank S.p.A.

The information contained in this section of this Prospectus relates to and has been obtained from
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Banca del Fucino. The delivery of this Prospectus shall not create any implication that there has been no
change in the affairs of Banca del Fucino since the date hereof, or that the information contained or
referred to in this section of this Prospectus is correct as of any time subsequent to its date.
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COLLECTION POLICY AND RECOVERY PROCEDURES

Banca del Fucino Credit and Collection Policy

General

Banca del Fucino manages the payment of interest and repayment of principal under the mortgage loans
through an automatic debit procedure (Procedura Mutui/Cedacri), wherebypayments due under mortgage
loans are automatically debited to, and withdrawn from, the borrower's account with Banca del Fucino.
Each account manager responsible for the relevant mortgage loan and current relationship with the
borrower receives daily and monthly reports indicating all instalments due and payable during the relevant
period, and any accrued but unpaid instalments. As a result, any unpaid instalments are promptly detected
by the individual branches, which subsequently take the necessary action for recovery.

Banca del Fucino’s audit department is also responsible for performing periodical controls on Banca del
Fucino loan servicing and collection procedures.

In the event that a borrower's account is closed prior to the full repayment of the mortgage loan, the
borrower receives an advance notice stating that an instalment is due and that it can be paid either by cash at
any branch of Banca del Fucino, or automatically by SDD.

If the amount standing to the credit of the borrower's account from which payments in respect of mortgage
loans are to be debited is insufficient to satisfy their payment obligations in full, any instalment due and
payable will not be debited to the account, unless the account manager has satisfactory evidence that the
borrower's account will be credited (within a few days) with the funds necessary to meet the oustanding
payment.

Moreover, if instalments due and payable are not paid within 15 days of their due date, a phone collection
procedure is commenced.

If instalments due and payable are not paid within 30 days of their due date, the relevant account manager
sends an overdue payment letter to the borrower, together witha notification of acceleration specifying that
the repayment plan in question is no longer in force and that the whole outstanding balance has become due
from that point onwards, the borrower's position will be monitored in detail by Banca del Fucino’s
“Monitoraggio Crediti” unit.

Credit monitoring process

The absolute priority of the manager of the relevant position is to carry out preventive action aimed at
avoiding the deterioration of credit positions belonging to its assigned portfolio.

This activity does not end with the periodic review of the position, but must be implemented continuously
through a series of actions, such as verification of:

- the regularity of the performance of the entire set of relations held by the client;
- adverse eventualities as a result of which to take precautionary steps to defend its credit position;

- compliance with the requirements and conditions for the classification of positions subject to
forbearence measures, with particular reference to the observation period required by law;

- the market conjuncture and the relevant product sector in order to better guess possible future business
behaviors;

- related and connected relations.
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Detection of abnormal positions can take place:

- during the management of the report, based on daily elements (overdrafts, outstanding checks,
defaults, etc.) or periodic elements (delayed collections on advance receivables, protests, etc.);

- during the investigation of new credit/revision file or during the deliberation by the deliberating body;

- during periodic monitoring by risk management staff on the basis of performance and/or system
anomalies reported outside the Credit Quality Management procedure (unauthorized overdrafts,
enlarged non-performing loans, prejudicial, etc.);

- through Cedacri’s Credit Quality Management procedure which is based on a timely and daily
anomaly detection algorithm (Early Warning System).

Non performing loans: Past due 90 days and Unlikely to Pay (Posizioni in Inadempienza Probabile
managed by Gestione UTP/PD c/o Direzione NPE)

Mortgage loans are classified as non performing exposures when they become “Past Due 90 days” (with
materiality thresholds provided for by the directive “New Dod”) or “Unlikely To Pay (UTP)”. This latter
classification refers to cases where “the debtor is assessed as unlikely to pay its credit obligations in full
without realisation of collateral, regardless of the existence of any past-due amount or of the number of
days past due”. Generally the “UTP” classification is referred to loans which show anomalies of a
“structural” nature (i.e. the borrowers' creditworthiness falls as a result of, for example, lack of
profitability).

Any securitised mortgage loan is automatically classified under this list when the “Past Due 90 day”
deadline occurs or after a loan-by-loan analysis in the case of “UTP” classification.

The approach used by this operating unit is “non judicial” and consists primarily of negotiation of the terms
and conditions in a new ad hoc repayment plan, with the aim to reach a faster collection and recovery of the
debt. If such “negotiation” is not possible or if it is not complied with, the file is transferred to Banca del
Fucino’s litigation department (unit Crediti in Sofferenza), which will start judicial proceedings.

Cancellation of the debt

In general, any cancellation of the debt will be allowed only to the extent of the amount of the default
interest (interessi di mora) although on a case by case basis, Banca del Fucino will evaluate, as part of an
overall out-of-court settlement, cancellation of also (in whole or in part) interest accrued but unpaid on the
mortgage loan that is not default interest if it believes that an out-of-court settlement would be more
efficient than a forced recovery in the particular circumstances. Cancellation of debt in respect of the
principal amount of the mortgage loan is not allowed.

Non-Performing Loans (Crediti in Sofferenza)

If “non judicial” recovery by the U.O. Gestione PD e UTP unit fails, a credit recovery process is started
through the foreclosure of the real estate by Banca del Fucino’s litigation department (Unit Crediti in
Sofferenza)with the appointment of external legal counsel.

In the case of loans secured by “voluntary” mortgages, real estate enforcement procedure provides a series
of steps and the involvement of the local Court where the collateral property is located. All acts that are
necessary to the expropriation of the property must be served on the borrower and/or the attorney appointed
for any defenses.

If a mortgage loan has been executed in the form of a public deed, Banca del Fucino can serve a copy of the
mortgage loan agreement, stamped by a notary public with an order for its execution (formula esecutiva),
directly on the borrower without the need to obtain a titolo esecutivo from the court. An atto di precetto is
served on the debtor together with either the titolo esecutivo or the mortgage loan agreement, as the case
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may be.

Within 10 days of filing, but not later than 90 days from the date on which the notice of the atto di precetto
is served, Banca del Fucino may request a sale order, which must then be filed at the competent Court.

Banca del Fucino is required to search the land registry to ascertain the identity of the current owner of the
property, and must then serve a notice of the request for the sale order on the current owner, even if no
transfer of the property from the original borrower or mortgagor to a third party purchaser has been
previously notified to the creditor. Not earlier than 10 days and not later than 90 days after serving the
pre-sale order, Banca del Fucino may request the court to foreclose on the mortgaged property. The court
may delay its decision in respect of the mortgage lender's request in order to hear the borrower’s case.

If the court decides to proceed with a sale order (vendita con incanto), it appoints an expert to evaluate the
property so as to determine the minimum bid price for the property before ordering the sale by auction. If a
property does not sell, the court arranges new auctions to be held with a progressively lower minimum bid
price, until the mortgaged property is sold (the permitted reduction applying to each subsequent auction
being one fourth of the bid price of the previous auction, or that set forth by the laws applicable from time to
time).

Banca del Fucino normally obtains security with registration of a first or substantially similar degree of
mortgage on assets assessed well beyond the amount of the mortgage loan granted, and therefore the
average judicial or out-of-court recoveries by Banca del Fucino, based on the available historical data, are
consistent with the defaulted amount. The amount to be recovered is in fact generally within the limits of
the amount of the mortgage, which is usually two times the original principal of the loan.

In certain cases, mortgage loans are settled through gradual repayment plans, and often a settlement
agreement is reached, even where legal proceedings have been commenced, in proximity to the auction.

Once a position is transferred to Banca del Fucino’s Gestione Sofferenze department, it is classified as
non-performing (sofferenza) if it is manifestly clear that the primary debtor (excluding the guarantor) is
insolvent and that the insolvency is continuing.

Any settlement or waiver is aimed at maximising the recovery amounts and shortening the recovery time, as
compared to the case of a forced recovery.

Credit risk - Management and control
General

The principal categories of risks inherent to Banca del Fucino’s business are credit risk, concentration risk,
counterparty risk, market risk (interest rate risk and price risk, which also includes exchange rate risk),
liquidity risk and operational risk. According to national rules, risks concerning shareholding exposures and
risk assets towards “related subjects” are also subject to specific monitoring.

Credit risk is the risk of losses due to non-performance by the counterparty (specifically the obligation to
repay loans) or, more broadly, the failure of customers or their guarantors to meet their payment
obligations.

Banca del Fucino has always aimed at supporting both the borrowing needs of households and the
development and consolidation of businesses, especially small and medium-sized firms, which typify the
local economies where Banca del Fucino operates. In keeping with previous years, the lending policy
adopted by the Banking Group’s specific lines of businesses seeks to respond to the needs of individuals
and firms, while paying particular attention to the difficult economic situation, credit risk and an adequate
level of guarantees.

Banca del Fucino is not currently active in credit derivatives.
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Banca del Fucino has internal policies, practice and procedures regulating the granting of credit,
administration of credit-risk bearing portfolios and risk mitigation. The policies, practice and procedures of
Banca del Fucino in this regard broadly include the following:

(@) criteria for the granting of credit and the process for approving, amending, renewing and refinancing
loans;

(b) systems in use to manage the administration and monitoring of the credit-risk bearing credit
portfolios and exposures;

(c) policies and procedures in relation to risk mitigation techniques.
Organisation

The Bank’s regulations for the management of credit, contained in its credit manual, establish a prudent
approach to risk assessment. At the preliminary stage, borrowers are required to provide all the
documentation needed for an adequate assessment of their credit rating. Such documentation must allow the
assessment of whether the amount requested, the technical form of the loan and the project to be financed
are all consistent; it must also allow the characteristics and qualities of borrowers to be identified, having
regard to all forms of relationship with them.

The risks associated with individual customers from the same group must be considered as a whole. If there
are legal or economic relations between individual customers, these parties form a single exposure from a
risk perspective (economic group or risk group).

Pricing and/or income from the relationship cannot be a factor when evaluating credit rating and agreeing a
loan.

The preliminary process depends on the type of customer concerned. For individual and small businesses,
the granting of credit for relatively small amounts is dealt with at branch level. This follows a simplified
process using an internal scoring system, which is an IT tool that checks credit rating at the time new lines
of credit are granted, using both internal and external sources of information. For better control over the
process of granting credit to individual customers and small businesses, “alerts” have been introduced on
decision-making powers, identified on the basis of the risk profile attributed to the counterparty by the
internal scoring system. Account managers monitor and administer loans day by day and are responsible for
their granting. If customer risk increases, the operating objective is to contain Banca del Fucino risk by
promptly adopting all the necessary measures. As far as property securing loans is concerned, the bank has
adopted a process which constantly updates its estimated value, also by using statistical methods based on
geo-referenced systems.

Management, measurement and monitoring systems

The credit process is organised as follows:

a) granting of credit, which involves: investigation, assessment, decision, formalisation of the credit
and any guarantees;

b) management of credit, which involves: way utilised, monitoring, review of facility, management of
anomalies;

C) management of non-performing loans and recovery of loans.

Banca del Fucino uses a rating system developed by Cedacri, which is used for assessing customer ratings
and for granting and monitoring credit; such system is developed with reference to five types of
counterparties, with whom the group structurally operates, namely:

a) Individuals;
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b) Small Business;

C) PMI (with < Euro 25 million in turnover);
d) Large Corporate (with > Euro 25 million in turnover);
e) Real Estate companies.

The credit rating system (CRS) plays an important role in the monitoring and management of credit risk,
allowing account managers to check on changes in the credit status of customers and quickly identify any
deterioration in the standing of borrowers.

The credit policies govern the way in which Banca del Fucino assumes credit risk with customers, by
fostering balanced growth in loans to counterparties with higher “credit ratings” and regulating/limiting the
grant of credit to riskier customers. This also includes the regulations for “critical sectors” i.e. sectors that,
based on assessments using internal and external data, exhibit such systemic risk elements that companies
in certain sectors should be more carefully scrutinised when granting credit. Credit to companies in these
sectors is regulated by more stringent limits than ordinary ones.

There is a risk management unit improving the management of customers showing initial signs of distress;
the unit's specific tasks involve providing support to account managers for specific anomalous positions,
reviewing the effectiveness of actions taken and spreading a general culture focused on safeguarding
against credit risk and reducing it.

Credit risk mitigation techniques

The credit risk associated with individual counterparties or groups is mitigated by obtaining security
(pledges, mortgages and special privileges) and/or personal guarantees (sureties, endorsements, credit
mandates and letters of patronage).

The degree of mitigation attributed to each guarantee is governed by specific regulations that take into
account the varying nature of the guarantees obtained.

126

4155-1253-8422.3



THE ISSUER

Introduction

The Issuer was incorporated in the Republic of Italy as a special purpose vehicle pursuant to article 3 of the
Securitisation Law, as a societa a responsabilita limitata on 18 January 2019 under the name Fucino RMBS
S.r.l., with registered office at via San Prospero 4, 20121 Milan, Italy, fiscal code and VAT 10621230969,
(telephone number: 02 4547 2239; fax number: 02 7202 2410). The Issuer is enrolled with the companies’
register of Milan, Monza, Brianza and Lodi and in the register of special purpose vehicle held by Bank of
Italy pursuant to the regulation issued by the Bank of Italy on 7 June 2017 (“Disposizioni in materia di
obblighi informativi e statistici delle societa veicolo coinvolte in operazioni di cartolarizzazione™) under
No 35563.6. The duration of the Issuer is until 31 December 2100. The authorised and issued capital of the
Issuer is Euro 10,000 fully paid up as of the date of this Prospectus

Since the date of its incorporation, the Issuer has not engaged in any business not related with the purchase
of the Initial Portfolio and the Subsequent Portfolio, other than: (i) the authorisation and the execution of
this Prospectus and the other Transaction Documents to which it is a party; (ii) the activities incidental to
any registration under the laws of the Republic of Italy; (iii) the activities referred to or contemplated in this
Prospectus and in the Transaction Documents; and (iv) the authorisation by it of the Notes and no dividends
have been declared or paid.

The Issuer has no employees. The authorised and issued capital of the Issuer is Euro 10,000 fully paid up as
of the date of this Prospectus. The quotaholder of the Issuer is Fenice Trust Company S.r.1., which holds the
entire quota capital (the “Quotaholder”) as trustee of Rubino Finance Trust. To the best of its knowledge,
the Issuer is not aware of direct or indirect ownership or control apart from its Quotaholder. Under the
Quotaholder Agreement, the Quotaholder has undertaken to exercise its voting rights in such a way as not
prejudice the interest of the Noteholders, the ratings of the Rated Notes and the Transaction.

The Issuer’s LEI number is 8156000FD93A1B601674.
Principal Activities

The sole corporate object of the Issuer as set out in article 3 of its by-laws (statuto) and in compliance with
the Securitisation Law is to perform securitisation transactions (operazioni di cartolarizzazione) and issue
asset backed securities.

The execution by the Issuer of the Transaction Documents and the issue of the Class A Notes, the Class B
Notes and the Class J Notes were authorised by board of directors’ resolutions of the Issuer which took
place on 20 March 2019 and, with reference to the issue of the Class Al Notes, by board of directors’
resolutions of the Issuer which took place on 23 May 2022.

So long as any of the Notes remains outstanding, the Issuer shall not, without the consent of the
Representative of the Noteholders and as provided for in the Conditions, incur any other indebtedness for
borrowed moneys or engage in any business (other than acquiring and holding the Portfolio, issuing the
Notes and entering into the Transaction Documents to which it is a party), pay any dividends, repay or
otherwise return any equity capital, have any subsidiaries, employees or premises, consolidate or merge
with any person or convey or transfer its property or assets to any person (otherwise than as contemplated in
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the Conditions) or increase its capital. The Issuer will covenant to observe, inter alia, those restrictions
which are detailed in the Conditions.

Quotaholder

The quotaholder of the Issuer is Fenice Trust Company S.r.l., which holds the entire quota capital (the
“Quotaholder™) as trustee of Rubino Finance Trust.

To the best of its knowledge, the Issuer is not aware of direct or indirect ownership or control apart from its
Quotaholder.

Under the Quotaholder Agreement, the Quotaholder has undertaken to exercise its voting rights in such a
way as not prejudice the interest of the Noteholders, the ratings of the Rated Notes and the Transaction

Directors

The current directors of the Issuer are as follows:

Chairman of the board of directors Mr. Antonio Caricato, an employee of Centotrenta
Servicing S.p.A., a company providing services
related to securitisation transactions. Mr. Antonio
Caricato was appointed by the Quotaholder from
the date of incorporation of the Issuer until the
date of resignation or revocation. The domicile of
Mr. Antonio Caricato, in his capacity as Chairman
of the Board of Directors of the Issuer, is at Via
San Prospero, 4, 20121 Milan.

Director Mr. Marco Palazzo, an employee of Centotrenta
Servicing S.p.A. Mr. Marco Palazzo was
appointed by the Quotaholder from the date of
incorporation of the Issuer until the date of
resignation or revocation. The domicile of Mr.
Marco Palazzo, in his capacity as Director of the
Issuer, is at Via San Prospero, 4, 20121 Milan.

Director Mrs. Marta Alio, an employee of Banca del
Fucino. Mrs Marta Alio was appointed by the
Quotaholder on March 2nd, 2020 until the date of
resignation or revocation. The domicile of Mrs
Marta Alio in her capacity as Director of the
Issuer is Via San Prospero 4, 2021 Milan.

The directors of the Issuer listed above has the requisite experience and expertise for the management of its
business.

Statutory auditor

At the date of this Prospectus, the sole statutory auditor of the Issuer, appointed at the quotaholders’
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meeting of the Issuer on 21 April 2022 is Ettore Falcone, whose business address for the purpose of this
appointment is Via San Prospero 4, 2021 Milan.

The auditing firm is KPMG S.p.A., appointed on 14 June 2019.
Conflicts of interest

There are no potential conflicts of interest between the duties of the directors and their private interest or
other duties.

Capitalisation and indebtedness statement

The capitalisation of the Issuer as at the date of this Prospectus, adjusted for the issue of the Class A1 Notes,
is as follows:

Quota Capital Euro

Issued and fully paid up 10,000

Loan capital (Securitisation) Euro

Class Al Residential Mortgage Backed Floating Rate Notes due December 2063 118,000,000

Class B Residential Mortgage Backed Floating Rate Notes due December 2063 5,997,000.00
(outstanding as at
the Subsequent
Issue Date Euro
5,000,000

Class J Residential Mortgage Backed Floating Rate and Additional Return Notes due  14,990,000.00
December 2063
(outstanding as at

the Subsequent

Issue Date Euro

12,480,000
Total loan capital (Euro) 135,480,000.00
Total capitalisation and indebtedness 135,490,000.00

Subject to the above, as at the date of this Prospectus, the Issuer has no borrowings or indebtedness in
respect of borrowings (including loan capital issued or created but unissued), term loans, liabilities under
acceptances or acceptance credits, mortgages, charges or guarantees or other contingent liabilities (other
than to pay the purchase price in respect of the Subsequent Claims comprised in the Subsequent Portfolio).
Financial statements and auditors’ report

The Issuer’s accounting reference date is 31 December in each year.
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The financial information of the Issuer derives from the statutory financial statements of the Issuer as at and
for the years ended on 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021. The statutory financial statements of the
Issuer as at and for the year ended on 31 December 2020 have been prepared in accordance with IAS/IFRS
Accounting Standards principles in respect of which an auditors’ report has been delivered by KPMG
S.p.A. on 12 June 2021. The statutory financial statements of the Issuer as at and for the year ended on 31
December 2020 have been prepared in accordance with IAS/IFRS Accounting Standards principles in
respect of which an auditors’ report has been delivered by KPMG S.p.A. on 5 April 2022. Such financial
statements, together with the report of KPMG S.p.A. and the accompanying notes, are incorporated by
reference into this Prospectus. The financial information is incorporated by reference into this Prospectus.
The financial information is incorporated by reference into this Prospectus (see the section headed
“Documents incorporated by reference”).

Independent Auditors

The auditors of the Issuer are KPMG S.p.A. for the period 2019-2027. KPMG S.p.A. has audited the
financial statements of the Issuer in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italia)
promulgated pursuant to article 11.3 of Legislative decree no. 39/10 as at and for the years ended on 31
December 2020 and 31 December 2021. The audit report on 2020 audited financial statements of the Isuer
has been issued by KPMG S.p.A. on 12 June 2021. The audit report on 2021 audited financial statements of
the Issuer has been issued by KPMG S.p.A. on 5 April 2022.

KPMG S.p.A. is a member of Assirevi, the Italian professional association of auditors and as required by
article 17 “Setting up the Register” of Ministerial decree no. 145 of 20 June 2012 “Regulation
implementing article 2.2/3/4/7 and article 7.7 of Legislative decree no. 39 of 27 January 2010,
implementing Directive 2006/43/EC on statutory audits of annual accounts and consolidated accounts
(12G0167)”.

KPMG S.p.A. is included in the Register of Certified Auditors held by the Ministery for Economy and
Finance — Stage general accounting office, at no. 70623.

KPMG S.p.A. address is: Via Vittor Pisani, 25, 20124 Milan.
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

This Prospectus should be read and construed in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Issuer for the financial years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021,
respectively, together in each case with the audit report thereon, which have been previously published or
are published simultaneously with this Prospectus and which have been filed with the Euronext Dublin.
Any documents themselves incorporated by reference in the documents incorporated by reference in this
Prospectus shall not form part of this Prospectus.

Copies of documents deemed to be incorporated by reference in this Prospectus may be obtained at the
following webpages:

1) Issuer’s audited annual financial statements, including the auditors’ report thereon, notes thereto
and the relevant accounting principles in respect of the year ended on 31 December 2020, that can
be obtained at the webpage:
https://www.bancafucino.it/sites/default/files/2022-06/Bilancio-2020-FucinoRMBS.pdf; and

2) Issuer’s audited annual financial statements, including the auditors’ report thereon, notes thereto
and the relevant accounting principles in respect of the year ended on 31 December 2021, that can
be obtained at the webpage:
https://www.bancafucino.it/sites/default/files/2022-06/Bilancio-2021-FucinoRMBS.pdf;

3) report pursuant to Article 2429, paragraph 2 of the Italian Civil Code related to the Issuer’s audited
annual financial statements as at 31 December 2021 that can be obtained at the webpage:
https://www.bancafucino.it/sites/default/files/2022-06/Bilancio-2021-FucinoRMBS-Relazione_Si

ndaco.pdf;

This Prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference will be available on the Euronext Dublin
website (being, as at the date of this Prospectus, https://live.euronext.com/).

The table below sets out the relevant page references for the financial statements of the Issuer for the
financial years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021, respectively, together in each case with
the audit report thereon. The parts of the documents that are not listed in the cross-reference list and
therefore are not incorporated by reference, are either not relevant for the investors or covered in another
part of the Prospectus.

Documents Information contained Page
Report of the independent auditing firm pursuant to
Article 14 of Legislative Decree no. 39 of 27 January 16
2010 and 10 of Regulation (EU) no. 537 of 16 April
2014

. . Corporate offices 9
Flnancgll stattta)ments asat 31 Management Report 10-21

ecember 2021 Balance Sheet 22
Profit and Loss Account 22
Statement of Comprehensive Income 23
Statement of Changes in Equity 24-26
Cash flow statement 27
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https://www.bancafucino.it/sites/default/files/2022-06/Bilancio-2020-FucinoRMBS.pdf
https://www.bancafucino.it/sites/default/files/2022-06/Bilancio-2021-FucinoRMBS.pdf
https://www.bancafucino.it/sites/default/files/2022-06/Bilancio-2021-FucinoRMBS-Relazione_Sindaco.pdf
https://www.bancafucino.it/sites/default/files/2022-06/Bilancio-2021-FucinoRMBS-Relazione_Sindaco.pdf
https://live.euronext.com/

Notes to the accounts 28-57
Report pursuant to Article 2429, paragraph 2 of the
Italian Civil Code related to the Financial Statements 1-5
as at 31 December 2020
Report of the independent auditing firm pursuant to
Article 14 of Legislative Decree no. 39 of 27 January 6-10
2010 and 10 of Regulation (EU) no. 537 of 16 April
Financial statements as at 31 2014
December 2020 Management Report 13-19

Balance Sheet 20
Income Statement 20
Statement of Comprehensive Income 21
Statement of Changes in Equity 22-24
Cash flow statement 25
Notes to the accounts 26-51

Report pursuant to Article 2429,

paragraph 2 of the Italian Civil Entire

Code related to the Financial Entire document document

Statements as at 31 December

2021

For avoidance of doubt, the page references of each of the financial statements as at, respectively, 31
December 2020 and 31 December 2021 are those of the relevant pdf document.
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THE REPRESENTATIVE OF THE NOTEHOLDERS AND THE SECURITY TRUSTEE

130 Finance S.r.l. is a limited liability company (societa a responsabilita limitata) incorporated in the
Republic of Italy, registered in the Register of Enterprises of Milan, Monza, Brianza and Lodi under
number 1603211, Fiscal Code and VAT number 12975990156, whose registered office is located at Via
Dante, 4 — 20121 Milan, with paid-in share capital of Euro 100,000 (“130 Finance”). 130 Finance is an
Italian professional services provider, specialised in providing services to securitisation transactions, in
particular acting as representative of the noteholders, computation agent and back up special servicer in
several structured finance deals. 130 Finance has a gained a relevant track record in portfolio performance
analysis and in monitoring several securitisation transactions involving many different types of assets
(residential and commercial mortgages, lease receivables, public and local entities receivables, non
performing assets, trade receivables). 130 Finance has developed an expertise in developing and managing
proprietary software tools for performing financial and legal structure analysis and monitoring, either on
collateral asset pools and on single and multi originators type of deals.

130 Finance is the editor of the site Securitisation.it, and offers publishing services and provides reports on
Italian securitisation topics to institutional associations. The site is online since 2001, and is collecting and
analysing all the data of the securitisation transactions originated in the Italian market since the introduction
of the Italian Securitisation Law in 1999. The site publishes independent researches and analyses on the
primary Italian market as a whole and on some specific, and most frequently securitised, asset classes, as
well as providing a complete collection of the regulatory framework in place in Italy since its origin, a
database of SPVs and a collection of transaction reports.

Additional information is available on the company website: www.130finance.com (for the avoidance of
doubt, such website does not constitute part of this Prospectus).

The information contained in this section of this Prospectus relates to and has been obtained from 130
Finance. The delivery of this Prospectus shall not create any implication that there has been no change

in the affairs of 130 Finance since the date hereof, or that the information contained or referred to in
this section of this Prospectus is correct as of any time subsequent to its date.
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THE CORPORATE SERVICES PROVIDER, THE COMPUTATION AGENT AND THE
BACK-UP SERVICER

Centotrenta Servicing S.p.A. is a joint stock company (societa per azioni) incorporated under the laws of
Republic of Italy, with registered office in Milan, Via San Prospero, 4, fiscal code and enrolment with the
companies register of Milano, Monza, Brianza and Lodi number 07524870966, currently registered in the
new register of financial intermediaries (Albo Unico) held by the Bank of Italy under No. 13.

Centotrenta Servicing S.p.A. specialises in managing and monitoring securitisations and structured finance
transactions; acting as master servicer, corporate services provider, calculation agent, representative of the
noteholders and back-up servicer on several structured finance deals across different assets and loan types,
and across a variety of clients.

Centotrenta Servicing S.p.A. currently has Italian Residential, Commercial and ABS Master Servicer
Ratings ‘RMS2’, ‘CMS2’ and ‘ABMS2’ from Fitch Ratings.

Centotrenta Servicing S.p.A. is subject to the auditing activity of EY S.p.A.

Centotrenta Servicing S.p.A. in the context of the Transaction acts as corporate services provider,
computation agent and back-up servicer.

The information contained in this section of this Prospectus relates to and has been obtained from
Centotrenta Servicing S.p.A. The delivery of this Prospectus shall not create any implication that there
has been no change in the affairs of Centotrenta Servicing S.p.A. since the date hereof, or that the
information contained or referred to in this section of this Prospectus is correct as of any time
subsequent to its date.
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THE TRANSACTION BANK, THE PRINCIPAL PAYING AGENT, THE CASH MANAGER AND
THE LISTING AGENT

BNP Paribas Securities Services, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the BNP Paribas Group, is a leading global
custodian and securities services provider backed by a strong universal bank. It provides integrated
solutions to all participants in the investment cycle including the buy-side, sell-side, corporates and issuers.

The bank has a local presence in 35 countries across five continents, effecting global coverage of more than
90 markets.

At December 2021 BNP Paribas Securities Services had USD 14,400 billion of assets under custody, USD
2,900 billion assets under administration; at December 2021 BNP Paribas Securities Services had 9,134
administered funds and more than 10,000 employees.

BNP Paribas Securities Services currently has long-term senior debt ratings of “A+” (stable) from S&P’s,
“Aa3 (stable) from Moody’s and “A+" (stable) from Fitch.

Fitch Moody’s S&P

Short term F1 Short term Prime-1 Short-term A-1

Long term senior debt A+ Long term senior debt Aa3 | Long term senior debt A+
Outlook Stable Outlook Stable Outlook Stable

BNP Paribas Securities Services shall act as Transaction Bank, Principal Paying Agent, Cash Manager and
Listing Agent.

The information contained herein relates to BNP Paribas Securities Services and has been obtained
from it. The delivery of this Prospectus shall not create any implication that there has been no change in

the affairs of BNP Paribas Securities Services since the date hereof, or that the information contained or
referred to herein is correct as of any time subsequent to such date.
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THE SWAP COUNTERPARTY AND THE EMIR REPORTING AGENT
Name
J.P. Morgan SE
Address
The business address of J.P. Morgan SE is TaunusTurm, Taunustor 1, 60310 Frankfurt am Main, Germany.
Country of incorporation
Germany
Nature of business

J.P. Morgan SE is an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of JPMorgan Chase & Co. and conducts banking
business with institutional clients, banks, corporate clients and clients from the public sector.

Admission to trading of securities

J.P. Morgan SE does not have securities admitted to trading on a regulated market or an equivalent market.
The information contained in this section of this Prospectus relates to and has been obtained from J.P.
Morgan SE. The delivery of this Prospectus shall not create any implication that there has been no

change in the affairs of J.P. Morgan SE since the date hereof, or that the information contained or
referred to in this section of this Prospectus is correct as of any time subsequent to its date.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The total proceeds of the issue of the Class A1 Notes equal to Euro 118,000,000 will be applied by the
Issuer to (i) early redeem in whole the Class A Notes, (ii) to partially redeem the Class B Notes (for an
amount equal to Euro 997,000 and amount of interest equal to Euro 1,550.31) and the Class J Notes (for an
amount equal to Euro 2,510,000.00), (iii) to partially reimburse the Subordinated Loan (for an amount
equal to Euro 1,859,887.27) and (iv) to pay to the Originator the Purchase Price for the Subsequent
Portfolio in accordance with the Subsequent Transfer Agreement.
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DESCRIPTION OF THE TRANSACTION DOCUMENTS

The description of the Transaction Documents set out below is an overview of certain features of those
agreements and is qualified by reference to the detailed provisions of the Transaction Documents.
Prospective Noteholders may inspect copies of the Transaction Documents upon request (i) at the specified
office of each of the Representative of the Noteholders and the Principal Paying Agent, and (ii) through the
Securitisation Repository.

THE TRANSFER AGREEMENTS
Initial Transfer Agreement

Pursuant to a transfer agreement, entered into between the Issuer and the Originator on 25 March 2019, as
subsequently amended on or prior to the Initial Issue Date and the Subsequent Issue Date and as further
amended by the General Amendment Agreement, (the “Initial Transfer Agreement”), the Originator sold
for consideration to the Issuer without recourse (pro soluto) and as a pool (in blocco) a portfolio of
monetary claims (the “Initial Portfolio”) and connected rights arising out of the relevant mortgage loans
(the “Initial Claims” and “Loans” respectively) granted by the Originator to their customers (the
“Borrowers”) with economic effect as of the Initial Effective Date.

As consideration for the acquisition of the Initial Claims pursuant to the Initial Transfer Agreement, the
Issuer has undertaken to pay to the Originator a purchase price calculated as the aggregate of the Individual
Purchase Price, equal to Euro 149,608,041.11 plus the Accrued Interest, the Suspended Interest and the
interest component, default interest component and charges relating to the Installments due and unpaid after
the relevant Valuation Date of each Initial Claim comprised in the Initial Portfolio, equal to Euro
293,029.22 (together, the “Purchase Price”).

Pursuant to the Initial Transfer Agreement, the Originator has represented and warranted that the Initial
Claims have been selected on the basis of the Initial Criteria in order to ensure that the Initial Claims have
the same legal and financial characteristics. See “The Portfolio”.

The Initial Transfer Agreement provides that if, after the relevant Transfer Date, it transpires that (i) any
Initial Claims included in the list of Initial Claims attached to the Initial Transfer Agreement in Annex A
(Elenco dei Crediti) do not meet the Criteria as at the relevant Valuation Date and/or as at the different date
indicated in the Criteria, then such Initial Claims will be deemed not to have been assigned and transferred
to the Issuer pursuant to the Initial Transfer Agreement and (ii) any Claim which meets the Criteria as at the
relevant Valuation Date and/or as at the different date indicated in the Criteria has not been included in the
list of Initial Claims attached to the Initial Transfer Agreement in Annex A (Elenco dei Crediti), then such
Initial Claim shall be deemed to have been assigned and transferred to the Issuer by the Originator from the
relevant Legal Effective Date and with economic effect as of the relevant Effective Date (included)
pursuant to the Initial Transfer Agreement. Pursuant the Initial Transfer Agreement, the Purchase Price of
the Initial Portfolio shall be adjusted to take into account the additional payment or the reimbursement to be
made for any such Initial Claim, as follows:

A In the case of a Initial Claim which does not meet the Criteria, the Originator or the Issuer, as the
case may be, shall communicate such circumstance to the other party within 3 (three) days from
when such circumstance arises, and the Originator, following to such communication, will
communicate to the Computation Agent the amount due to the Issuer (calculated thought the items
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(i) to (iv) below) and will pay to the Issuer, by crediting on the Collection Account, an amount
equal to:

(M the Individual Purchase Price which has been paid for such Initial Claim plus the Accrued
Interest related to such Initial Claim; plus

(i) any accrued and accruing interest on such amount from the Initial Issue Date (included)
until the date of reimburse of the Purchase Price (excluded), calculated (x) at the interest
rate equal to the last EURIBOR (it being understood that such rate will not be lower than
zero), (y) plus a margin equal to the medium margin weighted, respectively applicable to
the Class Al Notes and Class B Notes; plus

(iii)  any expense and documented cost (including legal costs and esbursements plus VAT on
the same), the losses and damages which have been borne by the Issuer in relation to such
Initial Claim after the relevant Effective Date; less

(iv) the aggregate of all sums recovered and collected by the Issuer in respect of such Initial
Claim after the relevant Effective Date,

provided that, in case the communication above indicated is received 3 (three) Business Days
before the Initial Issue Date, the Purchase Price to be paid by the Issuer to the Originator will be
reduced of an amount equal to the Purchase Price of such Initial Claim and the provisions above
shall not apply; and provided further that no amount shall be paid by the Issuer to the Originator in
case the amount calculated pursuant to the above described provisions is negative.

In the case of a Initial Claim which meets the Criteria but was not included in the Initial Transfer
Agreement, the Issuer will pay to the Originator, on the relevant Payment Date on which the Issuer
may, also partially and according to the Issuer Available Funds, and in accordance with the
applicable Order of Priority, an amount equal to (i) the Individual Purchase Price which would have
been payable for such Initial Claim pursuant to the Initial Transfer Agreement if such Initial Claim
were included in the list of Initial Claims attached as Annex A (Elenco dei Crediti) of the Initial
Transfer Agreement; less (ii) the aggregate of all sums recovered and collected by the Originator in
respect of such Initial Claim as of the relevant Effective Date (included) as better specified in the
Initial Transfer Agreement.

In order to allow the Originator to maintain good relationships with their customers, the Originator may
submit to the Issuer one or more offers to purchase Initial Claims (the “Offer to Purchase”), provided that
the total amount of each offer, added to the amount of any other offer made by the Originator and already
accepted by the Issuer after the Initial Issue Date, shall not exceed:

(i)

(i)

on each Collection Period, 2.5% of the outstanding principal amount of the Claims as at the
Subsequent Effective Date; and

over the life of the Transaction, the overall limit of 20% of the of the outstanding principal amount
of the Claims as at the Subsequent Effective Date.

The price of the repurchased Initial Claims will be determined as follows:
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Q) for Initial Claims which have not been classified as Defaulted Claims, the sum of (a) the
outstanding principal amount of the relevant Claim on the repurchase date; (b) an amount equal to
the sum of the accrued interest, the potential Suspended Interest component, the default interest
component and charges (if applicable) on the relevant Claims re-purchased as at the date of the
relevant repurchase; and (c) an amount equal to the then applicable weighetd average interest
applicable to the Class A1 Notes and the Class B Notes calculated on the sum of point (a) above for
the period between the relevant re-purchase date and the immediately following Paument Date
(based on a year of 360 days and the number of days effectlvely elapsed); and

(i) for Initial Claims classified as Defaulted Claims, in accordance with the Servicing Agreement.

The repurchase price will be paid by the Originator to the Company by the Payment Date following the
acceptance of the Purchase Offer and accredited on the Investment Account.

The Initial Transfer Agreement is in Italian. The Initial Transfer Agreement and all non-contractual
obligations arising out or in connection with the Initial Transfer Agreement is governed by and construed in
accordance with Italian law.

In the event of any disputes arising out of or in connection with the Initial Transfer Agreement including all
non-contractual obligations thereof, the Parties have agreed to submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the
Courts of Rome, Italy.

Subsequent Transfer Agreement

Pursuant to a subsequent transfer agreement, entered into between the Issuer and the Originator on 30 May
2022 (the “Subsequent Transfer Agreement”), the Originator sold for consideration to the Issuer without
recourse (pro soluto) and as a pool (in blocco) a subsequent portfolio of monetary claims (the “Subsequent
Portfolio” and together with the Initial Portfolio, the “Portfolio”) and connected rights arising out of the
relevant mortgage loans (the “Subsequent Claims”, and together with the Initial Claims, the “Claims” and
“Loans” respectively) granted by the Originator to their customers (the “Borrowers”) with economic
effect as of the Subsequent Effective Date.

As consideration for the acquisition of the Subsequent Claims pursuant to the Subsequent Transfer
Agreement, the Issuer has undertaken to pay to the Originator a purchase price calculated as the aggregate
of the Individual Purchase Price, equal to Euro 52,806,191.00 plus the Accrued Interest, the Suspended
Interest and the interest component, default interest component and charges relating to the Installments due
and unpaid after the relevant Valuation Date of each Subsequent Claim comprised in the Subsequent
Portfolio, equal to Euro 321,430.54 (together, the “Subsequent Purchase Price”).

Pursuant to the Subsequent Transfer Agreement, the Originator has represented and warranted that the
Subsequent Claims have been selected on the basis of the Criteria in order to ensure that the Subsequent
Claims have the same legal and financial characteristics. See “The Portfolio”.

The Subsequent Transfer Agreement provides that if, after the relevant Transfer Date, it transpires that (i)
any Subsequent Claims included in the list of Subsequent Claims attached to the Subsequent Transfer
Agreement in Annex A (Elenco dei Crediti) do not meet the Criteria as at the relevant Valuation Date
and/or as at the different date indicated in the Criteria, then such Subsequent Claims will be deemed not to
have been assigned and transferred to the Issuer pursuant to the Subsequent Transfer Agreement and (ii)
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any Subsequent Claim which meets the Criteria as at the relevant Valuation Date and/or as at the different
date indicated in the Criteria has not been included in the list of Subsequent Claims attached to the
Subsequent Transfer Agreement in Annex A (Elenco dei Crediti), then such Subsequent Claim shall be
deemed to have been assigned and transferred to the Issuer by the Originator from the relevant Legal
Effective Date and with economic effect as of the relevant Effective Date (included) pursuant to the
Subsequent Transfer Agreement. Pursuant the Subsequent Transfer Agreement, the Subsequent Purchase
Price of the Subsequent Portfolio shall be adjusted to take into account the additional payment or the
reimbursement to be made for any such Subsequent Claim, as follows:

A. In the case of a Subsequent Claim which does not meet the Criteria, the Originator or the Issuer, as
the case may be, shall communicate such circumstance to the other party within 3 (three) days from when
such circumstance arises, and the Originator, following to such communication, will communicate to the
Computation Agent the amount due to the Issuer (calculated thought the items (i) to (iv) below) and will pay
to the Issuer, by crediting on the Collection Account, an amount equal to:

Q) the Individual Purchase Price which has been paid for such Subsequent Claim plus the Accrued
Interest related to such Initial Claim; plus

(i) any accrued and accruing interest on such amount from the Subsequent Issue Date (included) until
the date of reimburse of the Subsequent Purchase Price (excluded), calculated (X) at the interest rate equal to
the last EURIBOR (it being understood that such rate will not be lower than zero), (y) plus a margin equal to
the medium margin weighted, respectively applicable to the Class A1l Notes and Class B Notes; plus

(iii)  any expense and documented cost (including legal costs and esbursements plus VAT on the same),
the losses and damages which have been borne by the Issuer in relation to such Subsequent Claim after the
relevant Effective Date; less

(iv) the aggregate of all sums recovered and collected by the Issuer in respect of such Subsequent Claim
after the relevant Effective Date,

provided that, in case the communication above indicated is received 3 (three) Business Days before the
Subsequent Issue Date, the Subsequent Purchase Price to be paid by the Issuer to the Originator will be
reduced of an amount equal to the Subsequent Purchase Price of such Subsequent Claim and the provisions
above shall not apply; and provided further that no amount shall be paid by the Issuer to the Originator in
case the amount calculated pursuant to the above described provisions is negative.

B. In the case of a Subsequent Claim which meets the Criteria but was not included in the Subsequent
Transfer Agreement, the Issuer will pay to the Originator, on the relevant Payment Date on which the Issuer
may, also partially and according to the Issuer Available Funds, and in accordance with the applicable
Order of Priority, an amount equal to (i) the Individual Purchase Price which would have been payable for
such Subsequent Claim pursuant to the Subsequent Transfer Agreement if such Subsequent Claim were
included in the list of Subsequent Claims attached as Annex A (Elenco dei Crediti) of the Subsequent
Transfer Agreement; less (ii) the aggregate of all sums recovered and collected by the Originator in respect
of such Subsequent Claim as of the relevant Effective Date (included) as better specified in the Subsequent
Transfer Agreement.

In order to allow the Originator to maintain good relationships with their customers, the Originator may
submit to the Issuer one or more offers to purchase Subsequent Claims (the “Offer to Purchase”), provided
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that the total amount of each offer, added to the amount of any other offer made by the Originator and
already accepted by the Issuer after the Subsequent Issue Date, shall not exceed:

Q) on each Collection Period, 2.5% of the outstanding principal amount of the Claims as at the
Subsequent Effective Date; and

(i) over the life of the Transaction, the overall limit of 20% of the of the outstanding principal amount
of the Claims as at the Subsequent Effective Date.

The price of the repurchased Subsequent Claims will be determined as follows:

(1) for Subsequent Claims which have not been classified as Defaulted Claims, the sum of (a) the
outstanding principal amount of the relevant Claim on the repurchase date; (b) an amount equal to
the sum of the accrued interest, the potential Suspended Interest component, the default interest
component and charges (if applicable) on the relevant Claims re-purchased as at the date of the
relevant repurchase; and (c) an amount equal to the then applicable weighetd average interest
applicable to the Class A1 Notes and the Class B Notes calculated on the sum of point (a) above for
the period between the relevant re-purchase date and the immediately following Paument Date
(based on a year of 360 days and the number of days effectlvely elapsed); and

(i) for Subsequent Claims classified as Defaulted Claims, in accordance with the Servicing
Agreement.

The repurchase price will be paid by the Originator to the Company by the Payment Date following the
acceptance of the Purchase Offer and accredited on the Investment Account.

The Subsequent Transfer Agreement is in ltalian. The Subsequent Transfer Agreement and all
non-contractual obligations arising out or in connection with the Initial Transfer Agreement is governed by
and construed in accordance with Italian law.

In the event of any disputes arising out of or in connection with the Subsequent Transfer Agreement
including all non-contractual obligations thereof, the Parties have agreed to submit to the exclusive
jurisdiction of the Courts of Rome, Italy.

THE WARRANTY AND INDEMNITY AGREEMENTS

Under a warranty and indemnity agreement entered into on 25 March 2019 between the Issuer and the
Originator, as amended by the General Amendment Agreement, (the “Initial Warranty and Indemnity
Agreement”), the Originator gave certain representations and warranties as to, inter alia, the Initial Claims
it transferred pursuant to the Initial Transfer Agreement, the respective Loans and the Insurance Policies, its
corporate existence and operations and their collection and recovery policy. Moreover the Originator has
agreed to indemnify and hold harmless the Issuer from and against all damages, losses, claims, liabilities
and costs awarded against or suffered or incurred by it or otherwise arising to it by reason of any
misrepresentation of the Originator in the Initial Warranty and Indemnity Agreement or any default of the
Originator under the Initial Warranty and Indemnity Agreement and/or the Initial Transfer Agreement
and/or the Servicing Agreement.

Under a warranty and indemnity agreement entered into on 31 May 2022 between the Issuer and the
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Originator (the “Subsequent Warranty and Indemnity Agreement” and, together with the Initial
Warranty and Indemnity Agreement, the “Warranty and Indemnity Agreements”), the Originator gave
certain representations and warranties as to, inter alia, the Subsequent Claims it transferred pursuant to the
Subsequent Transfer Agreement, the respective Loans and the Insurance Policies, its corporate existence
and operations and their collection and recovery policy. Moreover the Originator has agreed to indemnify
and hold harmless the Issuer from and against all damages, losses, claims, liabilities and costs awarded
against or suffered or incurred by it or otherwise arising to it by reason of any misrepresentation of the
Originator in the Subsequent Warranty and Indemnity Agreement or any default of the Originator under the
Subsequent Warranty and Indemnity Agreement and/or the Subsequent Transfer Agreementd and/or the
Servicing Agreement.

Under the Warranty and Indemnity Agreements, the Originator has represented and warranted with respect
to itself and the Claims it sold to the Issuer under the relevant Transfer Agreement, the Loans, the
Mortgages securing them and the Insurance Policies, as to, inter alia, the following matters:

General

@) it is a bank duly incorporated as a “societa per azioni”, validly existing and in bonis under the laws
of the Republic of Italy; registered with the register held by the Bank of Italy pursuant to article 13
of the Consolidated Banking Act, it has full corporate power and authority to enter into and perform
the obligations undertaken by it under the relevant Warranty and Indemnity Agreement and the
other Transaction Documents to which it is or it will be a party and to perform obligations relating
to the Transaction Documents and to duly carry out as originator the Transaction pursuant to the
Securitisation Law;

(b) the execution, delivery and performance by it of the relevant Warranty and Indemnity Agreement
and the other Transaction Documents to which it is a party and all other documents to be delivered
pursuant thereto and all transactions contemplated thereby do not contravene or result in a default
under (i) its corporate constitutional documents, (ii) any law, rule or regulation applicable to it, (iii)
any contractual restriction contained in any agreement or other instrument binding on it or affecting
it or its property or (iv) any order, writ, judgment, award, injunction or decree binding on or
affecting it or its property, and do not result in the creation of any adverse claim by third parties;

(©) the payment obligations of it under the relevant Warranty and Indemnity Agreement and the other
Transaction Documents constitute unsurbordinated and unsecured claims against it which rank pari
passu with the unsubordinated and unsecured claims of all other creditors under the laws of the
Republic of Italy apart from any preferential creditors under any applicable laws;

(d) all the representations and datas, documents, registrations and information (including, without
limitation, information with respect to the Loans, the Claims, the Insurance Policies and the
Mortgages) provided under the Warranty and Indemnity Agreements and the other Transaction
Documents or to the operations therby referred to, is true and correct in all material respects and no
information has been omitted;

(e) it is solvent and there is no fact or matter which may negatively impact on the execution of the
transfer of the Claims and/or of the Mortgages nor performing the obligations provided under the
Warranty and Indemnity Agreements, nor will it be rendered insolvent as a consequence of entering
into the Warranty and Indemnity Agreements and the other Transaction Documents to which it is a
party;
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()

(9)

for the purposes of the transfer of the Claims to the Issuer under the Transfer Agreements, it is not
obliged to request, present or deposit, as applicable, permits, licences, approvals, authorizations,
registrations or certifications (asseverazioni) to government authorities;

it is not subject to any assessment procedure by supervisory authorities in relation to its procedures
to grant and manage the Loans.

The Loans, the Mortgages and the Claims

()

(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

()

(9)

It holds sole and unencumbered legal title to the Claims (classified as “in bonis” according to the
regulations issued by the Bank of Italy (“istruzioni di vigilanza™)), it is a party of the Loans and it is
the beneficiary of the Mortgages and of the Ancilary Guarantees and the are not adverse claims by
third parties on the Claims;

the Claims, the Loans, the Mortgages, the Insurance Policies and the Ancillary Guarantees are
governed by Italian law and are legal, valid, contractually binding and enforceable to third parties
and compliant with the applicable law and in particular the Loans have been entered into and will
be transferred in compliance with all the applicable rules and regulations including, without
limitation, the: (i) Consolidated Banking Act; (ii) applicable privacy legislation (including
Legislative Decree No. 196 of 30 June 2003 and Regulation (EU) No 2016/679 of the European
Parliament and of the Council of 27 April 2016); (iii) consumer protection; (iv) provisions under
article 1283 of the Italian civil code and article 120 of the Consolidated Banking Act;

the Loans and the Mortgages have been executed as a public deed (“atto pubblico”) before a notary
public (notaio) or as a private deed notarized by a notary public;

the Loan Agreements have been granted on the basis of an assessment of the relevant Real Estate
Asset/s secured with Mortgage executed on behalf of the Originator prior to the approval date of
each Loan (and in any case within six months preceding the date on which the relevant Loan
Agreement has been granted), by an external qualified appraiser (“perito qualificato esterno”) (or,
in certain circumstances, through the analysis of market datas obtained from the database of the
Terrotory Agency (Agenzia del Terrotorio)) independent from the Originator, which has not been
involved in the process of approval of the Loan, nor has never had any interest whatsoever (direct
or indirect) over the relevant Real Estate Asset/s and the relevant Loan Agreement whose fees are
not linked to the approval of such Loan;

there are not clauses under the Loans nor under any other agreement, deed or document, nor any
provision by law or regulatory regulation which prohibit to the Originator to transfer the Claims
and the other rights of it arising from the Loans and the Mortgages;

the Claims arise from Loans granted by (1) the Originator as lender or (2) by Igea Banca S.p.A.
merged by incorporation into Banca del Fucino following the granting of the relevant Loan or (3)
by other banks which do not belong to the Banca del Fucino group, whose Loans have been
purchased by Banca del Fucino by way of subrogation in accordance with Law No. 40 of 2 April
2007, as subsequently amended;

in relation to the subtogated Claims in accordance with Law No. 40 of 2 April 2007, as
subsequently amended, the Originator has carried out a evaluation of creditworthiness in relation to
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(h)

(i)
@)

(k)
(1

(m)

(n)

(0)

(p)

(a)

(r)

(s)

(t)
(u)

each Debtor in accordance with its own credit policies and underwriting parameters;

all the Guarantors, which are individuals, are resident in Italy and all the Guarantors which are legal
entities are established under the Italian law and have their registered office in Italy;

all the Loans have been granted through its branch;

there are no Loans which provide for the right of the Borrower to delay the payment of one or more
Instalments;

no Loan could be classified as leasing agreement;

there are no Claims subject to moratorium (“dilazione di pagamento”) following the delay or
default by the Borrower in the payment of one or more Instalments;

the Claims constitute a portfolio of monetary claims identifiable in blocco, pursuant to the Italian
Law n. 130 dated 30 April 1999, the Consolidated Banking Act and the istructions issued by Bank
of Italy (Istruzioni di Vigilanza) and the Criteria are appropriate to identify portfolio of monteray
claims identifiable in blocco vis-a-vis the Borrowers, the Guarantors and third parties;

all the Claims are assisted by Insurance Policies, all of them valid and effective in order to
guarantee the Claims in favour of the Originator, and are enforceable as of the date of execution of
the Loans pursuant to the applicable laws and regulations; all the premiums have been duly paid
and the Insurance Policies are currently in force;

no Loan could be classified as consumer loan (credito al consumo) and, as a consequence, the
consumer credit discipline is not applicable

as far as concern it and with reference to third parties and to the knowledge of it, all consents,
licenses, approvals or authorisations of or registrations or declarations required to be obtained,
effected or provided for the validity and enforceability of the Claims, the Loans, the Mortgages

the Ancillary Guarantees and the Insurance Policies and for the validity and enforceability of the
obligations and rights arising from the latters, have been duly obtained, effected or provided and are
in full force and effect and all the necessary and connection action to ensure the validity and
enforceability of the Claims, the Loans, the Mortgages, the Ancillary Guarantees and the Insurance
Policies have been duly undertaken;

to the knowledge of it, not less of 89% of the Loans (calculated as principal amount outstanding as
of the Effective Date (excluded)) is granted for the purchase, building and refurbishment of the first
home (“prima casa”);

to the knowledge of it, the Loans have been entered into with borrowers that, on the date of
execution of such Loans, could not be subject to any insolevency procedure;

the Borrowers are all resident in Italy;

none of the Borrowers or Mortgagors is subject to any proceeding for the composition of any state
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(v)

(w)
v)

(2)

of crisis due to over-indebtedness (crisi da sovraindebitamento) pursuant to Law No. 3 of 27
January 2012, as subsequently amended, or to any insolvency proceeding as applicable;

the Loans do not include at the signing date of the Warranty and Indemnity Agreement and will not
include at the relevant Issue Date, non-performing loans;

no Loan may be qualified as structured loan, syndacated loan or leveraged loan;

none of the Claim may be qualified as restructured claim (credito ristrutturato) pursuant to the
applicable regulation of the Bank of Italy;

it has maintained complete, proper and up-to-date books, records and documents for the Claims, the
Loans and for the instalments and for all other amounts paid or reimbursed thereunder, and all such
books and documents are kept in its possession or are held to its order.

The Real Estate Assets

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)
(€)

()

each of the Real Estate Assets were in unencumbered legal title of the relevant Mortgagor when the
Mortgage was constituted;

in relation to the Real Estate Assets, any claim classified as azione petitoria and/or azione
possessoria has been served to the Originator by third parties;

each of the Real Estate Assets (i) is duly registered with the competent land registries; (ii) complies
with all applicable Italian laws as to its use (“destinazione d’uso), (iii) meets the legal
requirements for habitation (“agibilitd”), (iv) is marketable (“non soggetto a vizio di
incommerciabilita”), and (v) complies with all applicable planning and building laws and
regulations;

the Real Estate Assets are located in Italy;

each of the Real Estate Assets complies with applicable laws, rules and regulations concerning
health and safety and environmental protection;

to the knowledge of it, each of the Real Estate Assets is free from damage and waste, in good
condition and there are no proceedings, actual or threatened, in relation thereto.

Other Representations and Warranties

(@)

(b)

to the best of Originator’s knowledge, the Claims are not in any situation that could predictably
compromise their unenforceability for the sale pursuant to the Transfer Agreements and, therefore,
are effectively transferable to the Issuer;

the Claims are homogeneous by type of activity, taking into account the specific cash flow

characteristics of the type of activity, including characteristics relating to the contract, credit risk
and early repayments, considering that:
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(i) the Claims were originated by the Originator (or, as the case may be, by the different bank
identified pursuant clause 2.1.2(g)(2) of the Subsequent Warranty and Indemnity
Agreement), as a lender, in accordance with underwriting parameters based on similar
methodologies for assessing the credit risk associated with the Claims;

(i) the Claims were managed by the Originator in accordance with similar monitoring,
collection and administration procedures;

(iii) given that the Claims arise from residential mortgage backed loans, the Claims fall under the
type of assets known as "residential loans that are either secured by one or more mortgages
on residential immovable property or that are fully guaranteed by an eligible protection
provider among those referred to in Article 201(1) of Regulation (EU) No 575/2013 of the
European Parliament and of the Council and qualifying for the credit quality step 2 or above
as set out in Part Three, Title I, Chapter 2 of that Regulation”, pursuant to article 1, letter a),
item i), of the Delegated Regulation on Homogeneity; and

(iv) in the context of the type of activity identified in item (iii) above, the Claims meet:

(X) the homogeneity factor provided under article 2(1), letter (a), item (i), of the Delegated
Regulation on Homogeneity given that the Loans are secured by first ranking security
rights on a residential immovable property;

(y) the homogeneity factor provided under article 2(1), letter (b), item (ii), of the
Delegated Regulation on Homogeneity given that the Real Estate Assets are
non-income producing properties;

(z) the homogeneity factor provided under article 2(1), letter (c) of the Delegated
Regulation on Homogeneity given that the Real Estate Assets are located in the Italian
territory;

(c) the Portfolio does not comprise, partially or totally, (i) securities pursuant to article 4, paragraph 1,
item 44), of the Directive 2014/65/EU, (ii) any securitisation positions and (iii) derivative financial
instruments (including, but not limited to, credit-linked securities, swaps, synthetic securities or
similar assets);

(d) the Claims were originated in the ordinary course of business of the Originator (or, as the case may
be, by the different bank identified pursuant clause 2.1.2(g)(2) of the Subsequent Warranty and
Indemnity Agreement) in compliance with underwriting parameters that are no less stringent than
those that the Originator (or, as the case may be, by the different bank identified pursuant clause
2.1.2(g)(2) of the Subsequent Warranty and Indemnity Agreement) had applied to similar
non-securitised exposures at the time of their origination. The Originator has more than 5 (five)
years of experience in providing loans of a similar nature to that of the Claims;

(e) the Originator (or, as the case may be, the different bank that originated the Mortgage) assessed the
creditworthiness of the Debtors in accordance with the requirements set forth in article 8 of the
Directive 2008/48/EC or in article 18, paragraphs from 1 to 4, paragraph 5, letter a), and paragraph
6, of the Directive 2014/17/EU and of the EBA Guidelines (Guidelines on the STS criteria for
non-ABCP securitisation) item 33, as applicable taking into account the type of Mortgages and, in
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()

(9)

(h)

(i)

()

order to determine the creditworthiness of the relevant Debtor and the Originator (or, as the case
may be, the different bank that originated the Mortgage) did not base its valuation in such a way as
to make the repayment of each Mortgage predominantly dependent on the sale of the relevant Real
Estate Asset following the enforcement of the relevant Mortgage;

the Portfolio does not include exposures in default status pursuant to article 178, paragraph 1, of the
Regulation (EU) n. 575/2013 nor exposures to a borrower or guarantor with a deteriorated
creditworthiness which, to the best of Originator’s knowledge:

(i) has been declared insolvent or has seen a court grant its creditors final and irrevocable
enforceability or damages for non-payment in the three years preceding the date of
disbursement or has been subject to a debt restructuring process in relation to its impaired
exposures in the three years preceding the Legal Effective Date;

(ii) atthe time of disbursement, as applicable, was registered in a public credit register of persons
with negative credit references or, in the absence of such public credit register, in another
credit register available to the Originator (or, as the case may be, the different bank that
originated the Mortgage); or

(iii) has a credit rating or credit score that indicates the existence of a risk of default on
contractually agreed payments that is significantly higher than that of comparable exposures
held by the Originator and not transferred in the context of the Transaction;

the Claims arise from Mortgages in respect of which, as at the Legal Effective Date, at least one
Instalment, including the principal, had been paid by the respective Debtor;

pursuant to the Loan Agreements, methodologies for calculating interest on Mortgages are based
on general purpose market interest rates or general purpose sector rates that reflect the cost of
financing and do not refer to complex formulas or derivatives;

for the purposes and within the meaning of article 6(2) of the Securitisation Regulations, the
Originator did not select the Claims with the aim of rendering losses on the Claims higher than the
losses on comparable assets held in the balance sheet of the Originator;

for the purposes and within the meaning of article 9 of the Securitisation Regulations, the
Originator (or, as the case may be, by the different bank identified pursuant clause 2.1.2(g)(2) of the
Subsequent Warranty and Indemnity Agreement) it complies and has complied, with respect to the
Claims, with the credit-granting criteria and procedures applied to non-securitised Claims as well
as with all other obligations and provisions set forth in article 9 of the Securitisation Regulations.

Under the Warranty and Indemnity Agreements, the Originator has undertaken, with respect to itself, the
Claims, the respective Loans, the Mortgages securing them and the Insurance Policies, inter alia, as

follows:

(@)

without prejudice to the non-recourse nature (“natura pro soluto”) of the assignment effected
pursuant to the Transfer Agreement, to refrain from carrying out or purporting to carry out any
activity with respect to the Claims which may adversely affect them, and in particular: before the
date of publication of the applicable notice of assignment of the Claims in the Official Gazette and
registration of the assignment of the Claims in Companies’ Register; (i) not to assign and/or
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(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

()

(9)

(h)

)

(k)

(1

transfer, the whole or any part of, any of the Claims to any third party; and (ii) not to create or allow
to be created or to arise or to allow to exist any security interest, lien, pledge, privilege or
encumbrance or other right in favour of third parties in respect of the Claims, or any part thereof;

not to execute any agreement, deed or document or enter into any arrangement purporting to assign,
or otherwise dispose of, any of the Loans or of the Insurance Polices or to create or allow to be
created or allow to arise or exist any security interest, lien, pledge, privilege or encumbrance or
other right in favour of third parties in respect of the Loans;

not to instruct any Borrower, guarantor or Insurance Companies to make any payment with respect
to any of the Claims differently from as provided for in the Transaction Documents or as instructed
in writing by the Issuer;

otherwise than in its capacity as Servicer in accordance with the relevant provisions of the
Servicing Agreement, not to take any action likely to cause or permit any of the Claims to become
invalid or diminish their respective rights;

to co-operate with the Issuer to perform any and all acts, carry out any and all actions, and execute
any and all documents as the Issuer may reasonably deem necessary in connection with the
Warranty and Indemnity Agreement and the other Transaction Documents;

to comply fully and in a timely manner with and observe any and all provisions, covenants and
other terms to be complied with, insofar as necessary in order to preserve the rights, claims, powers
and benefits of the Issuer as purchaser of the Claims;

to assist and fully co-operate with the Issuer in any due diligence relating to the Claims which the
Issuer may wish to carry out after the date of the Warranty and Indemnity Agreement;

to maintain in a safe place and in good status and order, accurate, complete and up-to-date
accounts, books, records and documents relating to the Claims, the Loans, the Mortgages and the
Insurance Policies;

to comply with all applicable laws and regulations (including all rules, orders and instruments) with
respect to the Claims, the Loans, the Mortgages and their administration and management;

to grant access to the Issuer and/or the Representative of the Noteholders, its agents and nominees
to its premises for purposes of examining records, documents and data in relation to the Claims, to
copy them and to discuss any issues concerning the Claims with its accountants and other
appointed personnel;

to pay all costs, fees and taxes due promptly in relation to the execution, filing, registration, etc., of
the Warranty and Indemnity Agreement and the other Transaction Documents;

save as provided for in the Servicing Agreement, not to agree to any amendment of or waiver to any
terms and conditions of the Loans, the Mortgages and/or the Insurance Policies which might
adversely affect the timely recovery of the Claims, the ability of the Issuer to enforce its rights,
claims, powers and benefits against the Borrowers, the guarantors and/or the Insurance Companies
or the validity of the Warranty and Indemnity Agreement and not to commence any action for the
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recovery of the Claims;

(m) to assist and support the Issuer or its nominee in the development of adequate data reporting
systems concerning the Claims by transferring to the Issuer books, records and documents which
may be useful or relevant for implementing a data reporting system which would allow the Issuer to
achieve full compliance with all applicable laws and regulatory reporting regulations and
requirements.

Under the Warranty and Indemnity Agreements, the Originator agreed to indemnify the Issuer, its
representatives and agents from and against any and all damages, losses, claims, liabilities and related costs
and expenses, including legal fees and disbursements awarded against or suffered or incurred by it as a
consequence of or in relation to:

@ the reliance on any representation or warranty made by it to the Issuer under or in connection with
the relevant Warranty and Indemnity Agreement or any other Transaction Document to which it
shall be a party which shall have been false, incorrect or misleading when made or delivered:;

(b) its failure (in whole or in part) to comply with any term, provision or covenant contained in the
relevant Warranty and Indemnity Agreement or any other Transaction Document to which it shall
be a party and its failure to comply with any applicable law, rule or regulation with respect to the
relevant Claims, the Loans, the Mortgages, the Real Estate Assets and the Insurance Policies;

) the failure to vest in the Issuer all rights, title and interest in and the benefit of each Claim pursuant
to the terms of the relevant Transfer Agreement, free and clear of any adverse claim;

(d) any dispute, claim or defence (other than discharge in bankruptcy or winding up by reason of
insolvency or similar event) of the Borrowers, the guarantors or the Insurance Companies to the
payment of any Claim;

(e) any judicial or out of court set-off of the assigned Borrower in relation to the payment of any Claim
arising before or after the execution date of the relevant Warranty and Indemnity Agreement under
the Loans or under or pursuant to any contract, deed, document, action, event or circumstance.

Pursuant to each Warranty and Indemnity Agreement, if at any time, the representations and warranties
given by the Issuer in relation to the Loans, the Mortgages, the Loan Agreements, the Claims and the Real
Estate Asset are false, incorrect or misleading, the Issuer has accepted and acknowledged that the
Originator, pursuant to the effects of article 1331 of the Italian Civil Code, for a period of 30 (thirthy) days
from the written notice received by the Issuer (the “Repurchase Period”), may re-purchase the Claims
from the Issuer in respect of which the representations and warranties are false, incorrect or misleading to
the terms and conditions provided under the relevant Warranty and Indemnity Agreement.

The Originator may exercise the re-purchase option by giving written notice to the Issuer (the “Notice of
Re-Purchase”) within the Repurchase Period. The effectiveness of the re-purchase is subject to payment
from the Originator of the purchase price of the Claims which are subject to repurchase (the “Affected
Claims”) on the Collection Account (the “Affected Claims Re-Purchase Price”).

The Affected Claims Re-Purchase Price will be equal to: (a) the Purchase Price of the Affected Claims less
any principal amount and rebate interest recovered or collected by the Issuer on the Affected Claims; plus
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(b) interest accrued or accruing on the Individual Purchase Price of the Affected Claims from the relevant
Issue Date (included) until the Payment Date (excluded) following the date in which the relevant payment
of the Affected Claims Re-Purchase Price has been made, calculated, with reference to each Affected
Claim, at the interest rate equal to the algebric sum between (x) the weighted average of Euribor 3 months
as applicable to the Notes from time to time and (y) a margin equal to the weighted average margin
respectively applicable to the Class A1 Notes and Class B Notes; plus (c) costs and documented expenses
incurred by the Issuer in relation to the Affected Claims as at the date of payment of the Affected Claims
Re-Purchase Price. The Affected Claims Re-Purchase Price shall be paid within 7 Business Days following
receipt by the Originator of the Notice of Re-transfer. Within the date of payment of the Affected Claims
Re-Purchase Price, the Originator shall deliver to the Issuer: (i) a certificate of good standing of the
Chamber of Commerce (certificato di vigenza della Camera di Commercio); (ii) a solvency certificate
signed by a legal representative duly authorized by the Originator; and (iii) a certificate of the bankruptcy
court (“tribunale civile — sezione fallimentare™) confirming that the Originator is not subject to any
insolvency or similar proceedings. Any and all costs, expenses and duties in relation to the re-transfer of the
Affected Claims will be borne by the Originator.

The Parties to each Warranty and Indemnity Agreement have agreed that the Issuer may exercise in any
case the remedies, to be indemnified in the following cases:

Q) if the re-purchase price is not paid within 7 Business Days starting from the day on which the
Originator gets written Notice of the Re-Purchase, and in any other case in which the re-purchase is
not finalised for any reason; or

(i) if, at any time, the representations and warranties contained into the relevant Warranty and
Indemnity Agreement, other than to those referring to the Loans, the Mortgage, the Loan
Agreements, the Claims and the Real Estate Asset are false or incorrect, and in general if it is not
possible to proceed with the repurchase of the Affected Claims; or

(iii)  inrelation to (a) any damage or loss suffered by the Issuer and related to the Affected Claims which
exceeds the Affected Claims Re-Purchase Price, and (b) any reasonable cost/expense that for any
reason was not included in the Affected Claims Re-Purchase Price; or

(iv) in any case in which the Issuer considers appropriate, with the prior written consent of the
Representative of the Noteholders, in the interest of the Transaction (and such opinion is confirmed
by a consultant (advisor)) to apply provision of clause 5 of the relevant Warranty and Indemnity
Agreement instead of exercising the right of re-transfer as provided by clause 6 of the relevant
Warranty and Indemnity Agreement.

Under each Warranty and Indemnity Agreement, the Originator represented to the Issuer that the interest
rates of the Loans comply with the Usury Law and agreed to indemnify the Issuer against any damages,
losses, claims, liabilities and costs awarded against or suffered or incurred by it or otherwise arising as a
consequence or in relation to any claims being brought by the Borrowers or other third parties on the
grounds of the Usury Law.

Each Warranty and Indemnity Agreement is in Italian. Each Warranty and Indemnity Agreement and all

non-contractual obligations arising out or in connection with the relevant Warranty and Indemnity
Agreement are governed by and construed in accordance with Italian law.
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In the event of any disputes arising out of or in connection with each Warranty and Indemnity Agreement
including all non-contractual obligations thereof, the Parties have agreed to submit to the exclusive
jurisdiction of the Courts of Rome, Italy.

THE SERVICING AGREEMENT

On 25 March 2019, the Issuer and Banca del Fucino (the “Servicer”) entered into a servicing agreement, as
subsequently amended on or prior to the Initial Issue Date and as amended or prior to the Subsequent Issue
Date, (the “Servicing Agreement”) pursuant to which the Servicer has agreed to (i) carry out supervising
activities in order to ensure compliance with the law, pursuant to article 2, paragraph 6-bis of the
Securitisation Law, (ii) administer, service and manage the judicial proceedings of the relevant assigned
Claims which (except for the activity related to the collection of the amounts due in respect thereof) are not
Defaulted Claims (the “Administration of the Portfolio”) and (iii) to administer and service all the
Defaulted Claims and manage the judicial proceedings in relation to the latters (but expressly excluding any
collection activity) (the “Management of the Defaulted Claims”).

The receipt of cash collections in respect of the Portfolio is the responsibility of the Servicer who will be the
“soggetto incaricato della riscossione dei crediti ceduti” pursuant to article 2(3)(c) of the Securitisation
Law and accordingly is responsible for ensuring that such operations comply with the provisions of the law
and of this Prospectus pursuant to article 2, paragraph 6-bis of the Securitisation Law.

Pursuant to the terms of the Servicing Agreement, the Servicer shall comply with certain collection policies
specified in the Servicing Agreement (the “Collection Policies”) in relation to the collection and recovery
activities carried out on behalf of the Issuer and shall provide the Issuer monthly and quarterly servicing
reports, to be integrated from time to time taking into account the information required under article 7(1) of
the Securitisation Regulations in accordance with the Regulatory Technical Standards, if available, and
with the EBA Guidelines, (respectively, a “Montlhy Servicing Report” and a “Quarterly Servicing
Report”) and a loan by loan report, which includes all the information set out under point (a) of the first
subparagraph of article 7(1) and article 22(4) of the EU Securitisation Regulation (the “Loan by Loan
Report”). The Servicer shall also ensure that the Collections do not include usurious interest in accordance
with the anti-usury laws and regulations applicable from time to time. The Servicer shall be entitled to settle
and renegotiate the Claims only in accordance with the Servicing Agreement.

The Servicer shall give order to pay all collections and recoveries received by it in respect of the Portfolio
(the “Collections”) into the Collection Account on a daily basis. The Servicer will convert any non-cash
collections received by it into equivalent amounts of cash and will credit such cash to the Collection
Account.

The Servicer shall be entitled to settle and renegotiate the Claims only in accordance with the Servicing
Agreement. In particular the Servicer may, with respect to the Claims (other than the Defaulted Claims)
sold by it in its quality of Originator, carry out the following agreements:

Q) the modification of the interest rate, such agreements having as their object:

(@ the modification from fixed rate, or floating interest rate with cap, to floating interest rate;

(b) the modification from floating interest rate, or floating interest rate with cap, or floating
interest rate with a floor, to fixed rate;
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(c) the reduction of the interest rate or of the spread applicable to the Loan (in case no
modification has been made to the nature of the interest rate applicable to the Loan); and

(d) with exclusive reference to the Loan Agreements having a floating rate of interest with a
floor, the modification of the applicable floor

It remains understood that it is not allowed any modifications of the interest rate applicable to the mortgage
loans to (1) an optional interest rate; or (2) to a floating interest rate with cap, and

(i)
(iii)

the modification of the final maturity of the Loan Agreements; and

standstill agreements which provide for the suspension of payments of the principal quota of

instalments due under the Loan Agreements or of both the principal and interest quota (it being understood
that such suspension of payment of instalments of the Loan Agreements which are provided by law or from
the applicable legislation do not fall within the limits provided under the provisions below);

In all cases of renegoatiation above, subject to the following conditions being met:

a)

b)

in relation to the above modification of the interest rate under (i) above, which causes a reduction of
the Net Margin (as defined below): the sum of the outstanding principal amount of the Loan
Agreements which are subject to such renegotiation comprised in the Portfolio shall not exceed 25%
of the outstanding principal amount of the Claims comprised in the Portfolio as of the Subsequent
Effective Date . It remains understood that modifications of the interest rate of any Loan Agreement
which do not cause a reduction in the Net Margin shall not be included in the calculation of the
abovementioned percentage. In the case of a reduction of more than 50 basis points of the Net
Margin related to such modification, the effectiveness of the modification will be subordinated to
the payment of the below indemnity on the Collection Account by the Servicer;

“Net Margin” means:

(A) in relation to a Loan Agreement with a floating rate, or a floating rate with cap, or a floating
rate with a floor (after or before, the entering into a renegotiation activity pursuant to the
Servicing Agreement), the spread applicable to the relevant Loan Agreement; and

(B) in relation to the Loan Agreement with a fixed rate (after or before the entering into a
renegotiation activity pursuant to the Servicing Agreement), the difference between (i) the
fixed interest rate applicable to the relevant the Loan Agreement; and (ii) the fixed interest
rate payable by the Issuer, as indicated in the Swap Confirmation,

in relation to the modification (i.e. extension or reduction) of the final maturity of the Loan
Agreements under point (ii) above:

(x) the renegotiation agreement shall not provide for payments of any instalment on a date
which falls in a date which is 10 (ten) years prior to the Final Maturity Date;

(y) following the entry into the renegotiation agreement, the new maturity date of the relevant
Loan Agreement shall not fall 15 years after the maturity date of the Loan Agreement as at
the Subsequent Effective Date; and
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2 the outstanding principal amount of all the Loans object of such renegotiation shall not
exceed 10% of the outstanding principal amount of the Claims as at the Subsequent
Effective Date;

in relation to the standstill agreements which provide for the suspension of the payment of the
instalments (due for the interest quota only or for the principal and interest quotas) of the Loans
(being such suspension not provided by law or by the applicable regulations) (the “Suspension”),

() each Suspension shall be granted for a maximum period of 18 (eighteen) months;

(i) if the Suspension provides for the deferment of the original maturity date of the
amortisation plan of the relevant mortgage loan, (x) such deferment shall not exceed the
duration of such suspension; and (y) the new maturity date of such Mortgage Loan shall not
fall later than the date that falls 10 (ten) years prior to the legal maturity date of the Senior
Notes; and

(iii) in addition, the following limits shall be respected:

(x) the sum of the Outstanding Principal Amount of the Claims subject to Suspension
(calculated on the date of the relevant suspension) shall not exceed in aggregate, for the
entire duration of the Transaction, 35% of the Principal Amount calculated on the
Subsequent Effective Date (the “Overall Threshold”); and

(y) without prejudice to the Overall Threshold, the sum of the Principal Amount of the
Claims subject to Suspension, calculated on the last calendar day of the Reference
Period immediately preceding the relevant Suspension, shall not exceed in aggregate,
for each Reference Period, 20% of the Principal Amount calculated on the same date
(the “Temporary Threshold”). It being understood, for the sake of clarity, that for the
purposes of determining the Temporary Threshold relating to a specific suspension
shall not be taken into consideration any decrease in the Principal Amount subsequent
to such Suspension.

For the sake of clarity, it remains understood that if a Claim subject to Suspension has terminated to benefit
from the Suspension, such Claim will no longer be considered for the purposes of determining the
Temporary Threshold;

d)

e)

in any case, in relation to any modification of the interest rate made in accordance with paragraphs
(a) and (b) above, the Servicer shall verify that, for each Collection Period, the sum of the principal
amount outstanding of the Loan Agreements subject of such renegotiation does not exceed, in
relation to the Swap Transaction pursuant to which the relevant Loan Agreement will be hedged
after such renegotiation, an amount equal to the difference between:

1. the Scheduled Maximum Notional Amount in such Swap Transaction as applicable to the
following Interest Period; and

2. the Swap Outstanding Principal Amount in such Swap Transaction as calculated at the
beginning of the Collection Period in which such renegotiation is made.

in relation to any modification of the amortisation plan of the Loan Agreements above described,
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such modification shall not result in a switch to an amortisation plan different from the so called
“French amortisation plan”.

If the Servicer intends to make any renegotiation for the modification of the interest rate, according to the
relevant paragraphs above, the Servicer shall promptly inform the Issuer on the terms and conditions of
such renegotiation and shall not enter into such renegotiation agreement until it has paid to the Issuer a
corresponding indemnity calculated in accordance with the Servicing Agreement (if any).

In case the indemnity payments due to the Issuer by the Servicer under renegotiations made in the same
Collection Period exceed Euro 1,000,000 (one million), the Servicer shall provide to the Issuer appropriate
solvency, bankruptcy and good standing certificates as better described in the Servicing Agreement.

In order to maximise the recovery activities of the Claims, the Servicer, pursuant to the Servicing
Agreement, is entitled to assign, without recourse (“pro soluto ), to third parties or to the Originator itself,
Claims classified as Defaulted Claims subject to the following conditions:

(A) (i) the aggregate amount of the Defaulted Claims comprised in the Portfolio assigned in the same
Collection Period pursuant to these provisions, shall not exceed 0.50% of the outstanding principal
amount of the Claims assigned to the Issuer as of the date of computation; and (ii) the purchase
price of each Defaulted Claim shall be equal to the higher of (a) the net account value ( “valore netto
contabile”) of such Claim on the date on which the relevant transfer is effective; and

(B) appropriate solvency, bankruptcy and good standing certificates as better specified in the Servicing
Agreement have been obtained from the relevant purchaser and the relevant sale will occur, to the
maximum extent permitted by the Italian Law, without any guarantee of the transferor as regards
the existence of the claims and any other guarantee on the transfer of the claim. The Servicer may
consent to the release or the replacement of the Security Interest on the Claim if, as a result of any
improvement in the economic situation of the Borrower and/or the reduction of the outstanding
debt for the normal payment of the instalments and/or effect of partial prepayments, the Borrower
complies with the income requirements required by the Originator in accordance with its internal
credit granting policies even in the absence of such Security Interest or the new guarantor provide
adequate guarantees to the Claim. The Servicer shall promptly indemnify the Company as a result
of any losses, damages, costs or expenses incurred by the Servicer's membership at such release.

As consideration for the services provided by the Servicer, the Issuer will pay, on each Payment Date, in
accordance with the applicable Order of Priority, the sum of the following amounts:

(@) 0.25% of the Collections not being Defaulted Claims (“Crediti in Sofferenza”) or Delinquent
Claims (“Crediti in Ritardo”), and not being related to Late Payments, collected by Banca del
Fucino during the immediately preceding Collection Period,;

b 0.30% of the Collections with respect to Late Payments (“Rate Insolute”) or Delinquent Claims
( p y q
(“Crediti in Ritardo™), collected during the immediately preceding Collection Period;

(c) in relation to the master servicing activity pursuant to the Servicing Agreement, Euro 5,000 per
annum.
(d) in relation to the Management of the Defaulted Claims, 0.70% of the collections made with respect
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to the Defaulted Claims (“Crediti in Sofferenza”) of the Portfolio, collected by Banca del Fucino
during the immediately preceding Collection Period,

it being understood that the amounts and fees indicated above do not include VAT if applicable. The fees
under letters (a), (b), (c) and (d) all together, the “Servicing Fees”).

The Servicer has expressly waived its rights to compensation that may be provided for by law other than the
Servicing Fees. It has also expressly waived its rights to exercise any right to off-set the amounts due to
Banca del Fucino from the Issuer against the Collections or any other amount owed by the Servicer to the
Issuer, except for those amounts paid to the Issuer and undue.

The Servicer has undertaken, inter alia, with respect to the activities in relation to which it has been
appointed pursuant to the Servicing Agreement:

@) to carry out the Administration of the Portfolio and the Management of the Defaulted Claims with
due skill and care in accordance with the Collection Policies and with all applicable laws and
regulations;

(b) to maintain an effective system of general and accounting controls so as to ensure the performance
of its obligations under the Servicing Agreement;

(c) save as otherwise provided in the Collection Policies and in the Servicing Agreement, not to release
or consent to the cancellation of all or part of the Claims unless ordered to do so by a competent
judicial or other authority or by the Issuer;

(d) to ensure adequate identification and segregation of the collections and recoveries and other
amounts related to the Claims from all other funds of the Servicer;

(e) to ensure that the Transaction is consistent with the law and this Prospectus;

0] to comply with all authorisations, approvals, licenses and consents required for the fulfilment of the
relevant obligations under the Servicing Agreement; and

(o) to cooperate with the Back-up Servicer and to make available to it any information required from
time to time, and any resource belonging to its internal departments, for a reasonable period of
time, in order to allow the Back-up Servicer to have a knowledge of (i) the Originator’s devices
which are used with respect to the Issuer and (ii) the report procedures which are used in the context
of the Transaction, in order for the Back-up Servicer to be able to use such devices and report
procedures in case of replacement of the Servicer.

In the case of a material breach by the Servicer of its obligations under the Servicing Agreement, the Issuer
and/or the Representative of the Noteholders shall be entitled, jointly or severally to perform the relevant
obligations in the name and on behalf of the Servicer to cause it to be performed by third parties in the name
and on behalf of the Servicer.

The Issuer may revoke the appointment of the Servicer, and appoint a substitute of the Servicer (the
“Substitute”), in certain circumstances including, inter alia:
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Q) the Representative of the Noteholders or the Issuer have been informed that an event which could
negatively impact on the juridical, economic and financial condition of the Servicer to a point
capable of prejudicing the capacity of the Servicer to perform its obligations under the Servicing
Agreement has occurred; in this case the substitution shall occur upon prior written consent of the
Representative of the Noteholders and on the basis of a previous assessment proceeding by the
Issuer and/or the Representative of the Noteholders (which, in this circumstance, may ask for the
advice of professionals specifically appointed);

(i) the insolvency of the Servicer;

(iii)  afailure by the Servicer to pay or transfer to the Issuer any amount due which remains unremedied
for more than 2 Business Days after the relevant statutory request of payment;

(iv) a breach of the obligations under the Servicing Agreement which remain unremedied for more than
10 calendar days after a written demand of compliance sent by the Issuer and/or the Representative
of the Noteholders.

The revocation of the Servicer shall become effective on the day following the date on which the Servicer
has received the relevant letter of revocation or on the date indicated in the notice, provided that, in any
case, before the effective date, the Back-up Servicer has become operative or the appointment as servicer
has been accepted by the Substitute through, inter alia, the execution of a servicing agreement which terms
and condition are substantially the same of the terms and conditions of the Servicing Agreement.

Moreover, the Servicer is entitled to resign from the Servicing Agreement at any time after 24-months from
the execution date by giving at least 12 months’ prior written notice to that effect to the Issuer and the
Representative of the Noteholders, provided that, before the effective date of the resignation, the Back-up
Servicer has become operative or when, inter alia, the the appointment as servicer has been accepted by the
Substitute through, inter alia, the execution of a servicing agreement which terms and condition are
substantially the same of the terms and conditions of the Servicing Agreement.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Servicing Agreement, the Substitute shall be, inter alia, an entity which
has all the requirements provided by, inter alia, the Law 130, the EU Securitisation Regulation (including
the requirements under article 21(8) of the EU Securitisation Regulation) and the EBA Guidelines, for
carrying out the servicer activity and which management has at least 5 years of experience in managing
exposure of similar nature to the Claims.

The Servicing Agreement is in Italian. The Servicing Agreement and all non-contractual obligations arising
out or in connection with the Servicing Agreement are governed by and construed in accordance with
Italian law.

In the event of any disputes arising out of or in connection with the Servicing Agreement including all
non-contractual obligations thereof, the Parties have agreed to submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the
Courts of Rome, Italy.

THE BACK-UP SERVICING AGREEMENT

Under a back-up servicing agreement to be entered into on or prior to the Initial Issue Date (the “Back-Up
Servicing Agreement”), among the Issuer, the Servicer and the Back-up Servicer, the Back-up Servicer
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has undertaken to act as substitute servicer of Banca del Fucino in case of termination of the appointment of
Banca del Fucino as Servicer, according to the Servicing Agreement.

The Back-Up Servicing Agreement is in Italian. The Back-Up Servicing Agreement and all non-contractual
obligations arising out or in connection with the Back-Up Servicing Agreement are governed by and
construed in accordance with Italian law.

In the event of any disputes arising out of or in connection with the Back-Up Servicing Agreement
including all non contractual obligations thereof, the Parties have agreed to submit to the exclusive
jurisdiction of the Courts of Rome, Italy.

THE CORPORATE SERVICES AGREEMENT

Under a corporate services agreement entered into on 25 March 2019 between the Issuer and the Corporate
Services Provider (the “Corporate Services Agreement”), the Corporate Services Provider shall provide
the Issuer with certain corporate administration and management services. These services shall include the
book-keeping of the documentation in relation to the meetings of the Issuer’s quotaholders, directors and
auditors and the meetings of the Noteholders, maintaining the quotaholders’ register and liaising with the
Representative of the Noteholders.

The Corporate Services Agreement and all non-contractual obligations arising out or in connection with the
Corporate Services Agreement are governed by and construed in accordance with Italian law.

In the event of any disputes arising out of or in connection with the Corporate Services Agreement
including all non-contractual obligations thereof, the Parties have agreed to submit to the exclusive
jurisdiction of the Courts of Rome, Italy.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT

Pursuant to an administrative services agreement entered into on 25 March 2019 between the Issuer and the
Administrative Services Provider (the “Administrative Services Agreement”), the Administrative
Services Provider has agreed to provide the Issuer with a number of administrative services as long as the
Notes are outstanding, including, inter alia, to:

(i)  keep, on behalf of the Issuer, accounting and tax records required by Italian law;

(i)  assist the Issuer’s directors in the preparation of the Issuer's annual financial statements in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations (including any applicable regulation from the Bank
of Italy);

(iii)  prepare all periodical reports required by applicable money laundering, banking and stock exchange
and other applicable regulations.

The Administrative Services Provider may appoint any person as its sub-agent, sub-contractor or
representative to assist it in the performance of its activities, provided that such appointment does not affect
the performance of the obligations under the Administrative Services Agreement and the Administrative
Services Provider shall not be released from any liability under the Administrative Services Agreement and
shall remain primarily responsible for the provision (or failure to provide) and the performance (or failure to
perform) of the services so delegated.

The Administrative Services Agreement (and any non-contractual obligation arising out of or in connection
with it) is governed by, and will be construed in accordance with, Italian law. The courts of Rome shall have
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exclusive jurisdiction in relation to any disputes (also in relation to non-contractual obligations) arising
from, or in connection with, the Administrative Services Agreement.

THE INTERCREDITOR AGREEMENT

Pursuant to an intercreditor agreement to be entered into on or prior to the Initial Issue Date, as amended on
or about the Subsequent Issue Date and as further amended by the General Amendment Agreement (the
“Intercreditor Agreement”), between the Issuer, the Representative of the Noteholders (on its own behalf
and as agent for the Noteholders) and the Other Issuer Creditors, provisions are made as to the application
of the Collections in respect of the Portfolio and as to how the Orders of Priority are to be applied. Subject
to a Trigger Notice being served upon the Issuer following the occurrence of a Trigger Event, all the Issuer
Available Funds will be applied in or towards satisfaction of the Issuer’s payment obligations towards the
Noteholders as well as the Other Issuer Creditors, in accordance with the Acceleration Order of Priority
provided in the Intercreditor Agreement.

Call Option

The Issuer shall grant to the Originator an option right on any Payment Date falling on or after the Initial
Clean Up Option Date to purchase, subject to certain conditions, the Portfolio (in whole but not in part) for
a purchase price equal to the Outstanding Balance, plus interests accrued and unpaid as at such date, of each
Claim comprised in the Portfolio, provided that, if on such date the Portfolio comprises any claim classified
as “in sofferenza” pursuant to the regulation issued by the Bank of Italy, the purchase price of such claim
shall be equal to their current market value, as determined by a third entity appointed by the Originator and
the Issuer and, in any case, such purchase price shall be equal to or higher than the amount (as determined in
the relevant Payments Report) necessary for the Issuer to discharge all its outstanding liabilities in respect
of all the Notes (or the Rated Notes only if all the Junior Noteholders consent) and any amounts required
under the Intercreditor Agreement to be paid in priority to or pari passu with the Notes (or the Rated Notes
only if all the Junior Noteholders consent).

Swap Collateral

The Intercreditor Agreement also contains the Collateral Account Priority of Payments which describes
how amounts standing to the credit of the Collateral Account may be used by the Issuer as described below.

Amounts standing to the credit of the Collateral Account will not be available for the Issuer to make
payments to the Noteholders and the Other Issuer Creditors generally, but may be applied only in
accordance with the following provisions (the “Collateral Account Priority of Payments”):

(i)  prior to the occurrence or designation of an Early Termination Date in respect of the Swap
Agreement, solely in or towards payment or transfer of:

(@) any Return Amounts (as defined in the Credit Support Annex);
(b) any Interest Amounts and Distributions (each as defined in the Credit Support Annex) and

(c) any return of collateral to the Swap Counterparty upon a novation of such Swap
Counterparty ’s obligations under the Swap Agreement to a replacement swap counterparty,
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on any day (whether or not such day is a Payment Date), directly to the Swap Counterparty in accordance
with the terms of the Credit Support Annex;

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

upon or immediately following the occurrence or designation of an Early Termination Date (as
defined in the Swap Agreement) in respect of the Swap Agreement where (A) such Early
Termination Date (as defined in the Swap Agreement) has been designated following an Event of
Default (as defined in the Swap Agreement) in respect of which the Swap Counterparty is the
Defaulting Party (as defined in the Swap Agreement) or an Additional Termination Event (as defined
in the Swap Agreement) resulting from a Swap Counterparty Rating Event and in respect of which
the Swap Counterparty is the Affected Party (as defined in the Swap Agreement) and (B) the Issuer
enters into a replacement swap agreement in respect of such Swap Agreement on or around the Early
Termination Date of such Swap Agreement, on the later of the day on which such replacement swap
agreement is entered into and the day on which the Replacement Swap Premium (if any) payable to
the Issuer has been received (in each case, whether or not such day is a Payment Date), in the
following order of priority:

(@) first, in or towards payment of any Replacement Swap Premium (if any) payable by the Issuer
to a replacement swap counterparty in order to enter into a replacement swap agreement with
the Issuer with respect to the Swap Agreement being novated or terminated;

(b) second, in or towards payment of any termination payment due to the outgoing Swap
Counterparty pursuant to the Swap Agreement; and

(c) third, the surplus (if any) (a “Swap Collateral Account Surplus”) on such day to be
transferred to the Payments Account for an amount equal to the Swap Collateral Account
Surplus and deemed to form Issuer Available Funds;

following the occurrence or designation of an Early Termination Date in respect of the Swap
Agreement where (A) such Early Termination Date has been designated following an Event of
Default (as defined in the Swap Agreement) in respect of which the Swap Counterparty is the
Defaulting Party (as defined in the Swap Agreement) or an Additional Termination Event (as defined
in the Swap Agreement) resulting from a Swap Counterparty Rating Event and in respect of which
the Swap Counterparty is the Affected Party (as defined in the Swap Agreement) and (B) the Issuer is
unable to or elects not to enter into a replacement swap agreement on or around the Early
Termination Date of such Swap Agreement, on any day (whether or not such day is a Payment Date)
in or towards payment of any termination payment due to the outgoing Swap Counterparty pursuant
to the Swap Agreement;

following the occurrence or designation of an Early Termination Date in respect of the Swap
Agreement where such Early Termination Date has been designated otherwise than as a result of one
of the events specified at items (ii) and (iii) above, on any day (whether or not such day is a Payment
Date) in or towards payment of any termination payment due to the outgoing Swap Counterparty
pursuant to the Swap Agreement; and

following payment of any amounts due pursuant to (iii) and (iv) above, if amounts remain standing to

the credit of the Collateral Account, such amounts may be applied on any day (whether or not such
day is a Payment Date) only in accordance with the following provisions:

160

4155-1253-8422.3



(@) first, in or towards payment of any Replacement Swap Premium (if any) payable by the Issuer
to a replacement swap counterparty in order to enter into a replacement swap agreement with
the Issuer with respect to the Swap Agreement being terminated; and

(b) second, the surplus (if any) (a “Swap Collateral Account Surplus”) remaining after payment
of such Replacement Swap Premium to be transferred to the Payments Account for an amount
equal to the Swap Collateral Account Surplus and deemed to form Issuer Available Funds,

provided that if the Issuer has not entered into a replacement swap agreement with respect to the
Swap Agreement on or prior to the earlier of:

x) the day that is 10 (ten) Business Days prior to the date on which the Principal Amount
Outstanding of all Classes of Notes is reduced to zero (other than following the occurrence
of a Trigger Event pursuant to Condition 9 (Trigger Events)); or

) the day on which a Trigger Notice is given pursuant to Condition 9 (Trigger Events),

then the Collateral Amount on such day shall be transferred to the Payments Account for an amount equal to
the Collateral Amount as soon as reasonably practicable thereafter and deemed to constitute a Swap
Collateral Account Surplus and to form Issuer Available Funds.

Under the Intercreditor Agreement, the Originator and the Issuer have designated among themselves the
Originator as the reporting entity pursuant to article 7 of the Securitisation Regulations (the “Reporting
Entity”). The parties to the Intercreditor Agreement have acknowledged that the Reporting Entity shall be
responsible for compliance with article 7 of the Securitisation Regulations pursuant to the Transaction
Documents. In that respect, the Originator, in its capacity as Reporting Entity, will fulfil the information
requirements pursuant to points (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), (f) and (g) of the first subparagraph of article 7(1) of the
Securitisation Regulations by making available the relevant information through the Securitisation
Repository.

With reference to the transparency requirements under the EU Securitisation Regulation please refer to
section “Compliance with STS Requirements and Regulatory Capital Requirements - Article 22
(Requirements relating to transparency) of the EU Securitisation Regulation”.

THE CASH ADMINISTRATION AND AGENCY AGREEMENT

Under an agreement entered into on or prior to the Initial Issue Date among, inter alios, the Issuer, the
Servicer, the Transaction Bank, the Cash Manager, the Swap Counterparty, the Computation Agent, the
Principal Paying Agent and the Representative of the Noteholders, as further amended by the General
Amendment Agreement (the “Cash Administration and Agency Agreement”):

(@) the Principal Paying Agent will perform certain services in relation to the Notes, including arranging
for the payment of principal and interest to the Monte Titoli Account Holders and will calculate the
amount of interest payable on the Notes on each Payment Date;

(c) the Computation Agent will perform certain other calculations in respect of the Notes and set out, in
a payments report, the payments due to be made by the Issuer on each Payment Date in accordance
with the applicable Order of Priority and to prepare investors reports providing information on the
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performance of the Portfolio; and

(d) the Transaction Bank and the Cash Manager will provide the Issuer with certain cash administration
and investment services, in relation to the monies standing, from time to time, to the credit of the
relevant Accounts.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Cash Administration and Agency Agreement the appointment of any of the
Collection Account Bank, the Transaction Bank, the Principal Paying Agent, the Computation Agent and
the Cash Manager shall terminate or be revoked upon receipt of, inter alia, a 5 (five) Business Days’ notice
by the Issuer, provided however that, in any case, such termination or revocation shall not take effect until a
successor has been duly appointed.

In addition, if any of the Principal Paying Agent, the Cash Manager and the Transaction Bank ceases to be
an Eligible Institution, the Issuer, within 45 (forty-five) calendar days following the relevant downgrading
event, shall appoint a new bank being an Eligible Institution (approved by the Representative of the
Noteholders and notified in advance to the Rating Agencies) which shall assume the role of the replaced
agent upon the same terms of Cash Administration and Agency Agreement.

Pursuant to the Cash Administration and Agency Agreement, for the purpose of compliance by Banca del
Fucino in its capacity as Reporting Entity with the disclosure requirements pursuant to points (f) and (g) of
the first subparagraph of article 7(1) of the Securitisation Regulations, the Computation Agent has
undertaken to the Issuer, the Representative of the Noteholder and the Reporting Entity to prepare and
deliver to the Reporting Entity, that will make available to the entities referred to under article 7(1) of the
Securitisation Regulations by means of the Securitisation Repository, (A) without delay, after the
occurrence of the relevant event or the Inside Information is to be disclosed and (B) by no later than one
month after each Payment Date, a report setting out:

(i)  all the required information to be provided pursuant to point (f) of the first subparagraph of article
7(1) of the Securitisation Regulations that has been provided by the Issuer, the Servicer and/or the
Originator to the Computation Agent for such purpose; and/or

(i)  the occurrence of any event set out under point (g) of the first subparagraph of article 7(1) of the
Securitisation Regulations that has been notified by the Issuer, the Servicer and/or the Originator to
the Computation Agent for such purpose,

(the "Inside Information and Significant Event Report"™) in compliance with article 7 of the
Securitisation Regulations and the applicable Regulatory Technical Standards.

The Cash Administration and Agency Agreement is in English. The Cash Administration and Agency
Agreement and all non-contractual obligations arising out or in connection with the Cash Administration
and Agency Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with Italian law.

In the event of any disputes arising out of or in connection with the Cash Administration and Agency
Agreement including all non-contractual obligations thereof, the Parties have agreed to submit to the
exclusive jurisdiction of the Courts of Rome, Italy.

SUBORDINATED LOAN AGREEMENT

Pursuant to a subordinated loan agreement entered into on or prior the Initial Issue Date, among the Issuer,
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the Subordinated Loan Provider and the Representative of the Noteholders (the “Subordinated Loan
Agreement”) provided the Issuer within the Initial Issue Date with an interest bearing Subordinated Loan
which was applied by the Issuer to fund part of the Cash Reserve Initial Amount (equal to Euro
4,700,000.00 being the difference between the Cash Reserve Initial Amount (i.e., 4,721,920.00) and Euro
21,920.00 (which is the part of the Cash Reserve Initial Amount funded through the Collections from the
Effective Date (included) until two Business Days preceding the Initial Issue Date) and to fund the Swap
Reserve Account.

Interest in respect of the Subordinated Loan shall accrue on a daily basis on:

Q) as to the Initial Subordinated Loan Senior Interest, the positive difference between (i) Euro
4,700,000.00 (up to the Payment Date falling in March 2022) or Euro 2,838,562.42 (starting from
the Payment Date falling in September 2022 (included)) and (ii) the principal amount of the
Subordinated Loan repaid under item Twelfth of the Pre-Acceleration Order of Priority and item
Tenth of the Acceleration Order of Priority (as applicable) up to the immediately preceding
Payment Date.

(i) as to the Initial Subordinated Loan Junior Interest, the lower of (i) Euro 1,380,000.00 and (ii) the
principal amount outstanding of the Subordinated Loan on the immediately preceding Payment
Date;

from the date of its disbursement and until the earlier of: (i) the date on which the Subordinated Loan has
been repaid in full; and (ii) the Final Maturity Date.

The rate of interest on the Subordinated Loan for each Interest Period is the rate per annum being the
aggregate of:

Q) Three Months Euribor applicable to the relevant Interest Period as determined by the Computation
Agent; and

(i) a margin of 0.50% per annum;

provided that the rate of interest applicable to the Subordinated Loan (i.e., the Three Months Euribor plus
the margin) shall not be negative nor higher than 1% in any case.

Interest and principal due and payable under the Subordinated Loan Agreement will be paid by the Issuer
on each Payment Date out of the Issuer Available Funds in accordance with the applicable Order of Priority.

The Subordinated Loan Agreement (and any non-contractual obligation arising out of or in connection with
it) is governed by, and will be construed in accordance with, Italian law. The courts of Rome shall have
exclusive jurisdiction in relation to any disputes (also in relation to non-contractual obligations) arising
from, or in connection with, the Subordinated Loan Agreement.

SUBSEQUENT SUBORDINATED LOAN AGREEMENT

Pursuant to a subordinated loan agreement entered into on or prior the Subsequent Issue Date, among the
Issuer, the Subsequent Subordinated Loan Provider and the Representative of the Noteholders (the
“Subsequent Subordinated Loan Agreement”) provided the Issuer within the Subsequent Issue Date
with an interest bearing Subsequent Subordinated Loan in an amount equal to Euro 168,989.00 which will
be applied by the Issuer on the Subsequent Issue Date to fund a portion of Swap Reserve Top-up Amount.
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Interest in respect of the Subordinated Loan shall accrue on a daily basis on, as to the Initial Subordinated
Loan Junior Interest, the lower of (i) Euro 168,989.00 and (ii) the principal amount of the Subsequent
Subordinated Loan repaid under item Twelfth of the Pre-Acceleration Order of Priority and item Tenth of
the Acceleration Order of Priority (as applicable) up to the immediately preceding Payment Date.

The rate of interest on the Subsequent Subordinated Loan for each Interest Period is the rate per annum
being the aggregate of:

() Three Months Euribor applicable to the relevant Interest Period as determined by the Computation
Agent; and

(i) a margin of 0.50% per annum;

provided that the rate of interest applicable to the Subsequent Subordinated Loan (i.e., the Three Months
Euribor plus the margin) shall not be negative nor higher than 1% in any case.

Interest and principal due and payable under the Subsequent Subordinated Loan Agreement will be paid by
the Issuer on each Payment Date out of the Issuer Available Funds in accordance with the applicable Order
of Priority.

The Subsequent Subordinated Loan Agreement (and any non-contractual obligation arising out of or in
connection with it) is governed by, and will be construed in accordance with, Italian law. The courts of
Rome shall have exclusive jurisdiction in relation to any disputes (also in relation to non-contractual
obligations) arising from, or in connection with, the Subsequent Subordinated Loan Agreement.

THE NOTES SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENTS
The Original Notes Subscription Agreement

Pursuant to a subscription agreement relating to the Class A Notes, the Class B Notes and the Class J Notes
entered into on or prior to the Initial Issue Date between the Issuer, the Originator, the Arranger and the
Representative of the Noteholders (the “Original Notes Subscription Agreement”), the Originator has
agreed to subscribe and pay for the Class A Notes, the Class B Notes and the Class J Notes and to pay to the
Issuer the Issue Price for such Notes and shall appoint the Representative of the Noteholders to act as the
representative of the Noteholders, subject to the conditions set out therein.

The Original Notes Subscription Agreement is in English language and all non-contractual obligations
arising out or in connection with the Original Notes Subscription Agreement are governed by and construed
in accordance with Italian law.

In the event of any disputes arising out of or in connection with the Original Notes Subscription Agreement
including all non-contractual obligations thereof, the Parties have agreed to submit to the exclusive
jurisdiction of the Courts of Milan.

The Class A1 Notes Subscription Agreement
Pursuant to a subscription agreement relating to the Class A1 Notes entered into on or prior to the

Subsequent Issue Date between the Issuer, the Originator, the Arranger, the Placement Agent and the
Representative of the Noteholders (the “Class A1 Notes Subscription Agreement”), the Originator has
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agreed to subscribe and pay for the Class A1 Notes, and to pay to the Issuer the Issue Price for such Class
Al Notes and shall appoint the Representative of the Noteholders to act as the representative of the
Noteholders, subject to the conditions set out therein.

The Class Al Notes Subscription Agreement is in English language and all non-contractual obligations
arising out or in connection with the Class A1 Notes Subscription Agreement are governed by and
construed in accordance with English law.

In the event of any disputes arising out of or in connection with the Class A1 Notes Subscription Agreement
including all non-contractual obligations thereof, the Parties have agreed to submit to the exclusive
jurisdiction of the English Courts.

DEED OF CHARGE

Pursuant to a deed of charge governed by English law executed by the Issuer on 10 April 2019 as amended
and restated on or about the Subsequent Issue Date (the “Deed of Charge”), the Issuer has assigned
absolutely with full title guarantee to the Security Trustee acting on behalf of the Noteholders and the Other
Issuer Creditors, all of its present and future rights, title, interest and benefit in, to and under the Swap
Agreement (subject to the netting and set-off provisions thereof) and the EMIR Reporting Agreement.

The Deed of Charge (and any non-contractual obligation arising out of or in connection with it) is governed
by, and will be construed in accordance with, English law. The courts of England shall have exclusive
jurisdiction in relation to any disputes (also in relation to non-contractual obligations) arising from, or in
connection with, the Deed of Charge.

THE QUOTAHOLDER AGREEMENT

Under the terms of an agreement to be entered into on or prior to the Initial Issue Date between the
Quotaholder, the Representative of the Noteholders and the Issuer (the “Quotaholder Agreement”) certain
rules shall be set out in relation to the corporate governance of the Issuer.

In particular, the Quotaholder has agreed, inter alia, not to create any pledge, or encumbrance (including
“usufrutto”) over the quota nor otherwise dispose for any reason of the quota representing the quota capital
of the Issuer held by it, without a prior written consent of inter alios the Representative of the Noteholders
and prior to the delivery of a written notice to inter alios the Rating Agencies.

The Quotaholder Agreement is in Italian. The Quotaholder Agreement and all non contractual obligations
arising out or in connection with the Quotaholder Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with Italian law.

In the event of any disputes arising out of or in connection with the Quotaholder Agreement including all
non contractual obligations thereof, the Parties have agreed to submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the
Courts of Rome, Italy.

THE SWAP AGREEMENT

On or about the Subsequent Issue Date the Issuer entered into a fixed-floating interest rate swap transaction,
a Three Month Euribor basis swap transaction and a Six Month Euribor basis swap transaction with the
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Swap Counterparty (each, a “Swap Transaction” and collectively, the “Initial Swap Transactions”).
Such Swap Transactions are subject to an ISDA 1992 MasterAgreement (Multicurrency-Cross Border) (the
"ISDA ") between the Issuer and the Swap Counterparty, including the Schedule (the "ISDA Schedule")
and a 1995 Credit Support Annex thereto (the "Credit Support Annex" and, together with the ISDA
Master, the ISDA Schedule and the Swap Transactions, the "Swap Agreement™) dated 10 April 2019 as
amended and restated on or about the Subsequent Issue Date.

The Swap Transactions are entered into in order to hedge against the potential interest rate exposure of the
Issuer in relation to its floating rate interest obligations under the Senior Notes and Mezzanine Notes. The
obligations of the Issuer under the Swap Agreement shall be limited recourse to the Issuer Available Funds.
The Issuer Available Funds to be applied in accordance with the Order of Priority shall include an amount
released from the Swap Reserve Account prior to each Payment Date equal to the Swap Fixed Amount
payable in respect of such Payment Date.

If the Swap Counterparty (or any guarantor or credit support provider as applicable) is downgraded below
any of the required credit ratings set out in the Swap Agreement, the Swap Counterparty will be required to
carry out, within the time frame specified in the Swap Agreement, one or more remedial measures at its own
cost which include the following:

(@) transfer all of its rights and obligations under the Swap Agreement to an appropriately rated entity;

(b) arrange for an appropriately rated entity to become co-obligor or guarantor in respect of its
obligations under the Swap Agreement; and

(c) post collateral to support its obligations under the Swap Agreement.

Any such collateral will be credited to the Collateral Account, together with any interest or distributions on,
and any liquidation or other proceeds of, that collateral and will not be available for the Issuer to make
payments to the Other Issuer Creditors generally, but must be applied in accordance with the Collateral
Account Priority of Payments set out in the Intercreditor Agreement.

The occurrence of certain termination events and events of default contained in the Swap Agreement may
cause the termination of the Swap Agreement prior to its stated termination date. Such events include (1)
redemption of the Notes pursuant to Condition 6.3 (Mandatory redemption); (2) redemption of the Notes
pursuant to Condition 6.2 (Redemption for Taxation) or 6.4 (Optional Redemption); (3) amendment of any
Transaction Document without the prior written consent of the Swap Counterparty if such amendment
affects the amount, timing or priority of any payments or deliveries due from the Swap Counterparty to the
Issuer or from the Issuer to the Swap Counterparty, (4) failure by the Swap Counterparty to take certain
remedial measures required under the Swap Agreement following a Swap Counterparty Rating Event; and
(5) acceleration of the Notes following service of a Trigger Notice.

Pursuant to the Swap Confirmations, with respect to each Payment Date the Issuer will pay the Swap
Counterparty an amount equal to the notional amount multiplied by (i) under the fixed-floating swap
confirmation, a fixed rate; (ii) under the Three Month Euribor basis swap confirmation, a floating rate
calculated with reference to Three Month Euribor determined in accordance with the Swap Agreement and
reset periodically as specified in the Swap Agreement and (iii) under the Six Month Euribor basis swap
confirmations, a floating rate calculated with reference to Six Month Euribor determined in accordance
with the Swap Agreement and reset periodically as specified in the Swap Agreement capped at the
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maximum rate specified in the relevant Swap Confirmation. Netting will apply to all payments under the
Swap Confirmations. In addition, under each of the Swap Confirmations, the Issuer shall pay to the Swap
Counterparty an Initial Exchange Amount (as defined therein) and, on each Payment Date; the Swap Fixed
Amount will be due by the Issuer to the Swap Counterparty. Netting will apply to all payments under the
Swap Confirmations, including the Swap Fixed Amount.

Under each of the Swap Confirmations, with respect to each Payment Date the Swap Counterparty will pay
to the Issuer an amount equal to the notional amount multiplied by Three Month Euribor payable under the
Rated Notes.

As further described in each Swap Confirmation, the notional amount for each Swap Transaction will be
calculated with reference to the Principal Instalments of the Claims hedged thereunder (other than the
amount of any Principal Instalments due but unpaid, or that have been prepaid or repurchased, at the
relevant Collection Date and any Principal Instalments relating to Defaulted Claims) as of the Collection
Date preceding the beginning of each Calculation Period (as such term is defined in the Swap Agreement).
For each Calculation Period, the notional amount will be, in respect of the basis swap transaction, the lowest
of (1) the amount of such Principal Instalments, (2) the scheduled maximum notional amount set forth in the
relevant Swap Confirmation and (3) the notional amount for the previous Calculation Period and in respect
of the fixed-floating transaction the lesser of (1) the amount of such Principal Instalments and (2) the
scheduled maximum notional amount set forth in the relevant Swap Confirmation, provided that if the
Servicer fails to deliver the Quarterly Servicing Report in accordance with the provisions of the Swap
Agreement, then the notional amount for that Calculation Period (as such term is defined in the Swap
Agreement) shall be in each case the lesser of the scheduled maximum notional amount forth in the relevant
Swap Confirmation and the notional amount for the previous Calculation Period (as such term is defined in
the Swap Agreement).

The Swap Counterparty will be required to make payments pursuant to the Swap Agreement without any
withholding or deduction of taxes unless required by law. If any such withholding or deduction is required
by law, the Swap Counterparty will, subject to certain conditions, be required to pay such additional amount
as is necessary to ensure that the net amount actually received by the Issuer will equal the full amount the
Issuer would have received had no such withholding or deduction been required. Such a change in tax law
may result in the termination of the Swap Agreement. The Issuer will not be required to gross up under the
Swap Agreement. Any Swap Tax Credit Amounts payable by the Issuer shall be paid directly to the Swap
Counterparty following receipt without regard to the Collateral Account Priority of Payments or the Orders
of Priority and shall not form Issuer Available Funds.

The Swap Agreement and any non-contractual obligation arising out of, or in connection with, the Swap

Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with English law. The courts of England shall
have exclusive jurisdiction to hear any disputes that may arise in connection therewith.
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WEIGHTED AVERAGE LIFE OF THE CLASS A1 NOTES AND RELEVANT ASSUMPTIONS

The maturity and average life of the Class A1 Notes cannot be predicted, as the actual rate at which the
Loans will be repaid and a number of other relevant factors are unknown.

Calculations as to the expected maturity and average life of the Class A1 Notes can be made based on
certain assumptions. These estimates have certain inherent limitations. No representations can be made that
such estimates are accurate, or that all assumptions relating to such estimates have been considered or stated
or that such estimates will be realised. The tables below show the expected average life and the expected
maturity of the Class A1 Notes, based, among other things, on the following assumptions:

(i)  the Issuer will not exercise the Optional Redemption pursuant to Condition 6.4 (Optional
Redemption) or Redemption for Taxation pursuant to Condition 6.2 (Redemption for Taxation);

(i)  the option rights granted by the Issuer to the Originator to purchase the Portfolio, in whole or in part,
pursuant to clause 12 (Clean Up Option) of the Intercreditor Agreement shall not be exercised,;

(iii)  all instalments due under the Loans are duly and timely paid;

(iv) there will be no Defaulted Claims, Delinquent Claims, Delinquent 60 Claims and Delinquent 90
Claims;

(v) the Claims will be subject to a constant annual prepayment at such rates as shown in the tables below,
in equal monthly portions starting from the relevant Effective Date;

(vi) the instalments under the Loans will not be renegotiated upon request of the Borrowers;
(vii) no Trigger Event will occur in respect of the Class Al Notes;

(viii) the 3-months Euribor curve has been downloaded from Bloomberg using the function as of the 8" of
June 2022;

(ix) Collections equal to Euro 2.3mlin are part of the Issuer Available Funds as of the Subsequent Issue
Date;

(x) the terms of the Loans will not be affected by the provisions of any legal provision authorising
borrowers to suspend payment of interest and/or principal instalments; and

(xi) no purchase/sale/indemnity/renegotiations on the Portfolio is made according to the Transaction
Documents.

The actual performance of the Claims is likely to differ from the assumptions used in constructing the tables
set forth below, which is hypothetical in nature and is provided only to give a general sense of how the
principal cash-flows might behave. Any difference between such assumptions and the actual characteristics
and performance of the Claims will cause the estimated weighted average life and the principal payment
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window of the Class Al Notes to differ (which difference could be material) from the corresponding
information in the following tables.

The base case assumptions above reflect the current expectations of the Issuer but no assurance can be
given that the redemption of the Class A1 Notes will occur as described above. The prepayment rates are
stated as an average annual prepayment rate but the prepayment rate for one Interest Period may
substantially differ from one period to another. The constant prepayment rates shown above are purely
illustrative and do not represent the full range of possibilities for constant prepayment rates.

Class Al Notes
CONSTANT Estimated Weighted
PREPAYMENT RATE Average Expected Maturity
(% PER ANNUM) Life (years)
0.0% 5.3 6/30/2034
2.5% 4.5 12/31/2032
5.0% 3.9 9/30/2031
7.5% 3.4 12/31/2030
10.0% 3.1 12/31/2029
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE NOTES

The following is the entire text of the terms and conditions of the Notes (the “Conditions”). In these
Conditions, references to the “holder” or to the “Noteholder” of a Class A1 Note, a Class B Note and a
Class J Note or to a Class Al Noteholder, a Class B Noteholder and a Class J Noteholder are to the
ultimate owners of the Class Al Notes, the Class B Notes or the Class J Notes, as the case may be, issued in
dematerialised form and evidenced as book entries with Monte Titoli S.p.A. (“Monte Titoli”) in
accordance with the provisions of (i) article 83-bis of Italian Legislative Decree humber 58 of 24 February
1998 and (ii) Regulation jointly issued on 13 August 2018 by the Commissione Nazionale per le Societa e la
Borsa (“CONSOB ") and the Bank of Italy as subsequently amended and supplemented. The Noteholders
are deemed to have notice of and are bound by, and shall have the benefit of, inter alia, the terms of the
Rules of the Organisation of Noteholders (as defined below).

In these Conditions, references to (i) any agreement or other document shall include such agreement or
another document as may be modified from time to time in accordance with the provisions contained
therein and any deed or other document expressed to be supplemental thereto, as modified from time to
time; and (ii) any laws or regulation shall be interpreted and construed to include any amendments and
implementation thereof as of the date of these Conditions.

The Euro 128,915,000.00 Class A Residential Mortgage Backed Floating Rate Notes due December 2060
(the “Class A Notes” or the “Senior Notes”), the Euro 5,997,000.00 Class B Residential Mortgage Backed
Floating Rate Notes due December 2060 (the “Class B Notes” or the “Mezzanine Notes” and, together
with the Senior Notes, the “Rated Notes”), the Euro 14,990,000.00 Class J Residential Mortgage Backed
Floating Rate and Additional Return Notes due December 2060 (the “Class J Notes” or the “Junior
Notes”), were issued by Fucino RMBS S.r.1. (the “Issuer”) on 15 April 2019 (the “Initial Issue Date”) in
the context of a securitisation transaction (the “Transaction”) to finance the purchase of a portfolio of
monetary claims and connected rights arising under the mortgage loans and the relevant insurance policies
(the “Initial Portfolio” and the “Initial Claims”, respectively) from Banca del Fucino (“Banca del
Fucino” or the “Originator”), pursuant to article 1 of Italian Law number 130 of 30 April 1999 (as
amended and supplemented from time to time, the “Securitisation Law”).

The Euro 118,000,000 Class Al Residential Mortgage Backed Floating Rate Notes due December 2063
(the “Class Al Notes” or the “Senior Notes”) are issued by the Issuer on 16 June 2022 (the “Subsequent
Issue Date”) in the context of the Transaction to, inter alia, finance the purchase of an additional portfolio
of monetary claims and connected rights arising under the mortgage loans and the relevant insurance
policies (the “Subsequent Portfolio” and the “Subsequent Claims”, respectively) from the Originator,
pursuant to article 1 of the Securitisation Law. In the context of the restructuring of the Transaction
occurred on June 2022, the Final Maturity Date has been postponed, in respect of the Class B Notes and the
Class J Notes to the Payment Date falling in December 2063.

In addtion to the above, the net proceeds of the offering of the Class A1 Notes will be mainly applied on the
Subsequent Issue Date by the Issuer to fund (i) the early redemption of the Class A Notes, (ii) the partial
redemption of the Class B Notes and the Class J Notes and (iii) the partial reimboursement of the
Subordinated Loan. Starting from the Subsequent Issue Date, “Notes” will mean, collectively, the Class
Al Notes, the Class B Notes and the Class J Notes.

Therefore, on the Subsequent Issue Date, the Principal Amount Outstanding of the Notes will be:
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- Euro 118,000,000 with reference to the Class Al Notes;
- Euro 5,000,000 with reference to the Class B Notes;

- Euro 12,480,000 with reference to Class J Notes.

The Initial Portfolio has been purchased by the Issuer pursuant to a transfer agreement entered into on 25
March 2019, as subsequently amended on or prior to the Initial Issue Date and as further amended on or
prior to the Subsequent Issue Date, between the Issuer and the Originator (the “Initial Transfer
Agreement”). Representations and warranties in respect of the Initial Portfolio has been made by the
Originator in favour of the Issuer under a warranty and indemnity agreement entered into between the
Issuer and the Originator on 25 March 2019 (the “Initial Warranty and Indemnity Agreement”).

The Subsequent Portfolio has been purchased by the Issuer pursuant to a transfer agreement entered into on
30 May 2022, between the Issuer and the Originator (the “Subsequent Transfer Agreement” and, together
with the Initial Transfer Agreement, the “Transfer Agreements” and each of them, a “Transfer
Agreement”). Representations and warranties in respect of the Subsequent Portfolio has been made by the
Originator in favour of the Issuer under a warranty and indemnity agreement entered into between the
Issuer and the Originator on 31 May 2022 (the “Subsequent Warranty and Indemnity Agreement” and,
together with the Initial Warranty and Indemnity Agreement, the “Warranty and Indemnity
Agreements” and each of them, a “Warranty and Indemnity Agreement”).

In these Conditions, any references to (i) the “holders of the Senior Notes”, the “holders of the
Mezzanine Notes” and the “holders of the Junior Notes” are to the beneficial owners of, respectively, the
Senior Notes, the Mezzanine Notes and the Junior Notes; (ii) references to the “Class A1 Noteholders” are
to the beneficial owners of the Class Al Notes; (iii) references to the “Class B Noteholders” are to the
beneficial owners of the Class B Notes; (iv) references to the “Class J Noteholders” are to the beneficial
owners of the Class J Notes and (v) references to the “Noteholders” are to the beneficial owners of the
Notes. Any reference to a “Class” of Notes shall be construed as a reference to the Class Al Notes, the
Class B Notes or the Class J Notes, as the case may be.

The principal source of payment of amounts due under the Notes will be collections and recoveries made in
respect of the Portfolio (the “Collections”). By operation of article 3 of the Securitisation Law, the Issuer’s
right, title and interest in and to the Portfolio, any monetary claim of the Issuer under the Transaction
Documents, all cash-flows deriving from both of them and any Eligible Investments purchased therewith
(together, the “Segregated Assets”) will be segregated from all the other assets of the Issuer and amounts
deriving therefrom will be available, both before and after a winding-up of the Issuer, to satisfy the
obligations of the Issuer to the Noteholders and the Other Issuer Creditors (as defined below) in accordance
with the applicable Order of Priority (as set out in Condition 4 (Orders of Priority). The Issuer’s right, title
and interest in and to the Portfolio and to all the amounts deriving therefrom may not be seized or attached
in any form by the creditors of the Issuer other than the Noteholders, the Other Issuer Creditors and any
other third party creditors in respect of any taxes, costs, fees or expenses incurred by the Issuer in relation to
the Transaction until full redemption or cancellation of the Notes and full discharge by the Issuer of its
obligations vis-a-vis the Other Issuer Creditors.

Under a servicing agreement entered into on 25 March 2019, as amended on or prior to the Initial Issue Date
and as further amended on or prior to the Subsequent Issue Date (the “Servicing Agreement”) between the
Issuer and Banca del Fucino as servicer the Servicer has agreed to provide the Issuer with administration,
collection and recovery services in respect of the Claims and to carry out supervising activities with respect
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to the transaction in order to ensure compliance with the laws to protect the investors, pursuant to article 2,
paragraph 6-bis of Securitisation Law.

Under a corporate services agreement entered into on 25 March 2019 (the “Corporate Services
Agreement”) between the Issuer and the Corporate Services Provider, the Corporate Services Provider has
agreed to provide the Issuer with certain corporate administration services.

Under an administrative services agreement entered into on 25 March 2019 (the “Administrative Services
Agreement”) between the Issuer and the Administrative Services Provider, the Administrative Services
Provider has agreed to provide the Issuer with certain reporting and accounting services.

Under a back-up servicing agreement entered into on or prior to the Initial Issue Date, as amended on or
prior to the Subsequent Issue Date (the “Back-Up Servicing Agreement”), among the Issuer, the Servicer
and the Back-Up Servicer, the Back-Up Servicer has undertaken to act as servicer in case of termination of
the appointment of Banca del Fucino as Servicer, according to the Servicing Agreement.

Under a subscription agreement relating to the Class A Notes, the Class B Notes and the Class J Notes
entered into on or prior to the Initial Issue Date, among, inter alios, the Issuer, the Originator and the
Representative of the Noteholders (the “Original Notes Subscription Agreement”), the Originator has
subscribed and paid for the Class A Notes, the Class B Notes and the Class J Notes upon the terms and
subject to the conditions thereof and has appointed the Representative of the Noteholders to act as the
representative of the holders of the Class A Notes, the Class B Notes and the Class J Notes.

Under a subscription agreement relating to the Class A1 Notes entered into on or prior to the Subsequent
Issue Date, among, inter alios, the Issuer, the Originator, the Placement Agent and the Representative of the
Noteholders (the “Class Al Notes Subscription Agreement” and, together with the Original Notes
Subscription Agreement, the “Notes Subscription Agreement”), the Originator has subscribed and paid
for the Class Al Notes upon the terms and subject to the conditions thereof and has appointed the
Representative of the Noteholders to act as the representative of the holders of the Notes.

Under a cash administration and agency agreement entered into on or prior to the Issue Date (the “Cash
Administration and Agency Agreement”) among, inter alios, 